N\iddles@cﬁjgh

10.

11.

Legal and Governance

moving forward

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date: Thursday 3rd October, 2024
Time: 1.30 pm.
Venue: Mandela Room, Town Hall

AGENDA

Welcome and Evacuation Procedure
Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of interest.
Minutes - Audit Committee - 22 August 2024

Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and Section 24
Action Plan Progress Report

Best Value Notice - Update
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Report

Backstop Progress on the 2021/22 and 2022/23 Statement of
Accounts Approval

Forvis Mazars Progress Report - 2023/24

Draft Statement of Accounts and the Annual Governance
Statement 2023/24

Work Programme (Standard Item)

Page 1

3-10

11-26

27 - 32

33 -62

63 - 66

67 - 80

81 - 302

303 - 304



12.  Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may
be considered.

Charlotte Benjamin
Director of Legal and Governance Services

Town Hall
Middlesbrough
Wednesday 25 September 2024

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors J Ewan (Chair), B Hubbard (Vice-Chair), | Blades, D Branson, D Coupe,
G Wilson and L Young.

Assistance in accessing information

Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information
please contact Chris Lunn, 01642 729742, chris_lunn@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 2



Agenda ltem 4

Audit Committee 22 August 2024

AUDIT COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Audit Committee was held on Thursday 22 August 2024.

PRESENT: Councillors J Ewan (Chair), B Hubbard (Vice-Chair), D Branson, D Coupe,
G Wilson and L Young.
ALSO IN M Rutter (External Auditor) (Ernst Young), Andrew (Mazars), P Jeffrey (Internal
ATTENDANCE: Auditor) (Veritau), J Dodsworth (Veritau) and D Hepples (Veritau).
OFFICERS: C Cunningham, C Heaphy, A Hoy, A Johnstone, S Lightwing, D Middleton and

J Weston.

APOLOGIES FOR

ABSENCE:

23/52

23/53

23/54

23/55

23/56

Councillors | Blades.
MINUTE'S SILENCE

At the request of the Chair, all present stood and marked one minute’s silence to reflect on the
sad passing of Councillor Jeanette Walker.

WELCOME AND EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chair welcomed all present to the meeting and read out the Building Evacuation
Procedure.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest received at this point in the meeting.
MINUTES - AUDIT COMMITTEE - 25 JULY 2024

The minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on 25 July 2024 were submitted and
approved as a correct record, subject to the following addition to the Declarations of Interest:

MEMBER TYPE OF INTEREST ITEM/NATURE OF
INTEREST
Councillor J Ewan Non Pecuniary Agenda Item 10

Member of Teesside
Pension Fund

ANNUAL COMPLAINTS AND COMPLIMENTS REPORT 2023-2024

A report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services was presented to provide the Audit
Committee with details of the Annual Complaints Report covering the period from April 2023
to March 2024.

The report set out an overview of the Council’'s complaints process covering the following
elements:

complaints statistics and trends

outcomes

how the Council continued to learn from complaints

how the Council had worked towards the goals set in the previous Annual Report and;

planned actions to further strengthen the management of complaints during
2024/2025.

The report also outlined the governance in place to ensure complaints were managed in line
with good practice and the expectations of the Local Government and Social Care
Ombudsman (LGSCO), including details from the annual review of Local Authority Complaints,
published recently by the LGSCO.

Page 3



22 August 2024

The Council operated three distinct complaints procedures: corporate complaints, children’s
social care complaints and adult social care complaints. Some complaints and appeals were
addressed through separate procedures, such as data protection breaches or refusal of
planning permission.

As set out in the Council Plan 2024-2027, the Council was committed to improving resident
satisfaction with its services and welcomed customer feedback to help the Corporate
Complaints Team to identify areas of good practice and address issues for customers. The
volume of customer feedback in relation to services, the Council’s response to complaints and
commitment to learning from them improved performance.

The report provided a summary of corporate and statutory complaints covering 1 April 2023 —
31 March 2024.

Appendix 1 to the submitted report set out the data for this period and included:

Overall volumes of complaints and outcomes.

The numbers that were escalated to the LGSCO.

The volumes and outcome of complaints by department.

The percentage of complaints that were responded to in time by each
department.

o Tees Valley local authority comparative performance in relation to complaints.

While there had been a significant increase in the total number of complaints received by the
Council in 2023/24, there was a much less marked corresponding increase in the percentage
upheld after initial investigation. This rose from 50.5% (2022/2023) to 55.3% (2023/2024).
Most cases were upheld due to services failing to respond in time.

The outcome of complaints investigated by the LGSCO and the lessons the Council has
learned from them was set out in paragraphs 4.33 to 4.40 of the submitted report.

From the period April 2023 to March 2024, 109 compliments were received by the Central
Complaints team, which was a significant increase on the 46 recorded for the two-year period
2021-2023 as reported in last year’s report.
The main trends in compliments related to:

e 40 compliments thanking Environmental staff in relation to grass cutting, street
cleaning, bin collection and speed of responses to service issues.

e 18 compliments on the work of the Corporate or ‘Other’ service including outdoor
events held in Albert Park and the friendliness of staff.

e 16 compliments thanking the Children and Education teams for supporting families
during difficult times.

e 12 compliments across Adult Social Care mainly thanking individual workers for their
support and hard work.

There had been a slight increase in the number of complaints in relation to Children’s Services
from 157 (2022/23) and to 167 (2023/24). Whilst the volume had increased, the percentage
upheld locally had continued to decline year on year for the previously reported three years,
rising slightly in the latest year. This was a reflection of improvements in practice that had
been delivered by the Children’s Services improvement journey.

Adults statutory complaints numbers remained low in comparison to Children’s at 31 in
2022/23 and reducing to 29 in 2023/24. There was also a positive direction of travel in the
percentage of upheld and partially upheld complaints, which decreased from 51.6% in
2022/23 to 48.3% in 2023/24. Of those upheld only 17% or 5 complaints were fully upheld.
The remaining 31% or 9 complaints were only partially upheld. The main reason for the
partially upheld complaints was due to the service having failed to complete investigations
within the required timescales.

As in last year’s report, a continuing theme arising from complaints was the redesign of

services, adopting new ways of working with the public, and increasing the use of remote
engagement methods.

Page 4



23/57

22 August 2024

Appendix 1 to the submitted report also set out a breakdown of complaints by category. The
categories were set by the LGSCO and gave a deeper indication of the types of complaints
the Council received. In both years, the highest number of complaints by volume related to
Environment and Regulation services, which included Highways, Benefits and Tax, Corporate
and other complaints.

In relation to timeliness of complaints handling, whilst overall compliance had increased year
on year, performance across the Council was variable. Whilst over 92% of complaints in
relation to Benefits and Tax were responded to in time, the figure dropped to 37.5% for
Education and Children’s complaints in 2023/2024.

Some complainants remain dissatisfied after exhausting local complaints procedures and
escalated their cases to the LGSCO to seek independent investigation. During 2023/24, the
Council had no judgements made against it by the LGSCO which required payment to be
made to the complainants.

The Council continued to maintain a log to ensure lessons were learned from any
investigations, whether the complaint was upheld or not, as well as LGSCO investigations.
Learning was is shared across the organisation where wider lessons could be learned from an
issue.

The Council was exploring options to improve the speed of complaints management by
looking at options to increase automation to reduce the ongoing impact of reduced staffing
available to manage the complaints process. During 2024/2025 the Council would also
implement a delayed action from 2023 to ask complainants to complete a satisfaction
guestionnaire once their case was resolved, to identify further opportunity to improve practice.

Further information was requested on the timeline for investment in the fleet of vehicles used
for bulky waste collection.

In response to service areas where there were high volumes of complaints, Departmental
Management Teams were considering ways in which the speed of responses could be
improved and ensuring that requests were recorded correctly. An additional triage team had
been established in the Environment Directorate to assist with responding to completes more
quickly.

In respect of Children’s Services there had been a significant staff turnover which had resulted
in some delays responding to complaints. The Team Managers reported to their
Departmental Management Team on a monthly basis to manage performance.

In respect of compliments, Members agreed that it was important recognise the increase in
the number of compliments received and acknowledged that this demonstrated that services
were improving. A Member also highlighted that whenever major changes to Council services
were introduced there would naturally be complaints.

Finally, a request was made for the numbers of upheld and partially upheld complaints to be
separated. It was confirmed that this information would be provided in future reports.

AGREED as follows that:

1. the complaints statistics and trends, the outcomes and lessons learned from these,
and planned actions to further strengthen the management of complaints over the
next 12 months were noted by the Audit Committee.

2. Details of the timeline for investment in the fleet of vehicles used for bulky waste
collection would be provided.

MINISTRY OF HOUSING, COMMUNITIES & LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MHCLG) LETTER
ON ACTION TO TACKLE THE LOCAL AUDIT BACKLOG IN ENGLAND

A letter from the Minister of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government in relation
to action to tackle the local audit backlog in England had been circulated with the agenda.

The letter had been sent before the summer recess to give Local Authorities and audit firms
an updated on the awaited measures to recover the backlog in the local audit market. The

Page 5



23/58

22 August 2024

backlog was due to a result of quite complex challenges as well as some failures in the local
government audit system.

A series of backstop dates had been proposed for audits to be completed and audit opinions
to be issued. However the latest dates were delayed following the recent Parliamentary
Election and a consultation undertaken by the new Government. Middlesbrough Council’s
2021/2022 and 2022/2023 accounts were currently subject to audit and no opinion had been
issued. The new proposed backstop dates were subject to secondary legislation and the
proposal was to apply 13 December 2024 as the backstop to all financial years up to 31
March 2023.

A number of measures had been taken by the Government in consultation with CIPFA and the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC) including discussion as to how the backstop system would
work and enable local authorities to recover the situation. Longer term, there would be
proposals for a more significant overhaul of the whole system.

The expectation was that there would be full assurance, with “clean” opinions for many bodies
by the first backstop date of 13 December 2024. However, due to the time constraints,
auditors were likely to issue ‘disclaimed’ audit opinions (no assurance) on many accounts.
Early indications were that this could be several hundred in this first phase which might, in the
short term, cause additional concern.

The Ministry would continue to work with the FRC and other key organisations across the
local audit sector to support local bodies, auditors and the wider world to understand what the
different types of modified opinions meant. Local Bodies should not be unfairly judged based
on disclaimed or modified opinions caused by the introduction of backstop dates that were
largely beyond their control and auditors would be expected to clearly set out the reasons for
the issuing of such opinions to mitigate the potential reputational risk that local bodies might
face.

The Director of Finance explained that nothing fundamental had changed that had led to the
current position. Local Authority accounts had become more complex and specialist skills
were required to produce them. Over a period of years, the Council’s accounts had been
produced within the required timescale. However since 2021/2022 there had been difficulties
in recruiting and retaining people with the required skillset both in audit and local government
finance to produce these very technical documents. It was likely that there would continue to
be disclaimed or modified opinions on accounts issued for some time, with the aim of catching
up by 2025/2026.

A further issue was how the Auditor would start work on the 2023/2024 when they did not
have audited closing balances for the previous year. This was a significant issue and there
was currently no solution. However, additional work had been undertaken on the outstanding
accounts to get them in as good order as possible.

AGREED that the information provided was received and noted.
ERNST & YOUNG UPDATE ON AUDITS FOR 2021/22 AND 2022/23 - VERBAL REPORT
The External Auditor provided an update on Audits for 2021/22 and 2022/23.

The background had been set out in the previous agenda item and whilst this was not the
preferred outcome, EY supported the proposals.

The backstop date of 13 December 2024 was earlier than anticipated. Due to the limited
amount of time available before that date, EY’s intention was to disclaim both sets of the
Council’'s accounts. This would not include the Pension Fund accounts.

The Council would still need to publish the outstanding accounts and they would be updated
to reflect any changes. However, the updated position would not be audited. The opinion
would be issued by 30 November 2024.

The Pension Fund accounts need to be concluded and there were some items to resolve,
although the majority of work was completed. EY would issue clean audit opinions on the
Pension Fund accounts at the same time as the disclaimers on the Council accounts for

Page 6



23/59

23/60

22 August 2024
2021/2022 and 2022/2023.

A Member commented that the situation was disheartening for audit staff and officers, given
the huge amount of work that had taken place.

AGREED that the information provided was received and noted.
FORVIS MAZARS - AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2023/24

A joint report of the Director of Finance (S151 Officer) and Executive Member for Finance and
Governance was presented to provide Members with information in relation to the external
Audit Progress Report.

The purpose of the report was for Forvis Mazars, the Council’s External Auditor, to present
their latest assessment of relevant matters to highlight to the Committee, in order to keep
Members aware of any issues on their audit of the accounts and that also may be affecting
local authorities nationally from an external audit viewpoint.

The progress report as at August 2024 was attached at Appendix 1 to the submitted report
and included the following sections: Audit Progress 2023/2024 and National Publications.

The main item in the report related to the local government audit backlog reset. The national
backlog position had resulted in the work required to establish an audit opinion on the draft
Statement of Accounts for 2021/2022 and 2022/2023 by Ernst & Young, being incomplete,
and the accounts for those years remaining open with no signed audit opinion.

The Minister for Local Government had now considered the work done previously and issued
backstop dates for both older, incomplete audits and for new financial years going forward.
The backstop was the date in law by which time the audit needed to be completed, or
disclaimed or modified opinion issued. The dates proposed up to the 2027/2028 financial year
aimed to allow the local audit system to catch up on the backlog over a short timeframe and
move back to timely financial reporting and audit processes across the sector.

Ernst & Young were working through what the 13 December 2024 backstop meant for them in
terms of the work required to complete the audits, issuing the opinions on the two outstanding
financial years, and then reporting their audit results reports to the Committee.

Similarly, Forvis Mazars were considering what was feasible in terms of a 2023/24 statement
of accounts audit by 28 February 2025. This was in the light of this being the first year of their
audit contract with the Council, the delayed audit opinions on 2021/22 and 2022/23, and the
fact that the Council had not yet published its draft 2023/24 set of accounts. This was likely to
be towards the end of August.

Mazars were undertaking the Value For Money work and the findings would be reported to
Committee later in the year.

AGREED as follows that the audit progress report for the 2023/2024 audit was noted.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND ANNUAL COUNTER
FRAUD REPORT

A report of the Head of Internal Audit, Veritau, was presented to provide the Committee with a
summary of internal audit work undertaken in 2023/2024 and to provide an opinion on the
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk
management and internal control. A summary of counter fraud activity during the year was
also included.

A copy of the Annual Internal Audit Report was attached at Appendix 1 to the submitted report
which included a summary of the work completed during the year, findings from recently
issued audit reports, and the annual internal audit opinion. The overall opinion of the Head of
Internal Audit on the framework of governance, risk management and control operating at the
Council was that it provided reasonable assurance, which was an improvement on the
previous year.

Page 7



23/61

23/62

22 August 2024

At the time of writing, five audits had been finalised since the previous report to Audit
Committee. A further three audit reports had been issued to the responsible officers but
remained in draft. It was anticipated that these audits would be finalised over the next three to
four weeks and reported to the October meeting of the Audit Committee along with the other
ongoing work.

The report also included details of Veritau’s Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme
(QAIP) which outlined the auditors ongoing quality assurance arrangements and activities and
provided evidence to demonstrate that internal work had been carried out to the expected
professional standards.

The annual report setting out counter fraud activity and performance was attached at
Appendix 2 to the submitted report. It had been a productive year with the Council’s first
successful prosecution, which had raised awareness of audit’s fraud work. There had been
102 referrals of potential fraud, double the number from the previous year. The Council’s
Whistleblowing Policy had also been updated this year. A day of action on disabled blue
badge fraud and the National Fraud Initiative data matching exercise were other examples of
audit’s work.

AGREED that the following elements of the report were noted by the Audit Committee:

1. The results of internal audit work and counter fraud work undertaken during the year.

2. The opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Council’'s framework of governance, risk management and internal control.

3. The significant control issues identified by internal audit which were considered
relevant to the preparation of the Council’'s Annual Governance Statement.

4. The outcome of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and the
confirmation that the internal audit service conformed with Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards.

BEST VALUE NOTICE - STATUS UPDATE

A copy of a letter from the Deputy Director, Local Government Stewardship and Intervention
from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities had been circulated with the
agenda.

The Chief Executive reminded the Audit Committee that the Best Value Notice originally
issued to the Council in January 2023 and renewed in January 2024 had now lapsed. A
Government decision was awaited as to whether the Notice would be re-issued or not.

The Best Value Notice was originally issued due to the Council’s financial situation and the
behaviours and culture that existed within the organisation at that time. The Chief Executive
commented that considerable progress had been made in all those areas.

The Government would be looking for the Council to have made significant progress and also
a commitment to continue the good work. A recommendation had been made to Ministers
but as yet it was not known what the recommendation was. The Chief Executive would inform
Members as soon as further detail was received.

The Chair thanked the Chief Executive, Members and Officers for working together with
improved collaboration and a determination to get the Council where it should be and deliver
the best services for Middlesbrough residents.

AGREED that the information provided was received and noted.

PROGRESS AGAINST THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND
THE SECTION 24 REPORT

A joint report of the Chief Executive, Director of Finance (S151 Officer) and the Director of
Legal and Governance was presented that set out the key activities, progress and impact of
the Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and activity in response to the Section 24
recommendations made by the Council’'s External Auditors, since last reported to Audit
Committee on 25 July 2024.

Page 8



23/63

22 August 2024

Only the activity had been updated since the last report to Audit Committee in July and not the
measures of success. Updated information would be reported to the next Council meeting on
11 September 2024.

Two measures were off-track on both plans but it was the same measure. A decision had
been taken that the action that was planned — to create a protocol to manage non-compliance
with governance process — was no longer required. It had been determined that sufficient
tools and powers were already in place for good governance. The Council would be informed
of the revised approach in order to maintain transparency before removing the action from
both plans.

AGREED that progress against the Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and Section 24
Action Plan was noted by the Audit Committee.

ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE
CONSIDERED.

None.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL [\/\iddlegbi rioi Eugh

moving forward

Report of: Chief Executive, Director of Finance and Director of Legal and
Governance Services

Submitted to: Audit Committee
Date: 3 October 2024
Title: Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and Section 24 Action

Plan Progress Report

Report for: Information

Status: Public

Council Plan priority: Delivering Best Value

Key decision: Not applicable
Why: Not applicable
Subject to call in? Not applicable
Why: Not applicable

Proposed decision(s)

That the Committee notes the progress against the Corporate Governance Improvement
Plan and Section 24 Action Plan.

Executive summary

This report sets out the key activities, progress and impact of the Corporate Governance
Improvement Plan and activity in response to the Section 24 recommendations made by the
Council’'s External Auditors, since last reported to Committee on 22 August 2024.

Page 11



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

1. Purpose

1.1 This report sets out the key activities and progress since an update was last provided to
committee, in response to the Section 24 recommendations made by the Council’s
External Auditors and the Council’s Corporate Governance Improvement Plan.

2 Recommendations

2.1 That the Committee notes the progress against the Corporate Governance Improvement
Plan and Section 24 Action Plan.

3 Rationale for the recommended decision(s)

3.1 The Council must respond effectively and at pace to the deliver the improvements set out
in both the Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and the Section 24 report if it is to
effectively address the concerns around its culture, governance and financial challenges.

3.2 Member oversight is crucial in delivery of these actions and also provision of assurance
that intended impacts to address the governance weaknesses identified by the Council’s
External Auditors are being realised.

4 Background and relevant information

4.1 On 18 September 2023, Council received a report that set out the activities of Phase
Three of the proposed Corporate Governance Improvement Plan, alongside the
associated governance arrangements providing oversight of delivery. It also received a
report from the Council’s External Auditors which made statutory recommendations in
relation to the Council’'s governance. This report provides an update on delivery against
the action plan that was put in place in response to that report, as well as an update on
delivery against the Corporate Governance Improvement Plan.

4.2 The activities in the improvement plan comprise ten workstreams, each with a milestone
delivery plan which is monitored and reported monthly to the Leadership Team, the
Independent Improvement Advisory Board and at each full Council.

5. Performance management methodology
5.1 The Council’s and Programme and Project Management policy set out the methodology

used to assess and report on progress against delivery, which is applied across the
Corporate Governance Improvement and Section 24 delivery plans.

KEY:

BLUE - COMPLETE Activity delivered in full

GREEN - ON TRACK Delivery plan activities are on track and / or a or above standard

AMBER - OFF TRACK Delivery plan activities are < 5% below standard

RED — OFF TRACK Delivery plan activities are > 5% below standard

IMPACT - NO CHANGE The measures of success used to assess impact, refresh on differing time periods.

Some are annual, others are more frequent. If it says no change, either the data has
stayed the same or is not due to be refreshed

IMPACT MET - NO . s ro
(AMBER) Performance measures for this workstream are within 5% of the target

IMPACT MET — NO (RED) | Performance measures for this workstream are below target by more than 5%

Page 12 2




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

IMPACT TREND — MIXED | Of the range of performance measures that are against the workstream, some have
CHANGES improved, and others have worsened

5.2 Overall performance in relation to delivery of activity across the two improvement plans is

as follows (excluding activity not yet planned to start and not due to be delivered yet):

STATUS AT 11/09/2024
Activity
% On-track % Off-track | % Delivered Overall % on track or delivered
Corporate Governance | o/ (g/05) 1% (1/95) 91% (85/95) 99%
Improvement Plan
Section 24 Action plan 2% (1/47) 0% (0/47) 98% (46/47) 100%

5.3 The above table shows that 99% of planned activity has either been delivered or is on-

track for delivery in relation to the Corporate Governance Improvement Plan, with one
planned activity across the ten workstreams measuring as off-track.

5.4 100% of activity in relation to the Section 24 delivery plan is on-track or has been

delivered, with one activity showing as off-track.

5.5 The remainder of this report sets out the detail of the delivery plan activity.

6. Corporate Governance Improvement Plan: progress status

6.1 For the current reporting period, all workstreams are on target in terms of activity, as per

6.2

6.3

6.4

timescales set out in the corporate Governance Improvement Plan, with one being off
target, which is outlined below:

e A milestone in relation to the further development of the Finance Business Partnering
model to ensure ownership and accountability of budget managers. In order to ensure
the model aligns with the findings of the two external reports from CIPFA and Grant
Thornton, that have been undertaken in relation to financial management and financial
standing, this milestone needs to be paused until both those reports are issued in
order to ensure that the model addresses any findings within them.

Measures of success

The Council, in identifying the data sources to measure success, has set a baseline
against which it will judge ongoing performance. Frequencies in updating these measures
vary. Some measures are ad hoc, some annual, while others are refreshed on a quarterly
or monthly basis.

The Council continues to review its delivery plans and measures of success to ensure it is
taking the right actions and is focussed on assessing the impact of its activity.

Work to seek updates on measures is undertaken on a monthly basis, data on measures

of success has been refreshed and refined in recent months to ensure it tracks current
impacts. Changes in performance in the measures of success since last reported include:

Page 13 3



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

An increase in the number of agency staff working for the Council. Drivers for the
increase include increase in use within Children’s Services to provide emergency
resource and residential worker cover. There has also been an increase in use of
agency staff across a number of other departments where recruitment attempts
have been unsuccessful.

The number of complaints being received has reduced, however the % upheld
continues to be high, reflecting that the majority of complaints relate to service
delivery in Environment which is undergoing significant transformation in service
delivery. We fully expect this to return to normal in the coming months as the new
service settles in

The measure tracking the % of key audit actions delivered in line with original
timescales has been updated to track 2024/25 performance to give a better
reflection of current compliance. 22 actions so far are due to be delivered in
2024.25. Of the 6 that have passed their deadlines for implementation, 100% were
delivered in line with original timescales.

Key activities

6.5 The following activities within the Corporate Governance Improvement Plan have been

delivered since progress was last reported to committee:

THEME

WORKSTREAM

COMPLETED ACTIVITIES WITHIN REPORTING
PERIOD

Cultural
Transformation

Development and implementation of
a Member Development Strategy
and Programme

Commence delivery / implementation of the
Strategy against the underpinning delivery plan,
feeding into corporate performance reporting cycle.

Cultural
Transformation

Implementation (Completion) of a
Senior Management Review
including review of spans and layers
within the organisation

Development of a Workforce Plan to address interim
appointments at Head of Service and other key
leadership positions within the Council.

Formal approval of Workforce Plan by Leadership
Management Team.

Implementation of Workforce Plan

Financial Recovery
and Resilience

Improvements to financial
governance, spending controls and
monitoring through more effective
financial management, across the
organisation

Implementation of demand and cost modelling
forecast for high spend areas for MTFP
development, using a combination of demographic
data and trends combined with scenario planning
and sensitivity analysis.

Review effectiveness of demand and cost modelling
forecast for high spend areas for MTFP
development.

Section 24

Review of financial forecasting
processes to understand why
significant financial pressures, over
and above those anticipated and
reflected in the Council’s annual
budget, have emerged within the
first half of both the 2022/2023 and
2023/2024 financial years and
ensure future forecasting reflects
lessons learnt.

Implementation of forecast demand models over the
medium to long-term, using a combination of
demographic data and trends combined with
scenario planning and sensitivity analysis.

Page 14




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Summary of progress against plan

6.6 The following tables set out a summary position against planned activity and progress
against the measures of success that have been agreed to track the long-term impact
of this plan. There is one change control and update to be considered within a Council
report this month. If it is agreed, the last financial workstream will move from green to
complete, with:

e 16 out of the 17 activities within it having been completed (one was cancelled),
and

¢ The remaining action is recommended to be paused by Council - development of
the Business Partnering model within Finance until it can be assessed against a
report awaited from Grant Thornton on the Council’s Financial management and
financial standing.

ACTIVITY TRACKING OUTCOME IMPACT

CULTURAL EXEC
IMPACT | LMT LEAD

TRANSFORMATION CURRENT PREV. IMPACT MEMBER

TARGET

STATUS STATUS TREND MET?

Development / implementation of
People and Cultural Green Green Mixed No C Benjamin Clir N Walker
Transformation Strategy

Development / implementation of Data not
Member Development Strategy Green Green No C Benjamin Clir N Walker

and Programme BERI

Development / implementation of

a corporate governance training Improved Yes C Benjamin Clir N Walker
programme

Ensure stable and sustainable C Heaphy/C

leadership for the organisation CE CE B Benjamin M RS
Development / implementation of Data not
improved focus on employee Green Green updated Yes C Heaphy Clir N Walker

performance and accountability

Review Council's approach to
Member enquiries and n/a n/a C Benjamin Clir N Walker
engagement

Develop / implement
communications and Data not

engagement plan to support CE CE updated

cultural transformation
ACTIVITY TRACKING OUTCOME IMPACT
FINANCIAL RECOVERY AND LMT LEAD EXEC

RESILIENCE IMPACT MEMBER
CURRENT PREV. IMPACT TARGET

STATUS STATUS TREND MET?

ConFrqIIing 2023/24 expenditure n/a D Middieton Clir N Walker
to within approved budgets

C Heaphy Mayor Cooke

Page 15 5



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Setti bal d budget fi pt o
elting a balance uaget ror updated i

125 1 y No D Middleton Clir N Walker
In provements to financial up(t:iatnedt

governance, spending controls
and monitoring through more
effective financial management

Yes D Middleton Clir N Walker

7. Independent Improvement Advisory Board

7.1 Since its work was last reported the Board met on 19 August 2024. That meeting
considered the following:

Update from the Mayor and Chief Executive

Updates on delivery of the Member Development and People Strategies

An update on development of a Partnerships Working Strategy

Discussion on the development of a Target Operating model

Progress within the transformation programme. The Board is reviewing the
programme on a theme-by-theme basis. The Board have observed a number of the
transformation programme meetings that take place as part of steps to seek
assurance around the governance of the transformation programme.

o the 2024/25 budget

¢ a standing update on progress against the improvement plan and Section 24 report.

7.2 Action points arising from formal Improvement Board meetings, excluding admin related
tasks, e.g., facilitation of meetings, are set out at Appendix 1, alongside a summary of
information requested by the Board.

8. Section 24: progress update

8.1 The table below sets out the current status of activity in response to the Section 24
recommendations, along with a summary of the impact these activities are having on the
longer-term measures of success that have been set in order to enable the Council to be
able to assess whether the activities are having the intended impact.

8.2 There is now only one action left within the section 24 action plan to be delivered which is

to complete recruitment to the Chief Executive and Section 151 officer posts by March
2025.

Page 16 6



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

ACTIVITY TRACKING OUTCOME IMPACT

S24 ACTIONS

IMPACT
TARGET
MET?

CURRENT PREV. IMPACT
STATUS STATUS TREND

1. Progression of next phase of Corporate Governance

L aer . Above Above
Improvement Plan, prioritising actions to address cultural target taraet
and governance issues. 9
. . Data not
2. Development of contingency and succession governance updated

protocols to mitigate potential impact of any future changes Green Green No
in senior leadership.

3. Conclusion of Constitution review and provision of officer / 4 outof 5

member training ensuring changes are understood and above target No
implemented.

4. Identification of deliverable short-term savings, protecting Baseline
limited remaining reserves, considering statutory N/A set for
responsibilities and delivery of services. 23/24

5. Review service delivery models to ensure that they are
efficient, represent value for money and achieves the
outcomes required.

N/A

6. Review of financial forecasting processes to understand
emergence of significant financial pressures, in both 22/23
and 23/24.

7. Conclusion of Financial and Contract Procedure rules
review to ensure they are fit for purpose.

8. Provision of training on Financial and Contract Procedure

rules to all officers involved in contracting, procurement or
financial decisions.

9. Completion of contract review to ensure compliance with
Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

10. Review oversight arrangements for Middlesbrough
Development Company to assure value for money.

11. Develop action plan for the demise of Middlesbrough
Development Company setting out benefit realisation.

*No baseline set

Section 24: key activities

8.4 98% of all planned activities within the Section 24 Action plan have now been delivered.
There is no new activity to highlight in this report since it was last considered in August.

Section 24: measures of success
8.5 Work to seek updates on measures is undertaken on a monthly basis. Many of the
measures have been marked as complete or updated to reflect the completion of the

2023/24 financial year. Where measures of success remain active and have been
updated, all are either at baseline, target or have not been updated.

Page 17 7



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

8.6 The measure tracking the % of key audit actions delivered in line with original timescales
has been updated to track 2024/25 performance to give a better reflection of current
compliance. 22 P2 recommendations are due to be delivered in 2024/25, of the 6 due to
be delivered as at reporting, 100% of actions have been delivered in line with original
timescales. The impact measures for recommendation 6 reflect the impact of the
predicted budget pressures identified within the Quarter One Finance outturn report.

9. Other potential alternative(s) and why these have not been recommended

9.1 Not applicable.

10.Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s)
Financial (including procurement and Social Value)

10.1 Not applicable.
Legal

10.2 There are no direct legal implications as a result of this report, however delivery of this
plan provides evidence of compliance with a number of recommendations that have been
made by the Council’'s External Auditors under Section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.
Risk

10.3 If the Council fails to respond effectively to the improvement plan, this will have a
negative impact on the following strategic risks:

e Failure to meet a balanced budget.
e Risk of an unlawful decision by the Council.
e Corporate governance is not fit for purpose.
Human Rights, Public Sector Equality Duty and Community Cohesion
10.4 Not applicable.
Climate Change / Environmental
10.5 Not applicable.
Children and Young People Cared for by the Authority and Care Leavers
10.6 Not applicable.

Data Protection / GDPR

10.7 Not applicable.

Page 18 8



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s)

10.8 Not applicable.

Appendices

1 Key activities update from the Board

2 Corporate Governance Improvement Plan: measures of success
3 Section 24 Plan: Measures of success

Background papers

Reporting body Report title Date

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee Le;ssons Lgarnt: Best Value Inspection of Liverpool 5 Aug 2021
City Council

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee Boho X: Draft findings from internal audit and 6 Apr 2022
proposed management response

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee Audit Results Report 2020/21 22 Jul 2022

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee Statement of Accounts 2020/21 22 Jul 2022

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee Lessons Iear'ne.d: Best Value gnd external 22 Jul 2022
assurance within other councils.

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee j(())zrrr:]rg;ncmg a corporate governance improvement 22 Jul 2022

. Corporate Governance Improvement Journey:

Council CIPFA findings and next steps 19 Oct 2022

Council Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and 30 Nov 2022
progress update

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee E);tde;?eal Audit: Value for Money Governance 5 Dec 2022

Council Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and 18 Jan 2023
progress update

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee Statement of Accounts 2020/2021 28 Apr 2023

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee égg;tors Annual Report — Year Ended 31 March 29 Jun 2023

Council Corporate Governance Improvement Next Steps 5 Jul 2023

Council Section 24 Statutory EY recommendations 18 Sep 2023

Council Corporate Governance Improvement Plan 18 Sep 2023

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee Lgssons Lgarnt: Best Value Inspection of Liverpool 5 Aug 2021
City Council

Audit Committee Section 24 Report — Delivery and oversight 5 Oct 2023
arrangements

Council Corporate Gov.ernance Improvement Plan and 25 Oct 2023
Section 24 Action Plan progress report

Council Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and 29 Nov 2023

Section 24 Action Plan progress report

Audit committee

Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and
Section 24 Action Plan progress report

14 December
2023

Audit Committee

Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and
Section 24 Action Plan progress report

1 February 2024

Audit Committee

Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and

14 March 2024

Page 19




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Section 24 Action Plan progress report

Council

Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and
Section 24 Action Plan progress report

27 March 2024

Council

Second Progress report of the Middlesbrough
Independent Improvement Advisory Board

27 March 2024

Audit Committee

Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and
Section 24 Action Plan progress report

25 July 2024

Audit Committee

Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and
Section 24 Action Plan progress report

22 August 2024

Council

Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and
Section 24 Action Plan progress report

11 Sept 2024

Contact:

Ann-Marie Johnstone, Head of Governance, Policy and Information
Ann-marie_johnstone@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 20

10



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

T¢ obed

Appendix 1: Corporate Governance Improvement Plan measures of success

. . Previous
Current Previous Status against| Frequency of .
Outcome Measure of Success Target Current performance data | Previous performance data | performance
performance_| performancr, target data refresh q
|- = = e Z = B = Z Z period  ~
Reduce the number of audits that have limited or . 2 outof 16 up to
No ch: 0 0 2 ith 0 in 2024/25 /
no assurance in 2024/25 DEIELRR < every = montns n ma 2024
Improved understanding of corporate governance
policies and process and improved adherence to
them Improve the percentage of priority One and 20% of P1 actions and 13% of P2
Priority Two actions from Internal Audits that are Improved Improved 80% or higher Above target Quarterly 100% actions were complete within Now-23
delivered within original timescales original timescales
. . 50% of staff and
Improved relationships between officers and Staff. and Member suneys to assess health of [merowed [meroved 80% of councillors Ad hoc 38.65% 35.60% August 2023
members relationships . Sunvey
or higher
Improved retention of staff Staff tumover rates — Number of leavers No change Improved 5% Abovwe target Quarterly 2.85% 3.40% 202324
Improved staff satisfaction 1-10 Score of how valuefd staff feel as an No change No change 6.2 or higher Ad hoc 5.98 5.9 August 2023
employee of the Council Sunvey
Number of agency staff working for ~
Middlesbrough Council - Total Monthy 204 194 Jul-24
Reduced need to use agency staff
Number of agency staff working for ~
< Middlesbrough Counil  Transformation No change No change No target set No target set Monthy 10 10 Jul-24
5
g Number of roles at Head of Senice and above
‘2 Improved ability to recruit to key roles. that are vacant / occupied by Agency or interim No change No change 3 Monthly 5 5 Jul-24
@ staff
=
K]
% Improved outcomes for our community by Number of complaints — total Improved Less than 150 Above target Monthly 136 115 Jul-24
o ensuring that staff have the skills needed to
deliver excellent senices and that the
. - ) ) o i i
behaviours increase trust in the Council % of complaints upheld or partially upheld by the Improved Less than 40% Monthly 73% 71% Jul24
central team
Percentage of members completing all 100% At target Annual 100% 100% Oct22
mandatory training
Members have a Member development
programme that meets their needs and is well |Percentage of Members attending wider skills n/a baseline n/a baseline 95% Above target Annual 98% Data not available Oct-22
used
) . ) SR o thic
Member satisfaction with the Member 0 bzl i b=l 90% Annual 87.5% this is based on 21 71% this is based on 5 responses Oct-22
development programme responses out of 24 out of 7
Perfmtmahce is effectively managed within the Completion of appraisal process Improved n/a baseline 95% Annual 83% 81% Jul-24
organisation
. Number of member on member complaints 2 or fewer per Q4
Improved Member behaviour received No change quarter Quarterly 4 0 2023/24
Residents are increasingly satisfied with the . - . o .
way the Council is ran and with the Council Questions within the 2023 Resident suney No change n/a baseline 61% (NE average TBD 40% 64% P'e"""_‘s suney
overall currently underway 21/22) was in 2017
Residents |pcreasnngly agree that the Council ~ [Questions within the 2023 Resident survey No change Not previously 55% (NE average TBD 43% wa Not previously
acts on their concerns currently underway asked 21/22) asked

11




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

2¢ obed

budget

A s Current A Previous
Current Previous Status Against [ Frequency of |Current performance| Previous
Outcome Measure of Success Target performance _ | performance
= ~| Performance .| Performancr. Target .| datarefresh. data: . performance data .. .
period: period:
Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure | \ vy \r7. a1l Budget Holders trained by 31 December 2023 Improved 95% or higher Monthly 89.08% Jul-24
Rules training delivered
One training
Corporate finance training programme established |Quarterly programme of finance training established n/a baseline session delivered Quarterly 100% Feb-24 n/a n/a
per quarter
Budget management and purchase to pay Budget management dashboard available to all budget holders from Business /a one off
dashboards developed to improve management World through Power Bl reporting tools by 30 November 2023. P2P Dashboards n/a Dashboard in place n/a n/a n/a n/a
. N . . measure
information and compliance available by 31 March 2024
8 Budget management training rolled out to budget |All Chief Officers, Heads of Senice and Budget Holders Training delivered B 95% or higher n/a at this stage n/a one off n/a due from April 2024 na na na
holders December 23 to March 24 measure onwards
g
2
g
3 i . _— . e
8 2024/25 net expenditure is delivered within the Forecast outturn is within the agreed budget n/a Compliant / within Quarterly £3.742m Q1 n/a n/a
4 approved budget budget
=
]
e
g
ic ” . L . Maintain GF balance ain line with approved reserves policy - 7.5% of the net .
The Council's financial position is sustainable revenue busget which would be £11.1m at 31/3/25 Baseline set n/a £11.1m Annually £11.1m Q1 £11.1m Apr-24
The Council's financial position is sustainable Maintain unrestricted usable revenue reserves at a minimum of £8m at 31/3/25 Baseline set n/a £8m Annually £6.57m Q1 £8m Apr-24
2025/6 budget is set and balanced Balanced Budget for 2025/6 set Not yet measured n/a £0 variance baseline set Quarterly n/a n/a n/a n/a
Set a sustainable Medium Term Financial Plan in Compliant / within
place for the period 2025/6 to 2028/9 Balanced MTFP to 2028/9 n/a Annually n/a n/a n/a n/a

12




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

ez abed

Appendix 2: Section 24 Report measures of success

Status Current . Previous
Recommen . Current ) Frequency of Current performance Previous performance
. Measure of Success Also in CGIP Target against performance performance
dation performanca data refresh data: . data: .
Bf? L= B Bt = target ~ Bl = period:  ~ T period:  ~
1 Delf\{ery of the Corporate Governance Improvement Plan Above target na Above target Monthly 9 out of 10 workstreams activity Now23 10 out of 10 Oct23
activity on target or complete
P Number of roIe§ at Head of Ser\nFe alnd above that are v No change 3 Monthly 5 Aug-24 5 Jul-24
vacant / occupied by Agency or interim staff
P Number of Tralnsfonjmauon roles that are vacant / occupied v No change No target set No target( set - Monthly 10 Aug-24 10 Jul-24
by Agency or interim staff baseline
Reduce the number of audits that have limited or no April 2024 - March | 2 out of 16 complete audits
3 assurance in 2024/25 Y At target 0 At target Quarterly 0 2025 2022 to 2024 202224
100% 0 P1 issued or due in
Improve the percentage of priority One and Priority Two 24/25, 22 P2 actions to be 20% of P1 actions and 13% of
3 actions from Internal Audits that are delivered within Y Above target 80% or higher Above target Annual delivered in 24/25, 6 complete, Jun-24 P2 actions were complete Mar-24
original timescales all in line with iriginal within original timescales
timescales, 16 not yet due
3 Percentage of members completing all mandatory training Y 100% Annual 100% Oct-23 100% Oct-22
3 Percentage of Members attending wider skills Y No change 95% Aboe target Annual 98% Oct-23 Data not available Oct-22
) . . o) e o thic
3 Member satisfaction with the Member development v No change 90% Annual 87.5% this is based on 21 Oct23 71% this is based on 5 Oct-22
programme responses out of 24 responses out of 7
o ) L .
5 90% of projects within the programme, once launched are wa n/a at this Quarterly once live 90% once launched wa
on track stage
o ) ) - . .
5 90/? of(beneﬁts from projects realised in line with benefits wa n/a at this Quarterly once live 90% once launched wa
realisation trackers stage
6 Maintain expenditure in line with agreed budgets in 2024/5 Y No change Comptl)ljg;;twnhln Quarterly £3.742m Q1 n/a n/a
6 Maintain GF balance at £11.1m at 31/3/25 Y No change 11.1m At target Quarterly £11.1m Q1 £11.1m Apr-24
6 :l;/;a;;;tzaﬁm usable revenue reserves at a minimum of £8m at v No change Betweign?m and Quarterly £6.57m Q1 £8m Apr-24

13



This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Appendix 3: Summary of information requested and major action points arising from the Middlesbrough Independent
Improvement Advisory Board (MIIAB) August meeting

Information requests

Information on the impact of outreach work undertaken as part of the delivery of the People Strategy to encourage more people to apply for
jobs with the Council.

The Board asked for a breakdown of the reasons behind the increase in use of agency staffing.

Major comments / action points

Support for a wider set of KPIs to measure the impact of the Member Development Strategy — they are already in place, however only one of
them is reported to the Board as a summary of progress.

Gz abed

The Board thanked all involved in the delivery of the refreshed approach to management of Member enquiries.

The Board asked for a proposal from officers to better integrate performance, finance and risk reporting.

The Board recommended that the Council embed promotion of benefits that will be achieved through transformation within its communications
plans.

14




This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 6

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL M|dd|esg?g}ugh
moving forward
' Report of: ' Chief Executive
' Submitted to: ' Audit Committee
' Date: ' 3 October 2024
Title: ' Best Value Notice - Update
' Report for: ' Information
' Status: ' Public
Cc_)ur!cil Plan Delivering Best Value
priority:

Executive summary
The report presents the government’s decision not to renew the Council’s Best Value
Notice and the planned further report to full Council which will set out next steps.

Purpose

1.1To update the Committee on the recent Government review of the Council’s Best Value
Notice and set out the next steps.

2. Recommendations
2.1 That the Audit Committee notes:

e the Government’s decision not to review the Council’'s Best Value Notice; and
e the planned next steps in the Council’s ongoing improvement journey.

3. Rationale for the recommended decision(s)

3.1lt is important to keep this committee informed of the Council’s corporate governance
arrangements and any external assessment of them.

4. Background and relevant information

4.1 Government issued a Best Value Notice to the Council in January 2023. The Notice
was an indication from government that it was concerned about the way the Council
was operating. It was originally issued following serious concerns highlighted by the
Council's external auditor, published in July 2022, and issues around the Council’s
culture and governance identified in a CIPFA review published in September 2022.

Page 27 1




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

4.2 Progress against that Notice has been well documented to this Committee and full
Council, through regular reports on the delivery of both the Corporate Governance
Improvement Plan and the action plan put in place to respond to the External Auditor’'s
Section 24 report.

4.3 As a result of the progress the Council has made to date, the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government has now decided that it will not renew the Best
Value Notice that was in place.

4.4That very positive decision does not mean that the work of the officers and members
on the collective improvement journey has ceased. The next steps will be to report this
progress update to Council and outline in more detail the next phase of our approach to
corporate governance improvement.

4.5A full copy of the letter, outlining government’s decision is appended to this report for
the Committee’s information.

5. Other potential alternative(s) and why these have not been recommended
5.1 Not applicable. Report is for information only.

6. Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s)

Topic

Impact

Financial (including procurement and
Social Value)

Not applicable.

Legal

The decision not to renew the notice reflects the Council’s
positive progress on its corporate governance improvement
journey. There are no direct legal implications from this
decision as government has chosen not to exercise its
powers under the Local Government Act 1999 to intervene
in councils where there are concerns that there is non-
compliance with the Best Value Duty.

Risk

The outcome of the review is a positive reflection of the
Council’s current corporate governance arrangements. It
links to the following strategic risks:

e Failure to meet a balanced budget.
e Risk of an unlawful decision by the Council.
e Corporate governance is not fit for purpose.

Human Rights, Public Sector Equality
Duty and Community Cohesion

Not applicable.

Climate Change / Environmental

Not applicable.

Children and Young People Cared for
by the Authority and Care Leavers

Not applicable.

Data Protection

Not applicable.

Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s)

Not applicable.

Page 28 2



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Appendices

1 Letter to Middlesbrough Council from Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government —
9 September 2024

Background papers

Body Report title Date

Audit Committee Best Value Notice update 14 March 2024

Audit Committee Best Value Notice — Status Update 22 August 2024
Contact: Ann-Marie Johnstone, Head of Governance, Policy and Information
Email: annmarie_johnstone@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



; Max Soule
Deputy Director, Local Government
. . . Stewardship and Intervention
Ministry of Housing,
4 Ministry of Housing,
Communities & ConsY 0L 008
Local Government Local Government
4th Floor, Fry Building
2 Marsham Street
London SW1P 4DF
www.qgov.uk/mhclg
Clive Heaphy

Chief Executive

Middlesbrough Council 9 September 2024

Middlesbrough Council Best Value Notice expired 30 July 2024

Dear Clive,

As you know, the department issued a revised Best Value Notice (“Notice”) to
Middlesbrough Council on 30 January 2024 as a formal notification that the
department had ongoing concerns regarding the authority and requesting that the
authority engages with the department to provide further assurance of improvement.

We acknowledge the significant progress made by the council, such as making
positive changes to personnel in key leadership positions and delivering the
improvement plan, as well as developing strategies and establishing the infrastructure
for ongoing improvement in culture, governance and financial sustainability. It is
encouraging that the council recognises that the implementation of these strategies
will be vital to embedding the progress made to date.

Whilst the council's financial position has improved since the first Notice was issued
in January 2023, we note that significant financial risks remain. We recognise the work
the council has undertaken to understand its previous financial position and the
strategies in place to address these through transformation. We also acknowledge the
additional plans the council is developing following the recent external finance
management assurance review.

It is reassuring to see that the authority’s overall progress is endorsed by the
Independent Improvement & Assurance Board, albeit whilst recognising that changes
need to be embedded. We welcome the council’'s commitment to maintaining the
Board structure until March 2025, as well as proposals for the Local Government
Association to undertake a corporate review in early 2025, demonstrating the council’s
intention to maintain its improvement journey beyond the Notice process.

In light of the above, based on the available evidence ministers are reassured as to

Middlesbrough’s capacity to comply with its Best Value Duty under the Local
Government Act 1999 and the Notice will not be reissued at this time.

Page 31


http://www.gov.uk/mhclg

We recognise the efforts of the council and its staff and members who have worked at
pace to support the delivery of the achievements to date and expect to see this rate of
improvement sustained. The department will continue engaging with the council on an
informal basis to foster continuing constructive relationships and the Minister will
receive periodic updates on your progress.

Should the department deem it necessary to seek further assurance through a Best
Value Notice in future, a further Notice will be issued. The Secretary of State also holds
statutory powers under the Local Government Act 1999 to inspect or intervene in local
authorities where there is evidence of Best Value failure and, separately, under section
230 of the Local Government Act 1972 to request information from local authorities. A
failure to demonstrate continuous improvement may be judged to contribute to Best
Value failure and the Secretary of State will consider using these powers as
appropriate.

It is important to ensure transparency in relation to the challenges faced by local
authorities and the department’s engagement on these. A copy of this letter will
therefore be published on GOV.UK today, in line with the Best Value Notices previously
issued to the authority. | encourage you to make a copy of this letter available on the
council’'s website, and to share it with the Audit Committee and the Independent
Improvement & Assurance Board. We will notify your external auditor of our decision.

A member of my team will be in touch with you to discuss ongoing engagement with
the department. | look forward to receiving updates on your continued progress.

Yours sincerely,

Max Soule
Deputy Director, Local Government Stewardship and Intervention

Page 32



Agenda Item 7

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL

I\/\iddles%gh

moving forward

Report of: Head of Internal Audit, Veritau

Relevant Executive | Executive Member for Finance and Governance

Member:

Submitted to: Audit Committee

Date: 3 October 2024

Title: Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Report
Report for: Information

Status: Public

Strategic priority: All

Key decision: No

Why: Not applicable

Subject to call in?: No

Why: Not applicable

Executive summary

This report provides the committee with:

e an update on internal audit and counter fraud work undertaken.

Page 33




Purpose

1.

To provide Members with an update on the delivery of internal audit and counter fraud
work and on reports issued and other work completed since the last update to the
committee.

Background and relevant information

2.

Internal audit provides independent and objective assurance and advice on the Council’s
operations. It helps the organisation to achieve overall objectives by bringing a
systematic, disciplined approach to the evaluation and improvement of the effectiveness
of risk management, control and governance processes.

The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and
relevant professional standards. These include the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS), CIPFA guidance on the application of those standards in Local
Government and the CIPFA Statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit.

Fraud is a significant risk to the public sector. Annual losses are estimated as being as
high as £58 billion in the United Kingdom. Veritau are engaged to deliver a counter fraud
service for Middlesbrough Council. The service helps the Council to mitigate fraud risks
and to take appropriate action where fraud is suspected.

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on internal audit and counter fraud
work carried out in 2024/25. The Council’s internal audit and counter fraud work
programmes were approved by this Committee in July 2024.

Internal Audit Progress report

The internal audit progress report is contained in appendix 1. This includes a summary
of current work in progress, internal audit priorities for the year, completed work, and
follow-up of previously agreed audit actions.

Counter Fraud Progress report

The counter fraud progress report is contained in appendix 2. A range of work is detailed

including activity to promote awareness of fraud, work with external agencies, and
information on the level of fraud reported to date.

What decision(s) are being recommended?

That the Audit Committee

Notes the latest update on internal audit and counter fraud work.

Rationale for the recommended decision(s)

8.

Internal audit professional standards require that progress in delivering internal audit
work, and the findings and outcomes from audit work are reported to the audit committee.

Page 34 2



Other potential alternative(s) and why these have not been recommended
9. This report is for information. There are no other options available.
Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s)

Financial (including procurement and Social Value)

10.There are no specific impacts or implications.

Legal

11.There are no specific impacts or implications.

Risk

12.There are no specific impacts or implications.

Human Rights, Public Sector Equality Duty and Community Cohesion
13.There are no specific impacts or implications.

Climate Change / Environmental

14.There are no specific impacts or implications.

Children and Young People Cared for by the Authority and Care Leavers
15.There are no specific impacts or implications.

Data Protection / GDPR

16.There are no specific impacts or implications.

Page 35



Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s)

Action Responsible Officer Deadline
n/a n/a n/a
Appendices
1 Internal Audit Progress Report October 2024
2 Counter Fraud Progress Report October 2024
Background papers
Body Report title Date
n/a n/a n/a
Contact: Phil Jeffrey
Email: phil.jeffrey@veritau.co.uk
Contact: Jonathan Dodsworth
Email: jonathan.dodsworth@veritau.co.uk

Page 36



mailto:phil.jeffrey@veritau.co.uk
mailto:jonathan.dodsworth@veritau.co.uk

Middlesbrough

Internal Audit
Progress Report 2024/25

Date: 3 October 2024
APPENDIX 1

AVeritau

Assurance for the public sector




CONTENTS
c Background
c Internal Audit progress
4 Follow Up
5 Annex A: Internal Audit work in 2024/25
7 Annex B: Current audit priorities
16 Annex C: Summary of key issues from audits finalised
18 Annex D: Audit opinions and priorities for actions
19 Annex E: Follow up of agreed audit actions

Veritau =




5% BACKGROUND

1 Internal audit provides independent and objective assurance and advice
about the council’s operations. It helps the organisation to achieve its
overall objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to the
evaluation and improvement of the effectiveness of risk management,
control and governance processes.

2 The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 and relevant professional standards. These include the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), CIPFA guidance on the
application of those standards in Local Government and the CIPFA
Statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit.

3 In accordance with the PSIAS, the Head of Internal Audit is required to
report progress against the internal audit plan (the work programme)
agreed by the Audit and Governance Committee, and to identify any
emerging issues which need to be brought to the attention of the
committee.

4 The internal audit work programme was agreed by this committee in July
2024.

5 Veritau has adopted a flexible approach to work programme development
and delivery. Work to be undertaken during the year is kept under review
to ensure that audit resources are deployed to the areas of greatest risk
and importance to the council.

6 The purpose of this report is to update the committee on internal audit
activity up to 13 September 2024.

2{ INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS

A summary of audits underway and those finalised in the year to date, is
included in annex A. Annex A also details other work completed by internal
audit during the year.

N

8 The work programme, showing current priorities for internal audit work, is
included at annex B. Alongside the work in the ‘do now’ and ‘do next’
categories are indicative timescales for when work commenced or is
expected to commence, and projected dates for final reports to be
produced. These timescales may be subject to change, for example if work
priorities change as a result of ongoing risk assessment and work planning.

9 The programme includes several audits in the ‘do later’ category. The
internal audit work programme is designed to include all potential areas
that should be considered for audit in the short to medium term,
recognising that not all of these will be carried out during the current year
(work is deliberately over programmed).

Page 39

Veritau =



10 Annex C provides details of the key findings arising from internal audit
assighments completed, that we have not previously reported to the
committee.

11  We have introduced a new specification and report format for 2024/25 and
reviewed our definitions for action priorities and overall assurance levels.
Annex D lists our new definitions.

By FOLLOW UP

12 All actions agreed with services as a result of internal audit work are
followed up to ensure that issues are addressed. As a result of this work we
are generally satisfied that sufficient progress is being made to address the
control weaknesses identified in previous audits. A summary of the current
status of follow up activity is included at annex E.

Page 40 .




ANNEX A: INTERNAL AUDIT WORK IN 2024/25

Audits in progress

Audit Status

Agency staff (Children’s Services) Draft report issued
Direct payments Draft report issued
IT asset management Draft report issued
Social care transitions Draft report issued
Treasury management Ongoing
Procurement Ongoing
VAT accounting Ongoing
Information governance Ongoing
Commercial property income Ongoing
Procurement cards (follow-up) Ongoing
Payroll Ongoing
Teesside Pension Fund - investments Ongoing
Domestic abuse Ongoing
Middlesbrough Community Learning Service Ongoing
Risk management Ongoing
Final reports issued
Audit itepieie Opinion

Committee

Public health governance August 2024

Reasonable Assurance

Main accounting August 2024

Substantial Assurance

Benefits and Council Tax Support August 2024

Substantial Assurance

Health and safety August 2024

Substantial Assurance

Creditors August 2024

Substantial Assurance

Schools themed audit (business

L October 2024
continuity)

Reasonable Assurance

Teesside Pension Fund - administration October 2024

Substantial Assurance

Use of residential care October 2024

Reasonable Assurance

Continuing healthcare October 2024

Reasonable Assurance

Page 41

Veritau =




Early years funding

October 2024

Reasonable Assurance

Other work in 2024 /25

Internal audit work has been undertaken in a range of other areas during the year,

scheme.

A A review of returns completed by the Council for the Supporting Families

A A review of grant claims including claims relating to trading standards, the Tees
Valley Combined Authority and the Middlesbrough Mela.

A An annual review of a number of trust funds administered by the Council

including those listed below.

Page 42




ANNEX B: CURRENT AUDIT PRIORITIES

Audit /
Activity

Rationale / Comments on progress

Actual /
Expected
start

Expected
finish!

Corporate & cross cutting

Category 1 (do now)

Procurement Planning is underway. September | December
cards 2024 2024

&

«Q Procurement Ongoing. Fieldwork expected to be complete at the end of September. March December

‘; 2024 2024

w Information Ongoing. Fieldwork expected to be complete at the end of September. February December
governance 2024 2024
including Fol
Risk Planning is underway. September | February
management 2024 2025
Transformation | The Council’s transformation programme intends to transform the Ongoing Ongoing

programme

Council operationally and culturally into an organisation that can
modernise services and deliver them effectively. Our work will include a
combination of focused reviews along with support and critical challenge.
It is likely to cut across other areas included in the work programme.

1 This is the expected date the audit findings will be included in reports to the Audit Committee. The report will potentially be finalised sooner than this, and the

date of issue will be included when reported to the Audit Committee.

-4 Veritau A




Actual /

vt abed

Audit / . Expected
Activity Rationale / Comments on progress Expected finish:
start
Category 2 (do next)
Savings plans | The Council has significant budget pressures and has agreed a further October February
and delivery set of savings plans including as part of the Transformation programme. | 2024 2025
The audit will review progress against these plans and the
reasonableness of assumptions made in calculating savings and is likely
to focus on Children’s and Adult’s Services.
Members Members allowances and declarations of interest can provide significant | Q3 April
allowances and | risks to the Council including reputationally. The Council has had a 2024/25 2025
declarations of | number of governance issues highlighted in recent years.
interest
Business Business continuity is a key tool to mitigate risks arising from Q3 April
continuity unexpected changes in the external environment, for example increasing | 2024/25 2025
cybersecurity threats, supply chain issues resulting from global political
activity and potential climate and energy related events. This area has
not been audited for some time.
Partnerships An audit would review the Council’s role and governance arrangements Q3 April
with key partnerships. 2024/25 2025

Category 3 (do

later)

Decision
making and
Council
governance

The Council has had several governance related issues in recent years
which have been reviewed by internal audit. We will allocate time to
review any emerging issues and to ensure previously agreed actions
have been implemented. An audit may also consider a review of the

-4 Veritau A




Gy abed

Audit /
Activity

Rationale / Comments on progress

Council’s scrutiny arrangements including planning, timeliness and
reporting.

Actual /
Expected
start

Expected
finish!

Financial
resilience

The Council’s financial position remains critical. This will build on and
accompany work carried out on savings plans and the wider
transformation programme.

Recruitment
and retention

Recruitment and retention is a key corporate risk for the Council.

Succession
planning

The Council has had a significant turnover of senior officers in recent
years. An audit would review the new People Strategy and the Council’s
succession plans.

Information

Considered high risk due to external threats and the continuing pace of

security technological change. Risks may also have changed as a result of the
office move to Fountains Court.

Corporate Essential for effective governance. This area has not been audited for

complaints some time. The Council’s corporate complaints policy was agreed in
2022 and is due for review in 2025.

Performance A key assurance area reflecting its significant contribution to the

management achievement of the Council’s objectives.

Health and Health and safety is a key corporate risk for the Council. An audit was

safety carried out during 2023/24 concentrating on premises risk assessments

and this audit would review other areas within corporate health and
safety.

-4 Veritau A



o abed

Audit /
Activity

Rationale / Comments on progress

Actual /
Expected
start

Expected
finish!

Procurement Current work is ongoing, however further work may be carried out
during the year including an assessment of preparedness for the new
Procurement Act.

Asset Effective use of assets is a key priority for the Council and is one of our

management key assurance areas. The audit may review sale of Council assets which

(including has been an area of concern for the Council in recent years.

asset

maintenance)

Financial / Corporate systems

Category 1 (do now)

Treasury Ongoing. The audit has been delayed due to scheduling issues but November | December

management fieldwork is now expected to be complete at the end of September. 2023 2024

VAT Fieldwork is on hold due to HMRC review. TBC TBC

accounting

Payroll Ongoing. Fieldwork expected to be complete at the end of September. May 2024 | December
2024

Teesside Planning is underway. September | February

Pension Fund - 2024 2025

Investments




Actual /
Rationale / Comments on progress Expected
start

Expected
finish!

Audit /
Activity

Category 2 (do next)

Council Tax This is a key financial system and audited regularly. Q3 April
and NNDR 2024/25 2025
Category 3 (do later)
Income An audit would review the processes involved in collecting income for the
collection Council from the services it provides.
Main This is a key financial system and audited regularly.
U accounting
Q
L% Debtors This is a key financial system and audited regularly.
N Benefits and This is a key financial system and audited regularly.
~ Council Tax
Support
ICT

Category 1 (do now)

IT asset Draft report issued. May 2024 | December
management 2024

Category 2 (do next)

IT server Effective administration and security of IT servers is a key part of cyber | October February
administration | security, protecting council data and incident response and recovery. 2024 2025
and security This supports previous work on IT disaster recovery and will include

-4 Veritau A



Actual /
Rationale / Comments on progress Expected
start

Expected
finish!

Audit /
Activity

review of physical and environmental security of data centres. This has
been identified as a priority for audit in discussion with IT managers.

IT - email Email security is key to preventing and protecting council data and Q3 April
security ensuring it is transferred securely. It is also vital for cyber security and 2024/25 2025
protecting against phishing attacks and the threats from malware and
ransomware. This has been identified as a priority for audit in discussion
with IT managers.

Category 3 (do later)

IT - malware This is a vital aspect of cyber security, to maintain security of data,
protection system performance and availability and maintaining business
continuity. This audit will cover areas not already covered by the above
audits and, taken together, will provide thorough assurance on cyber
risk. This has been identified as a priority for audit in discussion with IT
managers.

g obed

Operational audits

Category 1 (do now)

Agency staff Draft report issued. Due to the length of time that has passed since the | August December
(Children’s fieldwork was completed we are preparing a shortened report which 2023 2024
Services) summarises the issues identified, implementation progress made and

any actions remaining. We expect this to be finalised by the end of

September.
Direct Draft report issued. February December
payments 2024 2024

-4 Veritau A



61 abed

Actual /

Audit / . Expected
Activity Rationale / Comments on progress Expected finish:
start
Commercial Ongoing. Fieldwork expected to be complete at the end of September. March December
property 2024 2024
income
Social care Draft report issued. May 2024 | December
transitions 2024
(Children’s to
Adult’s)
Middlesbrough | Fieldwork is underway. July 2024 | December
Community 2024
Learning
Service
Domestic Fieldwork is underway. June 2024 | December
abuse 2024
Category 2 (do next)
Homelessness | This is a high risk nationally with 271,000 people recorded as homeless October February
in England. Middlesbrough has the highest rates of homelessness in 2024 2025
Teesside according to the charity Shelter.

Section 117 Section 117 after care relates to care provided to residents who require | Q3 April
after care mental health care and support following a hospital admission. An audit | 2024/25 2025
(mental health | would look at the controls and risks relating to this.
services)
Financial In the context of increasing financial pressure on care services, robust Q3 April
assessments assessments can help the Council to accurately determine charges for 2024/25 2025
(Adult’s)

-4 Veritau A




Actual /
Rationale / Comments on progress Expected
start

Audit /
Activity

Expected
finish!

care and to work within budget. This area has not been reviewed for

some time.
Anti-social Anti-social behaviour is a significant issue for the Council. We have Q3 April
behaviour recently conducted an audit of this area so this audit would follow-up 2024/25 2025
management previously agreed actions.
Schools An annual themed audit of maintained schools. Previous themes have Q3 July 2025
themed audit included business continuity and the Schools Financial Value Standard 2024/25
U (SFVS).
Q
L% Category 3 (do later)
ol Commissioning | Commissioning and contract management is a key risk area for the
o and contract Council and includes significant levels of expenditure.
management
(Adult’s)
Home to This is an increasing area of spend and risk area for the Council.
school
transport
Reablement The Council’s reablement team helps to provide support to residents with

care needs to support themselves in their own homes. The Council’s
transformation programme intends to expand this provision.

Legislative An audit would review the Council’s approach and preparedness to
changes (ASC) | legislative changes including those relating to Liberty Protection
including Safeguards.

Liberty

-4 Veritau A



Audit /
Activity

Protection
Safeguards

Rationale / Comments on progress

Actual /
Expected
start

Expected
finish!

Climate
change

Climate change is a significant risk and priority for all local authorities.
An audit would consider key risks including those relating to energy
management.

Foster carers

The Council is part of a collaborative partnership with 11 other local
authorities in the North East. It also intends to expand the in-house
fostering capability as part of the transformation programme.

Inclusion
strategy

The Council has an Inclusion Strategy 2022-2025 and an audit would
review the effectiveness of the implementation of the strategy.

TG obed

Housing
development

A review of the arrangements to regenerate housing provision in
Middlesbrough.

Planning
applications

Planning applications can be a contentious area within local government
an audit would provide assurance that the Council is complying with
legislative requirements and is suitably transparent.




ANNEX C: SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES FROM AUDITS FINALISED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO THE

COMMITTEE

System/area

Management

Opinion Area reviewed Date issued Comments / Key issues
identified

actions agreed

recorded attendance.

Schools themed | Reasonable | Emergency plans, compliance | 26 July 2024 A complete business Plans will be
audit (business | Assurance with government guidance, continuity plan is not in place | updated and
continuity) review and testing of plans. for all schools. completed.
Clear cyber security and
cyber response Arrangements will
arrangements are not in be updated and
U place. aligned to business
g continuity plans.
D Teesside Substantial | Compliance with legislation, 6 August 2024 Procedures and controls are No significant
ol Pension Fund - | Assurance payments, bank account working well. actions agreed.
N administration changes.
Use of Reasonable | Support for residents and 29 August 2024 | Information is not retained A process will be
residential care | Assurance consistency of approach, to document the rationale for | implemented to
document retention, decision making. ensure all options
communication with third are considered and
parties. documented.
Continuing Reasonable | Financial contributions, 6 September Decisions are not always Decisions will be
healthcare Assurance invoicing. 2024 fully recorded and documented,
documented. recorded and
shared with relevant
officers.
Early years Reasonable | Submission, review and 12 September Three providers had claimed | Providers will be
funding Assurance payment of claims. 2024 hours in excess of the reminded to amend

the hours of

ey Veritau s




€g abed

System/area Opinion

Area reviewed

Date issued

Comments / Key issues
identified

Management
actions agreed
children who do not
take up their full
entitlement.




G abed

ANNEX D: AUDIT OPINIONS AND PRIORITIES FOR ACTIONS

Audit opinions

Audit work is based on sampling transactions to test the operation of systems. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud or error. Our
opinion is based on the risks we identify at the time of the audit. Our overall audit opinion is based on four grades of opinion, as set out
below.

Opinion \ Assessment of internal control

Substantial assurance | Overall, good management of risk with few weaknesses identified. An effective control environment is in
operation but there is scope for further improvement in the areas identified.

Reasonable assurance | Overall, satisfactory management of risk with a number of weaknesses identified. An acceptable control
environment is in operation but there are a number of improvements that could be made.

Limited assurance Overall, poor management of risk with significant control weaknesses in key areas and major improvements
required before an effective control environment will be in operation.

No assurance Overall, there is a fundamental failure in control and risks are not being effectively

Priorities for findings

Critical A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and requires urgent attention
by management.

Significant | A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives, which needs to be
addressed by management.

Moderate The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by management.

Opportunity | There is an opportunity for improvement in efficiency or outcomes, but the system objectives are not exposed to risk.




GG abed

ANNEX E: FOLLOW UP OF AGREED AUDIT ACTIONS

Where weaknesses in systems are found by internal audit, the auditors agree actions with the responsible manager to address
the issues. Agreed actions include target dates and internal audit carry out follow up work to check that the issue has been
resolved once these target dates are reached. Follow up work is carried out through a combination of questionnaires
completed by responsible managers, risk assessment, and by further detailed review by the auditors where necessary. Where
managers have not taken the action they agreed to, issues are escalated to more senior managers, and ultimately may be
referred to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Actions Completed.
The last report to this committee was in August 2024 and no actions have been completed since then.
Actions Outstanding

A total of 6 actions with original due dates that have passed are still outstanding. A summary of the priority of these actions is
included below.

Actions agreed ‘ Actions agreed by directorate

Ny Adult Environment
Priority of of i Children's . Legal and .
. . Social . and Finance Regeneration
actions actions Services . Governance
Care Community
agreed
Critical 3 0 0 3 0 0 0
Significant 1 0 0 1 0 0 0
Moderate 2 1 0 1 0 0 0
Total 6 1 0 5 0 0 0




9G abed

Of the 6 actions outstanding all 6 have had a revised date agreed.
Actions outstanding for more than 3 months (Critical or Significant)

Four Critical or Significant actions have currently been outstanding for more than 3 months. These actions all relate to the
audit of the Transporter Bridge, details of which have been reported previously to this committee. The actions are operational
in nature and will not be dealt with until the bridge is brought back into operation, for which there is no agreed date. We have
therefore removed the actions from our normal follow up process.




Middlesbrough

Counter Fraud
Progress Report 2024/25

Date: 3 October 2024
APPENDIX 2

AVeritau

Assurance for the public sector




CONTENTS
3 Background
3 Counter Fraud Management
4 Multi-Agency Work
4 Investigative Work



@ BACKGROUND

1 Fraud is a significant risk to the public sector. The government estimated
that between £33.2 and £58.8 billion of public spending was lost to fraud in
2020/21*. Financial loss due to fraud can reduce a council’s ability to
support public services and can cause reputational damage.

2 Veritau delivers a corporate fraud service to the Council which aims to
prevent, detect and deter fraud and related criminality. The counter fraud
team investigates allegations of fraud, plans and takes part in counter fraud
campaigns (eg the National Fraud Initiative), undertakes fraud awareness
activities with staff and the public, and maintains and updates the Council’s
counter fraud framework and associated policies.

3 This report updates the Audit Committee on counter fraud activity in
2024/25.

N
(-’ COUNTER FRAUD MANAGEMENT

4 In May, Veritau represented council partners, including Middlesbrough
Council, in a meeting with the Public Sector Fraud Authority leadership
team and Baroness Neville-Rolfe, Minister of State (Cabinet Office) for the
last government. The meeting focussed on sharing best practice and
increased collaboration between Local Authorities and Government to
combat public sector fraud?.

5 The counter fraud team and Council officers worked together as part of an
annual National Blue Badge Day of Action in May 2024. This is the second
year the Council has participated in the Day of Action. More councils from
across the country took part in the exercise, over 140, which seeks to
address and raise awareness of the misuse of disabled parking badges
known as blue badges. Checks were made on 53 badges in Middlesbrough
town centre to confirm they were being used lawfully and two penalty
charge notices being issued. The team have completed four investigations
into blue badge misuse in 2024/25 resulting in warnings being issued to
three people.

6 The counter fraud team worked with the Council’s communications team to
raise awareness of the Whistleblowing Policy with employees on World
Whistleblowers’ Day in June. Employees were encouraged to make
themselves familiar with the Council’s policy and how to report issues. In
July the team delivered whistleblowing training to 40 council managers
which focussed on what constitutes whistleblowing, how whistleblowing
concerns should be addressed, and the potential consequences of not
dealing with reports appropriately. A further session is scheduled for
September.

! Tackling fraud and corruption against Government, National Audit Office
2 “Trailblazing” councils save millions working with government counter fraud squad, HM
Government

Page 59


https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/tackling-fraud-and-corruption-against-government.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/trailblazing-councils-save-millions-working-with-government-counter-fraud-squad

7 Training was also provided to adult social care assessment officers. The
training focussed on how to spot false or forged documents submitted in
support of fraudulent applications for care. It also covered how the counter
fraud team investigates cases, what types of fraud affect adult social care

and how Council employees can identify other signs of fraud and report
them to the team.

& MULTI-AGENCY WORK

8 The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is a large-scale data matching exercise
that involves all councils and other public sector bodies in the UK. The work
of the NFI is overseen by the Public Sector Fraud Authority (PSFA) and the
exercise runs every two years. The counter fraud team has been helping
the council to prepare for the upcoming 2024/25 exercise. Checks are
underway to ensure that the Council meets government datamatching
requirements and best practice. Data from a number of council
departments will be gathered and securely sent to the PSFA in October
ahead of matches being returned in late December.

9 The Council has been in discussion with the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP) about undertaking joint investigations where fraud is
affecting both organisations. New working practices have been agreed and
where it is deemed to be in the best interests of the Council, counter fraud
officers will jointly investigate fraud with colleagues from the DWP.

O\ INVESTIGATIVE WORK

10 Between 1 April 2024 and 31 September 2024, the counter fraud team
have received 50 referrals of suspected fraud. These cover potential council
tax fraud, council tax reduction fraud, internal fraud, blue badge fraud,
adult social care fraud and debt evasion. Referrals have been made by
council employees, the NFI, the Department for Work and Pensions and the
public. Seventeen investigations have been completed this year and there
are currently twenty-two cases under investigation. Six people have
received formal warnings for fraud relating to the council tax reduction
scheme, council tax discounts, business rates, and use of blue badges. One
person has been referred to the Home Office for possible immigration
offences. Financial loss to the council was identified in a further three
investigations and information was provided to the Legal Department in two
debt evasion cases.

11  Investigative work in 2024/25 has helped identify £70k of loss due to fraud,
error and debt evasion. The counter fraud team supports the Council to
recover losses identified as part of investigations. Counter fraud savings?
are also tracked by monitoring repayments to the Council and calculating

3 Counter fraud savings consist of money recovered during the course of the year (debts may have
been calculated in previous years as well as the current financial year) and 12 months of savings
where an ongoing fraud has been stopped through the work of the counter fraud team.

Page 60



the value of stopping ongoing frauds. To date £68k of counter fraud savings
have been identified, which is twice the amount found in 2023/24.

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

To: Audit Committee
From: Justin Weston, Head of Finance & Investment

Date: 3 October 2024

Backstop progress on the 2021-22 and 2022-23 Statement of Accounts

Members will be aware from previous reports, discussion, and training, that the
external audits of the Council’'s 2021/22 and 2021/22 draft statement of accounts,
have been delayed for some time pending government direction on how to address
the national backlog. This applies to over 1,000 set of unsigned local authority
accounts across the country, with many local authorities being in a similar position to
Middlesbrough of having more than one set of accounts not being audited.

The government has now set out and laid the legislation (9 September 2024) around
the statutory backstop dates. These are the dates by which an external audit for a
particular financial year needs to be finalised by. These dates were reported to the
last Committee meeting but are set out below for clarity.

o 2022/23 & before: 13 December 2024
o 2023/24: 28 February 2025

e 2024/25: 27 February 2026

o 2025/26: 31 January 2027

e 2026/27: 30 November 2027

e 2027/28: 30 November 2028

The first backstop date (13 December 2024) would clear the backlog of unaudited
accounts up to and including 2022/23. Where auditors have been unable to complete
audits, they will issue a ‘disclaimed’ or ‘modified’ audit opinion. Auditors are likely to
issue hundreds of ‘disclaimed’ audit opinions but need to make clear that this is not
the fault of the organisation involved but of issues with the local audit system itself.

The five further backstop dates up to and including financial year 2027/28 allow full
assurance on external financial reporting to be rebuilt over several audit cycles. It is
the aspiration of the Government and key local audit system partners that, in the
public interest, local audit recovers as early in this five-year period as possible. This
means disclaimed opinions driven by backstop dates should, in most cases, be
limited to the next two years (up to and including the 2024/25 - backstop date of 27
February 2026), with only a small number of exceptional cases, continuing
thereafter.

While there will be modified or disclaimed opinions in relation to the external audit of
financial statements, auditors’ other statutory duties — including to report on Value for
Money (VM) arrangements, to make statutory recommendations, and to issue Public
Interest Reports — remain a high priority.

Page 63



The position for Middlesbrough Council

For Middlesbrough Council, the 2021/22 accounts audit was partially undertaken by
Ernst & Young (EY) between July 2022 and March 2023. At which point the audit
was paused given the council finance team had to closedown and prepare the
2022/23 accounts. The audit should then have restarted by July 2023 but did not,
due to central government considering what to do about the backlog position
nationally and there being uncertainty for external auditors about how to continue.

No further work has been done on the Council’s financial statements for 2021/22
since March 2023, except for a specific piece of work requested by the S151 Officer
in relation to the collection fund bad debt provision. EY have though continued their
work on the value for money assessment and on the Teesside Pension Fund. Both
are progressing to a conclusion and the appropriate audit opinion being issued.
Since the issue of the government legislation, EY have indicated that they can give
no formal assurance on the 2021/22 council financial statements given the amount of
work undertaken to date. As a result of this, the audit opinion on these statements
will need to be ‘disclaimed’.

In relation to the 2022/23 external audit process, the position is very similar to
2021/22. For the value for money assessment and the work around the teesside
pension fund, this work will be completed satisfactorily and reported to Members.
For the audit of the council financial statements, this work has not started given the
delay on the 2021/22 accounts. As a result, this will also be disclaimed in line with
2021/22.

Disclaimer process

The value for money interim results for 2021/22 & 2022/23 have already been
reported to the Committee by EY on 25 July 2024.

The results of the teesside pension fund work for these years (including a finalised
audit opinion) will be reported on at a future meeting of the Committee — probably the
next meeting on 28 November 2024.

We have now had further details from EY on the process for disclaiming the financial
statements audits for 2021/22 and 2022/23. Given the number of potential
disclaimed opinions needing to be issued, this work is being undertaken by a central
disclaimer hub rather than the local EY team.

The process to be followed for these two sets of council accounts are as follows:

1) The responsible financial officer should certify any accounts for these years,
that have either not been issued yet or need amendment as soon as possible.

2) The annual governance statement should be updated for any appropriate
items that have occurred since the relevant financial year end.

3) Assurance letters are required from key individuals in the audit process for
each year — these are the responsible financial officer, the monitoring officer,
and the chair of the audit committee for the Council.

Page 64



The above information will then need to be sent to the EY disclaimer hub so checks
can be made on the accounts and supporting documentation during October and
November. We are working to send all this information to EY as soon as possible.

Re-issue of the 2021/22 and 2022/23 Statement of Accounts

In terms of the 2021/22 and 2022/23 years, the financial statements and notes have
been updated following of the conclusion of EY’s work on the revision to the bad
debt provision on council tax and business rates. As these are material adjustments
to the accounts, it is necessary for the responsible officer to re-certify the statement
of responsibilities within the statement of accounts document. This was done by the
Director of Finance on Tuesday 24 September 2024 and updated versions of these
accounts will be published on the Council website. These restatements are important
as they influence the opening balances for the 2023/24 accounts (also on this
agenda).

Approval of the audited legacy accounts

Once the legacy statements of accounts for 2021/22 and 2022/23 have been
reviewed by the EY disclaimer hub, disclaimed opinions will be issued by the
external auditor to finalise the audit process for these financial years. These will
accompany the value for money opinion and the true and fair view on the pension
fund accounts.

The approval process for the audited accounts will then follow the normal process
under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015:

- EY will issue an audit completion report to the Council for comment to the
Council.

- A letter of representation will need to be confirmed by the S151 Officer. This
gives various assurances to the external auditor on the preparation and
systems that underpin the Statement of Accounts.

- The audited accounts, letter of representation and audit completion report for
the two years will then come to Audit Committee for consideration and
approval (expected to be on 28 November 2024).

- The accounts for these years once approved will then be complete, with the
latest open set of accounts for the Council being for 2023/24.

Conclusion

For Audit Committee members to note the above position on the 2021/22 and
2022/23 external audit processes, and the subsequent steps required to finalise &
approve the accounts for these years before the statutory backstop date of 13
December 2024.

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Progress Report
Middlesbrough Council

October 2024

6 Wa)| epuaby

forvss
mazars



Contents

01 Audit progress and building assurance
02 Publications and other updates

89 abed

forvss
) mazars



Audit progress



Audit progress

2023/24 update

We presented our draft audit plans for the Pension Fund and the Council for 2023/24 to the May
2024 meeting of the Audit Committee.

We received draft Pension Fund accounts in July 2024 and have requested external confirmations
from investment managers. We plan to commence our fieldwork from October 2024, with
completion expected to be January 2025. We intend to present our Audit Completion Report to the
February 2025 Audit Committee meeting. We will continue to liaise with management and will
agree completion timescales once all information is received.

The Council’s draft accounts are an agenda item for this meeting. An Engagement Quality
RevigNer has been allocated to the Council audit.

QD
Ad@t environment

In A@ust 2024, following consultation in April, Government published its proposals to address the
significant backlog in local government annual accounts audits. These measures include both
legislative changes to the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the introduction of several
statutory deadlines (‘backstop dates’) aimed at helping to clear the backlog of local government
annual accounts audits. Local government entities are required to publish their audited annual
accounts by each backstop date, which are:

» Financial years up-to-and-including 2022/23: 13 December 2024 (previously 30 September)
* Financial year 2023/24: 28 February 2025 (previously 31 May 2025)

» Financial year 2024/25: 27 February 2026 (previously 31 March 2026)

» Financial year 2025/26: 31 January 2027

» Financial year 2026/27: 30 November 2027

* Financial year 2027/28: 30 November 2028

Where the backstop dates now mean an auditor cannot complete all necessary audit procedures to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the audit opinion, a modified opinion may be
necessary (usually referred to as a disclaimed opinion or a qualified opinion).

Auditors will still be required to discharge their value for money (VFM) responsibilities, which
requires the work to be completed by the date of the audit opinion.

This month, the Government laid before Parliament the Accounts and Audit (Amendment)
Regulations 2024 as required to enact the proposals previously announced. At the same time, the
Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of the National Audit Office (NAQ) laid before Parliament
a draft revised Code of Audit Practice (the Code). On 10 September, the NAO, on behalf of the
C&AG, also published Local Audit Reset and Recovery Implementation Guidance notes
(LARRIGS) 1-5 to support auditors in meeting the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 (the Act). The LARRIGs are prepared and published with the endorsement
of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) and are intended to support the reset and recovery of
local audit in England.

The initial focus of this guidance is on supporting the reset for incomplete audits up to and including
the 2022/23 financial year and the implementation of the backstop dates for the publication of
audited accounts. The NAO will issue further guidance to support the recovery phase in due
course.

Whilst the guidance is primarily aimed at supporting auditors, it makes clear the requirements on
local authorities to prepare good quality accounts, clear and comprehensive working papers
supported by knowledgeable finance teams.

Impact on the audits of the Council

We have engaged regularly with the Section 151 officer on the backstop measures since they were
first announced earlier this year. Following publication of the backstop dates we have considered
the impact on our ability to deliver a complete audit of the Council’s accounts for 2023/24 that
would enable the Council to publish audited accounts by the new statutory deadlines. As no audit
assurance is available for 2022/23, there is insufficient time to deliver audit procedures for 2023/24
that would give us sufficient appropriate evidence for an unmodified opinion.

We will continue to engage with the Section 151 officer and her team, and the next slide provides
an outline of our intended timeline for rebuilding assurance.

forvss
mazars



Audit progress

Rebuilding assurance

We have reported to previous meetings the national backlog in local authority financial reporting and audit and the proposed arrangements including backstop dates.

The predecessor auditor has reported their intention to issue disclaimed opinions on the outstanding accounts for 2021/22 and 2022/23 by the backstop date of 13 December 2024. The lack of assurance on
balances brought forward to 2023/24 and the limited amount of time available mean we will need to issue a disclaimed opinion on the 2023/24 accounts by the backstop date of 28 February 2025.

The following table sets out our intended approach to building assurance and moving towards an unmodified opinion on the Council’s accounts. The contents of the table are aspirational and are based on
assumptions; actual timings will depend on the Council’s arrangements and audit findings.

Audit recovery: Middlesbrough BC

Year 1 2023/24 Year 2 2024/25 Year 3 2025/26
EJ
((%Proposed backstop date: 28 February 2025 Proposed backstop date: 27 February 2026 Proposed backstop date: 31 January 2027
|_;
No opening balances assurance for balance sheet Partial opening balances assurance for balance sheet ~ Opening balances assurance for balance sheet
No income and expenditure testing Income and expenditure testing Income and expenditure testing
No assurance for use of reserves No prior year assurance for use of reserves Assurance for use of reserves
Partial closing balance sheet audit Closing balance sheet audit Closing balance sheet audit

Modified audit opinion

forvss
mazars



Publications and other updates



National publications

- Publication/update Key points

National Audit Office (NAO)

1

(3)]

e/ obed

Draft Code of Audit Practice laid in Parliament

Local Audit Reset and Recovery Implementation Guidance

NAO report: Improving educational outcomes for
disadvantaged children

NAO report: The effectiveness of government in tackling
homelessness

NAO report: DWP customer service

NAO report: The condition and maintenance of local roads
in England

A draft of the new Code of Audit Practice was laid in Parliament on 9 September 2024 and has now been published on the NAO
website. Subject to Parliament’s approval, the Code will come into force in late autumn 2024.

The NAO has published the Local Audit Reset and Recovery Implementation Guidance on its Code and guidance pages Guidance and
information for auditors - National Audit Office (NAO).

The NAO has published its report Improving educational outcomes for disadvantaged children which examines whether the
Department for Education (DfE) is achieving value for money through its funding to support the attainment of disadvantaged children in
educational settings in England.

The NAO has published its report The effectiveness of government in tackling homelessness.

The NAO has published its report DWP customer service which examines whether the Department for Work & Pensions (DWP) has
an effective approach to customer service.

The NAO has published its report The condition and maintenance of local roads in England which examines whether the Department
for Transport (DfT) is ensuring value for money through its funding provision for local road maintenance.

forvss
mazars



National publications and other updates

NAO Publications

1. Draft Code of Audit Practice laid in Parliament

A draft of the new Code of Audit Practice was laid in Parliament on 9 September 2024 and has now been published on the NAO website, as required by Schedule 6 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014. Subject to Parliament’s approval, the Code will come into force in late autumn 2024.

https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/code-of-audit-practice-draft.pdf

The new Code was developed following a consultation in February/March 2024. It is intended to support measures taken by the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG) to
add_[a?s the current backlog of local government audits. MHCLG has also laid regulations to introduce statutory deadlines for publication of audited accounts, which is intended to work alongside the
draBJ ode.

«Q
2. %cal Audit Reset and Recovery Implementation Guidance

The-lﬁAO has published the Local Audit Reset and Recovery Implementation Guidance on its Code and guidance pages Guidance and information for auditors - National Audit Office (NAO).

Local Audit Reset and Recovery Implementation Guidance notes (LARRIGs) are prepared and published by the NAO on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) who has power to issue
guidance to auditors under Schedule 6 paragraph 9 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act). LARRIGs are prepared and published with the endorsement of the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC) and are intended to support the reset and recovery of local audit in England.

LARRIG guidance has been issued by the C&AG and published by the NAO to enable auditors (and preparers of accounts) to begin planning its implementation. The guidance will come into effect as
statutory guidance to auditors as soon as the relevant legislation underpinning the guidance comes into force, subject to Parliamentary approval. For the purposes of these LARRIGs, these are the
Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2024, and the 2024 Code of Audit Practice.

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/quidance-and-information-for-auditors/

forvss
6 mazars


https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/code-of-audit-practice-draft.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/guidance-and-information-for-auditors/

National publications and other updates

3. NAO report: Improving educational outcomes for disadvantaged children

The NAO has published its report Improving educational outcomes for disadvantaged children which examines whether the Department for Education (DfE) is achieving value for money through its
funding to support the attainment of disadvantaged children in educational settings in England, from early years to the end of key stage 4 (the end of compulsory schooling). It assesses:

. whether DfE has a coherent approach to support the attainment of disadvantaged children, and its progress against its objectives;
. how DfE understands the attainment of children and how it evaluates what works to effectively allocate resources; and
. the accountability arrangements and support DfE provides schools and early years providers to ensure value for money.

The report concludes that each year, DfE spends around £60 billion to support all children across schools and early years settings. For 2023-24, this included an estimated £9.2 billion focused on
supporting disadvantaged children and narrowing the attainment gap between them and their peers, with half of this comprising disadvantage elements of its core funding for schools.

Despite this investment, disadvantaged children performed less well than their peers across all areas and school phases in 2022/23. The gap in children’s attainment had been narrowing before the
COVID-19 pandemic, which then had a detrimental impact. The gap continues to widen for key stage 4, which is when children leave school, and, while the attainment gap for those finishing primary
school narrowed slightly in the past year, it remains wider than it was a decade ago.

Dghas evidence to support some of its interventions and uses this to help schools and early years providers to make decisions. However, it does not yet understand the outcomes resulting from a
stgsificant proportion of its expenditure on disadvantaged children. It also does not have a fully integrated view of its interventions, or milestones to assess progress and when more may need to be
doHe.

\]
Thig, and the lack of sustained progress reducing the disadvantage attainment gap since 2010/11, means that DfE cannot demonstrate it is achieving value for money. To make progress, and secure
value for money, it should build more evidence of what works, look strategically across its interventions and how it allocates its funding, and work effectively across government to address the wider
factors to make progress on this complex issue.

Improving educational outcomes for disadvantaged children

forvss
mazars


https://www.nao.org.uk/reports/improving-educational-outcomes-for-disadvantaged-children/

National publications and other updates

4. NAO report: The effectiveness of government in tackling homelessness

The NAO has published its report The effectiveness of government in tackling homelessness. Note: On 9 July 2024, the Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities (DLUHC) was renamed
the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG). The report refers to DLUHC throughout, as that was the name in use at the time of fieldwork.

This report follows on the NAO’s last report on homelessness in 2017 — around six months before Homelessness Reduction Act (HRA) 2017 came into force. The report assesses value for money in
terms of whether DLUHC is working with government departments and local authorities in a way that maximises government’s ability to tackle homelessness. Specifically, it looks to establish whether
DLUHC: has a good understanding of the nature of homelessness; is delivering appropriate system leadership; and supports local authorities well.

The report concludes that homelessness is a highly complex issue affected by a wide range of social and economic factors, and by government policy in areas such as housing, welfare and asylum.
Statutory homelessness has increased significantly in recent years, meaning that more people are finding themselves either with no stable place to live or in temporary accommodation provided by
their local authority.

Providing temporary accommodation alone cost local authorities over £1.6 billion in 2022-23, but it varies in quality and there are gaps in regulation, while some of it — such as B&Bs being used for
ho.ﬁeholds with children — is unsuitable. Dealing with homelessness is creating unsustainable financial pressure for some local authorities.

T8 situation has worsened since the NAO last examined the issue in 2017. Despite the introduction of HRA 2017, homelessness numbers are at a record level and expected to increase. While
HC has developed much better homelessness data and stronger links with local authorities, the government still has no strategy or public targets for reducing statutory homelessness, and
DLUHC is falling behind on key programmes to improve housing supply. Funding remains fragmented and generally short-term, inhibiting homelessness prevention work and limiting investment in

aqgsl-quality temporary accommodation or other forms of housing.

Until these factors are addressed across government, DLUHC will not be able to demonstrate that it is delivering optimal value for money from its efforts to tackle homelessness.

The effectiveness of government in tackling homelessness

forvss
10 mazars


https://www.nao.org.uk/reports/the-effectiveness-of-government-in-tackling-homelessness/

National publications and other updates

5. NAO report: DWP customer service

The NAO has published its report DWP customer service which examines whether the Department for Work & Pensions (DWP) has an effective approach to customer service. The evaluative criteria
used to assess value for money included whether DWP:

. has a clear framework for monitoring customer service, such as clear objectives, measures and performance reporting;
. has provided good customer service over recent years in relation to four key areas — satisfaction, payment accuracy, payment timeliness and telephony; and
. has clear plans to improve customer service

The report concludes that DWP has a responsibility to provide good customer service, not least because its customers cannot switch to an alternative welfare provider if they are unhappy with the
service they receive. Its customers include some of the most vulnerable in society, who rely on DWP for the accurate and timely payment of the benefits to which they are entitled.

Faced with growing demand and a challenging operational context, DWP’s customer service has fallen short of the expected standards over recent years, particularly for certain benefits, such as
Pegsonal Independence Payment (PIP). It is generally not meeting its performance benchmarks or standards for customer satisfaction, payment timeliness and answering calls to its in-house
tetgphone lines.

re are some areas of strong performance with, for example, the proportion of State Pension customers satisfied with the service they receive consistently above DWP’s benchmark of 85%, and
Uni&ersal Credit performing well on payment timeliness and telephony.

Bu‘f\lhere are also areas of poor performance, in particular payment timeliness for PIP with only 52% of claims processed in line with the 75-day standard in 2023-24 — although this represents a
considerable improvement compared with previous years.

DWP recognises that it needs to transform its services to be a customer-focused organisation. Its modernisation plans are based on a good understanding of the issues that need to be addressed and
are necessarily ambitious. However, the scale and complexity of the plans mean delivery is risky, and DWP is unlikely to achieve in the short term the improvements that are needed.

DWP must now set out how it will assess whether its actions to improve customer service are working and how it will track progress towards its goals. This will provide assurance on value for money
and help DWP keep its plans on track so that it can consistently provide a good service to those people who rely on it.

DWP customer service

forvss
11 mazars


https://www.nao.org.uk/reports/dwp-customer-service/

National publications and other updates

6. NAO report: The condition and maintenance of local roads in England

The NAO has published its report The condition and maintenance of local roads in England which examines whether the Department for Transport (DfT) is ensuring value for money through its
funding provision for local road maintenance, and whether it is effectively fulfilling its role in supporting local authorities to deliver local road maintenance. The NAO has assessed whether:

« DfT understands the condition of local roads in England;
« DfT is using its data and information to inform its funding decisions; and
« DfT is supporting local authorities effectively through providing guidance on asset maintenance.

The report concludes that local roads are a vital part of local transport infrastructure, used every day by millions of people. Despite their importance, the condition of local roads is declining and the
backlog to return them to a good state of repair is increasing.

DfT has provided between £1.1 and £1.6 billion of capital funding each year to local authorities and has set out plans for additional funding through to 2034. Given the fiscal constraints, it is essential
thabDﬂ' secures maximum value from the funding it has available.

H&Wever, at present DfT does not have a good enough understanding of the condition of local roads and does not use the limited data it does have to allocate its funding as effectively as possible. It
d not know whether the funds it allocates are delivering improvements in road condition, and has not updated its

6 o7
00]
guidance to local authorities, to share good practice and help them make the most of their limited funds, for some years.

Managing the local road network is becoming increasingly complex — for example, as climate change and autonomous vehicles demand more from it — and the additional funding that DfT has secured
provides an opportunity to equip local authorities to better meet these challenges.

If DfT is able to address the issues in its current approach it will be much better placed to improve the value for money of funding in this area and secure an improved and more resilient local roads
network.

https://www.nao.org.uk/reports/the-condition-and-maintenance-of-local-roads-in-england/

forvss
12 mazars


https://www.nao.org.uk/reports/the-condition-and-maintenance-of-local-roads-in-england/

Contact

Forvis Mazars

Mark Kirkham
Partner
mark.kirkham@mazars.com

5th Floor

3 Wellington Place

Leeds

LS1 4AP

Tel: +44 (0)113 394 2000
http;Jmew.forvismazars.com/uk/en

6/ 9b

The contents of this document are confidential and not for distribution to anyone other than the recipients.
Disclosure to third parties cannot be made without the prior written consent of Forvis Mazars LLP.

Forvis Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Forvis Mazars Global, a leading global professional services network. Forvis Mazars LLP is a limited
liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at 30 Old Bailey, London,
EC4M 7AU. Registered to carry on audit work in the UK by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our
audit registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. VAT number: GB 839 8356 73

© Forvis Mazars 2024. All rights reserved.

forvss
mazars


http://www.auditregister.org.uk/
mailto:mark.kirkham@mazars.com
http://www.forvismazars.com/uk/en

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL I\/\iddlesbi rioi Eugh

moving forward

Report of: Director of Finance (S151 Officer)

Relevant Executive | Executive Member for Finance & Governance

Member:

Submitted to: Audit Committee

Date: 3 October 2024

Title: Draft Statement of Accounts — 2023/24
Report for: Information

Status: Public

Strategic priority: All

Key decision: Not applicable

Why: Report is for information only

Subject to call in?: No

Why:

Proposed decision(s)

Not applicable — for information only

Executive summary

Under the Constitution, Audit Committee are responsible for the approval of the
Council’s Statement of Accounts (SOA) each year. This report presents the draft SOA
for the 2023/24 financial year, which is normally presented to the Committee for
information only (at this stage) and then approval upon conclusion of the external audit.
The accounts are complex and provide a significant amount of information relating to the
Council’s financial position, performance and cashflows over the year in question.

Page 81



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Presentation of the draft SOA for 2023-24 has been delayed due to the ongoing audit of
2021-22, which included a specific review of the methodology for calculating the
Collection Fund bad debt provision for compliance with IAS37. The s151 Officer
requested the External Auditor to undertake this work considering the material
adjustments that were anticipated to result from the review, which would also affect the
2022-23 and 2023-24 financial statements.

Any potential audit adjustments because of the review of the Collection Fund Bad debt
provision in the 2021-22 and 2022-23 accounts would impact on the opening balances
of 2023-24, therefore the S151 officer was unable to sign and publish the 2023-24
accounts as presenting a true and fair view until this work was concluded. In addition to
some of the bad debt provision changes and because of other narrative being updated
due to the passage of time, the S151 Officer has recertified and issued all three sets of
accounts simultaneously. The older sets of accounts replace the versions previously
issued by the Council whilst the draft SOA for 2023-24 is issued for the first time. All are
available on the council website.

Despite this delay (the statutory date for publishing these accounts was 31 May 2024), it
is still an important aspect of the governance and approval process for Members to
consider the financial details of the Council at the draft accounts stage and prior to the
external audit process being undertaken. Particularly in the context of the backstop
arrangements on the previous two sets of accounts where the audits are incomplete but
the Council will be receiving audit opinions shortly to allow these financial years to be
closed.

1. Purpose

For Members to consider the draft Statement of Accounts for the 2023/24 financial year.
This is an important part of the governance process around the year-end accounts as
the Committee will be responsible for reviewing the external auditors’ findings and then
approving the audited accounts for publication at a later stage.

2. Recommendations

That the Audit Committee

¢ Note the draft Statement of Accounts for 2023/24 has been approved by the Director of
Finance for publication on 24 September 2024 and are currently on the council website
and out to public inspection until 8 November.

e Review any key issues within the published draft accounts and have opportunity to
discuss these with officers.

Page 82 2



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

3. Rationale for the recommended decision(s)

The report and statement of accounts are for information and discussion only at this
stage. No decisions are required.

4. Background and relevant information

5. Like all large organisations, Middlesbrough Council is required by law to publish and
report on its financial position, performance, and cash flows during the financial year. It
does this by producing and publishing a statement of accounts each year.

6. The Accounts produced by the Council have some similarities to those produced by
private companies under companies act legislation. However, local authorities have their
own specific set of rules to follow in relation to financial reporting under various local
government acts. They are also required to follow the main provisions of the Local
Authority Accounting Code of Practice, which is issued each year by the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA).

7. ltis best practice and good governance for Audit Committee to review the draft SOA
prior to approving the audited accounts under the requirements of the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015. This is part of the Committee’s remit under the Constitution
and will help Members with understanding the Council’s financial position at the
appropriate accounting date, and then with any matters raised by the auditors or
members of the public.

8. Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, these accounts should have been
published by 31 May 2024. However, Members will be aware from previous committee
reports and information in the media, that there is a major issue in terms of a national
audit backlog of prior year audits that are still on-going. At the statutory publication
date, very few local authorities were able to make their draft accounts available. As
has been suggested previously central government are in the process of re-setting the
external audit process so that local authorities can publish their accounts in a timelier
manner going forwards. However, this is going to take several audit cycles to resolve.

9. In addition, the S151 Officer, in response to a change to the relevant international
accounting standard (IAS 37), requested a review of the methodology in relation to the
Collection Fund bad debt provision to ensure that the accounts presented a true and
fair view.

10.The Collection Fund is a legally separate account to the Council’'s General Fund. Itis a
mechanism for collecting council tax and business rates income on behalf of
Middlesbrough Council, Central Government, Cleveland Fire Authority and the Police
and Crime Commissioner for Cleveland. Income from the Collection Fund is then
distributed to the relevant precepting organisations based on their budget
requirements.

11.Middlesbrough’s share of any surplus or deficit on council tax and business rates is
held within the Collection Fund Adjustment Account, which is an unusable reserve
within the Council’s balance sheet. This is then distributed in the following year’s
budget process through precepting upon the Collection Fund.

Page 83 3



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

12. At the end of 2021/22 financial year, the total collection fund debt was £47.2m with a
provision for bad debts totalling £33.99m, an assumption that 72% of debt outstanding
at that point would not be collected. The calculation of the bad debt provision was
based upon a profile of the aged debt outstanding but involved an element of officer
judgement. Any debt over 5 years old was also provided for at 100%.

13.The change in requirements around IAS37 (which requires a determination of any
impairment involved on the carrying value of the debt) meant that this was not an
appropriate methodology for the provision. It should be based on historical evidence
and actual debt recovery levels informed by actual collection performance data.

14.As recovery of outstanding debt typically takes 10 years and debt is still being actively
recovered for debt older than 10 years, the provision of £34.005m (at 31 March 2022)
was assessed to be overly prudent. A new methodology based up on long term
collection rates (adjusted to account for previous debt write off) over the last 30 years
was developed and applied to both 2021-22 and 2022-23 collection fund debt.

15.The change in methodology which was then applied to 2021/22 and 2022/23 accounts
and resulted in a release of £9.617m from the bad debt provision. Middlesbrough’s
share of this was £7.160m which was then transferred to the Collection Fund
Adjustment Account. At this point, the revised bad debt provision for the Collection
Fund totalled £24.388m.

16. An existing surplus of £1.7m against other changing factors within the collection fund
resulted in a total available of £8.9m at the end of 2022/23. Current forecasts for the
2023/24 Collection Fund outturn position are predicting that there will be a net in year
deficit of £0.6m on the Collection Fund. £8.3m was therefore available to the Council
at the end of the 2023/24 financial year and for budgeting purposes in 2024/25. The
table below shows this overall movement for members information.

Origi_nal Release of New Closing Estimated Estim_ated

Closing | b vision 2021 | (SUPUS) 1 g i) / Closing
Collection (S_t{rplus) / 29 Deficit 2022- Deficit 2023-24 (S_u_rplus) /
Fund Deficit 2022-23 23 Deficit 2023-24

£m £m £m £m £m

Council Tax (2.63) (5.93) (8.56) 0.85 (7.71)
Business
Rates 0.85 (1.22) (0.37) (0.24) (0.61)
Total (1.78) (7.16) (8.93) 0.61 (8.33)

17. Following the publication of the 2022/23 draft statement of accounts, the Director of
Finance asked the external auditor, Ernst & Young (EY) to review the change in
methodology, totals involved and for a view about some of the assumptions being
made. It was important to get a view from the auditor given the significant amounts

Page 84 4



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

involved and their importance to the overall financial position of the Council. This work
was carried out during late 2023 and early 2024.

In general, EY were happy with the move to a net collectible debt basis and the
methodology undertaken by the council finance team to restate these figures but felt
that there was some inconsistency with the treatment of debt write offs and debt write
on’s within the model. To ensure a common position, some further adjustments were
made to the level of the bad debt provision. This changed the total provision in the
accounts as at 31 March 2023 to £25.636m, an increase of £1.248m. It also required
some amendments to be made in both the 2021/22 & 2022/23 financial statements
and notes.

Even though the value of the provision has increased slightly, the £8.330m transfer to
the Council’s general fund can still be maintained as the final outturn position on the
collection fund was higher than expected at £14.945m.

Sign off of Accounts and Draft 2023/24 Statement of Accounts

Although the draft accounts for 2021/22 and 2022/23 have not been audited fully (see
item 8 in relation to the backstop arrangements), the amendments on the bad debt
provision plus some other minor changes in narrative due to the passage of time, mean
that the revised statement of accounts needs to be recertified and reissued to comply
with statutory regulation. This was done by the Director of Finance on 24 September
2024, and these have been updated on the Council website.

The importance of reissuing these accounts is that the balances on assets and
liabilities roll forward and have an impact on the opening position for the 2023/24
financial year. Even though the management accounts and financial statements for
the latest full financial year have been complete for some time, it was important to
confirm the position on the bad debt provision with EY before the accounts were
finalised and released to stakeholders. It should be noted by Members that whilst the
previous year's accounts are unaudited, the figures, totals and narrative that
accompanies these have been produced to a high-quality standard and a significant
degree of professional compliance.

As part of the financial improvement agenda, additional specialist resource has been
deployed in the production of the draft statement of accounts working alongside the
council’s own closure of accounts team.

23.The draft accounts for 2023/24 have also been certified as a true and fair view of the

Council’s financial position by the Director of Finance and were opened for public
inspection on 30 September 2024, for a period of 30 working days. This inspection
window concludes on 8 November 2024 in line with the Accounts and Audit Regulations
requirements. Any enquiries from members of the public will be responded to and
resolved in a timely manner and reported to Members as appropriate.

24.The draft Statement of Accounts for 2023/24 (Appendix 1) is a highly technical and

complex document but is the main form of external financial reporting provided by local
authorities. Its format and content are prescribed by the CIPFA Accounting Code of

Page 85 5



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Practice with the aim of giving a high level of visibility and transparency over the
Council’s financial affairs.

25.The Statement of Accounts firstly consists of a Narrative Report from the Director of
Finance. This report gives an explanation on the financial position of the Council and
describes the key activities/highlights for the council during the year. The report also
contains performance-based information that shows what has been achieved using
public funds during the financial year.

26.The second section includes the Council’s financial statements. These are the core
elements of the SOA and include the movement in reserves statement, the income and
expenditure statement, the balance sheet, and the cash flow statement for 2023-24.

27.The third section is the notes to the accounts, and these include detailed narrative
explanation and figures that support the key totals within the financial statements and
other issues that are of interest to local authority stakeholders.

28.The Accounts also include the collection fund, covering council tax and business rates
activities, the accounts of the Teesside Pension Fund for which Middlesbrough Council
is the administering authority, and a set of group accounts (financial statements and
notes) which consolidate our wholly owned subsidiary, Middlesbrough Development
Company, into the Council’s own accounts. As Members will be aware MDC is in the
final stages of being wound-up by the Council and as a result this financial year, will be
the last year of any group financial statements.

29.The final section is the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year that sets
out how the Council has complied with best practice governance arrangements and
any key risk and control issues that arise from that.

30.Members need to be aware of the key issues, figures and accounting policies used in
the accounts but a detailed knowledge of the statements of accounts and all the
information contained within is not necessary. Any training required will be provided by
the Council’s finance team as required. An initial session on some of the high-level
issues in the accounts has been arranged before the Committee meeting to start this
engagement process.

31.The document contains a significant amount of financial information about the Council.
Even though the publication being delayed beyond the statutory date of 31 May is not
ideal, it still gives a detailed view on the financial position of the Council on 315t March
2024, and is the most relevant and up to date data available on assets, liabilities, and
financial performance.

32.An important point for Members to note is that there are some significant differences
between the Council’s financial statements, which are part of the statement of accounts
document and its management accounts which are reported for budget and operational
purposes. This relates to technical accounting adjustments and timing issues in how
certain totals are reported. Two important areas to note are the presentation of
reserves and the net worth of the Council’s balance sheet.

Page 86 6



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

33.Movement in Reserves (page 35): The total value of usable reserves in the Balance
Sheet as of 315t March 2024 was £75.702m. This is much higher than the £12.055m
total that has been reported in the budget monitoring process for 2024/25 and is lower
than the amount recommended by the S151 Officer.

34.The reason for the higher total figure includes capital and revenue grants unapplied
(those amounts paid over in past financial years but to be expended on committed
items), as well any other committed revenue reserves, such as school reserves and the
better care fund from the NHS. In particular, capital grants being rolled forward to future
year’'s capital schemes is a significant value at £51.760m. It should be remembered
that these amounts are not available to finance the current year revenue budget
position as follows:

Total Capital Revenue Other Total Revenue
Usable Grants Grants Revenue Reserves
Reserves Unapplied Unapplied grants available (Em)
(Em) (Em) (Em) (restricted) £m

£75.702m | (E51.760m) | (£5.409m) (£6.478m) £12.055m

35.Net worth of the Balance Sheet (page 38): The net worth of the Council’s balance sheet
at the 31 March 2023 is a positive one totalling £279.3m. This means that assets
available exceed liabilities due by a significant margin. The net worth position overall
though has decreased in year of £130.1m (31.8%). Members should note that this
decrease predominantly relates to retirement benefits under IAS 19 and a change in the
discount rate applied to the liabilities that form part of the local government pension
scheme, making this arrangement comparatively more expensive. Further information
on this is given in note 39 to the draft Statement of Accounts, but it should be noted that
again any pensions movements will not affect the Council’s financial position for revenue
budget purposes as it will influence future pensions payments over the next 20-40 years.

36.0ther potential alternative(s) and why these have not been recommended
Not applicable at this stage.

37.Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s)
Not relevant to this report.

38. Financial (including procurement and Social Value)
Although the Statement of Accounts is the main method of external financial reporting to
the public and other stakeholders by the Council, there are no specific financial
implications relating to this report.

Legal
The publication of the draft statement of accounts is a legal requirement under the Accounts
& Audit Regulations 2015.

As the Council is not currently achieving the statutory dates for the audit of its accounts, a
notice has been included on the Council website to this effect in line with the 2015

Page 87 7



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

regulations. This allows any stakeholders to be aware of this position, when looking for or
reviewing the Accounts. The regulations allow for this and the audit of the accounts to
continue under this provision.

Risk

As the Statement of Accounts covers all financial transactions of the Council, it
encompasses all strategic priorities and risks. There are, however, no relevant
considerations in this are in respect of this report.

Human Rights, Public Sector Equality Duty and Community Cohesion
There are no relevant considerations in these areas in respect of this report.

Climate Change / Environmental
There are no relevant considerations in these areas in respect of this report.

Children and Young People Cared for by the Authority and Care Leavers
There are no relevant considerations in these areas in respect of this report.

Data Protection / GDPR
There are no relevant considerations in these areas in respect of this report.

Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s)

Action Responsible Officer Deadline

Not applicable

Appendices

1 Draft Statement of Accounts — 2023/24

Background papers

Body Report title Date

Corporate  Affairs and Audit | Audited Statement of Accounts — | 29 April 2023

Committee 2020/21

Corporate  Affairs and Audit | Draft Statement of Accounts — | 5 August 2022

Committee 2021/22

Audit Committee Draft Statement of Accounts - | 1 February 2024
2022/23

Contact: Justin Weston, Head of Finance & Investment

Email: justin_weston@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 88 8







Contents

N T = LAY ST = LT o Lo PP PPPPPOt 5
Statement of Responsibilities — Middlesbrough COUNCIl ............c.eoiiiiiiiiiiie e 30
Statement of Responsibilities — Teesside PENSION FUNG ...........cviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeiee e 31
Auditor's Report — Middlesbrough COUNCIL............ooiiuiieiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e e e e 32
Auditor's Report — Teesside PENSION FUNG .........oooiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e e s snneeenanes 33
FINANCIAI STALEIMENTS. ... ettt ettt et e e ettt e e e s e e e s st e e e s et e s ams e e e e asbe e e e e b ne e e e nnn e e e anbn e e e anne e e e nnnnes 34
MOVEMENE IN RESEIVES STATEIMENT. ... .veieeiiiiieeiiiee ettt e ettt e e e e s e e e s st et e e asre e e s asseeeeasnseesanneeesannneeeanneeenn 35
Income and EXPENItUre STALEIMENT. ... ...cciiiiiiieiiiiie et ie et e e e e et et e s et e e s asneeesasne e e s anneeesannneeesnnneeean 37
= 1 L (ot IS 1= =] PSSP 38
(0= 1] g o [0 S =1 (=11 1] TSP PP PP PP PP 39
INOLES 10 T8 ACCOUNTS ...ttt ettt ittt e et e ettt e e ettt e e sttt e a4 skt e e ek et e e aas et e e 4s st e e ek et e e sne e e e an e e e e ennne e e s nnnnes
Note 1 Accounting Policies
Note 2 Accounting Standards Issued but not yet adopted........
Note 3 Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies
Note 4 Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty ....... 55
Note 5 Events after the Balance Sheet DALe .............coicuiiiiiiiiieiiie e 56
Notes Supporting the Movement in RESEIVES SAEMENT .........c.uuiiiiiiieiiiiie et eiieeeesieeeeesiieeesseeeeeannneeeas 57
Note 6 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations..............c........... 57
Note 7 EArmMarkea RESEIVES .........eiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e s bbb et e e e e e e e annbneneeaeaeaas 59
Note 8 Expenditure and FUNAING ANGIYSIS . ......cotuiiiiiiiiiiei ettt e st e e e e e s ebaeeeeeeeeaas 61
Note 9 Other Operating Income and EXPENItUre ............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiei e 63
Note 10 Financing and INVeStMEeNt ACHVITIES .........oouuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei e 64
Note 11 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant INCOME ..........cuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 64
Note 12 LT [ L Tol0 0 = PP PP PP 65
Note 13 Dedicated SChOOIS GIaNt...........ueeiiiiiieeiiiii ettt e e s e s ebre e s snnneeesnneeens 68
Note 14 OffiCers’ REMUNEIAtION .........vviiiiiie ittt e st e s ebneeennneee s 69
Note 15 Members’ Allowances and Expenses
Note 16 Trading Operations
Note 17 Audit Fees ....................
Note 18 AGENCY SEIVICES .. uttteeaiitteeaiitee ettt e e ettt e e aate e e e sbe e e e et bt e e e aase e e e sbne e e e sbe e e e aanbeeesnsneeaanbneeennn
Note 19 REIALEA PAITIES ... cee ittt ettt ettt ettt e st e ekt e e ettt e e s bt e e e anbb e e e abbe e e e annneeeanneee s 73
Note 20 [0 [=To I =70 To [0 1= PP P PP PPPP PR 74
Notes Supporting the BalanCe SNEEL..........cuuiiiiiiiiie it e et e et s e e e s nbneee s 77
Note 21 Capital Expenditure and Capital FINANCING.........veiiiiiieiiiiee it 77
Note 22 Capital COMMILMENTS ...ttt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e abbee e e e e e e e aababbeeaaeeeaannneneeeas 77
Note 23 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) ..........uiiiiiiiiiee e 78
Note 24 Revaluations and Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) ............ccccccco...... 84
Note 25 HEIEAGE ASSELS ...ttt e oo ettt e e e e e sttt e e e e e e s e s bb et e e e e e e s anbnbneeaeaeaan 85
Note 26 INVESTMENT PrOPEITIES. .....eeeeieeee ettt ettt e e e e st e e e e e s et eeaeaesannnnneeeaaaaan 87
Note 27 INEANGIDIE ASSELS ...ttt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e nbe et e e e e e e e e annnraeeaaaaaan 88
Note 28 ASSELS HEld fOr SAIE ...t e e e e ea e 88
Note 29 FINAnCial INSIIUMENTS ...ttt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e s st e e e e e e s annnneeeaaaaan 89
Note 30 Financial Instruments: Fair Value and RISKS ..........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Note 31 Financial Instruments: Income and Expenditure

Middlesbrough Council  Draft Statemgl?g%c%c%nts 2023-24 Page | 1


file://///ict-hbs1/Finance/PortalRestore/The%20Portal/Portal%20Information/Closure%20of%20Accounts%202022-23/SOA%202022-23%20Draft%20Versions/2022-23%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20Latest.docx%23_Toc153122691
file://///ict-hbs1/Finance/PortalRestore/The%20Portal/Portal%20Information/Closure%20of%20Accounts%202022-23/SOA%202022-23%20Draft%20Versions/2022-23%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20Latest.docx%23_Toc153122696

Note 32 (D=1 0] (0] (=TSRSS PR 95

Note 33 Y= 41 C0 T (= TP PP PR T 95
Note 34 Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS .........ceiiiiiieiiiiee e esiee e e et eeeae e e s snaeeeasnaeeeeanaeeeanneeean 96
Note 35 ] g0 A =T B OA =T [ (o] £ PO PPP PR 96
Note 36 L (0] ST PP PP PR 97
Note 37 USBDIE RESEIVES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ekt he ekt e e bt e st e e ebb e e sbneenbb e e anneennneas 98
Note 38 UNUSADIE RESEIVES .....ceiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt ettt e e e sttt e e ettt e e e bt e e e anbb e e e e bbeeesanbaeaeanneee s 99
Note 39 Pension Schemes Accounted for as Defined Benefit Scheme ............ccccoviieeiiiiieennnee, 103
Note 40 Pensions Schemes Accounted for as Defined Contribution Scheme ...........ccccccceeeiiieenn. 108
Note 41 LeaseS — COUNCI 8BS LESSON........eiiiiiiiiiiiieeeitiee e eiiee et e sttt e et e e s e e s snbe e e e sneeeeannneeean 108
Note 42 Leases — COUNCI 8S LESSEE.......ccuuiuiiiiiiiieeeiiiee e eiiee et e e sttt e e et e e e e e s anbeeeeeneeeesnaeeean 109
Note 43 (@01 1] pTo [=T 1 A1 I F= o] 111 PP 110
Note 44 (0] 11110 (=T 1 7N RO 110
Note 45 TIUSE FUNGS ...t e e ettt e e ettt e e e bbe e e e st e e e enbeeeeeanneeeeanbneeeann 111
Notes Supporting the Cash FIOW STatemMENT.........ccooiiiiiiiiiee et e e st e e sneeaesbeeeean 113
Note 46 Cash Flow Statement — Operating ACHVItIES ........coiuiieiiiiiee e 113
Note 47 Cash Flow Statement — INVESHING ACHVItIES ........eviiiiiie i 114
Note 48 Cash Flow Statement — FINANCING ACHVItIES.........uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e e 114

Collection FUNG ACCOUNTS AN .....cooiiiiiiiiieeiiie ettt e st s e e e st e e e s e e e e anne e e e s nn e e e e annee e e nnnneeennneeean 129
Collection Fund Income and EXpenditure ACCOUNT ..........coiuiiiiiuieeeiiiieeesieee et eiee et e e st e e e sibe e e nanees 130
NOteS t0 the COlECHION FUNG.........cccuiiiiiiiiie ittt st e e sbeesne e 131

Note C1 INCOME frOM COUNCHT TAX.....ei ittt 131

Middlesbrough Council  Draft StatemenRszlgcecogr%lfs 2023-24 Page | 2


file://///ict-hbs1/Finance/PortalRestore/The%20Portal/Portal%20Information/Closure%20of%20Accounts%202022-23/SOA%202022-23%20Draft%20Versions/2022-23%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20Latest.docx%23_Toc153122748
file://///ict-hbs1/Finance/PortalRestore/The%20Portal/Portal%20Information/Closure%20of%20Accounts%202022-23/SOA%202022-23%20Draft%20Versions/2022-23%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20Latest.docx%23_Toc153122771

Note C2 Income from BUSINESS RAIES .......ccoovuuuiiiiiiiiiiiieee e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e saaa e e e e e s e eessaaeeeeeeeeenes 131

Note C3 Previous Years Council Tax Deficit / SUIPIUS .......c.ooviiiiieeiiiiieiie e 132
Note C4 Council Tax and Business Rates ProViSIONS ..........cccuveirieeeiiiiieiiiie e 132
Teesside Pension FUNd ACCOUNES NGO NOTES ......ccoiuiiiiiiiiiei et e e e e s e e s s e e s anneeennnees 133
Teesside Pension Fund Statement Of ACCOUNES .......cceiiiriieiiiiiieiiieee et e e e s e s e e snneeeeannee e e 135
1100 0T 1T ] P PSP PP PP 135
Fund Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2024.............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiee et a e 137
Notes to Teesside Pension FUNG ACCOUNES ..........cciiiiirieiiieaieeitie ettt e st sbee st sibeesneesireesineesineesnnee e 138
Note 1 BaSiS Of PreParatiOn..........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et e e st e e e e e s et e e e e e e s et e aa e e e e e e s aaaarraeaaaaaan 138
Note 2  Accounting standards issued but not yet been adopted............cccouvveeeiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 138
Note 3  Summary of Significant Accounting POlCIES ...........cuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 139
Note 4 Critical Judgements, Sensitivities and Accounting EStimates ..........ccccoooveeeiiiieeiiiieee e 142

Note 5 Assumptions made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty.. 143
Note 6 Contributions

Note 7 Benefits Payable

Note 8  Transfers in from Other PENSIioN FUNGS ...........cuoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie it 145
NOtE O OtNEI INCOIME ...ttt etttk b et bbbt e bt e bt e b e e kbt e bn e e b e e nneenee 145
Note 10 Payments to and 0n acCoUNt Of [EAVETS...........eeiiiiiiieiiiee i 145
Note 11 MaNAGEMENT EXPENSES .....eeeeeiiiiiiiitiiee et e ettt e e e e ettt e e e s e s baneeeee e e s asnnreeeeeeesannnnneeeas 145
Note 12 INVESTMENT INCOIMIE ...ttt ettt e et e e e e e eeeeesenenennes 146
Note 13 INVESTMENT ASSELS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt s e et s et et s e e e e e et e eeeeeeesennnennes 147
Note 14  FINANCIAl INSIIUMIENLS ........uiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e sttt e e e e e st bbaeeeaeeaaasbaaeeeaeeesansbnaneeaaeenan 153
Note 15 AcCtUANAl VAIUBLIONS ......eeieiiieee ettt e e e e e st e e e e e e s et baa e e e e e e e s enbaaeeeaaeeaan 159
NOTE 16  CUIENT ASSEIS .. i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 160
Note 17  CUrrent LIabilItIES ......ccooiiiiiiiiiee et e st e e e e e e e e e e e e e s anbbaaeeaeaeean 160
Note 18  Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC’S).......c.uuieiiuiieeiiiiie ittt 160
Note 19  Related Party TranSACHONS . .......uueeiiiiteiiiiiteiiiiee e sttt e ettt e s st e e s e e aasbeeesanneeesnnneeeeasneeesann 161

[N o) (=2 O I = q (=Y g P AN E o [ A @ 1] £ PSP PPPEP 161
Note 21  Senior Employees’ Remuneration .161
Note 22 Events after the Balance Sheet Date .161
The COMPlIANCE STAIEIMENT ......eiiiiiiit ittt e e e e ettt e e e e e s aeba et e e e e e e e nnbaaeeeaeeesannneneaaeaeaan 162
Statement of the Actuary for the year ended 31 March 2024 ..o 164
ANNUAl GOVEINANCE SEALEIMEINT ...ttt ettt e e e e e et ettt e e e e e e e s bbb e eeee e e e e nnbbaeeeeaeeaaannbaneeeaeeasannnns 170
Annual Governance StatemMENt 2022-24............uuiiiieei ittt e e et e e e e e e ab e e e e e e e e s abbaeeeeaeaeaaanees 171
(€[0T T T oY o ) =T 1 L PP 207
GlOSSANY OF TEIMIS ...ttt ookttt e a4 4o et ettt e e e 4o e ae b ettt e e a2 e e aabb et e e e e e e e ansbnbeeeeeeeeennnbnneeas 208

The Statement of Accounts for Middlesbrough Council provides an overview of the Council’s financial
position at 31 March 2024 and a summary of its income and expenditure during the 2023-24 financial year.
The accounts are, in parts, technical and complex as they have been prepared to comply with the
requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) as prescribed by the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, and International Financial Reporting
Standards. The accounts are available on the Council’'s website: www.middlesbrough.gov.uk under Open
Data; Annual Report and Statement of Accounts.

Middlesbrough Council  Draft Statemg%g%c%c%nts 2023-24 Page | 3


file://///ict-hbs1/Finance/PortalRestore/The%20Portal/Portal%20Information/Closure%20of%20Accounts%202022-23/SOA%202022-23%20Draft%20Versions/2022-23%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20Latest.docx%23_Toc153122778
file://///ict-hbs1/Finance/PortalRestore/The%20Portal/Portal%20Information/Closure%20of%20Accounts%202022-23/SOA%202022-23%20Draft%20Versions/2022-23%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20Latest.docx%23_Toc153122807
file://///ict-hbs1/Finance/PortalRestore/The%20Portal/Portal%20Information/Closure%20of%20Accounts%202022-23/SOA%202022-23%20Draft%20Versions/2022-23%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20Latest.docx%23_Toc153122809
https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/open-data-foi-and-have-your-say

;l-lo).\

,‘\_

._n Z \\ | _ I & _‘ = _hl...... = na_ -
, 7 . .~ ! E I

S - 4w i_:

i =l

x _

e .

=

=

O

 _—

e M

M .. }

Z i

i | | 2P sclwtml_w ' /4—. \.“.,o
. - e e S e M ISt et r- -LYIII $r\b

-

— vy : ; ", | r‘l.-:l. /%Ilw\..«n%;.{. e .s. quﬁ«lgl.f. ﬂl Y e ..T’. v f\ﬂa -

:/ wec. | <l FO\)A - e SRSV e A J\V
£

'

- 1
ot 8 \ l‘. '4 n, 2P —u A‘ o s :‘ T e \/\ v fackt i < j.
y \r\ NN P ,;N cM Ya¥F & G v u. \. P ..u-n ‘.\ -‘ [ -1 wb:

. ’ B\ . Ve L7 2 R .
Ma " : . vy il 7 % .. ..‘ < f I - .4% 4
) - Al » ! T : : N it “N s . Y ' — S g N . )

Ay f//. i /4

\ | \ . \ S ¥
' < e LT A YRR _.c SeaN » :is . ,/.m“‘ \.//\

.\.\r 1or, 19 ; P = At Car et Gy AP ' .nla.lu’.ll..,.l, g

3 . ! l of ! b .ut Alv‘.“r ‘
\ ~ " . \\.* a ) | il { ;‘ B e A IR, X 155 Yy
P . I~ V) - »- S8 A
il i el T | FITT ] L_:__:.. %h | ,‘/J_:.\d\’.a-rfx:
=== 48 VP4 G m! a 1%-Ha IRy | I AR N




Narrative Report
Introduction

Welcome to Middlesbrough Council’s Statement of Accounts 2023-24. This document presents the Council’s
financial performance for the financial year ending on 31 March 2024 and provides information on its
achievements, major events during the year and its future plans to Recover, Reset and Deliver for
Middlesbrough residents, businesses and visitors.

The financial year 2023-24 was an extremely challenging period time for Middlesbrough Council. The Council
started the financial year with a critically low level of revenue reserves due to overspending particularly in
Children’s Social Care in recent years. Therefore, it was essential that strict financial control was exercised
throughout the year and that approved savings plans were delivered in order to remain within the approved
revenue budget and protect and start to rebuild reserves.

All local authorities continued to operate in a volatile and challenging economic and financial environment due
to adverse global events and the consequences of the Covid 19 pandemic. There has been a significant impact
upon the volume and complexity of demand for services, particularly in children’s social care and school
transport for children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND). Inflation has remained stubbornly
high, and food and energy prices and high interest rates have been key drivers of the national cost of living
crisis. This has adversely impacted upon residents and businesses given the historically high levels of
deprivation in the area, resulting in the financially vulnerable requiring more support and advice from the
Council. The resulting pressures upon the Council’s financial position show little sign of reducing in the
foreseeable future and so difficult decisions around prioritisation of available resources will be required.

Due to its low level of reserves, the Council lacked the financial resilience to respond to unforeseen events
and the unexpected demand for its services that have continued to emerge during the post Covid-19 period.
The absence of additional Government funding in the Local Government financial settlement to support the
local government sector’s response to unprecedented inflationary pressures together with exceptional price
increases in children’s social care has had a significant adverse financial impact across the sector with an
increasing number of authorities expressing concerns about their financial resilience over the next five years.

The Council’s External Auditor issued a report in July 2022 which set out concerns relating to the Council’s
culture and governance arrangements. The Council established a Corporate Governance Improvement Plan
in response to the report. However, the Department for Levelling Up Housing and Communities (DLUHC)
issued the Council with a Best Value Notice in January 2023. In August 2023 the external auditor issued eleven
statutory recommendations to the Council under Section 24 Schedule 7(2) of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014. These recommendations were issued due to the lack of expected progress in addressing the
Council’s culture and governance arrangements and also as a result of the emergence of the serious financial
position in Quarter 1 of the 2023-24 financial year which presents a high risk to the Council’s financial resilience
and longer-term sustainability.

In response the Council revised and strengthened its Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and created
a section 24 action plan specifically to respond to eleven statutory auditor recommendations. We directed more
capacity to focus upon accelerating the pace of the required improvements and strengthened the monitoring
and reporting arrangements to Council and the Audit Committee. In September 2023 the Council established
a voluntary Middlesbrough Independent Improvement and Advisory Board (MIIAB) comprising sector experts
to provide support and challenge to the Council in delivering its planned improvements. The Culture and
Governance Improvement Plan (CGIP) comprises ten workstreams and the s24 Action Plan addresses the
eleven statutory auditor recommendations. Each has a milestone delivery plan which is monitored and reported
monthly to the Leadership Team, the MIIAB and at each full Council and appropriate Audit Committee.

The Council must deliver its planned improvements to its culture, governance and financial sustainability at
sufficient pace to satisfy DLUHC and the External Auditor of its resolve and capability to manage its affairs
responsibly. The Council must secure its long-term future by returning the organisation to a stable, effective
and financially resilient state so that it can focus on the effective delivery to meet the priorities for the people
of Middlesbrough.

Officers and members have worked collaboratively throughout the 2023-24 financial year to manage a

projected overspend of £11.563m (9.2% of the net revenue budget) at Quarter One, down to an overspend of
£3.594m (2.8% of the net revenue budget) by the end of the financial year. As a result of the final overspend

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statedsa @ RQdbunts 2023-24 Page | 5



position, the General Fund Balance and unrestricted usable earmarked reserves balances stood at £12.055m
on 31 March 2024, compared to £15.586m on 31 March 2023, which was assessed by the Council’s s151
Officer at this time as inadequate.

However, measures were taken during the year to address this issue to avoid the s151 Officer issuing a s114
Notice in relation to 2023-24 that would otherwise have been necessary under legislation. A detailed review of
the balance sheet and in particular, the approach to providing for bad debt resulted in the development of a
more robust data and performance driven methodology to assessing the risk to debt recovery, that is compliant
with international accounting standards. This has resulted in a reduction in the bed debt provision at 31 March
2024. The resulting surplus on the Collection Fund has been applied in the 2024-25 budget to replenish the
revenue reserves by £8.325m on 1 April 2024. This is reflected in the approved 8 March 2024 Council budget
and Medium-Term Financial Plan for 2024-25 incorporating a new Reserves Policy that will rebuild the
Council’s financial resilience over the next three to four years. Whilst this is a substantial improvement in the
revenue position, the Council still has much work to do in 2024-25 and over the medium term to modernise its
service operating models to reduce its ongoing expenditure to fall in line with its available annual income
streams and to further strengthen its reserves position.

The Council’s governance arrangements underpin the effective planning, management, and scrutiny of the
use of public funds and are a key part of a local authority's responsibilities. The financial statements are a
critical medium through which the Council demonstrates its accountability to the public in relation to the use of
public funds. They also record the Council’s assets used and liabilities arising from the delivery of services.
Although Local Authority financial statements are complex and can be difficult to understand, this narrative
report seeks to provide the reader a comprehensive and simplified view of the performance over the past year
and the Council’s direction of travel over the medium-term future.

This narrative report will provide the reader with:

An understanding of the Council and its strategic priorities.

A summary of the council’s financial performance for 2023-24.

Information on how well the Council delivered its key priorities.

An overview of the council’s medium term financial plans.

A commentary on the key features of the financial statements and notes that make up the statement
of accounts.

The Council is required to publish an Annual Governance Statement to accompany the Statement of Accounts.
This sets out the arrangements the Council has put in place to manage and mitigate risks it faces while meeting
its responsibilities. The 2023-24 Annual Governance Statement is included on page 170.

Review of the Year

Middlesbrough Council is a diverse public sector organisation, located in the Northeast of England. We are
proud of our past and excited for the future. Middlesbrough is nestled away in a region that is the country’s
best kept secret; rivers, beaches, forests, and moors are all on our doorstep.

We are the natural centre or ‘Middle’ of the Tees Valley region, an area home to around 677,000 people, and
our town centre is currently being transformed with modern urban living, leisure, and business facilities. The
oldest part of town, close to the waterfront, is being brought back to life. The leisure and cultural possibilities
in and around Middlesbrough are significant; from our beautiful parks to the town’s arts and heritage venues,
there is much to be proud of.

Our location gives us the best of all worlds; days out in stunning countryside, surfing at the coast, or hiking in
the North Yorkshire Moors. On a weekend our independent bars and restaurants are lively and welcoming,
and we are home to proud institutions including Middlesbrough Football Club and Teesside University.

On 4 May 2023, Chris Cooke became the fourth directly elected Mayor of the town and is passionate about
making sure services work for and are accessible for everyone. The Mayor has worked with his Executive and
the Leadership Management Team of the Council to develop his vision for Middlesbrough and the ambition to
recover, reset and deliver services to the residents, businesses and visitors of Middlesbrough as set out in the
Council Plan, Budget and Medium-Term Financial Plan that was approved by Council on 8 March 2024 and
the Transformation Portfolio approved by Council on 24 April 2024. Delivering against these plans is critical to
delivering these ambitious plans to secure a successful future for the area.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM@0RBts 2023-24 Page | 6



The Council is committed to improving its culture and governance and recovering its financial position. It is
fully engaged with DLUHC, its External Auditor, the Local Government Association and the MIIAB to drive
forward the required improvements. The Council has engaged expertise through the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and external consultancy support to provide the required knowledge,
expertise and additional capacity to support its valued local workforce in order to deliver at the pace required
to stabilise the organisation and satisfy DLUHC of its competence to independently manage its affairs going
forward. DLUHC will be reassessing the Councils progress during summer 2024.

The revision of the Constitution, Financial Procedure Rules and the Contract Procedure Rules which provide
the regulatory framework within which officers and members operate, has been implemented. These rules are
more accessible, easier to understand and follow for staff and elected members and will enable the embedding
of a compliant culture. Compulsory training in these financial and procurement rules has been delivered to all
budget managers to support them in improving financial management and control.

There has been significant economic instability in the 2023-24 financial year with a weaker economy,
prolonged exposure to high interest rates and widespread unemployment. Inflation, as measured by the
Consumer Price Index, peaked at a thirty year high of 11.1% in October 2022 and stood at 8.7% in April 2023
reducing to 3.2 % by March 2024. Although annual inflation has started to reduce back towards the 2%
government target, prices are significantly higher than before the Covid-19 pandemic. This has presented
significant challenges for the Council’'s budgets and the finances of our residents and local businesses.

Prolonged economic instability creates significant pressures on
public sector finances, and it is important that the Council holds
sufficient levels of general fund reserves to ensure that it remains
financially resilient to cope with unforeseen challenges. This is
particularly difficult for Middlesbrough given that its reserves have
reduced in recent years to support overspends particularly in
&= Children’s Services. This resulted in the Council starting 2023-24

\ with critically low levels of usable revenue reserves. However, the
Council is committed to delivering improved efficiency and
transformation in service delivery in order to control its expenditure
within the available income sources and is working to replenish its
reserves in the medium term.

The Council has commissioned CIPFA to conduct an assessment
of the maturity of the Financial Management arrangements at
Middlesbrough. This benchmarks our arrangements against its
best practice model which has been used to assess over 400 public
sector organisations over more than 20 years. The Executive considered the CIPFA recommendations in July
2024 and statutory officers proposed recommended revisions to the Culture and Governance Improvement
Plan to Council to address the recommendations. The Council significantly improved its financial management
and reporting arrangements during 2023-24 and continues to work on improving its budget modelling and
reporting tools. The Council is currently rolling out accessible and intuitive budget management dashboards to
provide views of all Directorate’s financial performance driven by the corporate financial system in order to
reduce manual intervention and duplication of effort. This will enable us to produce one version of the financial
position that is available to all Directors, their budget managers and finance staff. Combined with further
training, all Directors and budget holders will be supported to own and establish a firmer grip upon the financial
management of services within their control.

The Council regularly reviews and updates its Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) assumptions in order to
assess and respond to the changing financial environment and incorporate into its strategic and operational
financial management arrangements.

The Council was unable to achieve a balanced revenue budget position for 2024-25 without reliance upon up
to £13.4m of Council borrowing to fund revenue expenditure through a mechanism called Exceptional Financial
Support (EFS) approved by the Department for Levelling Up Homes & Communities (DLUHC). The revenue
budget gap of £4.7m represents the extent to which operational revenue expenditure exceeds the Council’s
available income streams. A further £8.7m of risk assessed funding may be required which cannot otherwise
be provided due to the Council’s critically low revenue reserves. The Council will be subject to further inspection
and review by DLUHC to confirm the actual amount of EFS that will be awarded over the course of 2024-25.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatefeAgH® AQ&unts 2023-24 Page | 7



The ability of the Council to meet its statutory responsibility to set a balanced and robust budget for 2024-25
by 11 March 2024 was wholly dependent upon its acceptance of the terms upon which EFS was agreed. If the
Council had not accepted EFS in order to balance its budget, it would have failed to meet its statutory duty to
set a legally balanced budget. This would have resulted in the section 151 Officer being required to issue a
section 114 Notice under s114(3) of the Local Government and Finance Act 1983.

The Council was unable to balance its 2024-25 Medium Term Financial Plan with a budget gap of £7.474m in
2025-26 rising to £7.965m in 2026-27. The development of a new pipeline of projects within the Transformation
Portfolio is required during 2024-25 in order to provide options to balance the 2025-26 budget and MTFP. The
Capital Programme 2024-25 to 2026-27, and Council Tax levels for 2024-25, were set out in the 2024-25
Revenue Budget, Medium Term Financial Plan, and Council Tax setting report to Council and approved on 8
March 2024. The Council’s ability to deliver the financial outturn within its approved 2024-25 budget and
develop robust and deliverable plans to meet the budget gap in 2025-26 is critical to its financial recovery. Its
success in driving improvements in its culture and compliance with strengthened governance arrangements
will serve to demonstrate its competence to manage its own affairs and demonstrate delivery of value for
money in the delivery of services to the community.

Middlesbrough Council delivers hundreds of services that residents, business and visitors to the town rely on.
We value our passionate and committed workforce who strive to deliver the best possible service within finite
resources and in the face of increasing demand for services to the vulnerable for which the Council has a
statutory duty to provide. The Transformation Programme aims to modernise service delivery to achieve
improved efficiency and effectiveness. This will inevitably mean that the size of the Council’'s workforce will
reduce over time. However, we aim to ensure that we invest appropriately in developing the skills and
experience of our talented staff to adopt new ways of working and so deliver better service outcomes from a
lower cost base therefore delivering better value for public money.

This Narrative Report aims to provide both guidance and context to the accounts of Middlesbrough Council,
presenting a summary of the Council’s financial position, financial performance and non-financial activities for
the year, and its prospects for future years.

The Narrative Report and the Statement of Accounts aim to give the appropriate context as to how the Council
has performed both operationally and financially and the events that have impacted this performance.

Background to the Council

Middlesbrough Council is an evolving town, and the Council came into existence following the abolition of
Cleveland County Council in 1996. It is a small unitary local authority providing a range of services to the
people of Middlesbrough.

The Council aims to collaborate effectively with residents, businesses, public sector partners and the voluntary
and community sector in order to improve local social, economic, and environmental wellbeing for all and to
secure the long-term sustainability of the town. It is one of the largest employers in the Tees Valley area,
providing work for more than 3,000 people.

Population and Related Economic Statistics

COMPOSITION OF MIDDLESBROUGH POPULATION
100,000 (148,285)

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

Under 15 Years 28666 (19.33%) 15-64 Years 94763 (63.91%) 65 and Over 24856 (16.76%)

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM@0@Buhts 2023-24 Page | 8



Mid-year population estimates as at March 2022 from the Office of National Statistics (Population estimates
for England and Wales - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk)) indicate a population of 148,285. With a
total area of 5,387 hectares, Middlesbrough is the smallest and most densely populated local authority area
in the North East.

The demographic composition of the local population drives the demand for services provided by the Council
most notably through increasing demand to support the most vulnerable citizens in need of Children’s and
Adult Social Care. In recent years, there has been a greater focus on regeneration and increasing economic
growth, through developments, housing and the town centre. In addition to improving the place of
Middlesbrough to work and live, these developments are essential for growing long term income streams
through council tax and business rates to fund the delivery of Council services.

Economic data from Nomis Official Labour Market Statistics (Latest data 2023) shows that pay levels in
Middlesbrough are lower than the middle range for the Northeast and nationally. Labour Market Profile - Nomis
- Official Census and Labour Market Statistics (homisweb.co.uk)

Middlesbrough Northeast | Great Britain

Gross Weekly Pay (Median) Full-Time workers £554.70 £613.70 £682.60

Unemployment rate (;6-64) asa proportion of 5.30% 3.9% 3.7%
economically active

The Council’s various strategies are set around meeting the needs of its residents driven by the demographic
profile of the town.

Political Structure in 2023-24

The vision for Middlesbrough, as set out in the Council Plan for 2024-27, is for Middlesbrough to be a thriving,
healthier, safer, and more ambitious place where people want to live, work, invest and visit. The Council will
support the people of Middlesbrough to live fulfilling lives to ensure that our communities thrive.

The plan was developed by Mayor Chris Cooke, his Executive team, and senior staff. It was approved by Full
Council on 8 March 2024.

Like many areas, Middlesbrough faces many complex and difficult challenges in order to improve the quality
of life in the area. The Council is determined to work with local people, our partners, and businesses to
overcome them in a financially sustainable way. We are working with government and other stakeholders to
improve how we do things. We are addressing many problems that have existed for a number of years and
building upon our progress so we can move forward with confidence.

Middlesbrough is a brilliant town with huge potential and while we work on addressing our challenges, we will
promote and build upon the positive things that happen here. It's important that we use the passion, talent,
pride, and positivity of our people to make the most of the opportunities that come our way.

We believe that the Council Plan underpins our ability to deliver a fair, welcoming, and thriving place for the
future.

You can read more about our priorities using this link:
https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/media/3j2nkoxv/council-plan-24-27.pdf

The Executive is the organisation’s principal decision-making body, within the overall policy direction set by
the Council. The Executive consider significant issues in connection with, for example, community safety,
leisure, education, social services, highways, and the environment as well as making recommendations to
Council on the annual revenue budget, capital programme and Medium-Term Financial Plan.

Following the local elections in May 2023, Labour took control of Middlesbrough Council, with newly elected
mayor Chris Cooke leading 22 of his party's councillors with 2 vacant awaiting by-elections.

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statedsa Q2 RQ&bunts 2023-24 Page | 9


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/bulletins/populationestimatesforenglandandwales/mid2022
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/bulletins/populationestimatesforenglandandwales/mid2022
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157060/report.aspx?town=Middlesbrough
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157060/report.aspx?town=Middlesbrough
https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/media/3j2nkoxv/council-plan-24-27.pdf

Category Number as at 31 March 2024

Mayor - Chris Cooke (Labour) 1
Conservative 4
Independent 2
Labour 24
Liberal Democrats 2
Marton East Independent Group 2
Middlesbrough Independent Councillor's Association 12
Total 47

Meetings of the Executive took place every four weeks chaired by the mayor with each member of the
Executive having designated responsibilities (known as portfolios).

Middlesbrough Council consists of 20 wards with between one and three Councillors representing each ward.
All councillors serve a maximum four-year term.

Management Structure
Leadership Team

The senior management structure of the Council on 31 March 2024 is set out below:

Interim Chief
Executive

ITI
1 1 1 1 1 1
Director of Adult Social Director of Director of Legal &
Dlretlorqf Care and Health EKGFUlWE,D"e“UOf Environment & Governance Services .Internmourectorof
Regeneration ; Children's Services h ; T ) Finance (S151 Officer)
Integration Community Services (Monitoring Officer)

I

Director of Children's

Director of PublicHealth § ™
Care

el Director of Education
& Partnerships

Investment Strategy for Middlesbrough

e A new Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) was approved by Council on 27 February 2023; the report
included £231m Capital Programme (investment strategy) for Middlesbrough for the period from 2022-23
to 2025-26. This was funded by £114m of the Council’'s own resources with £117m of external grants and
contributions. The delivery of the capital programme investment aims to support the delivery of the mayor’s
commitment to invest in improving Middlesbrough as a town and to transform service delivery for residents.
It is intended that this capital investment will contribute to meeting the objectives set out in the Council
Plan and within the financial parameters set within the MTFP. The investment will support the delivery of
several major regeneration schemes and expand the affordable housing offer in the area:

Town Centre development projects.

School capital projects

Disabled Facilities Grant scheme

ICT related projects

Environment & Community Services projects

O O O O O

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM30RB%hts 2023-24 Page | 10



Customer Strategy Programme

The vision of the Council’s Customer Programme is to deliver a consistent and streamlined model that resolves
customer queries on a at the first point of contact wherever possible. Where needs are complex, we will ensure
that the appropriate staff meet need at the earliest opportunity.

We aim to streamline the multiple points of first contact (front doors) through which customers currently access

council services which results in inefficiency and duplication of resources and cause delays in responding and
unnecessary cost for the Council and inconvenience for customers. There will be an appropriate balance of
online, telephone and face to face channels for customers to access the service and information that they
need. We will adopt a strong customer focused approach to the delivery of services to customers who include
its residents, businesses, and visitors to the town. The Council will improve its communication of the scope
and standards of service so that customers know that to expect. We will engage with customers to improve
the quality and timeliness of service offerings making best use of available resources.

Our Values

Our Values are a critical element of the Council’s strategy to create a brighter future for Middlesbrough. Our
Values are at the heart of everything we do and form the foundation for how we operate, behave, and make
decisions.

Our Values:

e Passionate - We believe in Middlesbrough and are proud about
the Town.

¢ Integrity — We are open and transparent and treat everyone with
respect.

e Creativity — We have the courage to try new ideas and new ways
of working.

¢ Collaboration — We work with others to make Middlesbrough
better; and

e Focus — We are clear about what we will deliver to meet the
needs of the Town.

Integrity

Collaboration

Performance

The Council's Scheme of Delegation gives the Executive collective responsibility for corporate strategic
performance, together with associated action and a quarterly reporting process gives them the necessary
information to discharge these responsibilities.

As part of continuous improvement in performance and risk management, the Council’'s Leadership
Management Team (LMT) implemented monthly reviews of corporate performance using a Directorate
Performance dashboard, drawing data from a range of performance systems. The output from these sessions
was reflected through the quarterly updates to the Executive.

The Council used a narrative update approach to measure performance during each quarter of the financial
year and any issues.

The Council’s overall performance for the financial year 2023-24 can be accessed using the following link:
Report.pdf (middlesbrough.gov.uk)

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@@e1AdEbunts 2023-24 Page | 11


https://moderngov.middlesbrough.gov.uk/documents/s23464/Report.pdf

Directorate Achievements

Regeneration

Public

Levelling Up Partnerships. Middlesbrough has been awarded £20.8m of capital funding as one of
twenty areas designated as Levelling Up Partnerships. This funding has complemented the work of
the Towns Fund and Future High Streets Fund and represents £57m of capital funds secured by the
Council since 2020. The project will enable such developments as bringing public services into the
high street, youth and community provision, skills provision, and measures to tackle crime and
antisocial behaviour.
Captain Cook Square. The transformation of the Captain Cook Shopping precinct into a leisure
destination continues at pace. 2023-24 witnessed the opening of the first two leisure facilities with
significant progress on further developments. Critically, this work ensured that the sudden collapse
and vacation of Wilkos store was immediately mitigated with a new tenant secured.
Economic Development - TTE @ College. With the support of Town Deal funding and Middlesbrough’s
Indigenous Growth Fund allocation, Middlesbrough College has successfully completed the relocation
of the TTE training facility on to the College Campus at Middlehaven. The gross investment sites at
over £10m and drives additional student / adult learner footfall, through central Middlesbrough.
Heritage Action Zone (HAZ). 2023-24 witnessed the bulk of the Heritage Action Zone programme
delivery around Middlesbrough Rail station and Middlesbrough’s Historic Quarter. Heritage assets
have been brought back to modern uses and tenancies with restoration works, new public spaces
improve the arrival experience in one of Middlesbrough’s principal gateways and the groundwork has
been laid for the imminent arrival of STACK. Middlesbrough’s HAZ has been championed as an
example of excellence by Historic England and will be a case study for the development of future
national programmes.
Apprenticeships. The Council’s achievement rate for successfully completed apprenticeships for 2023-
24 was 76%, this is above both the national rate of 53% and Government target for 2025 of 67%.
Learning For Inclusion. The Council were awarded £0.622m for Learning For Inclusion. In 2023-24.
This has resulted in significant outputs including:

o 1160 residents engaged on first steps learning, health and wellbeing courses.

o 74% of adults engaged are from Middlesbrough’s most deprived wards.

o 12% of learners entered employment within 3 months of course completion.

o 55% of learners are BAME.
Museums. Middlesbrough Museums won the Best Arts & Education Partnership at the Northeast
Culture Awards 2023 for its British Museum in your Classroom project.

Health

Established South Tees Waiting Well Service in partnership with South Tees Hospital Trust to provide
an all encompassing health and wellbeing service to patients waiting for surgery across South Tees.
321 patients have benefited from improved health wellbeing outcomes in preparation for surgery.
Public Health South Tees have secured the following funding;

o £4m DLUHC for the new Live Well Centre relocation to the Cleveland Centre

o £1.4m Live Well East Expansion in Berwick Hills

o OHID funding for Public Health degree apprenticeship opportunities
Secured £176,260 in funding to provide vape starter kits to all south tees adult smokers through Swap
to Stop scheme.
Shortlisted and won the community innovator award in the 2024 Healthwatch awards.
Helped 41 Middlesbrough patients who had a Severe Mental lliness (SMI) to access support to reduce
harm levels and / or Quit smoking through SMI pilot . Scheme has now ended however learning from
pilot has been implemented as part of standardised offer.
In collaboration with the Targeted Lung Health Team established a successful referral pathway for
patients identified as High Risk of lung Cancer. Pathway has been shared regionally as good practice.
Successfully implemented disability and mental health strand of the MUST service in 14 care homes
across South Tees, resulting in 100% increase in care homes completing nutritional screening and
152% increase in screening accuracy.
With the support of additional funding from the Household Support Fund — the programme has been
opened up to allow children and young people not in receipt of benefit related free school meals, to

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM@0Rcblhls 2023-24 Page | 12



access the programme.

e Eat Well Schools Award: Pilot launched in September 2023, with 2 primary schools and 1 SEN school
signed up and currently working through the bronze award criteria. 32 catering staff have been
upskilled to create menus that meet the school food standards, through an in-person training package.
38 catering staff have completed an online e-learning module on the school food standards.

e Health Protection Assurance Partnership has a clear action plan and meets regularly to review and
take forward activity around environment, communicable diseases, community resilience,
immunisations, and screening. Health protection assurance workshops for education and adult
settings were held in November with over 50 educational settings and wider key partners attending.

o Worked with the UKHSA on the recent Measles outbreak which included letters to parents via
education, facilitation of additional MMR vaccination catch up clinics in schools with translated letters,
production of videos, wider community engagement and promotion of vaccinations.

e Worked with our sexual health provider to establish postnatal contraception provision for women
delivering babies at the James Cook University Hospital. Eleven midwives have been trained by the
Tees sexual health service to fit implants post-delivery since May 2023.

e Public Health South Tees are hosting North East ADPH Regional Gambling Harms Programme which
is working across 12 NE local authorities to reduce gambling harms through training, awareness,
health needs assesments and intervention and prevention pilots.

e Sixteen young people in Middlesbrough have achieved successful closure in the last quarter, meaning
they are now substance-free. 99 young people received brief intervention, 118 intensive 1:1 support
and 8106 attended sessions in educational settings.

e The South Tees Wellbeing Network (STWN) ‘Wellbeing in Practice’ programme provided 10 wellbeing
interventions events, creative huddles project and access to our libraries ‘Books for wellbeing’ for our
local health and wellbeing workforce, volunteers and families.

e 11 Middlesbrough Care Homes signed up to use the Dementia Friendly Care Home Guide and Self-
Assessment Tool which aims to improve the care home offer and to support CQC inspections and
regulations.

Children’s Social Care

o Staff have worked incredibly hard and tangible improvements have been identified by Ofsted, across
all areas of Children’s Social Care and Early Help.

e The situation within Children’s Care is progressed positively and we are seeing a reduction in the
overall CLA numbers within Children’s Care although costs have increased.

e We are supporting more children at an Early Help Threshold with a stable Early Help workforce and
strong partnership arrangements in place.

¢ Audits are demonstrating an increase of “Requires Improvement” and “Good” gradings. Performance
has improved across the service areas, and we are starting to gain stability through an increased
permanent workforce.

e We have significantly improved the offer to our in-house foster carers, in terms of payments, support
and training. This has encouraged more applications and assessments of potential carers in
Middlesbrough, meaning children can remain more local with our own foster carers, within a model
that offers best value for Children’s Social Care.

e We have welcomed 9 newly qualified social workers from our Social Work Academy into the wider
teams. In recognising the benefit of ‘grow your own’ in the climate of a national shortage of social
workers, we are training and developing a sustainable and stable permanent workforce for
Middlesbrough.

Education and Partnerships

e The Local Authority in partnership with Childrens Social Care and schools have:

o Achieved a grade 1 (the highest grade) outcome for SEND in our recent Ofsted inspection
meaning that our services are delivering strong Special Educational Needs and Disability
services to our young people and families.

o The South Tees Youth Justice Service have successfully rolled out new initiatives to ensure
our young people receive the very best service both to prevent entrance to the Criminal Justice
System (CJS) and also management of young people whilst involved with the CJS.

o Continued to deliver outstanding services through our PROCLAIM initiative which supports
pupils and schools in the management of trauma — this work had led to excellent outcomes

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEhR@€tlAdebunts 2023-24 Page | 13



such as improved attendance and reduced exclusions in participating schools

o Worked with DfE to launch an innovative attendance project to drive up attendance across all
schools in Middlesbrough

o We have worked with DfE to ensure we delivered sufficiency of places across the town for all
nursery aged and school aged children resulting in Middlesbrough being placed 1st in the
country for ensuring eligible 2 year olds take up their nursery place to start preparing for school
as soon as possible. For the new extended childcare entitlement, Middlesbrough is also
ranked 1st for the rollout of 2 year old working parents vouchers.

Adult Social Care

The department began the year with a significant budget gap but, as a result of action taken by staff
in year, we closed the 2023-24 year with an underspend of £26,000.

Simon Waller won the Technical Officer of the year award at the 2023 Foundations National Healthy
Housing Awards.

The Staying Put Agency was a finalist for the Disabled Facilities Grant Adaptation Service of the
Year award at the 2023 Foundations National Healthy Housing Awards (having won the award in
2022).

The Rekindle Digital Inclusion Service was commended and a finalist in the Achievement of the Year
award at the 2023 Foundations National Healthy Housing Awards.

The Staying Put Agency was a finalist in the Health and Social Care category of the Local
Government Chronicle awards.

Environment & Community Services

Implemented a Selective Landlord Licensing scheme in the Newport 2 area.

Executive approval was given for a further Selective Landlord Licensing designation in the Newport 1
scheme.

Responded to and resolved a 22% increase in housing standards complaints to ensure tenants are
living in safe rented accommodation.

Conducted 706 food hygiene inspections and 663 Food Standards Inspections to ensure food
purchased in Middlesbrough is safe.

Monitored Air quality standards across the town, the Annual Status Report was submitted in June 2023
which reported that all national air quality standards had been met.

Achieved a two- and half-year custodial sentence for a rogue builder who targeted elderly and
vulnerable customers with overpriced building work.

Managed the delivery of the Safe Haven Service which operates to protect the vulnerable in the
nighttime economy.

Worked with the Cleveland Unit for the Reduction in Violent Crime which provided funding for radios
for retail and licensed premises and bleed kits in three locations in the town centre.

Thirteen workplaces worked towards achieving the Better Health at Work Award and attended a
presentation event held in Middlesbrough Town Hall.

Resurfaced 10.9km (98,661m2) of Carriageways.

Attained £0.071m efficiency savings in our resurfacing programme by adopting more efficient practices
(£1.710m saved since 2013-14)

Undertook 22 footway repair schemes and 9 verge schemes.

Repaired the waterproofing, resurfaced the bridge deck, and repaired the main bridge joint at North
Ormeshy Over Bridge (Borough Rd Flyover)

Replaced the deck joints, repaired the waterproofing, and resurfaced over A66 Newport Interchange
Bridges

Cleared away the Slam Nightclub and started major repairs to the A66 Station Viaduct

Repaired vehicle impact damage to Newport Acoustic Wall, and A66 All Saints Viaduct

Completed 7 principal culvert assessments.

Retained Gold Standard for the Local Authority Street Gazetteer

Undertook annual skid resistance and other condition surveys on the full road network.

A new approach to Gully Cleansing has been introduced based on risk using the Gully Smart System.
The procurement of a New Highway Asset Management Software system which will be rolled out in

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM@0Rcbhds 2023-24 Page | 14



24-25

257 streetlights replaced on the Capital Column Replacement Programme.

90 new streetlights install at Bracken Grange for developer Linden Homes (old Brackenhoe school
site).

Installed 15 CCTV poles for CCTV cameras in various locations in Middlesbrough.

Legal & Governance Services

Human Resources — Introduction of a new recruitment system which has given us greater candidate
reach increasing our number of applicants for roles and incorporates a Values based application form.
Registrars - Implementation of an updated marketing and social media strategy for wedding and civil
partnership ceremonies at Town Hall Register

Strategic, Business & Customer — Implementation of the new Council Plan 2024-27

Strategic, Business & Customer — Mobilisation and implementation of Transformation Programme
Management Office and associated governance framework to provide oversight and assurance
against delivery of business change and savings, to enable financial resilience and sustainability.

Finance

An improved reporting structure was implemented in Business World, increasing the accountability of
budget managers, and creating a 1-2-1 relationship between the cost centre and the budget
manager. This also allowed the streamlining of workflow reducing the amount of administrative
maintenance of the system.

Improvements in the availability of forecast information for budget managers have been
implemented. Introduction of a more regimented monthly budget monitoring regime, with Monthly
Budget Challenge sessions and the redesign of Quarterly Budget Challenge sessions to become
Member led have also been implemented.

The development of Finance Dashboards to provide clear, concise information to budget managers
has been a priority in the later part of the year, and the roll out of this has begun, along with
increased training on the Finance system will be a key objective for the new financial year.
Reporting improvements within Business World have been made in relation to monthly financial
performance, closure of accounts, debt levels, and several enquiries for users.

Implementation of Supplier Incentive Programme in relation to Construction expenditure.
Substantial assurance achieved in the Veritau audit report in relation to the Main Accounting
Systems audit.

Further automation and improvements have been made within income management and allocation
of income using the system and reducing manual intervention.

Additional improvements made to the purchase to pay process and the better use of the Council’s
invoice capture software, reducing the amount of manual intervention needed. Work continues in
improving this automation with training and awareness sessions.

2023-24 was a very positive year for global equities, and the return of a higher interest rate
environment should also reduce the value the actuary places on the Pension Fund’s liabilities. The
Pension Fund’s year-end value was £5.4bn, comfortably above £5bn for a third consecutive year.
The Fund’s scheme membership continues to grow steadily and remains above 80,000, split roughly
equally between active members, deferred members and pensioners. This is equivalent to around 1
in 7 of the population of the four local authority areas that comprise the Teesside Pension Fund.
The Revenues and Benefits team have once again been re-accredited with Customer Service
Excellence. The Service have held this award for more than 2 decades, every year having to show
improved excellence which is extremely difficult to do given the length of time the service have held
the award. This year, in addition to Customer Service Excellence accreditation the service has
achieved compliance plus in 16 areas. This means that the Service has exceeded the requirements
of the Standard against an element, demonstrated exceptional practice, or can be used as an
exemplar for others within or beyond the sector. There are 5 criteria against which the service is
assessed, namely Customer Insight, Culture of the organisation, Information and Access, Delivery
and Timeliness & Quality of service, and of the 57 elements available, 16 are held at compliance
plus, meaning that around 30% of the customer service being delivered is at ‘elite’ standard with the
remainder being of excellent standard.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEhR@€otlAdbunts 2023-24 Page | 15



e |n 2023-24 a Placement Manager within Commissioning was developed as a pilot initiative,
supporting Childrens Services in placement arrangements, renegotiating current fees and working
towards a forward view for placements. This has resulted in significant savings and due to the
success, this is now on the permanent establishment.

o Areview of Trusted Assessment and Brokerage functions during the year has led to improved
processes and practice and better service outcomes such as achieving a 2-hour response time
to hospital assessment requests, and facilitating more seamless hospital discharges, resulting in no
financial penalties.

e Contract renegotiations have taken place, a key success being savings achieved from the
implementation of a block arrangements, rather than spot rates for children’s care and remodelling of
supported housing.

e Market sustainability has been a key focus and in partnership with the independent care home sector
a complete restructure of fees has been undertaken during the year to move away from a historic
blended rate to fee rates reflective of need.

e Legislative change implemented during 2023-24 has led to new ways of working through the
provider selection regime for clinical services, resulting in the successful introduction of new
procurement requirements, with the team now operating to two legislative frameworks.

e In excess of 46 community and voluntary sector grant projects have been supported throughout the
year, support has including provision of playground equipment, bereavement support, IT support
groups, sports and cultures group support.

Governance
e Suldeim
a[ pOlle Drr
on GOVERNANCEt
nance 0mpile

n regu\atlon Sk’”'

External auditors issued 11 statutory recommendations in
relation to lack of sufficient progress in delivering planned
improvements in the Council's culture and governance
arrangements and due to the Council’s serious financial position.
Progress against the DLUHC Best Value Notice issued in January
2023 has been a corporate priority throughout the year. The
Notice was extended by the Secretary of State for a further 6
months in January 2024 and progress will be reassessed during
the summer 2024.

The Council is required to deliver improvements in how it takes decisions to ensure that it delivers economy,
efficiency, and effectiveness in the use of public funds.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Council revised and strengthened its Corporate Governance
Improvement Plan and implemented a section 24 plan specifically to respond to the auditor’s eleven statutory
recommendations. Progress is overseen by Council and the Audit Committee, the plan requires all elected
members and officers to work collaboratively together to address these serious culture, governance and
financial matters that resulted in DLUHC intervention over the course of the year. The Council is fully engaged
with DLUHC, the Local Government Association (LGA), the MIIAB and its external auditors in order to address
its weaknesses and establish robust management and control arrangements and a compliant and collaborative
culture which is critical to its long-term success.

The Council’'s Constitution and in particular the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and best practice in terms
of control and governance of the Council’s affairs, has been refreshed and mandatory training delivered to
staff. Further steps will be taken to embed a compliant culture in terms of governance and establish a more
robust approach to financial management.

The LMT oversees financial and operational performance and compliance to ensure progress is being
embedded across the organisation. The Council must ensure that non-compliance is addressed through the
most appropriate means to ensure that the required cultural change and governance improvements are
delivered.

The Council’'s Recover, Reset, Deliver Transformation Portfolio was approved by Council in April 2024 and is
delivering in terms of implementation of approved savings and income projects approved in the 2024-25 budget
and the development of a new pipeline of projects that will deliver further improvement and address the
remaining budget gap for 2025-26 and over the medium term. Chief officers leading each thematic programme

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM@0Rcbihes 2023-24 Page | 16



board are tasked with the development of new projects through their Transformation Boards. This is critical to
the delivery of the Council Plan 2024-27 and 2024-25 Medium Term Financial Plan, thereby delivering the
mayor’s vision, “We Will Thrive”.

The successful delivery of the Transformation Portfolio together with successful delivery of the Culture and
Governance Improvement Plan (CGIP) and s24 Action Plan, are critical steps to restore the financial
sustainability of the organisation, develop a robust foundation for delivering the Council Plan and enabling the
Council to satisfy DLUHC that it no longer needs to be subject to Best Value intervention. As reflected in the
Best Value Notice issued in January 2024, DLUHC expect the Council to demonstrate its “capacity to transform
at pace”, through demonstrating its progress on identified financial, governance and cultural issues. The
progress was reviewed and assessed by DLUHC in July 2024 and has not been re-issued.

Financial Review 2023-24
Revenue Budget

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance Officer to report on the robustness
of the budget estimates and the adequacy of the financial reserves. In February 2023, the Chief Finance Officer
concluded that the net budget requirement of £126.4m and council tax requirement of £67.3m, as set out in
the Revenue Budget, Council Tax, Medium Term Financial Plan, and Capital Strategy 2023-24 report to
Council, was robust and provide sufficient resource to enable the Council to set a balanced budget for 2023-
24,

In preparing the 2023-24 revenue budget and Medium-Term Financial Plan, the Chief Finance Officer
determined that:

¢ Reserves were adequate insofar as the minimum level of general balance following risk assessment
is set at £12m and there are no plans to use them in 2023-24 as the fund of last resort.

e There is little resilience in earmarked reserves, and these are at a critical level.

e The currentfinancial standing of the Council indicates a number of significant stressors and addressing
the underlying issues will seek to improve future resilience.

e The most significant risk facing the council’s financial health is the volatility in the cost of children’s
social care impacting both 2022-23 and 2023-24 and significant additional resource of £17m has been
added to the baseline budget for 2023-24.

e The Budget relies on some £9.4m being achieved in savings.

e The financial challenges facing the council continue to be intense in 2023-24 in response to
exceptional inflation costs and service demand.

e The Local Government Financial Settlement predicates an expected increase in council tax of 5% per
annum for 2023-24 and 2024-25 and government announcements of headline funding increases of
9% for 2023-24 assume councils will implement council tax rises at the maximum permitted under
regulation.

e To make service directors fully accountable for their own budgets and spending.

e Provision has been made for contractual inflation increases only.

In setting the revenue budget for 2023-24, a 3.99% increase in Council Tax was approved. This comprised
1.99% increase in general Council Tax, and an additional precept of 2% for Adult Social Care.

The revenue budget for 2023-24 was set at £126.354m, funded as set out below:

£m
Revenue Support Grant 14.182
Business Rates Top Up Payment 29.347
Local Share of Business Rates 16.356
Council Tax 67.309
Collection Fund Balance (0.840)
Total Net Revenue Budget (NRB) in 2023-24 126.354

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEhR@€otlAd€bunts 2023-24 Page | 17



Budget Outturn 2023-24

The Budget Outturn position was reported to Executive on 26 June 2024 and summarised the Council's
financial outturn in respect of the revenue budget and capital programme. It also covered the impact of high
inflation and increased demand for services on the Council’s financial position.

Revenue

The Council’s total net revenue outturn was £129.949m against an approved budget of £126.355m, an
overspend of £3.594m (2.84% of NRB).

This is a substantial improvement to the Council’s general fund revenue financial position from the forecast
overspend of £11.563m (9.2% of NRB at Quarter 1). The overspend has reduced by £1.95m from £5.544m at
Quarter 3, which was the estimate factored into the 2024-25 budget setting assumptions, however the Council
continues to spend more than its available revenue income streams.

The table below summarises the final revenue outturn position by Directorate which illustrates that 82% of the
Council’s expenditure in 2023-24 was spent in Social Care (Childrens and Adult).

_ Revised Full Outturn as Over / (Under)

Directorate Year Net per Council spend
Budget report
£m £m £m

Adult Social Care 51.626 51.600 (0.026)
Public Health (0.944) (0.944) -
Children's Care 52.184 54.950 2.766
Education and Partnerships 5.470 6.551 1.081
Regeneration 0.776 (0.094) (0.870)
Environment & Communities 19.487 20.503 1.016
Legal & Governance 10.815 10.794 (0.021)
Finance & Chief Executive 4.464 3.582 (0.882)
Central Budgets (17.523) (16.993) 0.530
Revenue Outturn 126.355 129.949 3.594

The overspend of £3.594m comprises non savings delivery of £1.568m in Childrens Care plus £2.026m of
other income and expenditure pressures. These overspends are mainly driven by the continued financial
pressures in Children’s Social Care (£2.766m), SEND transport costs within Education and Partnerships
(E1.081m) and Environment and Communities (£1.016m) due to shortfalls in service demand at the
crematorium as well as the forecast pressures in waste disposal costs.

The position in Adult Social Care has improved by £1.384m in the final quarter, resulting in a small underspend
of £0.026m. This is due to a combination of increased underspends on staff budgets £0.337m from vacant
posts due to the nationwide difficulties in recruiting Social Care staff and £1.166m net reduction of purchased
care costs and due to measures taken in the financial recovery plan which have resulted in increased scrutiny
of care package approvals (£0.650m) and increased health contributions to care packages (£0.172m). In
addition, there has been an increase in Direct Payment surplus recovery (£0.080m) and identification and
recovery of an overcharge by one care provider during Quarter Four (£0.106m).

The Council had originally budgeted to fund £3m of eligible revenue expenditure on transformation and
efficiency initiatives from Flexible Use of Capital Receipts (FUOCR) during 2023-24. In January 2024, Council
approved a revision to the FUOCR Strategy which included total eligible expenditure of up to £4.3m which
could be capitalised subject to realisation of at least £4.3m of usable capital receipts by 31 March 2024. This
would have the effect of reducing total revenue expenditure and therefore preserving critically low revenue
reserves. However, the amount of realised capital receipts from asset sales at 31 March 2024 was only
£2.399m. This adjustment has been reflected in the General Fund revenue outturn of £129.949m.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM@0Rcblhls 2023-24 Page | 18



80T abed

Further details of the outturn position of each directorate are included below showing gross expenditure and income, analysed by type of spending:

Adult . . , Education Environment Legal and Finance
. ) Public Children's . and ; Central
Directorate Social and Regeneration . Governance | & Chief Total
Health Care . Community ; . Budgets
Care Partnerships . Services Executive
Services
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Employees 15.411 6.092 19.020 11.607 8.098 23.894 9.768 7.883 1.540 103.313
Indirect Employee
Expenses

0.183 0.033 0.429 0.108 0.513 0.980 0.109 0.046 - 2.401
Premises 0.315 0.248 0.504 0.110 5.629 2.896 0.071 - - 9.773
Transport 0.386 0.006 0.358 3.447 0.032 2.146 0.023 0.091 - 6.489
Supplies and
Services 4.795 4.576 24.771 31.615 4.218 11.525 3.100 4.355 0.773 89.728
Third Party Payments 95.411 9.908 19.220 0.826 0.028 0.091 0.677 1.725 0.180 128.066
Transfer Payments (0.013) (0.053) 0.185 39.177 - 0.007 - 46.320 - 85.623
Capital Financing
Costs (0.054) 0.129 (1.766) (0.002) 0.015 - 0.153 (0.218) 12.701 10.958
Gross Expenditure 116.434 20.939 62.721 86.888 18.533 41.539 13.901 60.202 15.194 | 436.351
Income (64.834) (21.883) (7.771) (80.337) (18.627) (21.036) (3.107) (56.620) | (32.187) | (306.402)
Net Expenditure 51.600 (0.944) 54.950 6.551 (0.094) 20.503 10.794 3.582 | (16.993) 129.949

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24 Page | 19




Reserves and Provisions

The General Fund Balance on 31 March 2024 is £10.986m, a
reduction of £1.055m from the £12.041m balance at 31 March 2023.
The balance on unrestricted usable earmarked reserves stood at
£1.069m at 31 March 2024, a reduction of £2.476m from the balance
of £3.545m at 31 March 2023.

The combined level of these unrestricted reserves was £12.055m at
31 March 2024, below the £15.586m at 31 March 2023 which was
assessed as critically low at 2023-24 budget setting. The £12.055m
level is determined as inadequate by the s151 Officer.

However, as a result of the in-year detailed review of the balance sheet, a revised methodology for calculating
bad debt provisions has been adopted in order to comply with International Accounting Standard 37 (IAS37).
This methodology uses long term historical debt recovery performance data as a basis for estimating future
debt write offs. This has resulted in a reduction in the calculated bad debt provision and combined with
improved collection performance during 2023-24, there is a cumulative surplus available on the Collection
Fund at 31 March 2024 of £11.700m which under the Collection Fund regulations cannot yet be realised.
£8.325m of the cumulative surplus will be realised in 2024-25 with the remaining £3.375m available in 2025-
26 although this figure will need to be combined with the 2024-25 estimated collection performance to calculate
how much will actually be realised.

The £8.325m surplus has been allocated in accordance with the approved 2024-25 budget and MTFP in order
to replenish the General Fund Balance to the minimum recommended by the s151 Officer of £11.1m. The
remaining balance has been allocated to the Financial Resilience Reserve within unrestricted usable reserves
which collectively stand at £9.280m on 1 April 2024.

The combined level of these unrestricted usable reserves at 1 April 2024 is £20.380m (14.2% of the 2024-25
NRB of £143.190m). This level remains low compared nationally to all unitary councils as illustrated in
comparisons set out in the Reserves Policy approved by Council on 8 March 2024. Further measures to
maintain and increase revenue reserves and therefore the Council’s financial resilience are required during
2024-25 and over the medium term.

The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)

There has been an overspend of £7.729m (12.9%) on the DSG budget against the available grant of £59.739m.
This has increased the cumulative deficit to £14.293m at 31 March 2024. The overspend is due to an £8.058m
deficit on High Needs, offset by a total surplus of £0.329m on Early Years and the Schools Block.

The Council is engaged in the Delivering Better Value Programme with the Department for Education (DfE)
and CIPFA to deploy measures to reduce expenditure over time as part of national measures led by
Government to address the financial pressures being experienced by local authorities. Government has
implemented a statutory override on a temporary basis to the end of 2025-26 which directs Councils not to
fund the DSG deficit from the General Fund. The temporary nature of the statutory override presents a medium
to long term risk to the Council. If a government solution is not implemented before the statutory override is
removed, then this deficit would fall to be met by General Fund balances. This is a significant financial risk that
exists for Middlesbrough and many other upper tier local authorities with education responsibilities. Further
focus is required during 2024-25 to address this issue given the significant increase in overspend during 2023-
24,

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM@0R b 2023-24 Page | 20



The table below sets out a summary of the balance of reserves and provisions at the 1 April 2023 and at year-
end 31 March 2024:

Reserves and Provisions 2023-24 AEfLEEY SR In Year Clesing
Balance Movement Balance
£m £m £m
General Fund Reserve (12.041) 1.055 (10.986)
Usable Earmarked Reserves
Unrestricted Usable Earmarked Reserves (3.545) 2.476 (1.069)
Restricted Usable Earmarked Reserves (2.171) (0.709) (1.880)
Total Usable Earmarked Reserves (4.716) 1.767 (2.949)
Unusable Earmarked Reserves
Earmarked Revenue Grants Unapplied (4.875) (0.533) (5.408)
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 6.564 7.729 14.293
Total Unusable Earmarked Reserves 1.689 7.196 8.885
Schools Balances (3.641) (0.958) (4.599)
Provisions
Business Rates Appeals and Other (2.126) 0.603 (1.523)
Insurance (3.068) 0.061 (3.007)
Total Provisions (5.194) 0.664 (4.530)
TOTAL RESERVES & PROVISIONS (23.903) 9.724 (14.179)

Council Tax and Business Rates Income

Income from Council Tax and Business Rates (NNDR) is accounted for
within the Collection Fund. Because of the way that this works in relation to
the General Fund, the financial impact of any reduction in income does not
immediately affect 2023-24 financial position, it is effectively a shortfall to
be resolved in 2024-25 and will be reflected in an updated Budget and
Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP).

Income received from Council Tax and Business Rates (NNDR) is a major
source of revenue income for the Council and funds 66% of its annual
expenditure in delivering all council services. It is accounted for within the Collection Fund and operates under
the Government regulations. Due to the prescribed mechanisms for operating the Collection Fund, the financial
impact of any 2023-24 income collection variances (from the Quarter Three forecast) do not immediately affect
the General Fund position. By illustration, the impact of any final surplus or deficit variance on the Collection
Fund for 2023-24 is fed into the development of the 2025-26 budget and MTFP and any cost/ benefit does not
impact the 2024-25 financial year.

As a result of the detailed balance sheet review, the s151 officer has revised the methodology to calculate the
Collection Fund Bad Debt provision in 2021-22 financial statements in order to comply with International
Accounting Standard 37 (IAS37) which has adopted a long-term data driven methodology to forecast debt

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEhR@€otlatEbunts 2023-24 Page | 21



write offs, based upon actual collection performance. This, combined with collection performance during 2022-
23 has resulted in a cumulative collection fund surplus of £11.700m. £8.325m of this surplus has been applied
to replenish the General Fund Balance to the recommended minimum level of £11.1m and unrestricted usable
reserves at £9.280m at 1 April 2024 in accordance with Council approvals on 8 March 2024. The remainder
will be applied to 2025-26 once collection fund performance for 2023-24 has been established.

The table below shows the Collection Fund position for 2023-24, including the amount of £11.700m related to
the review of the bad debt provision as detailed above.

Collection Fund Balance Council Tax BLI;S;?eeSSS Total
£m £m £m

Balance b/fwd at 1 April 2023 (10.980) 1.222 (9.758)
Deficit / (surplus) for the year (as above) (1.803) (3.384) (5.187)
Balance c/fwd at 31 March 2024 (12.783) (2.162) (14.945)
Allocated to: 83.1% 49.0%

Middlesbrough Council (10.623) (1.059) (11.682)
Bad Debt Provision adjustment to 2024-25 7.976 0.349 8.325
Additional surplus available for 2025-26 (2.647) (0.710) (3.357)

The 2023-24 MTFP presented to Council in February 2023 included the estimated effect of Council Tax and
Business Rates income. In the context of the current economic climate and the Cost-of-Living Crisis, there is
an ongoing risk to the levels of collection of these taxes which may result adversely upon collection rates. The
actual in-year collection rate for 2023-24 was 92.84% for Council Tax and 95.75% for Business Rates. Overall
collection rates remain respectable and presents as a surplus on the collection fund as precept amounts have
been prudently lower than actual collection rates. Over a period of time (c10years) Council Tax collection
rates (pre welfare reform) were around 98.7%, (post welfare reform) are now around 97.6% with business
rates hovering around 97.7%.

The budgeted Council Tax base includes assumptions on housing growth. If there is a variance in growth in
housing numbers compared to the levels budgeted, this will impact upon Council Tax income due.
A key workstream within the plans to recover the Council’s financial position is the renewed focus upon
recovering monies owed to the Council from the following sources

- Council Tax

- Business Rates

- Sundry (general) debt

- Housing Benefit Overpayments

The Council’s approach to improving debt recovery performance whilst maintaining appropriate support to
residents and businesses who are entitled to available help, advice and support. Progress will be incorporated
into quarterly monitoring reports throughout 2024-25.

With high levels of deprivation, a proportionately high benefit caseload, alongside low levels of income, Council
Tax collection across the town will remain a challenge. Council Tax Reduction is provided to around 18,300
households, with the maximum award of 90% to some the town’s most financially vulnerable. There is a steady
migration to Universal Credit and as such the amount of Housing Benefit

Overpayments created is a diminishing return with the debt becoming significantly more difficult to collect as
the ability to deduct from ongoing benefit lessons.

Business Rates and Sundry Debt collection is considered less of a challenge provided that the debt is collected
in-year. The likelihood of collecting aged debt is problematic, businesses can cease trading, wind up, become
bankrupt, leaving the Council with very little recovery options and a strong likelihood that the debt will be written
off.

Whilst overall collection rates over a period of time are respectable, a stronger focus on in-year debt and aged
debt is fundamental in ensuring the council optimises cash collection thus further supporting the reduction in
the provision which is assigned to bad debt.

Draft Statemef @@ cbdnls 2023-24

Middlesbrough Council Page | 22



Through a comprehensive collection strategy, underpinned by the Councils Welfare Strategy for both business
and residents, the Council will pursue debt in a firm but fair way. Residents and businesses will be offered a
range of support to resolve debt problems, such as maximising benefit, welfare advice and support, debt
management, crisis support all of which form part of the support on offer.

Where payment is not forthcoming the Council will exercise its powers provided under the relevant legislation
to enforce the debt. Some of these powers are significant and can lead to serious consequences such as
attachment to earnings, removal of goods, forcing the sale of a property or even commitment to prison all of
which are powers enshrined in law.

To support the increased focus, additional resource has been placed in all of the four areas above as approved
in the budget by Council on 8 March 2024. This will mean that thousands more cases, where debt remains are
being actively progressed. The increased activity will likely lead to many difficult conversations with Residents
and Businesses some of which may result in member engagement, complaints, disputes and even the
possibility of alleged fraud where residents and business have failed to report changes. This is
anticipated/expected due to the increased focus and the thousands more cases that will be managed. Over
more recent months, a number of aged debt business rates cases have been pursued, most gaining press
coverage as the Council gives a strong message that outstanding debt will be collected.

Of the debt remaining, it is anticipated that some debt will not be enforceable and as such may be irrecoverable.
Financial provision has been set aside to respond to this on the basis that where the propensity to pay is low
and unlikely to be recovered, the Council has the ability to write debt off. Write offs should be routinely
undertaken as part of good debt management allowing for a more accurate bad debt provision and greater
financial management of debts owed to the Council.

The Council’s approach to improving its debt position will be based on the following principles:
o Resolve Debt Problems —By providing Welfare Advice and Support
o Where Debt Remains a Problem - Exercise the powers provided in law.

e Where Debt is Irrecoverable — Write the debt off.

The movement in debt balances between 31 March 2023 to 31 March 2024 is summarised below:

Category of Collectable Debt Balance at Movement Balance at
174423 in-year 31/3/124
(Em) (Em) (Em)
Council Tax 34 667 2106 3I6TT3
Business Rates 5775 2616 8.391
Sundry Debt 10.002 5514 15516
Housing Benefits Overpayments 6741 (0_206) 6.535
Total 57 185 10.030 67.215

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEhR@&otlakebunts 2023-24 Page | 23



Group Accounts

The Council has only one significant group relationship - a wholly

% owned subsidiary: Middlesbrough Development Company (MDC),
formed in 2019 and engaged in housing growth and resolving

~AN eyesore sites within the Borough. As the Council control both the

operating and financial activities of the company it has been

Group accounts consolidated into the Council’s Group Accounts on a line-by-line

basis, after first realigning accounting policies with the Council where

/ appropriate and then eliminating any intra-Group transactions.

\/\/\/ The purpose of the group accounting information is to provide a

comprehensive position for Middlesbrough Council incorporating the

company. The Group Accounts show the full extent of the Council’s
assets and liabilities, providing transparency on the overall financial position. These cannot be fully
appreciated from the Council’s single entity accounts alone.

The Group Accounts (at Section 4) include the following information:

e Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, which shows the income and expenditure of
the Group in line with statutory regulations, international financial reporting standards and CIPFA
Accounting Code of Practice requirements.

e Group Movement in Reserves - shows the movement in the year on reserves held by the Group.

e Group Balance Sheet - reports the Council Group financial position at the year-end.

e Group Cash Flow Statement - shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Group during the
year.

¢ Notes to the Group Accounts — information provided where the balances are materially different to those
in the single entity accounts.

Following a review of the governance and operating arrangements of the company, against new CIPFA
guidance, by the Council’'s Executive during January 2023, a decision was made to wind up MDC once its on-
going projects were completed. The liquidation process for the dissolution of the company is ongoing and due
to be complete in late 2024.

Capital

The Council approved a capital programme for 2023-24 of £71.211m (the original 2023-24 capital budget).
This was revised to £80.474m at Q1 to take account of 2022-23 programme slippage due to the delay in
delivery of projects compared to the planned delivery indicating a requirement for more robust capital
programme and project management. The programme was reviewed on a quarterly basis with a revised budget
of £67.631m at Quarter Three. Additional externally funded income has been added to the programme,
resulting in a revised 2023-24 budget of £72.643m. The final outturn at 31 March 2024 is expenditure of
£47.714m, an underspend of £32.760m (40%) against the original budget adjusted for slippage, £19.917m
(29%) against the Quarter Three revised budget and £24.929m (34%) against the final 2023-24 budget.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM @0 cbdnds 2023-24 Page | 24



The table below summarises the capital outturn position for 2023-24 for each directorate.

Directorate Latest Budget g‘LIJItIJerir 0"9; F/) e(;l:quer)
£m £m £m
Regeneration 30.250 18.802 (11.448)
Environment and Community Services 22.271 17.508 (4.763)
Public Health 0.192 0.148 (0.044)
Adult Social Care 7.004 2.878 (4.126)
Education and Partnerships 4.473 1.949 (2.524)
Children's Care 3.787 3.344 (0.443)
Legal and Governance Services 3.739 2.536 (1.203)
Finance 0.927 0.549 (0.378)
Total Directorates 72.643 47.714 (24.929)

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value of assets and liabilities of the Council and sets out the revenue and capital
reserves available for future investment. It also allows for comparison with the previous financial year-end and
can be used to make judgements around the organisation’s financial position.

A summary of the Balance Sheet at the 31 March 2024 is set out below:

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£'000 £'000
629.911 Long Term Assets 505.772
90.390 Current Assets 87.780
(99.090) Current Liabilities (78.157)
(211.805) Long-Term Liabilities (236.132)
409.406 Net Assets 279.263
(59.826) Usable Reserves (75.703)
(349.580) Unusable Reserves (203.560)
(409.406) Total Long-Term Assets (279.263)

The key headline messages to note in relation to the Balance Sheet at 31 March 2024 are as follows:

e Long-term assets include property, plant and equipment, heritage assets, investment properties, intangible
assets, long term investments and debtors. They have decreased by £59.403m due to a reduction in the
value of property, plant and equipment and a reduction to long term debtors.

e Current assets include short term investments, assets held for sale, inventories, debtors and cash and
remained fairly static showing a slight reduction of £6m mainly due to a reduction in short term investments
partially offset by an increase in debtors and cash.

e Current liabilities include short term borrowing, creditors, receipts in advance and short-term provision. A
reduction of £20.933m mostly due to a £9.096m reduction in borrowing and a £10.225m reduction in short
term creditors.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@@esflakdbunts 2023-24 Page | 25



e Long-term liabilities include long term provision and borrowing and pension liability. They have increased
by £24.326m due unfunded pension liabilities and an increase in long terms borrowing.

o Usable reserves include capital and revenue reserves. The increase of £15.876m is due to an increase of
£17.207m in capital reserves and a reduction of £1.331m in revenue reserves have increased mainly due
to the review of the bad debt provision calculation.

e Unusable reserves reflect the technical accounting adjustments required to comply with proper accounting
practice and are therefore not available to support the council’s revenue or capital expenditure plans. Most
of the movements are unrealised in nature and do not have an immediate impact on the Council’s revenue
budget or medium-term financial plan.

The Council’s balance sheet is in a positive net worth position of £279.263m (i.e., the assets are greater than
the liabilities).

It is also worth reiterating that both long-term assets and liabilities, subject to specialist valuation and
professional expert techniques, are less reliable in the current year than in the past, due to the inherent level
of uncertainty created by high inflation. Where professional judgement has been involved, regular discussions
have been held with valuers and actuaries about the issues involved and prudent conclusions have been made
by the Council when considering these results. The Council is comfortable with these issues in the short term
and until a greater degree of normality has returned. No specific measures are being undertaken within the
Medium-Term Financial Plan to cater for this.

Annual Statement of Accounts

The Statement of Accounts is the main method of external financial reporting produced by the Council. It is a
complex and technical document, which comprises a number of sections and financial statements following
the CIPFA Code of Practice on local authority accounting. These are as follows:

Narrative Report - this introductory section provides information on the format of the Statement of Accounts
as well as a review of the financial position, performance, and cash flows of the Council for the financial year
2023-24.

Statement of Responsibilities — this details the responsibilities of the Council and the Director of Finance
(Section 151 Officer), concerning the Council’s financial affairs and the Statement of Accounts.

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council - the external auditor, Forvis Mazars have prepared this report,
following their audit of the accounts for the financial year.

Annual Governance Statement - the Council is required to carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control and to include a status report with the Statement of Accounts. This Statement
explains how the Council has complied with the Code of Corporate Governance during the 2023-24 financial
year.

The Core Financial Statements comprise:
e The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — shows the income and expenditure of the

Council in line with statutory regulations, international financial reporting standards and CIPFA Accounting
Code of Practice requirements.

e The charts below and overleaf illustrate where the money has come from and how it has been spent.

e The totals in the financial statement are higher/lower than those set out below, which relate to the
management accounts of the authority, due to technical adjustments to comply with proper accounting
practice, but which are not funded by the taxpayer. More details on this are set out in the notes to the
accounts.

The following charts illustrate where the money has come from and how it has been spent:

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM 30 cbdrgs 2023-24 Page | 26



WHERE THE MONEY CAME FROM (£432.758m)

Interest and Investment... Council Tax £66.469m Business Rates

lr {15.36%) £16.356m (3.78%)
Fees and Charges
£65.004m (15.02%) >

Business Rates Top Up

A Grant £29.347m (6.78%)

Revenue Support Grant
£14.182m (3.28%)

Grants £240.381m ——
(55.55%)

WHERE THE MONEY WAS SPENT (£436.351m)

Interest and Other Costs

£7.269m (1.67%) Employee Costs
— £105.714m (24.23%)

~~_ Precepts and Levies
£0.18m (0.04%)

Goods and ServicesJ
£323.188m (74.07%)

The Balance Sheet — shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets owned and liabilities incurred
by the Council. The total net assets (assets less liabilities) are equivalent to the revenue and capital reserves

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEl@@tlak€unts 2023-24 Page | 27



held by the Council. The following charts gives summary information on what the Council owns and owes:

Stocks and Assets Held

for Sale £7.595m WHAT THE COUNCIL OWNS (£593.552m)

(1.28%) Short Term Debtors ~ Cash £9.143m (1.54%)
Short Term Investments £68.042m (11.46%) |

£3m (0.51%) |
Long Term Investments Property, Plant

and Long Term Debtors & Equipment
£427.787m

£9.323m (1.57%)
) (72.06%)
Intangible Assets =
£3.656m (0.62%)
Heritage |
Assets

£33.544m
(5.65%)

Investment
Properties
£31.462m (5.3%)

WHAT THE COUNCIL OWES (£314.289m)

Provisions and Liabilities

/ £0.02m (6.37%)

Creditors £0.046m — L
(14.65%) Borrowings £0.248m
(78.98%)

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM30Rcbdnts 2023-24 Page | 28



e The Movement in Reserves Statement - this statement shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by the Council, split into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e., those that can be applied to fund expenditure
or reduce local taxation) and unusable reserves (arising mainly as a result of technical and accounting
adjustments).

e The Cash Flow Statement - this summarises the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council
during the reporting period. Cash flows are analysed between operating, investing, and financing activities.

Accounting Policies Note - this note explains the basis for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of
transactions in the Accounting Statements.

Notes to the Accounts - provides supporting and explanatory information as to how the accounts have been
prepared and support the understanding of the accounting policies applied in the accounts to present a true
and fair view of the financial position.

Pension Fund Accounts - the Teesside Pension Fund is administered by Middlesbrough Council and is
independently managed and completely separate from the Council’'s own finances. This statement forms an
extract from the Teesside Pension Fund Annual Report and summarises the financial position of the Pension
Fund, including all income and expenditure for 2023-24, assets, and liabilities as at 31 March 2024.

A Glossary - to explain the technical jargon in the Statement of Accounts and help make the document more
understandable to the reader.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEhR@€otlak&bunts 2023-24 Page | 29



Statement of Responsibilities — Middlesbrough Council

The Authority’s Responsibilities

The Authority is required to:

e make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to nominate that one of its
Officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Authority, that officer is the

Chief Finance Officer (Director of Finance);

e manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient, and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets,

and;
e approve the statement of accounts.

The Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities

The Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s statement of accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/ LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority

Accounting (the Code).

In preparing the statement of accounts, the Director of Finance has:

¢ selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
¢ made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and
o complied with the local authority Code.

The Director of Finance has also:

e Kkept proper accounting records which were up to date; and

o taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Confirmation of the Statement of Accounts

| certify that the statement of accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority at

31 March 2024 and its income and expenditure for that year.

Deborah Middleton FCPFA, BA(Hons)
Director of Finance
Middlesbrough Council

24 September 2024

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM@0Rcbdr®s 2023-24

Page | 30



Statement of Responsibilities — Teesside Pension Fund

Statement of Responsibilities

Middlesbrough Council Responsibilities
The Council is required to:

e Make arrangements for the proper administration of the financial affairs of the Teesside Pension Fund
(the Fund) through a Pension Fund Committee;

e Secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs, namely the
Chief Finance Officer of the Council (Director of Finance); and

e Manage the Fund to secure economic, efficient, and effective use of resources and to safeguard its
assets and approve the Fund’s Statement of Accounts.

The Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities

The Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Fund’s Statement of Accounts in accordance
with proper practices set out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015.

In preparing the Statement of Accounts, the Director of Finance has:

Selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

Made judgements and estimates that were reasonably prudent;

Complied with the Code;

Kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and

Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Confirmation of the Statement of Accounts

| confirm that the Teesside Pension Fund Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Fund at 31 March 2024 and of its income and expenditure for that year.

Deborah Middleton FCPFA, BA(Hons)
Director of Finance
Middlesbrough Council

24 September 2024

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEhR@€otladEbunts 2023-24 Page | 31



Auditor’s Report — Middlesbrough Council

To follow once the external audit of the Council’s accounts is complete for 2023-24.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeM @0 cbahls 2023-24 Page | 32



Auditor’s Report — Teesside Pension Fund

To follow once the external audit of the Pension Fund accounts is complete for 2023-24.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEhR@€otlidebunts 2023-24 Page | 33






v2T obed

Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement shows the movement in the different reserves held by the Council over the financial year. These reserves can be analysed into usable reserves,
those that are available to fund expenditure or to reduce taxation, and other unusable reserves, held for accounting purposes.

General Earmarked Capital ReD\I/Le:ltxe Capital Total Unusable Total

2023-24 Fund Revenue Receipts . Grants Usable Council
Funding . Reserves
Balance Reserves Reserve . Unapplied Reserves Reserves
Unapplied
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 April 2023 (12.041) (13.231) - (34.553) | (59.825) (349.580) (409.405)
Movement in reserves during 2023-24
Total Comprehensive Income and 12.857 - - | 12.857 117.286 130.143
Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting basis &
funding basis under regulation (Note 6) S, i i LAY | PR ks :
Transfers to/(from) other reserves (0.275) 0.275 - - - - -
Net Decrease / (increase) in year 1.055 0.275 - (17.207) | (15.877) 146.020 130.143
Balance at 31 March 2024 carried forward (10.986) (12.956) - (51.760) (75.702) (203.560) (279.262)

Usable reserves are for both capital and revenue purposes therefore £51.760m of the total £75.702m usable reserves must be utilised against capital expenditure
and the remaining £23.942m for revenue purposes. However, of the total revenue reserves £12.956m are earmarked reserves of which only £1.069m is unrestricted
with the remaining £11.887m is restricted to specific purposes, usually due to grant conditions. The unrestricted earmarked reserves of £1.069m are available
alongside the £10.986m General Fund giving a total of £12.055m available as unrestricted reserves (9.5% of Net Revenue Budget) which was assessed as

inadequate the s151 Officer.

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Page | 35



GeT obed

Direct

General Earmarked Capital Revenue Capital Total Unusable Total

2022-23 Fund Revenue Receipts . Grants Usable Council
Funding . Reserves
Balance Reserves Reserve . Unapplied Reserves Reserves
Unapplied
£m £m £m £fm £m £m £m £fm
Balance at 1 April 2022 (11.182) (34.375) - (0.023) (31.415) (76.995) (15.356) (92.351)
Movement in reserves during 2022-23
Total hensive |
otal Comprehensive Income and 45.320 i i i | 45320 (362.375) | (317.055)

Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting basis &

27.64 - - .02 .534 28.151 28.151 -
funding basis under regulation (Note 6) P, 0.023 {OEER) PERIS, 8.15
Transfers to/(from) other reserves (18.540) 21.144 - - (2.604) - - -
Net Decrease / (increase) in year (0.860) 21.144 - 0.023 (3.138) 17.169 (334.224) (317.055)
Balance at 31 March 2023 carried forward (12.042) (13.231) - - (34.553) (59.826) (349.580) (409.406)

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Page | 36




Income and Expenditure Statement

This Statement brings together both income and expenditure relating to all of the Council’s day to day
services for the year and also shows how this is financed from a combination of local taxation, government
grants and other income. This Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice, rather than the amount to be funded by taxation
which is the subject of in year budget setting and monitoring reports.

2022-23 2023-24
z
E‘JI’OSS . i0us Expe’\rl‘ledtiture Cost of Services by Service Area % Eltse n EEEs Expe’\llﬁjtiture
xpenditure Income / (Income) Expenditure Income / (Income)
£m £m £m £m £m £m
36.168 (7.986) 28.182 Regeneration 43.580 (6.725) 36.855
18.545 (24.631) (6.086) Public Health and Public Protection 19.394 (19.525) (0.131)
87.172 (69.585) 17.587 Education 100.499 (86.931) 13.568
66.063 (4.362) 61.701 Children’s Care 65.307 (7.294) 58.013
106.356 (51.701) 54.655 Adult Social Care and Health Integration 114.127 (59.735) 54.392
38.926 (0.210) 38.716 Environment and Commercial Services 42.040 (5.822) 36.218
61.543 (52.330) 9.213 Finance 60.170 (54.745) 5.425
16.807 (1.873) 14.934 Legal & Governance Services 15.404 (2.260) 13.144
7.178 (16.305) (9.127) Central Costs 1.974 (18.421) (16.447)
438.758 (228.983) 209.775 Total Cost of Service 462.495 (261.458) 201.037
0.169 (0.226) (0.057) Other Operating Income and Expenditure 9 3.158 - 3.158
22.136 (18.220) 3.916 Financing & Investment Activities 10 14.053 (16.842) (2.789)
- (168.314) (168.314) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 11 - (188.549) (188.549)
461.063 (415.743) 45.320 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 479.706 (466.849) 12.857
Iltems that will not be re-classified to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Service
(10.095) (Surplus) on revaléati_on of Property Plant and 23 0.507
quipment
Actuarial (Gains) on Pension Fund charged to the
(348.847) ( %ensions Resorve O 39 (79.043)
- Asset Ceiling Adjustment 39 200.168
(3.433) | Depreciation written out to the Revaluation reserve | 23 (4.346)
(362.375) | Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 117.286
(317.055) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 130.143
Middlesbrough Council Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24 Page | 37

Page 126




Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value of assets and liabilities held by the Council. The net assets are
matched by the Council’s revenue and capital reserves.

31 March 2023 Note 31 March 2024
£m £m
440.866 Property, Plant & Equipment 23 427.787
32.526 Heritage Assets 25 33.544
31.116 Investment Properties 26 31.462
2.574 Intangible Assets 27 3.656
0.309 Long-Term Investments 29 0.309
107.390 Pension Asset 29 -
15.130 Long-Term Debtors 32 9.014
629.911 Total Long-Term Assets 505.772
18.500 Short-Term Investments 29 3.000
0.125 Short-Term Assets Held for Sale 28 4.827
2.871 Inventories 33 2.768
60.562 Short-Term Debtors 32 68.042
8.332 Cash and Cash Equivalents 34 9.143
90.390 Total Current Assets 87.780
(38.708) Short-Term Borrowing 29 (29.612)
(55.671) Short-Term Creditors 35 (45.446)
(3.219) Receipts in Advance 12 (1.051)
(1.492) Short-Term Provisions 36 (2.048)
(99.090) Total Current Liabilities (78.157)
(8.700) Net Current Assets / (Liabilities) 9.623
(8.702) Long-Term Provisions 36 (2.482)
(206.965) Long-Term Borrowing 29 (218.493)
(1.138) Other Long-Term Liabilities 29 (0.975)
- Pension Liability 39 (14.182)
(211.805) Total Long-Term Liabilities (236.132)
409.406 Net Assets/(Liabilities) 279.263
(59.826) Usable Reserves 37 (75.703)
(349.580) Unusable Reserves 38 (203.560)
(409.406) Total Reserves (279.263)
Deborah Middleton FCPFA, BA(Hons) 24 September 2024

Director of Finance

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24 Page | 38
Page 127



Cash Flow Statement

This Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents held by the Council during the financial
year. It shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows into

operating, investing and financing activities. Itis an integral part of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the Balance Sheet for the Council.

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m
(45.320) Surplus / deficit on provision of services (12.856)
38.056 Adjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 20.934
for non-cash movements (Note 46)

Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
(0.015) provision of services that are investing and financing activities 2.942
(Note 46)

(7.279) Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 11.020
(46.255) Investing Activities (Note 47) (12.477)
37.244 Financing Activities (Note 48) 2.268

(16.290) Net Increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 0.811
24,622 Cash and cash equwalen@s at the beginning at the reporting 8.332
period (Note 34)
8.332 Cash and cash equwa!ents at the end at the reporting 9143
period (Note 34)
Middlesbrough Council Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24 Page | 39

Page 128






Note 1 Accounting Policies

[General Principles |

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s financial transactions for the 2023-24 financial year and
its position at the 31 March 2024.

The Council is required to prepare a Statement of Accounts for each financial year under the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015 (updated for the Coronavirus Amendment Regulations 2021) and in accordance with
proper accounting practices. These proper accounting practices under Section 21 of the Local Government
Act 2003 principally comprise:

e The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023-24 (the Code)
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
e Statutory guidance issued under Section 12 of the 2003 Act.

The Statement of Accounts has been prepared using the ‘going concern’ concept (see below) and using the
accruals basis of accounting such that transactions are recorded on the basis of when they fall due and not
necessarily when settled in cash.

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from His Majesty’'s Revenue
and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income amounts.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. A summary of this is in the
following table.

Asset Class Measurement Basis

Property, Plant and Equipment — Land & Buildings Current value based on Existing Use Value (EUV) for operational
assets where there is an active market, or if there is no market-
based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature
of the asset and/or the asset is rarely sold, Depreciated
Replacement Cost (DRC).

Property, Plant and Equipment — Infrastructure, | Depreciated historical cost/Historical cost.
Community Assets and Assets under Construction

Property, Plant and Equipment — Surplus Assets Fair value.

Property, Plant and Equipment — All Other Assets Depreciated historical cost.
Investment Properties Fair value.

Pension Assets Fair value.

Pension Liabilities Actuarial Basis

The Council’'s over-arching accounting policies are set out in more detail below. Further details on the
accounting treatment adopted for specific transactions and balances is included in relevant disclosure notes.

|Basis of Preparation - Going Concern

The concept of a going concern assumes that the Council’s functions and services will continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. The provisions in the Code in respect of going concern reporting
requirements, reflect the economic and statutory environment in which the Council operates. If the Council
were in financial difficulty, the prospects are that alternative arrangements might be made by central

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@genfladbunts 2023-24 Page | 41



government either for the continuation of the services it provides, the provision of exceptional financial support,
or for assistance with the recovery of a budget deficit over more than one financial year. These provisions
confirm that, as Councils cannot be created or dissolved without statutory prescription, they must prepare their
financial statements on a going concern basis of accounting.

Middlesbrough Council continues to operate in a volatile and challenging economic and financial environment.
Like many local authorities, the Council is experiencing significant financial challenges because of continuing
high inflation, increasing demand, and complexity of need for services for the most vulnerable in the
community, primarily adult and children’s social care, home to school transport, homelessness, and waste
disposal, for which it is required to meet its statutory responsibilities.

In addition, the Council has a governance qualification in place in relation to its ability to achieve value for
money from its operating arrangements. This was introduced by the external auditor in July 2022, as part of
the audit of the 2020-21 statement of accounts, with formal statutory recommendations being introduced in
August 2023 under Section 24 Schedule 7(2) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. This is as well
as the Best Value notice issued by DLUHC in January 2023 which has been extended to 30 June 2024 which
requires the Council to demonstrate improvement through its progress in delivering against its Culture and
Governance Improvement Plan (CGIP) and s24 Action Plan.

On setting the 2023-24 budget, the previous chief finance officer indicated that the budget was robust, but had
some serious risks attached if approved savings programmes were not delivered to plan and if actual demand
pressures were above the assumptions made at budget setting. In addition, it was noted that the level of
available revenue reserves was at a critical level and that the ability to raise additional council tax income was
constrained by the demographic characteristics of Middlesbrough’s council tax base.

Very early in the 2023-24 financial year, the Council’s financial management and forecasting processes
identified that demand for services particularly within adults and children’s social care, home to school
transport, homelessness and waste disposal were likely to exceed the levels previously forecast. This,
combined with issues on delivering some projects within the savings programme were forecast to result in a
significant overspend for 2023-24 financial year. At Quarter One this forecast overspend was of the order of
£11.527m. Against an available usable revenue reserves position of £14.829m, this would consume all the
corporate earmarked reserves, plus most of the Councils’ general reserves balance therefore putting the
Council at high risk of s151 Officer being required to issue a s114 Notice under s114(3) of the Local
Government and Finance Act 1983.

The s151 Officer implemented a number of measures to restrict expenditure to essential purposes only in July
2023 and established monthly budget challenge sessions with the requirement for directors to develop financial
recovery plans to control expenditure within the approved budget. Quarterly budget challenge sessions also
took place which were led by the Executive Member for Finance and Governance and attended by all relevant
Executive Members and Directors in relation to their portfolio.

With focused effort and initiative, the Council’s corporate leadership team and the Executive have managed to
reduce the forecast overspend from £11.527m to £3.594m by the end of the financial year. This overspend
has been funded through the use of usable revenue reserves which remain at a critically low level of £12.055m,
consisting of unrestricted earmarked of £1.069m and General Fund Balances of £10.986, which are assessed
as inadequate. Although the position is improved, the Council continues to spend above its annual income
streams. The 2024-25 budget was balanced utilising £4.7m of one-off borrowing approved by DLUHC via
Exceptional Financial Support, with a further £8.7m of EFS borrowing provided to fund potential risk of non-
delivery of savings and realisation of capital receipts to fund transformation during 2024-25. Work will continue
to control expenditure throughout 2024-25 together with development and implementation of the Council’s
Recover, Reset, Deliver Transformation Portfolio which aims to deliver further modernisation of services to
deliver further savings to balance the c£8m budget gap that remains over the period to 2026-27. The Council
must establish service delivery models that can operate within its annual income streams and deliver its plans
to rebuild its revenue reserves restore its financial resilience.

The Council was required to set a legally balanced budget for 2024-25 by the statutory deadline of 11 March
2024. At its meeting on 20 December 2023, Executive considered an update report in relation to progress
made in developing the 2024-25 Budget and MTFP for the period 2024-25 to 2026-27. The report identified
that despite substantial work undertaken by the Leadership Management Team, the Elected Mayor and the
Executive to identify savings and income growth proposals sufficient to balance the 2024-25 budget, a shortfall
of £6.279m remained for 2024-25. It also reported further gaps of £1.596m for 2025-26 and £0.305m for 2026-
27, equivalent to a cumulative budget gap of £8.180m. This budget gap remained despite an increase in council
tax of 4.99% and cumulative savings and income growth projected at £21.088m by the end of 2026-27.

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@chdnls 2023-24 Page | 42



The Council had been in regular dialogue with DLUHC officials in relation to the potential need for Exceptional
Financial Support (EFS) since the early summer 2023. EFS is available from DLUHC in the form of approval
to capitalise expenditure that would otherwise be classed as revenue expenditure and for this to be funded by
either Council borrowing or capital receipts. DLUHC and the Secretary of State also indicated that local
authorities seeking EFS should take every possible step to minimise the need for that support to be funded by
national taxpayers, while also recognising the cost-of-living pressures on families. As part of that process, the
Government will consider representations from local authorities, including on council tax provision.

In January 2024 a report from the Chief Executive and the S151 Officer stated that in order to set a legally
balanced and robust budget whilst maintaining adequate revenue reserves for 2024-25 the Council must apply
for EFS from Central Government, and on 17 January 2024 the Executive approved that an application for
EFS be made to DLUHC for the sum of £15m in order to enable a balanced and robust budget to be
recommended to Council for approval at its 2024-25 budget setting meeting. This would enable the Council to
address the budget gap for 2024-25, manage the financial implications of the savings programme delivery risk
and support transformation and redundancy costs pending realisation of capital receipts from the asset
disposal programme. Following the allocation of an additional £1.6m of Social Care Grant in the Final Local
Government Finance Settlement on 5 February 2024, the budget gap for 2024-25 was reduced by this sum
from £6.3m to £4.7m. Consequently, the EFS application was adjusted from £15m to £13.4m. The Minister for
Local Government wrote to the Elected Mayor on 27 February 2024 to inform him that DLUHC approves ‘in-
principle’ the Council’s application of up to £13.4m of EFS application subject to standard terms and conditions,
and on 8 March 2024 Full Council approved the recommendation to accept the ‘in-principle’ offer of up to
£13.4m of Exceptional Financial Support (EFS) issued by DLUHC and the associated terms and conditions.
This enabled the Council to meet its statutory responsibility to set a lawful balanced and robust budget and
Council Tax level for 2024-25 by the statutory deadline of 11 March 2024. The approval for EFS of £13.4m
allowed the Council to meet the budget gap to fund day to day expenditure on services and operational risks,
allowing the Council to borrow to fund day to day revenue expenditure which is not usually permitted. The ‘in
principle’ offer has subsequently been confirmed by DLUHC.

In addition to the above, a review of the collection fund bad debt provision was also undertaken during 2023-
24 and this combined with the above enabled a balanced budget for 2024-25 to be set for the Council and for
its level of revenue reserves to be restored and protected to achieve financial recovery. Through the
implementation of a new Transformation Programme, the Council will be able to be returned to a financially
sustainable position by 2026-27.

The Council currently has a delay on the progress and completion of the external audit of its 2021-22 accounts,
due to government proposals to address the national local government external audit backlog. This has also
meant that the 2022-23 audit has not been commenced pending the outcome of the DLUHC consultation which
seeks to introduce backstop dates for outstanding audits up to and including 2023-24 along with a recovery
period up to 2027-28. There is also the prospect of modified and/or disclaimed audit opinions on outstanding
accounts for 2022-23 and prior years

The Council considers that it has a robust approach to its capital financing, debt, and treasury management
practices. This will continue to ensure that liquidity within the organisation remains healthy, that all suppliers
and staff will be paid, and that any debts outstanding will be pursued and collected where possible.

For the above reasons, the Council does not consider that there is material uncertainty in respect of its ability
to continue as a going concern for the MTFP period to 31 March 2027.

Government has implemented a statutory override on a temporary basis to the end of 2025-26 which directs
local authorities not to fund the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit from the General Fund. The temporary
nature of the statutory override presents a medium to long term risk to the Council. If a Government solution
is not implemented before the statutory override is removed, then this deficit (which the balance was £14.293m
at 31 March 24), would fall to be met by General Fund balances. This is a significant financial risk that exists
for Middlesbrough and many other upper tier local authorities with education responsibilities. The Council is
engaged in the Delivering Better Value Programme with the Department for Education (DfE) and CIPFA to
deploy measures to reduce expenditure over time as part of hational measures led by Government to address
the financial pressures being experienced by local authorities. Further focus is required during 2024-25 to
address this issue given the significant increase in overspend during 2023-24.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@genfladebunts 2023-24 Page | 43



[Accruals of Income and Expenditure

The Accounts have been prepared using the accruals basis of accounting such that transactions are recorded
based on when they fall due and not necessarily when settled in cash. In particular:

e Whether paid on-account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third-party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received, and all conditions associated with the grant will be satisfied.

¢ Amounts recognised as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried forward in the Balance Sheet as creditors.

¢ When all conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line or
taxation and non-specific grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

e All other income and expenditure amounts are recognised on an accruals basis reflecting the date the
service was provided.

e Expenditure in relation to services received by the Council (including services provided by employees)
is recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

e Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for as income and
expenditure respectively, based on the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument.

o Where income or expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.

e Accruals are generally recognised where the value exceeds £10,000.

|Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account and the General Fund

The surplus or deficit on provision of services reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is transferred to the General Fund. Amounts are then transferred to and from the General Fund
under statutory provisions or to set aside specific amounts for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.
These amounts are shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Amounts appropriated under Statutory Provisions

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in
its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined in accordance
with statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore
replaced by the contribution (Minimum Revenue Provision) in the General Fund, by way of an adjusting
transaction to the Capital Adjustment Account through the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of asset disposals is appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for an asset sale in excess of £10,000 (or £5,000 for Investment Properties and Intangible
Assets) are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve. Amounts in the
Capital Receipts Reserve can only be used to fund new capital investment or be set aside to reduce the
Council's underlying need to borrow.

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result
in the creation of a non-current asset is charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year (REFCUS). Where the Council has determined to meet the
cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer from the General Fund to
the Capital Adjustment Account is made to reverse the amounts charged so there is no impact on Council
Tax.

Capital grant values included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for which capital
expenditure has been incurred are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Capital grant values included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for which capital
expenditure has not yet been incurred are transferred to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve until such time

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRl@g@chdhds 2023-24 Page | 44



that capital expenditure is incurred at which time the expenditure is transferred to the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Statutory provisions require the General Fund balance is only charged with the amount payable by the Council
to the pension fund in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.
Accordingly, amounts charged and credited in determining the surplus or deficit on the provision of services
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are replaced with amounts actually paid to the
pension fund via an appropriation to the Pensions Reserve for the difference.

Amounts set aside

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future liabilities or to cover contingencies by
transferring amounts out of the General Fund to Earmarked Reserves. When expenditure to be financed from
a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service and transferred back into the General Fund.
Amounts set aside and transferred back are shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

|Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are used in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes and that are expected to be held for more than one financial year are classified as
Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition and Componentisation

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised
provided that it exceeds a de minimus level of £5,000. Expenditure that is below the de minimus or maintains
but does not add to an asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (e.g., repairs
and maintenance) is charged as an expense.

Componentisation acknowledges that some assets are made up of different parts and that sometimes these
parts have differing useful economic lives and should therefore be depreciated over different periods.
Depreciating assets are subject to a review for componentisation where their individual carrying value is above
0.25% of the total carrying value of its asset class (Land and Buildings). On review, assets are componentised
when by doing so would produce a depreciation charge of over £100,000 and more than double the difference
compared with the depreciation charge if the asset isn’t componentised.

Measurement

Purchased assets are initially measured at cost (usually the purchase price). Borrowing costs incurred whilst
assets are under construction are not included in cost.

Donated assets are initially measured at historical cost with the difference between historic cost and any
consideration paid being credited to taxation and non-specific grant Income in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

Property, Plant and Equipment is carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

e Land and Buildings are carried at fair value. Fair value is determined as the amount that would be
paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use value - EUV) for assets for which there is an active
market (e.g., offices) and Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) for assets for which there is not an
active market (e.g., schools). They are revalued regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not
materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years.

e Infrastructure and Community Assets and Assets under Construction are valued at depreciated
historical cost. In addition, and in relation to highways infrastructure assets specifically there is an
assumption that these assets are fully depreciated before being replaced.

e Surplus assets are defined as those that are not being used to deliver services and do not fulfil the
criteria to be classified as either Investment Properties or Assets Held for Sale. They are carried at
fair value i.e., the price that would be received if an asset is sold or the price that would be paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
They are revalued regularly (every five years as a minimum) to ensure their carrying amount is not
materially different from their fair value at the balance sheet date; and;

e All Other Assets are held at depreciated historical cost as a proxy for fair value.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@genfladébunts 2023-24 Page | 45



Where assets are carried at fair value the treatment of changes to the valuation are accounted for as follows:

e Increases in valuations are generally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as 'other comprehensive income and expenditure' and matched by an increase to the
Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains will be credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as a reduction in service cost if they arise from
the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service;

e Decreases in valuations (up to the amount of any previously accumulated gains specific to that asset)
are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as 'other comprehensive
income and expenditure' and matched by a reduction to the Revaluation Reserve. Where the balance
in the Revaluation Reserve is insufficient to absorb the decrease, the remaining amount is charged
against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; and

e The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007, the date of its
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date are a constituent part of the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Impairment relates to the reduction on a permanent basis of a non-current asset due to a specific event such
as fire, flooding, accidental damage and an act of God and associated perils. Impairment does not relate to
general decreases in property value or the use of an asset in a specific way where its value be less than its
historic cost and these will be informed via revaluations.

Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall. Impairment losses are treated in the same way as downward revaluations for the
purposes of allocating between the Revaluation Reserve and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Where an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for
depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Discontinued Use

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is charged to other
operating expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any revaluation gains
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account to
offset this loss. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in
the surplus or deficit on provision of services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to other operating expenditure
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts
from disposals (if any) are credited to the same part the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e., netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time
of disposal).

[Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation is provided for on all assets identified as Property, Plant and Equipment and Amortisation is
charged on Intangible Assets by the systematic allocation of their balance sheet amounts over their useful
lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e., freehold land), community
assets and assets that are not yet available for use.

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@chaies 2023-24 Page | 46



Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item, the components are recorded and depreciated separately.

Depreciation and Amortisation is charged over the useful life of the asset, using a method that reflects the
pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential is expected to be consumed. The
standard useful lives for new assets are as follows:

e Operational Buildings  30-60 Years
e Plant and Equipment 5-10 Years

e Vehicles 5-10 Years
e Infrastructure assets 15-65 Years
e Surplus Buildings 30-60 Years
e Intangible Assets 3-10 Years

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value
depreciation and the amount that would have been charged otherwise. This is based on the historic cost being
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

[Bad Debt Provision — Statutory Debt

The Council has determined its bad debt provision based on a range of factors including the age of the debt,
historic recovery rates and the actions taken by the Council to liaise with the debtor to maximise recovery.

IAS 37 defines and specifies the accounting for and disclosure of provisions, contingent liabilities, and
contingent assets. A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. The bad debt provision should
recognise debts if it is probable that the debt will not be settled. If it is only a possibility and not probable, then
the item is not treated as a provision but rather a liability.

IAS 37 stipulates the criteria for provisions which must be met for a provision to be recognised to prevent
manipulation of financial results. According to IAS 37, three criteria are required to be met before a provision
can be recognised. These are:

e There needs to be a present obligation from a past event e.g., a service provided, and an invoice
issued

e There needs to be a reliable estimate e.g., the billed cost of the service provided, and

e There needs to be a probable loss of economic benefit e.g., a probability that an aged debt will not be
recovered

IAS37 defines a provision as a liability of uncertain timing or amount but where the amount can be reliably
measured, and it is probable that the obligation/debt is not recoverable.

[Bad Debt Provision — Non-Statutory Debt

IFRS9 also plays a part in the way in which the Council calculates the bad debt provision in relation to Accounts
Receivable balances as there is a requirement to recognise expected credit losses for all financial assets held
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, including accounts receivable
balances.

IFRS9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model required by IAS39 with an ‘expected loss’ model. This moves from a
position of provisioning only when a loss has occurred to one which considers forward-looking information to
calculate expected credit losses, regardless of whether there has been an impairment trigger.

There are 2 approaches permissible under IFRS9, the general approach (which includes a 3-stage impairment
model) or the simplified approach. For trade receivables, the standard allows an organisation to dispense with
the full general impairment model and they can choose to apply the simplified model unless any accounts
receivables contain a significant financing component.

Under the simplified approach, at initial recognition of each accounts receivable balance and throughout its
life, a lifetime expected credit loss should be recognised to arrive at the appropriate impairment under IFRS9.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@gefladEunts 2023-24 Page | 47



There are various methods to calculate a lifetime expected credit loss, but a suggested method in IFRS9 for
trade receivables is using a provision matrix of considerations.

The Council has used a two-stage approach. The first stage is the consideration of historical experience of
losses that have been incurred (that is, accounts receivable balances that have not been collected). The
second stage is to consider the future, and whether the historical experience is likely to persist or whether
other factors should influence and adjust the levels of impairment recognised.

The Council has assessed its accounts receivables using historic data and the age of each debt together with
assessment of the debtor and any known external factors that could result in the probability of a bad debt.
Using this combination a credit loss for each accounts receivable debt has been calculated.

|Post Employment Benefits (Pensions)

Employees of the Council are members of one of two separate pension schemes:

e The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Middlesbrough Council; and
e The Teachers' Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers' Pensions on behalf of the
Department of Education (DfE).

Both Schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), based on total
years of service and salaries earned as employees working for the Council.

The arrangements for the Teachers' Pension Scheme are such that the liabilities for the benefits cannot be
identified specifically to the Council so the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme. The
assets and liabilities of the scheme are excluded from the Council's Balance Sheet and only the value of actual
contributions made are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme. Accordingly, the net
liabilities of the Scheme attributable to the Council (as determined annually by the Scheme's actuary) are
included in the Council's Balance Sheet.

Liabilities are determined using the projected unit method. This is an assessment of the likely future payments
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees. Estimates are based on
assumptions including retirement profiles, mortality rates and projected earnings for current employees.
Estimated liabilities are then discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
rate of return on high quality corporate bonds, which have been chosen to meet the requirements of IAS19.

The assets of the Scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value as
follows:

¢ Quoted securities - at current bid price and

e Unlisted securities, including partnerships, are valued with regard to latest dealings and other
appropriate financial information as provided by their respective managers or those controlling the
partnerships.

e Property - at market value.

The change in the Scheme's net liability from the previous year is analysed as follows:

Charged in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

e Charged to Services

- current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of additional service earned in the
year.

e Charged as Central Costs

- past service cost - the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect
relates to the years of service earned in earlier years.

- gains or losses on settlements and curtailments - the result of actions to relieve the Council
of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of
employees.

e Charged as Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRR@g@chdhts 2023-24 Page | 48



- interest cost - the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they
move one year closer to being paid.
- expected return on assets - the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable to
the Council based on an average of the expected long-term return.
e Charged as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
- actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pension’s liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions.
e Charged to the Pension Reserve
- contributions paid - cash paid as employer's contributions to the pension fund in the year.

|Benefits Payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year-end. They
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (e.g., cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the
year in which employees render service to the authority. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements
(or any form of leave, e.g., time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates
applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The
accrual is charged to surplus or deficit on the provision of services, but then reversed out through the
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entitlements are charged to revenue in the financial year in
which the holiday absence occurs.

[Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable because of a decision by the Council to terminate a staff member's
employment before the normal retirement date or a decision by a staff member to accept voluntary
redundancy. Termination benefits are chargeable as non-distributed costs in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when the Council is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment or
makes an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General
Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves
Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and
credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amount payable but unpaid at year end.

[Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments are any contract that gives rise to a financial asset in one organisation’s accounts and
a financial liability in another’s. These transactions can cover investments, cash, debtors, creditors, loans,
derivatives and guarantees. For the Council these generally take the form of loans or similar borrowings and
lendings. Gains and losses are separately identified in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
in accordance with IFRS9 on Financial Instruments

|Financia| Liabilities (Borrowing)

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument. These are usually as loans at amortised cost rather than fair value.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@geflad&unts 2023-24 Page | 49



Interest payable on these financial instruments is determined as the difference between the initial fair value
and the total of the cash amounts repayable over the life of the instrument. These are allocated to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in variable instalments over the life of the financial
instrument concerned.

|Financial Assets

The Council holds financial assets that are classified as loans and receivables in that they have fixed or
determinable payments but are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are recognised when
the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. They are initially measured
at fair value and are subsequently carried at their amortised cost.

Interest receivable is determined as the difference between the initial fair value and cash amounts to be
recovered over the life of the instrument and is allocated to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement in variable instalments over the life of the assets. For short-term assets, this is charged each month
and for longer term by year.

[Leases

IAS 17 — the current accounting standard in place for leasing identifies two classes of lease. Finance leases
are contracts with the rights to use an asset, where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership pass
to the lessee. All other leases under the standard are classified as operating leases.

The Council as Lessee

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are
made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease even if this does not match the pattern of payments
being made (e.g., there may be a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

Finance Leases

Where the Council has the balance of risks and rewards in its possession, it will recognise a lease of this
nature (for any property or equipment) as an asset in the Council’s balance sheet at the lower of fair value or
the present value of minimum lease payments, with a corresponding long-term liability covering the associated
rental payments. The liability will be written down over time as the rental arrangement is repaid, with any
interest being charged to financing and investment expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The Council as Lessor

Operating Leases

The Council has numerous operating (rental) leases over certain properties and equipment in its ownership
where the balance of risks and rewards of the contract remain under its discretion. These assets are retained
in the Balance Sheet following normal principles relating to property, plant and equipment. Rental income is
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement against the relevant service line heading
on a straight-line basis.

Finance Leases

Where the Council has granted a finance lease on any properties which are retained in the Balance Sheet,
the asset will be derecognised from its accounts. A finance lease receivable will then be established
representing the proceeds to be received over the lease term. Any amounts in respect of the principal value
will reduce the lease debtor outstanding, with any amounts representing interest being credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@chats 2023-24 Page | 50



[Prior Period Adjustments

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error.
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e., in the current and future years affected
by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on
the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if
the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances
and comparative amounts for the prior period.

[Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between
the end of March each year and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types
of events are possible:

e Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

e Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Statement of Accounts
is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect,
disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date the accounts are authorised for issue by the Director of Finance are not
reflected in the Statement of Accounts.

[Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions, repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours with insignificant risk of change in value. These deposits
should not have a term of more than three months in total. Overdrawn bank accounts are presented in the
balance sheet net only where there is a right of offset.

|Changes in Accounting Policy

Changes in accounting policies are made when required by proper accounting practices or the change
provides more reliable/relevant information to the user of the accounts. Where a change is made, it is applied
retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior
period as if the new policy had always been applied.

[ Interests in Companies and Other Entities

The Council has one wholly owned subsidiary; Middlesbrough Development Company, which is involved in
housing growth and has been consolidated into the Council’s Group Accounts on a line-by-line basis, after
first realigning accounting policies with the Council where appropriate and eliminating intra-Group
transactions.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@geofladbunts 2023-24 Page | 51



|Investment Property

Investment properties are those assets held by the Council solely to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These are not depreciated within the accounts. Instead, they are recorded in the balance sheet
initially at cost and then subsequently revalued each year at fair value. This is based on the amount at which
the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Changes in valuation are charged or credited to financing and investment activities in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

|Support Services and Overheads

The costs of support services and overheads are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service in
accordance with the basis of apportionment. The full cost of overheads and support services is shared
between users in proportion to the benefits received.

|Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result
in the creation of a non-current asset is charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this
expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer from the General Fund to the Capital

Adjustment Account is made to reverse the amounts charged so there is no impact on Council Tax.

[Rounding

It is not the Council’s policy to adjust for immaterial cross-casting differences between the main statements

and disclosure notes.

Values throughout these accounts are presented rounded to whole numbers. Totals in supporting tables and
notes may not appear to cast, cross-cast, or exactly match the core statements or other tables due to minor

rounding differences only.

[Schools

Local authority maintained schools are considered to be under the control of the Council. Consequently, the
income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of maintained schools are accounted for in the single entity accounts

of the Council.

The table below shows the different type of schools within the Borough but only the Community Schools are
owned and included on the Council’s balance sheet:

Type of School No of Primary No of No of Special Total
Schools Secondary Schools
Schools
Community 3 0 3 6
Foundation 3 0 0 3
Maintained 6 0 3 9
Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemelt@g@chdhls 2023-24 Page | 52



[Value Added Tax (VAT) |
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account excludes amounts relating to VAT and will be included
as an expense only if it is not recoverable from His Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is
excluded from income within the Council's Income and Expenditure account.

ol

Note 2 Accounting Standards Issued but not yet adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires the disclosure
of information relating to the expected impact of the accounting change that will be required by a new standard
that has been issued but not yet adopted.

At the balance sheet date, the following new standards and amendments to existing standards have been
published and will be introduced by the 2024-25 Codes of Practice of Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom:

IFRS 16: Leases

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued the final version of IFRS 16 which replaces IAS
17 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The CIPFA LASAAC Board confirms that
mandatory implementation of IFRS 16 Leases will go ahead as planned, and the standard will be implemented
in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024-25 therefore this standard
does not affect the 2023-24 financial statements. Although the Board recommend voluntary adoption of the
standard in 2023-24, along with many other Local Authorities in England, Middlesbrough has decided to
implement this standard from 2024-25 accounts.

Requirements of the new lease standard

IFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model and removes the distinction between finance and operating
leases. Under IFRS 16, the Authority will be required to recognise a right of use asset and a lease liability for
all leases, unless the lease term is 12 months or less, or the underlying asset is of low value. As a result,
former operating leases under IAS 17 will come on to the Balance Sheet and surplus or deficit in the provision
of services will reflect related charges for the depreciation of the right of use asset and the interest on the lease
liability in place of rental expenses.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@geofladbunts 2023-24 Page | 53



Transition requirements and initial application

On initial application, IFRS 16 will be implemented using the cumulative catch-up method as required by Code
of Practice on the Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023-24, with the net cumulative impact
of applying IFRS 16 recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of General Fund as of 1 April 2024.
This means that prior year comparatives will not be restated in the 2024-25 Statement of Accounts.

On transition, the lease liability will be measured at the value of remaining lease payments, discounted either
by the interest rate implicit in the lease, or where this is not readily determinable, the incremental rate of
borrowing of the Authority. Where the lease includes extension or termination options, the lease payments will
be for the non-cancellable period together with any extensions the Authority is reasonably certain to exercise
and any termination options the Authority is reasonably certain not to exercise.

The opening right of use asset at transition will equal lease liabilities, adjusted for any lease prepayments or
accruals that exist immediately prior to 1 April 2024.

Preliminary analysis of the impact of IFRS 16

Based on the minimum lease payments outstanding at 31 March 2024 disclosed in Note 41 it is estimated that
the transition will result in the recognition of new assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet of £0.788m

The increase in right of use assets and finance lease liabilities is lower than the value of minimum operating
lease commitments held under IAS 17, primarily because IFRS 16 liabilities exclude any leases with less than
12 months remaining and low value items.

The standard is expected to increase total expenditure for Surplus or Deficit in the Provision of Services in
2024-25 by £0.187 million, comprising an increase of £0.044m million in depreciation and interest costs, offset
by a reduction of 0.427 million in operating rental lease payments.

IAS 1 — Amendments to the classification of liabilities as current or non-current.

The amendments clarify that the right to defer settlement of a liability must exist for at least 12 months after
the reporting period and that the classification is unaffected by whether management will exercise its right to
defer settlement. Although this provides clarifications it is not anticipated that this will have a significant impact
on the amounts to be reported.

IAS 12 — International tax reform standards will be amended in relation to deferred tax that applies to
multinational groups with a minimum level of turnover. This will not affect the Councils accounts.

IAS 7 and IFRS 7 — Amendments to supplier finance arrangements issued in May 2023 require an entity to
provide additional disclosures about its supplier finance arrangements. No supplier finance arrangements are
in place pr planned so there will be no impact on the Councils accounts.

Note 3 Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies laid out in Note 1, the Council has had to make certain critical judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. In the accounts, these are as
follows:

e On the grounds of control and significant influence, the Middlesbrough Development Company falls
within the group boundary of the Council and therefore has been consolidated within the Council’s
group accounts. The company is in the process of being wound up.

e All maintained schools are considered entities controlled by the Council but rather than produce group
accounts, the income, expenditure, assets and liabilities are recognised in the Council’s single entity
accounts in line with accounting standards.

e The Council recognises school assets for community schools on its balance sheet because the Council
has assessed that the rights and obligations associated with such schools rest with the Council.

e The accounting disclosure requirements for Local Authorities pension obligations are set out in
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19. The Council uses a firm of actuaries to calculate these
figures as they involve making several complex judgements with regard to future events including the

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@chdhds 2023-24 Page | 54



Note 4
of estimation uncertainty

rate of increase in salaries, mortality rates, changes in the discount rate and the expected return on
equity investments. Results under IAS 19 can change dramatically depending upon the prevailing market
conditions leading to volatility on the net pension asset on the Council's balance sheet and the pension
expense in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Judgement is required as to whether the conditions of specific grants received have been met before
recognising them as income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Where the
grant conditions require associated expenditure to be incurred, the grant monies will not be recognised
as income in the financial year, until this expenditure is incurred. Grant income is not recognised until
the conditions of the grant are met.

Judgement is also required, in determining whether a lease is an operating or finance lease.
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the lessee. This judgement depends
on the balance of risks and rewards of ownership. See Notes 41 and 42 for more details of leases.
With the adoption of IFRS 16 in 2024-25 however, there will be a single lessee accounting model, and
this will remove the distinction between finance and operating leases. Under IFRS 16, the Authority
will be required to recognise a right of use asset and a lease liability for all leases, unless the lease
term is 12 months or less, or the underlying asset is of low value.

Assumptions made about the future and other major sources

The Statement of Accounts includes some estimated figures, which are based on assumptions about the future
that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made using historical experience, current trends and other relevant
and appropriate criteria. These estimations cannot be determined with certainty therefore, actual results could
be materially different from the assumptions and estimates used. The items in the Council’'s Balance Sheet at
31 March 2024 where there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as

follows:

Item

Effect if Actual Results Differ
from Assumptions

Uncertainties

Valuation, where required of

Valuation of property involves | At 31 March 2024, the Council had

assessment of a number of variables

Property, Plant and Equipment,
Heritage assets and Investment
properties.

such as market conditions, useful life,
cost of reconstruction, assessment of
condition, etc. Qualified Chartered
Surveyors, or experts in the relevant
field undertake valuations however,
these can be subject to market
uncertainties. Revaluations, in
accordance with the local authority
accounting code of practice are carried
out on a 5-year rolling cycle or where
there is evidence of a material change
in value.

land and buildings to the value of
£228.855m, and investment
properties to the value of
£31.462m. A 1% change in the
estimation of property values
would lead to a £2.28m change in
the value of the Council's land and
buildings and £0.314m change in
the value of the Council's
investment  properties. These
changes to valuations would not
have a direct impact on the
Council's general fund, since any
effect charged to the CIES would
be reversed to the Council's
unusable reserves.

Pension Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends on several complex
judgements relating to the discount rate
used, the rate at which salaries are
projected to increase, changes in
retirement ages, mortality rates. The
Council has engaged Hymans

The effects on the net pension
liability of changes in individual
assessments can be measured.
For instance, a 0.1% decrease in
the discount rate assumption
would result in an increase in the

Middlesbrough Council

Draft StatEhagenfladdbunts 2023-24

Page | 55




Robertson as its actuary to provide
expert advice about the assumptions to
be applied.

pension liability of £19.849m. Note
39 provides further details.

Bad Debt Provision

The Council has determined its bad
debt provision of £30.089m (covering
collection fund and general revenue
activities) based on a range of factors
including the age of the debt and the
action that has been undertaken by the
Council to liaise with the debtor to
recover debt.

If collection rates were to
deteriorate by 0.1%, the amount
for the provision of doubtful debts
would increase by £0.301m.

Insurance Provision

The insurance provision is estimated
using data held on previous claims,
outstanding claims at the balacne
sheet date and the latest actuarial
valuation report.

The Council has a total insurance
provision of £3.008m for public
liability, vehicles and property.

Note 5

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

There are no significant events at the authorised for issue date (19 September 2024), that affect any of the
values in either the Financial Statements for the Council for 2023-24 or in the Notes to the Accounts.

Middlesbrough Council

Draft StatemeFt@g@chdds 2023-24

Page | 56




Notes Supporting the Movement in Reserves Statement

Note 6 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis

under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are required to be made to Income and Expenditure recognised by the
Council within the year so they match to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being
available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure, in accordance with proper accounting

practice.
General  Capital Revenue Capital Mov;enment
2023-24 Fund Receipts . Grants
Unapplied ; Unusable
Balance Reserve Unapplied
Reserves
£m £m £m £m £m

Adjustments Affecting Capital Reserves
Impairment and depreciation to Property, Plant and ) _ .
Equipment (Note 23) a7y el
zRg)vaIuatlon Losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (Note (15.809) 15.809
Revaluation of Investment Properties and Assets for Sale
(Note 26,28) 0.031 (0.031)
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (Note 27) (0.186) 0.186
Transfer between Capital grants Unapplied and General
Fund
Total Capital Grants (Note 11) 44.052 (44.052) -
Capital Grant_s and Contributions Unapplled credited to the 26.845 (26.845)
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Donated Assets (Note 23) 2.700 (2.700)
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute
(REFCUS) — Expenditure (ezes) k235
Non-current assets written off on disposal or sale (Note
23,25 27,28) (5.342) 5.342
Capital loans - principle repaid in year (0.035) 0.035
Non-current Assets written off - Investment properties - -
Cost of Lease Surrender
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 3.888 (3.888)
(Note 21)
Capital Receipts Reserve used to finance new capital spend 2399 (2.399)
(Note 21)
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund (Note . )
21)
Transfer on receipt of cash -
Total Adjustments Affecting Capital reserves (9.427) 2.399 - (17.207) 24.235
Amounts Affecting the Pension Reserve
Reversal of Pension items in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement Note 39) Lzt Ll
Employer’s pension contribution payable in year (Note 39) 11.751 (11.751)
Amounts Affecting the Collection Fund Adjustments
Account
Difference in Collection Fund income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and 3.125 (3.125)
that under statutory requirements (Note 38)
Amounts Affecting the Compensated Absences
Adjustment Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an

A - 0.552 (0.552)
accruals basis is different from the remuneration chargeable
in the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Amounts Affecting the DSG Adjustment Account
Transfer schools deficit to the DSG adjustment account (7.729) 7.729
Amounts between Usable Reserves
Cash proceeds on disposal of Non-Current Assets 2.399 (2.399) -
Total Adjustments for the year ended 31 March 2024 (11.527) - - (17.207) 28.734

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@gefladEunts 2023-24 Page | 57




Movement

General  Capital Revenue Capital in
2022-23 Fund Receipts : Grants
Unapplied ; Unusable
Balance Reserve Unapplied R
eserves
£m £m £m £m £m

Adjustments Affecting Capital Reserves
Reversal of Items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Impairment and depreciation to Property, Plant and Equipment i i i
(Note 23) (15.978) 15.978
2R§)valuat|on Losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (Note (11.596) i i i 11.596
Movement in the fair value of Investment Properties and
Assets for Sale (Note 26,28) AR i i i B
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (Note 27) (0.427) - - - 0.427
Transfer between Capital grants Unapplied and General Fund - - - - -
Total Capital Grants (Note 11) 34.144 - - - (34.144)
Capital Grants and Contributions Unapplied credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure ) i i (Crz) e
Donated Assets (Note 23) 0.566 - - - (0.566)
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute ) ) )
(REFCUS) — Expenditure ety LT,
Non-current assets written off on disposal or sale (Note
23,25,27,28) (0.529) - - - 0.529
Non-current Assets written off - Investment properties (0.212) - - - 0.212
Cost of Lease Surrender - - - - -
gir;\tutory provision for the financing of capital investment (Note 3.383 ) ) ) (3.383)
Capital Receipts Reserve used to finance new capital spend _ 0.755 ) ) (0.755)
(Note 21)
(Zif)pltal expenditure charged against the General Fund (Note (0.023) _ 0.023 ) )
Transfer on receipt of cash - - - - -
Total Adjustments Affecting Capital reserves (0.830) 0.755 0.023 (0.534) 0.586
Amounts Affecting the Pension Reserve
Reversal of Pension items in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement Note 39) iz i i i b asd
Employer’s pension contribution payable in year (Note 39) 11.747 - - - (12.747)
Amounts Affecting the Collection Fund Adjustments
Account
Difference in Collection Fund income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and that 6.842 - - - (6.842)
under statutory requirements (Note 38)
Amounts Affecting the Compensated Absences
Adjustment Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an

e - . (0.088) - - - 0.088
accruals basis is different from the remuneration chargeable in
the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Amounts Affecting the DSG Adjustment Account
Transfer schools deficit to the DSG adjustment account (2.808) - - - 2.808
Amounts between Usable Reserves
Cash proceeds on disposal of Non-Current Assets 0.755 (0.755) - - -
Total Adjustments for the year ended 31 March 2023 (27.640) - 0.023 (0.534) 28.151

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemelt@g@chéhts 2023-24 Page | 58




81T abed

Note 7 Earmarked Reserves

Balance at Transfers  Transfers Transfers Balanceat Transfers Transfers  Transfers Balance at
1 April Out In between 1 April Out In between 31 March
2022 reserves 2023 reserves 2024
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Schools Balances (4.802) (4.232) 5.393 - (3.641) 2.581 (3.540) - (4.600)
Significant Revenue Reserves - -
Invest to Save / Change Programme (0.174) (0.230) 0.404 (0.756) (0.756) 0.450 (0.730) - (1.036)
Revenue Grants Unapplied (11.657) (10.591) 11.710 5.662 (4.876) 10.591 (11.124) - (5.409)
Insurance Fund (0.116) - 0.088 - (0.028) 0.095 (0.067) - (0.000)
Public Health Reserve (0.668) - 0.539 - (0.129) - (1.043) - (2.272)
Business Rates Reserve (6.844) - 6.617 0.227 (0.000) - - - (0.000)
Social Care Transformation Reserve (7.072) - 5.274 1.798 - - - - -
Financial Resilience Reserve - - - (1.798) (1.798) 1.798 - - -
Total Significant Reserves (26.531) (10.821) 24.632 5.133 (7.587) 12.934 (12.964) - (7.617)
Other Revenue Reserves (3.041) - 1.265 (0.227) (2.003) 2.229 (0.966) - (0.740)
Total Earmarked Reserves (34.374) (15.053) 31.290 4.906 (13.231) 17.744 (17.470) - (12.957)

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Page | 59




Details of some of the more significant earmarked reserves are set out below:

Schools Balances

This reserve holds the accumulated balances and the differences between the
school budget and actual expenditure incurred in the year for all the
Middlesbrough Council schools. In accordance with Government regulations
and the Council's scheme of delegation for schools, these funds are carried
forward and specifically earmarked for use by schools in future years.

Invest to Save / Change Programme - the reserve has been set up to pay for the one-off costs associated
with implementing change within services including the funding of investment to save projects, early
retirements / voluntary redundancies and altering the way services are commissioned.

Revenue Grants Unapplied — In situations where there are no grant conditions or that conditions have already
been met, any unspent grants/contributions are transferred to the Revenue Grants Unapplied at year-end.
These have been recognised as income in prior years in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.

Insurance Fund - the internal Insurance Fund was set up to cover all
the Council's insurable risks. Only a limited amount of external
insurance cover is provided for catastrophe or special risk incidents.
The nature of the risks covered by the insurance reserve include fidelity
guarantee, personal accident, employers’ liability, fire, motor, marine,
engineers, public liability, and money losses.

Financial Resilience Reserve — this reserve was created to
accommodate any in-year financial pressure due to increased demand
for services, non-achievement of savings targets and financial

pressures.

Social Care Transformation Reserve - This reserve is to fund potential pressures in Children’s Services due
to the ongoing effects of the continued transformation work and that which will take place within Adult Social
Care in relation to Fair Cost of Care and Social Care Reforms.

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@chdhts 2023-24 Page | 60



0GT abed

Note 8

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Statement shows how revenue expenditure is used and funded from resources raised (government grants, rents, council tax and
business rates) by local authorities, in comparison with those resources consumed by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice. It also
shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision-making purposes between the Council's directorates.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

2022-23 2023-24
Adjustment Net Net Adjustment Net Net
Net between ) . - . Net between . . - .
Expenditure outturn Expenditure | Adjustments Expenditure in Expenditure outturn Expenditure | Adjustments Expenditure in
Chargeable | between the the Chargeable between the the
at 31 March report and ) . . at 31 March report and . .
to the Funding and | Comprehensive Service Area to the Funding and | Comprehensive
as reported | chargeable | A - | d as reported | chargeable | A . | d
to Council to the General ccounting ncome an to Council to the Genera ccounting ncome an
Fund Basis Expenditure Fund Basis Expenditure
(Outturn) General (Outturn) General
Balance Statement Balance Statement
Fund Fund
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
(2.206) - (2.206) 30.388 28.182 Regeneration (0.095) (0.095) 36.950 36.855
(3.434) - (3.434) (2.651) (6.085) Public Health and Public Protection (0.944) (0.944) 0.813 (0.131)
5.590 - 5.590 11.996 17.586 Education 6.551 6.551 7.017 13.568
54.832 - 54.832 6.868 61.700 Children’s Care 54.950 54.950 3.063 58.013
46.448 - 46.448 8.207 54.655 | Adult Social Care and Health Integration 51.600 51.600 2.792 54.392
20.967 - 20.967 17.750 38.717 Environment and Commercial Services 20.503 20.503 15.715 36.218
3.999 - 3.999 5.215 9.214 Finance 3.581 3.581 1.844 5.425
10.545 - 10.545 4.389 14.934 Legal & Governance Services 10.794 10.794 2.350 13.144
(15.100) (0.557) (15.657) 6.530 (9.127) Central Costs (16.993) (16.993) 0.546 (16.447)
121.641 (0.557) 121.084 88.692 209.776 Net Cost of Service 129.947 - 129.947 71.090 201.037
(118.329) - (118.329) (46.128) (164.457) Other Income and Expenditure (126.354) (126.354) (61.826) (188.180)
3.312 (0.557) 2.755 42,564 45319 | Surplusor DSeglF\I/ticoens Provision of 3.593 ; 3.593 9.264 12.857
(11.183) Opening Uncommitted General Fund (12.042)
Balance
Surplus or (Deficit) on General Fund
e Balance in year (3'593)
1.896 Contribution/(use) in year 4.648
Closing Uncommitted General Fund
(12.042) Balance (10.987)

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Page | 61




Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

2023-24
Adjustments from General Fund to Adjustments e Elnrge
. : for the Other Total
Comprehensive Income and for Capital . . .
X ] Pensions Differences Adjustments
Expenditure Statement amounts: Purposes .
Adjustments
£m £m £m £m
Regeneration and Culture 32.306 0.484 4.160 36.950
Public Health 0.880 0.368 (0.435) 0.813
Education & Partnerships 3.127 1.094 2.796 7.017
Children’s Care 1.942 1.158 (0.037) 3.063
Adult Social Care and Health Integration 2.030 1.041 (0.279) 2.792
Environment & Community Services 12.335 1.430 1.950 15.715
Finance 0.549 0.541 0.754 1.844
Legal & Governance Services 1.465 0.550 0.335 2.350
Central Costs 0.086 (1.245) 1.705 0.546
Net Cost of Services 54.720 5.421 10.949 71.090
Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis R () (B2LsT) (G225
Difference between General Fund
Surplus/ Deficit and Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement 10.915 0.447 (2.098) 9.264
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Adjustments between Funding and
Accounting Basis
2022-23
Adjustments from General Fund to Adjustments Nt Cletigrs
. : ; for the Other Total
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure | for Capital . . .
’ Pensions Differences Adjustments
Statement amounts: Purposes .
Adjustments
£m £m £m £m
Regeneration and Culture 21.402 2.179 6.807 30.388
Public Health - 1.260 (3.911) (2.651)
Education & Partnerships 4.610 4.355 3.031 11.996
Children’s Care 1.041 4.614 1.213 6.868
Adult Social Care and Health Integration 1.459 4.493 2.255 8.207
Environment & Community Services 12.396 5.407 (0.053) 17.750
Finance - 2.111 3.104 5.215
Legal & Governance Services 1.746 2.289 0.354 4.389
Central Costs (3.306) (1.204) 11.040 6.530
Net Cost of Services 39.348 25.504 23.840 88.692
Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis (el e (25 (o)
Difference between General Fund
Surplus/Deficit and Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement 0.050 31.510 11.004 42.564
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
The Council’'s income and expenditure is analysed as follows in term of type of expenditure:
Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemelt@g@chinls 2023-24 Page | 62




2022-23 2023-24

£m £m

Expenditure
Employees 159.764 134.267
Other Service Expenditure 256.385 280.248
Depreciation and other Capital Charges 38.251 57.741
Interest Payments 6.494 7.269
Precepts and Levies 0.169 0.180
Total Expenditure 461.063 479.705

Income

Government Grants and Contributions (282.157) (329.709)
Income from Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (85.274) (85.950)
Interest and Investment Income (0.583) (1.031)
Fees, Charges and Other Service Income (47.730) (50.159)
Total Income (415.744) (466.849)
Deficit on the Provision of Services 45.319 12.856

The Council’s Fees, Charges and Other Services Income is analysed by type in the table below:

2022-23 2023-24

Analysis of Fees and Charges em em
Rent Income (10.142) (10.509)
Parking (1.705) (1.864)
Finance and admin charges (1.440) (1.215)
Education Services to Academies (6.867) (5.913)
Licensing (1.084) (1.044)
Highways, Buildings and Streetlight Maintenance (3.841) (4.009)
Revenues and Benefits (2.228) (2.790)
Museums and Entertainment Venues (2.697) (2.907)
Catering (4.801) (4.613)
Commissioning (1.690) (1.252)
Bereavement Services (2.202) (2.252)
Fleet Management (0.069) (0.078)
Residential Care (6.815) (8.761)
Other Income (2.149) (2.951)
Total Fees, Charges and Other Service Income (47.730) (50.158)

Note 9 Other Operating Income and Expenditure

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
0.169 Town and Parish Council precepts 0.180
(0.226) (Gains) / Losses on the disposal of net current assets 2.978
(0.057) Total 3.158

There has been a decrease in the gains on the disposal of non-current assets due to the reduction in capital
receipts in 2023-24.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@geflfedbunts 2023-24 Page | 63



Note 10 Financing and Investment Activities

2022-23 2023-24
£m Financing & Investment Income £m
6.494 Interest payable and similar charges 7.269
13.997 Trading Activities (Note 16) 11.788
(4.362) t(;r;?rr?;if\Lglzeela(tliloc?t;ozgvestment property and changes in (0.031)
6.006 Net Pension Interest Costs (Note 39) (4.974)
(0.583) Interest receivable and similar income (1.031)
(17.637) Trading Activities (Note 16) (15.810)
3.915 Total (2.789)
Note 11 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(64.755) Council Tax Income (68.746)
(20.519) Business rates Income (17.203)
(48.330) Non-Ring-fenced Government Grant (Note 12) (55.849)
(0.566) Value of Donated Property, Plant & Equipment Assets (Note 23) (2.700)
(34.145) Capital Grants / Contributions (Note 12) (44.052)
(168.315) Total (188.550)

The amount for business rates and the non-ringed fenced government grants reflect the change from
government support for business through Covid to a return to normal.

Middlesbrough Council

Draft StatemeRt@g@ching 2023-24

Page | 64




Note 12

Grant Income

The following grants, contributions and donations were credited to the Comprehensive
Expenditure Statement in 2023-24.

Income and

31 March 2023

31 March 2024

£m £m
(12.598) Revenue Support (14.182)
(27.299) Business Rates Top-up (29.347)
(0.855) New Homes Bonus (1.102)
(7.676) Business Rates Section 31 (11.218)
0.098 Enterprise Zone Funding =
= Renewable Energy .
(48.330) Total Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (Note 11) (55.849)
Department for Education (DfE)
(52.852) Dedicated Schools Grant (59.343)
(4.010) Pupil Premium (3.966)
(0.517) Skills Funding Agency (0.321)
(0.315) Universal Infant Free School Meals (0.189)
(0.094) PE & Sport (0.234)
(4.248) Other DfE grants (15.718)
Department for Levelling Up, Housing, Communities (DLUHC) .
(1.828) Independent Living -
(12.614) Adult Social Care Grant (18.766)
(5.086) Improved Better Care Fund (7.925)
(1.037) Troubled Families (1.202)
(7.794) Other DLUHC grants (7.138)
Home Office =
(1.069) Youth Justice Good Practice Grant (0.288)
(0.950) Other Home Office (3.126)
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) =
(0.044) BEIS grants (0.161)
Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) =
(0.461) DCMS grants (0.697)
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) =
(42.495) Housing Benefit Subsidy (42.563)
(0.379) Housing Benefit Admin (0.594)
(4.575) Other DWP Grants (4.318)
Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) =
(17.731) Public Health (18.860)
(0.089) Covid 19 -
(1.350) Project Adder -
(2.305) Other DHSC grants (3.159)
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) =
(0.028) DEFRA grants (0.049)
Department for Transport (DfT) s
(0.058) DfT grants (0.175)
Cabinet Office =
0.101 Elections (0.042)
(0.568) Other Grants (0.698)
(162.396) Total Revenue Grants Credited to Services (189.532)
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@&g&nflfadbunts 2023-24 Page | 65




31 March 2023

31 March 2024

£m £m
Other Contributions
(0.114) Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust (0.132)
(0.200) South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (0.211)
(2.635) Tees Valley Clinical Commissioning Group -
NHS North East & North Cumbria ICB (32.259)
(2.763) Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council (2.172)
(1.560) Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (1.404)
(0.561) Hartlepool Borough Council (0.554)
(0.067) Darlington Borough Council (0.119)
(3.602) Tees Valley Combined Authority (2.365)
(0.326) Police and Crime Commissioner (0.312)
(25.458) Other Contributions (0.749)
(37.286) Total Revenue Contributions Credited to Services (40.277)
(248.012) TOTAL REVENUE GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS (285.657)
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
Department for Education (DfE)
(1.013) School Condition Allocation (0.635)
(1.367) Basic Need -
(4.233) Other DfE grants (2.748)
Department for Levelling Up, Housing, Communities (DLUHC) -
(2.268) Disabled Facility (2.466)
(1.021) Future High Streets (4.979)
(3.450) Towns Fund (10.942)
(0.168) Other DLUHC grants (9.900)
Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) -
- Other DHSC grants (0.084)
Department for Transport (DfT) -
(3.404) Local transport Plan (3.858)
- Other DfT Grants -
Tees Valley Combined Authority -
(12.178) Other TVCA Grants (3.692)
(0.523) Other Grants (1.434)
Other Contributions -
(0.012) Housing Development (3.129)
(4.508) Other Contributions (0.185)
(34.145) Total Capital Grants (44.052)
(282.157) TOTAL GRANTS 2023-24 (329.709)

The Council received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statemelt@ag@chdiss 2023-24

Page | 66




income as they have conditions attached to them that may require that the income be returned to the
awarding body, The balances at the year-end are as follows:

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

£m £m
(0.056) Youth Music (0.038)
(0.486) Energy Bill Support Scheme (BEIS) s
(0.455) Headstart Project (0.182)
(0.334) Health Inequalities Funding (0.302)
(0.044) Rough Sleeper Program (0.235)
(0.750) NE regional Gambling Fund -
(0.135) Hong Kong Welcome Grant -
= Turnaround Program Grant (0.095)
(0.045) ACE Cultural Development Fund (0.094)
(0.130) Adult Social Care Assessments =
(0.163) Adult Social Care Discharge Fund =
(0.146) Housing Support Grant -
(0.475) Other Revenue Receipts (0.207)
(3.219) TOTAL REVENUE RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE (1.053)
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@geflfebunts 2023-24 Page | 67




Note 13 Dedicated Schools Grant

The Council's expenditure on schools is funded primarily by grant monies provided by the Department for
Education, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). An element of DSG is recouped by the Department to fund
academy schools in the Council's area. DSG is ring fenced and can only be applied to meet expenditure
properly included in the schools Budget, as defined in The School and Early Years Finance (England)
Regulations 2023. The Schools Budget includes elements for a range of educational services provided on an
authority-wide basis and for the Individual Schools Budget, which is divided into a budget share for each
school.

Details of DSG funded expenditure for 2023-24 is set out below:

Central Individual
Expenditure Schools Total
Budget

£m £m £m
Final DSG for 2023-24 before Academy recoupment 182.421
Academy figure recouped for 2023-24 122.682
'2I'2tal DSG after Academy recoupment for 2023- 50.739
Plus: Brought forward from 2022-23 -
Less: Carry Forward to 2024-25 agreed in advance -
Agreed initial budgeted distribution for 2023-24 -
In year adjustments - - -
Final budgeted distribution for 2023-24 - - -
Less: Actual central expenditure (26.912) (26.912)
Less: Actual ISB deployed to schools (40.556) (40.556)
Plus: Local Authority contributions for 2023-24 - - -
Balance Carried Forward (26.912) (40.556) (67.468)
Plus: Carry-forward to 2024-25 agreed in advance =
Carry-forward to 2024-25 =
DSG unusable reserve at the end of 2022-23 (6.565)
Addition to DSG unusable reserve at the end of 2023-24 (7.729)
Total of DSG unusable reserve at the end of 2023-24 (14.294)
Net DSG position at the end of 2023-24 (14.294)

The total level of reserves and balances held by the schools can be found in Note 38 (Unusable Reserves)

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemelt@g@chints 2023-24 Page | 68



Note 14  Officers’ Remuneration

Senior Employees' Remuneration

The Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015 requires the separate disclosure and analysis of
remuneration for senior employees (defined by the regulations as those employees, who report into the Head
of Paid Service — the Chief Executive or are deemed under regulations as statutory officers of the Council).

Salary Pension Payment Total
2023-24 (including COﬂ'FFIbUtIOﬂS iy — mcludmg
fees and paid for by of office pensions
allowances) | the Council contribution
£ £ £
Chief Executivel - - - -
Director of Finance2 - - - -
Dlrector_ of Adult Social Care and Health 113,149 13,554 i 126,703
Integration °
Dlrec_tor of Environment and Community 101,316 11,651 i 112,967
Services
Director of Regeneration and Culture 101,316 13,554 - 114,870
Executive Director of Children’s Services
(From October 2023)3 el 7l i el ez
Hea(_j of Legal_and Governance Services — 113,149 13,012 i 126,161
Monitoring Officer
Director of Education and Partnerships 101,316 11,651 - 112,967

1 Interim Chief Executive cost of service paid via consultancy (CIPFA) £235,300

2 Interim Director of Finance cost of service paid via agency (Allen Lane) £226,430 from May 2024. Deputy
S151 acted up for 1 month (April 2024)

8 Interim Executive Director of Childrens Services paid via agency £58,377.35 until 1st August 2023
4Interim Director of Childrens Care paid via agency £70,557.71 until 1st August 2023

Interim Director of Childrens Care paid Via agency £139,269.30 from 4th September 2023 to 1st March
2024

5 Director for Adult Social Care and Health Integration covered the additional role of Director of Children's
Services and Childrens Care from 1st August 2023 until 4th September 2023

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@gefle&unts 2023-24 Page | 69



Salary Pension Pavment Total
2022-23 (including contributions fo)rlloss including
fees and paid for by of office pensions
allowances) | the Council contribution
£ £ £
ggéegf Executive — Tony Parkinson Left March 156,885 18,042 98.366 174,926
Director of Finance Left July 2022* 31,689 3,644 - 35,333
Director of Adult Social Care and Health 109,323 12572 i 121,895
Integration
Dlrec_tor of Environment and Community 96,478 10,916 i 107,394
Services
Director of Regeneration and Culture 97,890 11,257 - 109,147
g)é(zzﬁlggrljzkr)z%tgr of Children’s Services Left 95,652 11,000 i 106,651
Hea(_j of Legal_and Governance Services — 102,900 11,834 i 114.734
Monitoring Officer
Director of Education and Partnerships 96,478 11,095 - 107,573
Director of Public Health 97,890 11,257 - 109,147

linterim Director of Finance cost of service paid via Agency from August 2022 — Penna PLC £114,000

2Interim Executive Director of Childrens Services cost of service paid via agency from December 2022 £87,847

Middlesbrough Council

Draft StatemeRt@g@chdits 2023-24

Page | 70




Other Employees' Remuneration

The number of employees (including teaching staff) whose gross remuneration, including benefits, expense
allowances, redundancy and other severance payments, exceeding £50,000 is shown below in bands of
£5,000. Those officers already shown in the Senior Officers note above are already disclosed and therefore

not included in the table below:

2022-23 2023-24
Number of Employees Number of Employees
at 31 March Remuneration at 31 March

School MB  School Tota

MBC s Total C s I
53 17 70 £50,000 - £54,999 120 18 138
19 10 29 £55,000 - £59,999 46 14 60
13 6 19 £60,000 - £64,999 17 4 21
8 2 10 £65,000 - £69,999 16 5 21
7 5 12 £70,000 - £74,999 6 2 8
4 3 7 £75,000 - £79,999 7 3 10
2 2 4 £80,000 - £84,999 2 2 4
- 3 3 £85,000 - £89,999 - 2 2
- - - £90,000 - £94,999 - 1 1
- - - £95,000 - £99,999 - 2 2
- - - £115,000 - £119,999 1 - 1
1 - 1 £135,000 - £139,999 * - = =
- - - £145,000 - £149,999 * 1 - 1
107 48 155 Total 216 53 269

* This post is the Senior Coroner, who is appointed by, and the salary is set by central Government. This is
a joint arrangement and therefore funded by the four local authorities.

Remuneration is all amounts receivable by an employee, including expenses and allowances chargeable to
tax and the estimated money value of any other benefits received excluding pension contributions.

Remuneration bands are prescribed and have not been updated in line with pay awards therefore more
employees are captured in this note.

Middlesbrough Council

Draft StatEt@@eoflabbunts 2023-24

Page | 71




Exit Packages

Details of exit packages are set out in the tables below in bands of £20,000 for amounts up to £100,000 and

bands of £50,000 thereafter:

Exit package cost band (including Number of Number of Total Total cost of
special payments) compulsory other number of exit
redundancies | departures exit packages in
agreed packages by each band
cost band
2022- | 2023- | 2022- | 2023- | 2022- | 2023- | 2022- | 2023-
23 24 23 24 23 24 23 24
£m £m
£0 — £20,000 - - 81 55 81 55 | 0.197 | 0.135
£20,001 — £40,000 - - 3 2 3 2 | 0.082 | 0.067
£40,001 — £60,000 - - 1 1 1 1| 0.051 | 0.055
£80,001 — £100,000 - 1 1 - 1 1| 0.098 | 0.099
£100,000 — £150,000 - 1 - - - 1 - | 0.120
Over £150,001 1 - - - 1 -1 0.176 -
Total 1 2 86 58 87 60 | 0.604 | 0.476
Note 15 Members’ Allowances and Expenses
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
0.340 Basic Allowance Paid 0.351
0.185 Special Responsibility Allowances Paid 0.195
0.006 Expenses 0.004
0.531 Total 0.550
Note 16  Trading Operations

The Council has established a number of trading services which are required to operate in a commercial
environment and balance their budgets by generating income from other Council departments or from external
organisations. Details of these operations are given below:

2022-23 2023-24
: (Surplus) : (Surplus)
Income Expenditure / Deficit Income Expenditure / Deficit
£m £m £m £m £m £m
(8.639) 5.457 (3182 | Commercialand industrial gy 4174  (3.937)
roperties
(2.548) 2.736 0.4sg| Building Maintenance, (2.139) 2.379 0.240
Cleaning and Security
Parking services (part of
(1.701) 0.812 (0.889) ringfenced account) (0.886) 0.692 (0.194)
(4.749) 4.992 0.243 Schools Catering (4.674) 4.543 (0.131)
(17.637) 13.997 (3.640) Total (15.810) 11.788 (4.022)
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRt@g@ch@nls 2023-24 Page | 72



Note 17  Audit Fees

The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification
of grant claims, statutory inspections and non-audit services provided by the Council's external auditors:

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
0.290 Fees payable to the auditor EY, with regard to their services carried out as 0.425
' appointed Auditor for 2021-22 and 2022-23 '
0.021 Fees Payable to the Auditor, EY for the certification of Grant Claims and 0.030
Returns
Additional charges due to our current External Auditors, EY for an overrun in
0.086 -
respect of 2020-21
0.397 Total 0.455

The increase in the level of fees from Ernst & Young relates to the developing complexity of local authority
audits, the requirements of the Audit Code of Practice and the value for money assessment. The above total
of £0.455m is the Councils estimate of the costs involved but this will only be known fully once the external
audit process is completed.

Note 18 Agency Services

The total value of agency payments issued by the Council was £1m relating to residual Covid-19 Grants where
Government instructed the Council to issue grants to qualifying third party businesses or individuals in need,
which has not been recognised in the Income & Expenditure Statement as follows:

£m
COVID 19 - LRSG Closed 16th Feb - 31st March 0.001
Total 0.001

Note 19 Related Parties

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that have
the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of
these transactions allows readers of the accounts to assess the extent to which the Council might be
constrained in its ability to operate independently or to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the
Council.

Central Government

Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council - it is responsible for
providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the
form of grants, and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties.
Grants received from Government Departments are set out in Note 12. Debtor and Creditor balances for
Central Government bodies are shown in Notes 32 and 35.

Senior Officers and Members

The Council's Senior Managers and Elected Members and their close relations may influence the Council's
financial and operating policies. Using the Council's Register of Members' Declarations of Interest and a
separate survey of both Members and Senior Officers, the following disclosures meet the criteria for related
party transactions on behalf of the Council. The Head of Finance & Investments for the Council was a Director

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@gefl@bunts 2023-24 Page | 73



for Middlesbrough Development Company and for Veritau Tees Valley Ltd during the 2022-23 financial year.
Both engagements have ended during the 2023-24 financial year under the new Council policy for wholly and
partially own local authority companies and the revised Constitution.

Teesside Pension Fund

Details of all transactions with the Pension Fund are shown in the Teesside Pension Fund section of the
Statement of Accounts. Specifically, the Council made contribution payments as an employer of £14.174m
(2022-23 - £14.787m) and made charges to the Fund for Support Services of £0.762m (2022-23 - £0.765m).

Middlesbrough Development Company

As set out in the narrative report, the Council set up a wholly owned subsidiary company in February 2019 to
develop the housing supply and underused sites in the local area. Middlesbrough Development Company has
been given £7.3m of Section 106 funding previously received by the Council and has received a commercial
loan for the remaining £8.2m. It has spent £14.5m of the allocated funding (including general running costs).
This spending was on capital works for the Boho Village Bright Ideas project and Newbridge Court project
following the demolition of the old Tollesby shopping precinct in early 2020.

A number of elected members and senior officers sit on the management committees or boards of local
organisations. The significant transactions that the Council had with these organisations are listed below:

Related Parties Year Ended 2023-24
' Incom Year !End Year End
Organisation Expendltur ein Creditor Debtor
ein year Balance Balance
year S s
£m £m £m £m
Cleveland Combined Fire Authority 3.866 0.003 0.001 -
Cleveland Police and Crime Panel 0.004 0.036 0.001 0.013
Community Ventures (Middlesbrough) Ltd 0.053 0.024 - 0.012
Groundwork North East Tees Valley Advisory Board 0.014 0.006 - -
Local Government Association 0.035 - - -
Middlesbrough Citizens Advice Bureau - Management
Committee 0.287 0.023 - -
Middlesbrough Environment City Trust Limited 0.274 0.058 0.011 -
Middlesbrough Voluntary Development Agency 0.149 - - -
North East Regional Employers' Organisation (NEREO) 0.073 - - -
South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Council of
Governors 0.280 0.506 (0.005) 0.131
Tees Valley Combined Authority Board - - - -
Teesside Ability Support Centre (TASC) 0.694 0.001 - -
Veritau 0.250 - - -
TOTAL 5.979 0.657 0.008 0.156

Note 20 Pooled Budgets

A pooled budget (or fund) is an arrangement where two or more partners make financial contributions to a
single fund to achieve specified and mutually agreed aims. It is a single budget, managed by a single host with
a formal partnership or joint funding agreement that sets out aims, accountabilities and responsibilities.
Middlesbrough Council has two Pooled Budgets, the Better Care Fund and Tees Community Equipment
Service.

As host to the Better Care Fund and the Tees Community Equipment Service, the Council is required to include
a memorandum account for both pooled budgets in its accounts. Only Middlesbrough’s share of the pooled
budget’s expenditure and income is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRt@g@chnds 2023-24 Page | 74



Better Care Fund

The Better Care Fund (BCF) has been established by the Government to provide funds to local areas to
support the introduction of a fully integrated health and social care system. It is a requirement of the BCF that
the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and the Council establish a pooled fund for this purpose.

Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 gives powers to local authorities and CCGs to establish
and maintain pooled funds to support the outcomes of the BCF.

The Council has entered a pooled budget arrangement with NHS Tees Valley Clinical Commissioning Group
(TVCCG) for the provision of health and social care services to meet the needs of the population of
Middlesbrough. The services being commissioned or provided by the Council or TVCCG depend upon the
needs of the service recipient. The Council and TVCCG have an ongoing Section 75 agreement in place for
funding these services and this is reviewed annually. The Council is the host for this pooled budget and each
partner's contribution is set out in the Better Care Fund Section 75 agreement.

The aims and benefits for the partners entering into this agreement are to:

¢ Improve the quality and efficiency of the services and in particular reduce the number of non-elective
admissions to acute hospitals.

o Meet the national conditions and local objectives of the Government's Better Care Fund; and

o Make more effective use of available resources through the establishment and maintenance of a
pooled fund for revenue and capital expenditure on the services.

2022-23 2023-24
Better Better
Care Discharge  Total Care Discharge  Total
Fund Fund Pool Fund Fund Pool
£m £m £m £m £m £m
(1.912) - (2.912) | Balance Brought Forward (0.896) (0.174) (2.070)
Funding Provided to the Pooled
Budget - - -
(4.509) (0.632) (5.141) | The Authority (2.766) (12.212) (3.978)
(8.646) - (8.646) | IBCF (8.646) - (8.646)
(13.448) (0.663) (14.111) | Tees Valley CCG (14.209) (0.780) (14.989)
(26.603) (1.295) (27.898) (25.621) (2.992) (27.613)

Expenditure Met from the
- - - Pooled Budget - -

31.695 0.891 32.586 | The Authority 14.332 1.386 15.718
(8.646) - (8.646) | IBCF 8.646 - 8.646
3.393 0.230 3.623 | Tees Valley CCG 3.604 0.780 4.384
26.442 1.121 27.563 26.582 2.166 28.748

Capital Amounts slipped into
1.177 - 1.177 | 2023-24 0.522 - 0.522

Net surplus arising on the
pooled budget to be carried
(0.896) (0.174) (1.070) | forward 0.587 - 0.587

Tees Community Equipment Service

The Tees Community Equipment Service is a partnership established by an agreement under Section 31 of
the Health Act 1999.The partnership agreement covers the costs of administering the Tees Community
Equipment Service including:

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@gefl@dbunts 2023-24 Page | 75



e The procurement, storage, delivery, assembly or fitting, maintenance, collection, decontamination, and
recycling of community equipment provided to support vulnerable or disabled service users living in
the community;

e To provide and maintain stock of equipment at additional designated locations, where provided by the
Partner of this Agreement, for demonstration and use by the Occupational Therapy Service of that
locality.

e To incorporate mechanisms which enable Health and Social Service professionals and members of
the public to attend the service’s premises to collect equipment;

e A facility for the procurement of non-stock items; and
e The production and distribution of a catalogue describing the service and equipment available.

The agreement was made between eight partners as set out in the memorandum of account. The original eight
partners in the Tees Community Equipment Service were Middlesbrough Council, Stockton-on-Tees Borough
Council, Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council, Hartlepool Borough Council, Middlesbrough PCT, North Tees
PCT, Redcar & Cleveland PCT and Hartlepool PCT. Following NHS reorganisation in 2013-14, the Primary
Care Trusts (PCTs) were abolished and replaced by Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). Middlesbrough
Council is the lead authority for the service. The outturn position for the year is set out below:

The outturn position for the year is: 2022-23 2023-24

£m £m
Balance Brought Forward (0.804) (0.552)
Gross Expenditure 2.302 2.728
Gross Income (2.050) (2.534)
Balance Carried Forward (0.552) (0.358)

Contributions from partners

Middlesbrough Council (0.222) (0.222)
Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council (0.198) (0.192)
Stockton Council (0.247) (0.257)
Hartlepool Council (0.123) (0.123)
NHS NE & NC ICB (1.123) (1.328)

(1.913) (2.123)
Other Income (0.137) (0.411)

(2.050) (2.534)

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRt@g@ch@ies 2023-24 Page | 76



Notes Supporting the Balance Sheet

Note 21  Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure in the year is shown in the table below, together with the resources
that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to
revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to
be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

2022-23 2023-24

£m £m

263.531 Opening Capital Financing requirement 284.748
Capital investment

38.573 Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 23) 27.633

- Heritage (Note 25) 1.019

- Assets Held for Sale (Note 28) =

1.561 Intangible Assets (Note 27) 1.268

0.035 Investment Properties (Note 26) 1.090

4.631 Long Term Debtors 0.150

14.731 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute - Expenditure 19.253
Sources of finance

(0.755) Capital Receipts (2.399)

(34.176) Government Grants and other contributions applied in the year (29.544)

Sums set aside from revenue
- Direct revenue contributions -
- Reduction in Long Term Debtors -

(3.383) MRP/loans fund principal (3.888)

284.748 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 299.330
Explanation of movements in year

24.600 Increase in underlying need to borrowing 18.469

- Unsupported by government financial assistance -
- Reduction in Long Term Debtors -
(3.383) MRP / loans fund principal (3.888)
21.217 Increase in Capital Financing Requirement 14.581

Note 22  Capital Commitments

The Council spend in 2023-24 was £47.714m with a further £148.931m planned for 2024-25, 2025-26 and
2026-27. Contracts for material capital spend already in place over £0.250m in 2024-25 are shown below.
This does not include works contracted prior to 2024-25.

2024-25
Approved Budget
Project £m
Future High Streets Fund 1.145
MS Licensing Agreements 0.814
Total 1.959

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@gefl@bunts 2023-24 Page | 77



/9T abed

Note 23  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

The definition of property, plant and equipment covers all assets with physical substance that are held for use in the production or supply of goods and services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and expected to be used during more than one period. Service potential is of primary interest when managing public
sector assets because the purpose of acquiring and holding assets within the public sector is to enable the delivery of services.

Vehicles,
Plant,
Other Land Surplus  Furniture and Community  Assets Under
2023-24 and Buildings Assets Equipment Assets Construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost of valuation
Balance at 1 April 2023 223.229 43.982 31.861 8.558 24.891 332.520
Additions 6.464 0.237 7.540 0.017 1.075 15.333
Donations 0.842 - - - - 0.842
Revaluation increases/(decreases) to Revaluation
Reserve 1.319 (2.827) - - - (0.507)
Revaluation increases/(decreases) to Surplus/Deficit

on Provision of Services (15.446) (2.028) - - - (17.474)
Derecognition - Disposals (3.757) (1.691) (0.805) - - (6.252)
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale 5.009 - - - - 5.009
Assets reclassified (to)/from Assets - other categories 11.193 - - - (20.371) (9.177)
Balance at 31 March 2024 228.855 38.674 38.596 8.574 5.596 320.294

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Page | 78




89T abed

Vehicles,
Plant,
Other Land Surplus  Furniture and Community  Assets Under
2023-24 and Buildings Assets Equipment Assets Construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

Balance at 1 April 2023 (3.808) (0.071) (24.214) - - (28.093)
Depreciation charge (6.447) (0.119) (4.127) - - (10.693)

Revaluation depreciation written out to Revaluation
Reserve 4.327 0.020 - - - 4.346

Impairment (losses)/reversals recognised in the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services. - - - - - -
Impairment (losses)/reversals written out to the

Revaluation Reserve - - - - - -

Revaluation depreciation written out to Provision of
Services 1.593 0.072 - - - 1.664
Derecognition - Disposals 0.154 0.007 0.753 - - 0.913
Assets reclassified (to)/from Assets Held for Sale 0.304 - - - - 0.304
Assets reclassified (to)/from other categories (0.060) - - - - (0.060)
Balance at 31 March 2024 (3.938) (0.092) (27.588) - - (31.617)
Net Book Value at 31 March 2024 224.917 38.581 11.008 8.574 5.596 288.676

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Page | 79



Highways Infrastructure Assets

In accordance with the temporary relief offered by the update to the Code on Infrastructure Assets and the
statutory over-ride from central government, this note does not include disclosure of gross cost and
accumulated depreciation for Infrastructure Assets because historical reporting practices and resultant
information deficits mean that this would not faithfully represent the asset position to the users of the financial

statements.

The council has chosen not to disclose this information as the previously reported practices and resultant
information deficits means that gross cost and accumulated depreciation are not measured accurately and
would not provide the basis for the users of the financial statements to take economic or other decisions relating

to infrastructure assets.

2022-23 2023-24

£m £m

Net book Value At 1 April 134.189 136.438
Additions 10.211 10.618
Donated Assets 0.341 0.840
Derecognition - -
Depreciation (8.303) (8.779)
Impairment - -

Other Movements in Cost - (0.006)
Net Book Value 31 March 136.438 139.111

A reconciliation to the amount on the Balance Sheet for Property, Plant and Equipment is as follows.

2022-23 2023-24

£m £m

Other PPE Assets 304.427 288.676

Infrastructure Assets 136.438 139.111

Net Book Value 31 March 440.865 427.787

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRl@g@ch@ts 2023-24 Page | 80




0.T abed

Vehicles,

Plant,
Other Land Furniture and Community Assets Under
2022-23 and Buildings Surplus Assets Equipment Assets Construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost of valuation
Balance at 1 April 2022 217.141 40.369 30.052 8.408 13.798 309.768
Additions 13.120 0.161 3.071 0.147 11.296 27.795
Donations 0.013 0.212 - - - 0.225
Revaluation increases/(decreases) to Revaluation
Reserve 8.728 1.366 - - - 10.095
Revaluation increases/(decreases) to Surplus/Deficit on
Provision of Services (12.970) (0.608) - - - (13.578)
Derecognition - Disposals (0.271) (0.135) (1.466) - - (1.872)
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale - - - - - -
Assets reclassified (to)/from Assets - other categories (2.532) 2.616 0.203 0.003 (0.203) 0.088
Balance at 31 March 2023 223.229 43.982 31.860 8.558 24.891 332.520
Vehicles,
Plant,
Other Land Furniture and Community Assets Under
2022-23 and Buildings Surplus Assets Equipment Assets Construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
Balance at 1 April 2022 (3.301) (0.042) (23.833) - - (27.176)
Depreciation charge (5.895) (0.066) (2.714) - - (7.676)
Revaluation depreciation written out to Revaluation
Reserve 3.416 0.017 - - - 3.433
Impairment (losses)/reversals recognised in the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services. - - - - - -
Impairment (losses)/reversals written out to the
Revaluation Reserve - - - - - -
Revaluation depreciation written out to Provision of
Services 1.876 0.107 - - - 1.982
Derecognition - Disposals 0.004 0.006 1.333 - - 1.344
Assets reclassified (to)/from Assets Held for Sale - - - - - -
Assets reclassified (to)/from other categories 0.093 (0.093) - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 (3.808) (0.071) (24.214) - - (28.093)
Net Book Value at 31 March 2023 219.422 43.911 7.646 8.558 24.891 304.427

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Page | 81




2021-22 2022-23

£m £m

Net book Value At 1 April 133.343 134.189
Additions 8.164 10.211
Donated Assets 0.994 0.341
Derecognition - -
Depreciation (8.246) (8.303)

Other Movements in Cost 0.457 -
Net Book Value 31 March 134.712 136.438

A reconciliation to the amount on the Balance Sheet for Property, Plant and Equipment is as follows.

2021-22 2022-23

£m £m

Other PPE Assets 309.769 332.521
Infrastructure Assets 309.769 136.438
Net Book Value 31 March 619.538 468.959

Fair Value Hierarchy

All the Council's Surplus Assets have been assessed as level 3 for valuation purposes.
Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Level 3 Fair Values for Surplus Assets

The Council's Surplus Assets are therefore categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as the
measurement technique uses significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair value measurements and
there is no reasonably available information that indicates that market participants would use different
assumptions.

Highest and Best Use of Surplus Assets

In estimating the fair value of the Council’s surplus assets, the highest and best use of the assets are
considered.

Infrastructure Assets

There is additional work needed to be done by the Council regarding highways assets and the reliability of
totals relating to gross historical cost and accumulated depreciation due to these assets not being fully
depreciated at the point of replacement. At present, the governments statutory over-ride is being used to
allow a true and fair view to be presented.

Also included in the land and buildings totals are a number of leisure properties, which from 1 April 2016 were
transferred to Sport & Leisure Management (SLM) under a Service Concession Arrangement. Under this
arrangement, vehicles, plant and furniture and equipment transferred to SLM and were removed from the
Council’s balance sheet. Land and buildings remain on the balance sheet at their current value. Details of the
value of land and building assets as at 31 March 2024 are included in the table below. All properties were
revalued in 2021-22.

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemelt@g@chuils 2023-24 Page | 82



Leisure Assets Net Book Value

at 31 March 2024

£m

The Manor Youth and Community Centre 1.647
Neptune Centre 8.294

Rainbow Centre 8.921
Middlesbrough Sports Village 15.583

Total 34.445

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@geoflaéebunts 2023-24 Page | 83



¢/ T abed

Note 24

Revaluations and Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

The Council maintains a revaluation rolling programme which ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured at fair value are revalued at
least every five years. All valuations were carried out by Align Property Partners, the Council's strategic partner. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in
accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

The effective date of revaluation for most of the assets revalued during 2023-24 is 1 April 2023. The Council confirms, via discussion with its external valuers, that this
valuation basis remains reasonable and that these values are appropriate for use as at 31 March 2024. The significant assumptions applied in estimating fair values

at this date are:

e The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation and
e The transaction is at arm’s length via willing parties acting knowledgeably and prudently.

Revaluation Analysis

The table below shows the value of assets that have been revalued during 2023-24 and the value of assets that have been revalued over the last four years. The
table also identifies the value of assets held at historical cost and at fair value.

Vehicles,
Other land Surplus land Plant & Infrastructure Community  Assets under
and Buildings and buildings Equipment Assets Assets Construction Total PPE
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Carried at historical cost 17.268 - 11.008 139.111 8.574 5.596 181.557
Valued at current value as at:
31 March 2024 68.922 33.739 - - - - 102.661
31 March 2023 37.585 4.842 - - - - 42.427
31 March 2022 57.273 - - - - - 57.273
31 March 2021 24.882 - - - - - 24.882
31 March 2020 18.987 - - - - - 18.987
Total Cost or Valuation 224.917 38.581 11.008 139.111 8.574 5.596 427.787
Middlesbrough Council Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24 Page | 84



Larger assets which are carried at Historical Cost and have yet to be revalued include.

Asset £m
Land at Dockside Road 10,453
Gresham Phase 2b 5,329

Impairment and Revaluation Losses

The Code requires disclosure by class of assets of the amounts for impairment and Revaluation losses and
reversals charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and to Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure.

These disclosures are consolidated in Notes 23 reconciling the movement over the year in Property, Plant and
Equipment balances.

During 2023-24 the main increases/decreases following revaluation were:

e Teesside Crematorium - Downward valuation £1.5m

¢ Fountain Court - Downward valuation £3.3m

e BOHO 8 Modular Buildings - Downward valuation £1.4m
e BOHO 10 - Downward valuation £14.2m

e Captain Cook Precinct - Downward valuation £3.1m

e Cleveland Centre - Upward valuation £4.5m

Note 25 Heritage Assets

Heritage assets are tangible assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical, or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture.

The collections are managed by Museum curators in accordance with policies as detailed in the Museum's
Collection Management Plan.

A number of these asset have restrictions and covenants attached which means that the Council cannot
dispose of these in a timely manner.

An analysis of the current Heritage Asset valuation held by the Council is set out below.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@g&nflaéébunts 2023-24 Page | 85



Balance at 1 April 2022

Additions:

Purchases

Donated

Disposals

Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments
Transfers:

(To)/From Other asset classes

Other Changes

Ceramic

Natural
World

Other
Cultural
Interests

Total

£m
7.766

£m
32.526

Balance at 31 March 2023

Balance at 1 April 2023

Additions:

Purchases

Donated

Disposals

Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments
Transfers

(To)/[From Other asset classes

Other Changes

Balance at 31 March 2024

33.544

Valuation Methods

Museums’ Collections
Ceramics, Porcelains and Figurines

The Council’s British Ceramic Art collection is a growing collection and currently contains around 250 items.

Fine Art Collection

The Fine Art collection includes over 1,000 works drawn together from the Middlesbrough Art Gallery and

Cleveland Gallery.

The Natural World Collection

The extensive natural science collections number approximately 250,000 specimens covering geology,

vertebrate zoology, invertebrate zoology, and botany.

Other Heritage Assets
Other Cultural Interests

Items classified under this heading include the Bottle of Notes, statues and memorials including the Brian
Clough statue, the William Kelly book collection and various medals and memorabilia at the Captain Cook

Museum.

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statemet@g@churies 2023-24

Page | 86




Note 26 Investment Properties

Investment Properties are properties (land, buildings, or part thereof) held solely to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. If earning rental income was an outcome of a regeneration policy or to fund facilities to
attract public and businesses into the town, the properties concerned should be accounted for as Property,
Plant and Equipment.

2022-23 2023-24

£m £m

26.806 Balance at start of year 31.116
Additions

0.035 Purchases 1.090

- Donated =

(0.212) Disposals -

4,574 Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments 0.031

Transfers =

(0.087) (To)/From Property, Plant and Equipment (0.775)

30.116 Balance at end of year 31.462

There are currently 16 assets in total under this classification, which have all been revalued during the 2023-
24 financial year due to them being held at fair/market value.

Fair Value Hierarchy

All the Council's investment portfolio has been assessed as level 3 for valuation purposes.

Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Level 3 Fair Values for Investment Properties

The Council's Investment assets are therefore categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as the
measurement technique uses significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair value measurements and
there is no reasonably available information that indicates that market participants would use different
assumptions.

Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties

In estimating the fair value of the Council’s investment properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is considered.

Rental income from Investment Properties and any associated operating expenses are included in the
Financing and Investment Activities line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Details
are set out below.

2022-23 2023-24
£000 £000
(2.567) Rental income from Investment Property (2.655)
914.986 Direct operating expenses arising from Investment Property 1.103
912.419 Net Gain (1.552)

There are no restrictions on the Council's ability to realise the value inherent in its investment properties or
on the Council's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The Council has no
contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or repairs, maintenance, or
enhancement.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@geflaébunts 2023-24 Page | 87



Note 27

Intangible Assets

The Council’s Intangible Assets consist wholly of purchased IT licenses and software. A breakdown of
The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

2022-23 2023-24

£m £m

12.058 Balance at start of year 13.619

1.561 Additions 1.268

- Disposals -

- Regroup or Transfers -

13.619 Gross Book Value @ 31 March 14.887

(10.618) Accumulated Amortisation at 31 March (11.045)

(0.427) Amortisation in Year (0.186)

- Amortisation Written Out on Disposal -

- Amortisation Written Out on Regroups or Transfers -

(11.045) Accumulated Amortisation at 31 March (11.231)

2.574 Net Book Value at 31 March 3.656
Note 28 Assets Held for Sale

If an asset is 'held for sale', the economic benefits of that asset are obtained through its sale rather than
through its continuous use by the Council. Such assets cease to be depreciated in financial value, as they

are no longer consumed through service provision.

There was one disposal in 2023-24, Zetland Multi Storey Car Park.

The Council currently has 23 assets held for sale.

2022-23 2023-24
£m £000
0.125 Balance outstanding at start of year 0.125
Transferred between Long-Term and Current Assets Held _
= for Sale
Assets newly classified as held for sale
- Transferred from Property, Plant and Equipment 4.705
= Additions -
- Revaluation losses -
Assets declassified as held for sale:
- Assets sold (0.003)
- Transferred to Property, Plant and Equipment -
0.125 Balance outstanding at year end 4.827
Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemelt@g@chunhts 2023-24 Page | 88




Note 29 Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments are any contract that gives rise to a financial asset in one organisation and a financial
liability of another. These cover — investments, cash, debtors, creditors, loans, finance leases, derivatives and
guarantees. These are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. They are classified based on the business model for holding the
instrument and its expected cash flow characteristics.

Financial instruments classified at amortised cost are carried in the Balance Sheet at their amortised cost.
Their fair values disclosed below have been estimated by calculating the net present value of the remaining
contractual cash flows at 31 March 2024, using the following methods and assumptions:

e Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over the
whole life of the instrument at the appropriate market rate for local authority loans.

e Discount rates for “Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option” (LOBO) loans have been reduced to reflect
the value of the embedded options. The size of the reduction has been calculated using proprietary
software.

e The fair values of other long-term loans and investments have been discounted at the market rates
for similar instruments with similar remaining terms to maturity on 31 March.

e The fair values of financial guarantees have been estimated based on the likelihood of the
guarantees being called and the likely payments to be made.

e The fair values of finance lease assets and liabilities have been calculated by discounting the
contractual cash flows (excluding service charge elements) at the appropriate AA-rated corporate
bond yield.

¢ No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument.

e The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, is assumed to
approximate to the carrying amount given the low interest rate environment.

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received when selling an asset, or the price
that would be paid when transferring a liability, to another market participant in an arms’-length transaction.
Where liabilities are held as an asset by another party, such as the council’s borrowing, the fair value is
estimated from the holder’s perspective.

Financial Liabilities: These are initially measured at fair value and are then subsequently valued at amortised
cost. For the Council’s borrowing (Public Works Loan Board, Lender Option Borrower Option, and market
loans), this means the amounts held in the accounts are based on the outstanding principal plus any accrued
interest.

The fair value of short-term financial liabilities held at amortised cost, including trade payables, is assumed to
approximate to the carrying amount.

Financial Assets: These again are initially measured at fair value and represent loans and loan type amounts
where payments of principal and interest take place on set dates and to particular amounts.

The fair value of short-term financial assets held at amortised cost, including trade receivables, is assumed
to approximate to the carrying amount.

Two categories of financial asset recently introduced under IFRS9 are fair value through other comprehensive
income and expenditure (FVOCI) and fair value through profit and loss (FVPL). These assets are carried at
fair value in the balance sheet. FVOCI has a specific restriction meaning that any gains or losses can be
reversed through statute, whereas FVPL gains, and losses are true charges to the Council’s general fund.

All the Council’s financial assets, except the long-term investments in Teesside Airport and Suez recycling and

recovery, are held at amortised cost. The Council has elected to hold the two long-term investments at FVOCI
given the risk of losses on these holdings having a negative effect on the Council’s financial position.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@geflaé&unts 2023-24 Page | 89



Financial Assets:

6.1 abed

Non-Current Current
Investments Debtors Investments Debtors Cash gnd Cash Total
Equivalents
31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 March 31 31 31
March March March March | March March | March  March 2023 March March March
. . 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 2023 2024
Financial Assets
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Fair Value through Profit or Loss - - - - - - - - - - - -
Amortised Cost 0.309 0.309 | 15.130 9.014 | 18.500 3.000 7.990 13.326 8.332 9.144 50.261 34.793
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive ) ) i i i i i ) i i _ i
Income
Total Financial Assets 0.309 0.309 | 15.130 9.014 | 18.500 3.000 7.990 13.326 8.332 9.144 50.261 34.793
Non-Financial Assets 107.390 - - - - - | 52574 54.716 - - 159.964 54.716
Total 107.699 0.309 | 15.130 9.014 | 18.500 3.000 | 60.564 68.042 8.332 9.144 | 210.225 89.509
Financial Liabilities:
Non-Current Current
. . . . Total
Borrowings Creditors Borrowings Creditors
31 31 31 31 31 31
312I\£g:rgch 312“3220h March March March March March March 312l\élg:rgch 312|\3;120h
Financial Liabilities 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Fair Value through Profit or Loss - - - - - - - - - -
Amortised Cost - Other (206.965) (218.493) | (1.139) (0.975) | (38.708) (29.612) | (16.195) (14.186) (263.007) (263.266)
Total Financial Liabilities (206.965) (218.493) | (1.139) (0.975) | (38.708) (29.612) | (16.195) (14.186) (263.007) (263.266)
Non-Financial Liabilities - - - - - - | (42.694) (32.312) (42.694) (32.312)
Total (206.965) (218.493) | (1.139) (0.975) | (38.708) (29.612) | (58.889) (46.498) (305.701) (295.578)

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Page | 90




Note 30 Financial Instruments: Fair Value and Risks

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Financial Instruments are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost except for Long Term Investments.
Their fair value has been assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take place over
the remaining term of the instruments contractual life using the following assumptions:

Where the instrument will mature in the next 12 months, the carrying amounts are assumed to be a
good reflection of fair value.

The fair value of PWLB and market loans have been calculated by reference to the ‘premature
repayment’ set of rates as at 31 March 2024.

The fair value of trade payables and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount; and
The carrying amounts of all other instruments are taken to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Fair values can be analysed by their level in the fair value hierarchy or how reliable their basis of calculation is:

Level 1 — fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
e.g., bond prices.

Level 2 — fair value is calculated from inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, other than
quoted prices, e.g., interest rates or yields for similar instruments.

Level 3 — fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g., nhon-market data such as cash flow
forecasts or estimated creditworthiness.

All Middlesbrough financial instruments, assets and liabilities are rated as level two in the fair value hierarchy.
The fair value of borrowings is calculated by ascertaining a fair value from the market price. The calculation
applies a discounted cash flow using the rate of the asset and applies it over its life. For investments, debtors,
and creditors their transaction price is the best proxy for their fair value.

The fair values of the Council’s financial instruments are as follows. These are higher than their carrying
amounts due to the low value of the bank base rate at 31 March 2024:

2022-23 2023-24
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

£m £m £m £m

Financial Assets — Loans and Receivables

27.141 27.141 Held as Investments 12.453 12.455
23.119 23.119 Held as Debtors 22.340 22.340
50.260 50.260 Financial Assets — Loans and Receivables 34.793 34.795

Financial Liabilities — as Amortised Cost

(245.673) (227.964) Held as Borrowings (248.104) (249.962)
(17.333) (17.333) Held as Creditors (15.161) (15.161)
(263.006) (245.297) Financial Liabilities — at Amortised Cost (263.265) (265.123)

Financial Instruments: Risks

The fair value of the financial liabilities held at amortised cost above is higher than their balance sheet
carrying amount because the Council’s portfolio of loans includes a number of loans where the interest
rate payable is higher than the current rates available for similar loans at the balance sheet date.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@geflBbunts 2023-24 Page | 91



Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks by holding these instruments:

(a) Credit risk - the possibility that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to meet its contractual
obligations, causing a monetary loss to the Council.

(b) Liquidity risk - the possibility that the Council might not have the cash available to make contracted
payments to lenders, suppliers, and staff on time.

(c) Market risk - the possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise due to changes in market
variables such as interest rates on equity prices.

(d) Re-Financing Risk — The possibility that maturing amounts cannot be refinanced in interest terms that
reflect the provisions made by the organisation.

Overall Procedures for Managing Risk

The Council's overall risk management process focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and is
structured to implement suitable controls to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk management are set
out through a legal framework in the Local Government Act 2003 and associated regulations. These require
the Council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code on Capital Finance, the CIPFA Code of Practice on
Treasury Management in the Public Services and Investment Guidance issued through the Act. Overall, these
procedures require the Council to manage risk in the following ways:

o by formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice.
e by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three years
limiting:
o The Council’'s overall borrowing levels and a legal limit.
o Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates.
o Its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt.
o Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year.

These are required to be reported and approved at the Council’'s annual budget setting report or before the start
of the year to which they relate. The items above reported with the Capital Strategy Report which outlines the
detailed approach to managing risk in relation to the Council's financial instrument exposure. Actual
performance is also reported after each year, as is a mid-year update.

The Capital Strategy Report, which incorporates the prudential indicator amounts was approved by the Council
on 27 February 2023 and is available on the Council's website. The key issues within the strategy were:

e The Authorised Limit for 2023-24 was set at £328m. This is the maximum legal limit of external
borrowings or other long-term liabilities.

e The Operational Boundary was expected to be £308m. This is the expected maximum level of debt and
other long-term liabilities during the year.

e The maximum amounts of fixed and variable interest rate exposure were set at 100% and 25%,
respectively, based on the Council’s net debt.

These policies were implemented by the Council's accountancy team and at no point during the 2023-24
financial year were any of these key indicators breached. The Council also maintains written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies (Treasury Management Practices — TMPS) covering specific
areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash. These TMPs are a requirement
of the Treasury Management Code of Practice and were also updated on 27 February 2023. No changes have
been made since.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council's
customers.

This risk is minimised through the Capital Strategy Report, which requires that deposits are not made with banks
and financial institutions unless they meet minimum credit criteria, as laid down by Fitch and Moody's Ratings

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRt@g@chéhls 2023-24 Page | 92



Services. The Capital Strategy Report also considers maximum amounts and time limits in respect of each
financial institution. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the minimum
requirements of the investment criteria outlined above. Details of the Treasury Management Strategy can be
found on the Council's website.

The Council’'s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its deposits with banks and building societies of
£7.1m cannot be assessed generally, as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay
the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution.

Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of
non-recovery applies to all of the Council’s deposits.

No credit limits were exceeded during the period and the Council does not expect any losses from non-
performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits and bonds. The table below summarises the
credit risk exposures of the Council’s treasury investment portfolio by credit rating and remaining time to
maturity:

2022-23 2023-24

Long Term Short Term Long Term Short Term

Credit Rating £m £m £m £m
AA - 1.000 - 1.000
AA- - 18.500 - 3.000
AA+ - 5.700 - 3.100
Total - 25.200 - 7.100
Credit Risk not applicable 0.309 - 0.309 -
Total Investments 0.309 25.200 0.309 7.100

Loss allowances on treasury investments are normally calculated by reference to historic default data published
by credit rating agencies and adjusted for current economic conditions. A two-year delay in cash flows is
assumed to arise in the event of a default. Investments are determined to have suffered a significant increase
in credit risk where they have been downgraded by three or more credit rating grades or equivalent since initial
recognition unless they retail an investment grade credit rating. They are determined to be credit impaired when
awarded a "D" credit rating or below. At 31 March 2024, none of the Council’s investments are captured by this
and therefore it is felt that the most likely loss allowances applicable is nil.

In addition, the Council does not generally allow credit for customers. However, £8.447m invoiced debtors
balance is past its due date for payment relating principally to the Council's Public Health responsibilities. The
Council maintains a bad debt provision to offset any collection losses. The past due amount can be analysed
by age as follows:

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
2.327 Less than 3 months 3.627
0.911 Between 3 to 6 months 0.909
1.026 Between 6 months to 1 year 1.507
2.264 More than 1 year 2.404
6.528 TOTAL 8.447

Collateral - The Council initiates a legal charge on property where, for instance, Adult Social Care service users
require residential care but cannot afford to pay immediately. The total collateral as at 31 March 2024 was
£1.04m (31 March 2023 - £1.26m).

Liquidity Risk

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@geflBbunts 2023-24 Page | 93




The Council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. There
is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments. Instead, the risk is that the
Council will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its borrowing at a time of unfavourable interest
rates. The Council sets limits on the proportion of its fixed rate borrowing during specified periods.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:

2022-23 2023-24

£m £'000
(39.206) Less than 1 Year (30.120)
(22.801) Between 1 — 2 Years (38.277)
(37.116) Between 2 — 5 Years (41.426)
(39.749) Between 5 — 10 Years (43.005)
(20.549) Between 10 — 15 Years (26.581)
(19.659) Between 15 — 20 Years (8.662)
(5.354) Between 20 — 25 Years (4.445)
(11.487) Between 25 — 30 Years (13.166)
(9.762) Between 30 — 35 Years (12.421)
(29.991) Between 35 — 40 Years (25.000)
(20.000) More than 40 Years (5.000)
(245.674) TOTAL (248.103)

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.

Re-financing Risk

The Council maintains a significant debt portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures above are considered
against the refinancing risk procedures, longer-term risk to the Council relates to managing the exposure to
replacing financial instruments as they mature. This risk relates to both the maturing of longer-term financial
liabilities and longer-term financial assets.

The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits placed on investments
made for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to address this risk. The Council's
approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the Central Finance team address the
operational risks within the approved parameters.

Market Risk

Market Risk - Interest Rate Risk

In the current financial climate, there is a low interest rate risk to the Council. All longer-term borrowing is held
at fixed rate and any risk of further reductions in rates receivable is insignificant given the current low base.
Borrowings and Investments are not carried at fair value in the financial statements, so nominal gains and losses
on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Council aims to keep a maximum of 25% of its borrowings in variable rate loans. During periods of falling
interest rates and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be repaid early to
limit exposure to losses. Although there is continued uncertainty in relation to how the war in Ukraine will develop
for the Country, this may influence interest rates in both a positive and negative way, the low exposure to
variable rate financial instruments means that the financial impact of any future decisions in this area are likely
to have minimal impact on both the debt and investment portfolios.

Market Risk - Price Risk

The Council does not invest in equity shares and therefore has no exposure to losses arising from movements
in share prices.

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@chéhss 2023-24 Page | 94



Market Risk - Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and therefore no exposure
to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

Note 31 Financial Instruments: Income and Expenditure

Amounts recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to financial
instruments are made up as follows:

2022-23 2023-24

Net Net

Financial Financial Expenditure Financial Financial Expenditure

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

for the year for the year
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Income
(0.583) - (0.583) Interest Income (1.031) - (2.031)

Expenditure

- 6.494 6.494 Interest Expense - 7.269 7.269
- 0.020 0.020 Fee Expense - 0.025 0.025
(0.583) 6.514 5.931 Total Net for the year (1.031) 7.294 6.263

Note 32 Debtors

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m Long-Term Debtors £m
5.329 Cleveland Mall — Holiday Inn 5.196
1.056 Other Long-Term Debtors 0.988
2.682 The Welding Institute 2.242
6.063 Middlesbrough Development Company 0.588
15.130 Total 9.014
31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m Short-Term Debtors £m
1.852 Trade Receivables 3.905
2.236 Prepayments 2.615
44.257 Other Receivables 43.312
34.667 Council Tax Receivables 36.773
5.755 Business Rates Receivables 8.391
(28.204) Bad Debt Provision (26.954)
60.563 Total 68.042

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@genflBébunts 2023-24 Page | 95



Note 33 Inventories

Maintenance

Consumables : Total
Materials
2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 April 0.114 0.309 2.514 2.562 2.628 2.871
Purchases 2.888 2.489 5.191 4.012 8.079 6.501
Expenses in the year (2.693) (2.500) (5.143) (4.103) (7.836) (6.603)
Written off in the year - - - - - -

Reversal of previous years ) i i i i

write offs -
Balance at 31 March 0.309 0.298 2.562 2.471 2.871 2.769

Note 34 Cash and Cash Equivalents
31 March
2023 31 March 2024
£m Cash and Cash Equivalents £m
0.053 Cash held by the Council 0.044
1.579 Bank current accounts 5.000
6.700 Short-term deposits with building societies 4.100
8.332 Total 9.144
Note 35 Short Term Creditors
31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m Short Term Creditors £m
(7.056) Trade Payables (3.446)
(43.842) Other Payables (37.192)
(7.992) Receipts in Advance (5.860)
(58.890) Total (46.498)
Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@ch&ies 2023-24 Page | 96




Note 36 Provisions

A provision is recognised in the accounts where the Council has a legal or constructive obligation arising from
a past event and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation if not the timing of when the
Council will have to settle the obligation.

Business Captain Insurance Early Total
Rates Cook Claims Retirement /
Appeals Precinct / Voluntary
Cleveland Redundancy
Centre
Service
Charge
Provision
£m £m £m £m

Short Term Provisions

Balance at 1 April 2023 (0.501) (0.167) (0.824) - (1.492)
Additional provisions (1.799) - (0.006) (0.017) (1.822)
Amounts used 1.266 - - - 1.266

Unused amounts reversed - - - - R
Unwinding of discounting - - - - -

Balance at 31 March 2024 (1.034) (0.167) (0.830) (0.017) (2.048)
Long Term Provisions

Balance at 1 April 2023 (1.458) - (2.244) - (3.702)

Additional provisions - - - - -

Amounts used 1.153 - 0.067 - 1.220

Unused amounts reversed - - - - -
Unwinding of discounting - - - - -

Balance at 31 March 2024 (0.305) - (2.177) - (2.482)
Total Provisions

Balance at 1 April 2023 (1.959) (0.167) (3.068) - (5.194)

Additional provisions (1.799) - (0.006) (0.017) (1.822)

Amounts used 2.419 - 0.067 - 2.486

Unused amounts reversed - - - - R
Unwinding of discounting - - - - -

Balance at 31 March 2024 (1.339) (0.167) (3.007) (0.017) (4.530)

Business Rates Appeals — The Council’s share of the Business Rates Appeals Provision of £1.339m is split
between £1.034m short term (less than 12 months) and £0.305m long term as projected using the

Council’s Business Rate Appeals tool. These are based on the Council’'s 49% share of business rates
retention scheme.

Insurance Fund - The Council's Insurance Fund Provision of £3.007m is split between £0.830m Short Term
(less than 12 months) and £2.177m long term.

Early Retirement / Voluntary Redundancy — A new provision has been created for future voluntary

redundancy payments of £0.017m. This is a short-term provision against cost arising from transformation in
2024-25.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@geflBEunts 2023-24 Page | 97



Note 37 Usable Reserves

Usable Reserves are those reserves that can be used to fund future expenditure or reduce local taxation. Further
details on the use of the reserves below can be found in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m
(27.376) Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve (41.740)
(7.177) Capital Contributions Unapplied Reserve (10.020)
(12.042) Uncommitted General Fund (10.986)
(13.231) Earmarked Reserves (12.956)
(59.826) Total (75.702)

The increase of £15.9m in usable reserves is due to an increase in capital grants and contributions of £17.2m
and a reduction of £1.3m in revenue reserves.

The purpose of each Reserve is as follows:

Capital Grants and Contributions Unapplied Reserves
These reserves hold amounts from Capital Grants and Contributions that have been recognised in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in line with the accounting code of practice, but for which the
associated capital expenditure has not yet been incurred.

Capital Receipts Reserve
This reserve holds amounts received from the disposal of assets and is only available to fund future capital projects.

General Fund

The accumulated credit balance on the general fund is the excess of income over expenditure in the revenue
account after adjusting for movements to and from reserves and other non-cash items. This balance is held as a
cushion against future unforeseen and unbudgeted expenditure.

Earmarked Revenue Reserves

Funding received in previous financial years and classified as income regarding the terms and conditions of
the grant awarded. This income is rolled forward in reserves to meet the future revenue commitments under
the grant. Details of the balances on individual earmarked reserves is contained in note 7. Whilst earmarked
revenue reserves total £12.956 only £1.069m of this reserve is unrestricted with the remaining £11.887m
restricted to specific purposes.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRR@g@chéhts 2023-24 Page | 98



Note 38 Unusable Reserves

Unusable Reserves are those reserves held by the Council that cannot be utilised to provide services. This
includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses and adjustment accounts which deal with situations
where income and expenditure are recognised statutorily against the General Fund balance on a different
basis from that expected by accounting standards as adopted by the Code.

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m

(98.151) Revaluation Reserve (98.425)

(143.060) Capital Adjustment Account (122.390)

(107.390) Pensions Reserve 14.182

(8.575) Collection Fund Adjustment Account (11.700)

1.032 Accumulating Absences Adjustment Account 0.480

6.565 Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account 14.293

(349.579) Total (203.560)

A description of each type of reserve is set out below:

Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the accumulated net gains made by the Council arising from increases in
the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The reserve only contains revaluation gains accumulated since
1 April 2007, the date when the Revaluation Reserve was constituted. Accumulated gains and losses
accumulated before that date are consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts contained within
this reserve will only become available to provide services (or limit resources in the case of losses) once the
gains/losses are realised as the assets are disposed of.

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2023 2024 2024
£m £m £m £m

(86.405) Balance at 1 April (98.151)
6.532 Upward revaluation of assets 10.213
(20.060) Downwards revaluation of assets and impairment losses (14.051)
not charged to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of
Services
(13.528) Surplus or Deficit on revaluation of non-current (3.838)

assets not posted to the Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services
1.633 Difference between fair value depreciation and historical 2.133
cost depreciation
0.148 Accumulated (gains) / losses on assets sold or scrapped 1.431
- Adjustment between Revaluation Reserve and Capital
Adjustment Account
1.781  Amount written off to Capital Adjustment Account 3.564

(98.152) Balance at 31 March (98.425)

Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction, or
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition,
construction and enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@gelB&unts 2023-24 Page | 99



to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The account is credited with amounts set aside by the
Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction, and enhancement.

The Account also contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Property and gains recognised on
donated assets as well as revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April
2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

31 March 31 March
2023 2023
£m £m

31 March 31 March

2024 2024
£m £m

(141.863)

15.978
0.427

14.731

0.741

31.877
(1.633)

(0.148)

11.596 =

9.815

(0.755)

(33.611)
(3.383)
(37.749)
(4.573)

(0.566)

Balance at 1 April
Reversal of ltems relating to capital expenditure
debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-
current assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Movement in fair value of investment properties
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under
Statute
Accumulated (gains) / losses on assets sold or
scrapped
Amounts of non-current assets written off on
disposal or sale as part of the gain / loss on disposal
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account

Historic Cost depreciation transfer from Revaluation
Reserve
Revaluation Reserve balances written off on
disposed assets
Adjustment between Revaluation Reserve and
Capital Adjustment Account
Movement in Non-current assets recognised in year
Amounts of non-current assets written off on Loan
Repayments as part of the gain / loss on disposal to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account
Net written out amount of the cost of non-current
assets consumed in the year
Capital Financing applied in the year:
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new
capital expenditure
Capital grants and contributions credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
that have been applied to capital financing
Statutory provision for the financing of capital
investment charged against the General Fund and
HRA Balance
Capital expenditure charged against General Fund
and HRA Balances

Movement in the market value of investment
properties debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement in the donated assets account credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

(143.060)

19.473
0.186

19.253

5.342

44.254
(2.133)

(1.431)

15.809
0.035

12.280

(2.399)

(26.844)
(3.888)
(33.131)
(0.031)

(2.700)

(143.059)

Balance at 31 March

(122.388)

Middlesbrough Council

Draft StatemeRt@g@chiHts 2023-24

Page | 100




Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting
for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council
accounts for post-employment benefits in the CIES as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of
service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on
any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be
financed as the Council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pension for
which it is directly responsible. In 2022-23, the actuarial valuation saw a significant movement from a deficit to
a surplus position which has continued in 2023-24. Under the International Accounting Standard (IAS 19) the
Council must disclose the lower of the actuarial valuation or Asset Ceiling calculation.

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m

209.946 Balance at 1 April (107.390)

43.258 Remeasurement of net defined liability 12.198

(348.847) | Reversal of items relating to the retirement benefits debited or credited (79.043)

to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Asset Ceiling Adjustment 200.168
(11.747) Employer's pension contributions payable in the year (11.751)
(107.390) Balance at 31 March 14.182

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account holds the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and
business rates income, in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council
taxpayers and business rate payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to
the General Fund from the Collection Fund.

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m

(1.733) Balance at 1 April (8.575)

(1.169) Amount by which Council Tax income credited to the Comprehensive (1.467)

Income and expenditure Statement is different from the council tax
income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory
arrangements
(5.672) Amount by which Business Rates income credited to the (1.658)
Comprehensive Income and expenditure Statement is different from the
council tax income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory
arrangements

(8.574) Balance at 31 March (11.700)

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEhageflQEbunts 2023-24 Page | 101



Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment Account

The Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment Account reflects the value of compensated absences
(employees time off with pay for holidays) earned but not taken in the year.

31 March 31 March 2024

2023

£m £m £m
0.943 Balance at 1 April 1.031

(0.943) Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of (1.032)
the preceding year

1.032 Amounts accrued at the end of the current year - 0.480
0.088 Amounts by which officer remuneration charged to the (1.032) 0.480

Comprehensive income and expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis is different from the remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements
1.031 Balance at 31 March 0.479

Dedicated Schools Grants Adjustment Account

From November 2020 the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) Regulations (the 2003
Regulations) established new accounting practices in relation to the treatment of local authorities’ schools
budget deficits such that, where a local authority has a deficit on its schools’ budget relating to its accounts for
a financial year beginning on 1 April 2020, 1 April 2021, 1 April 2022 or 1 April 2023, it must not charge the
amount of that deficit to a revenue account. The local authority must record any such deficit in a separate
account established solely for the purpose of recording deficits relating to its school’s budget. The CIPFA local
authority accounting code has determined this as the ‘Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account’. The new
accounting practice has the effect of separating schools budget deficits for a period of three financial years.

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m
3.756 Balance at 1 April 6.564
2.808 | School budget deficit transferred from General Fund in accordance 7.729
with statutory requirements
6.564 Balance at 31 March 14.293

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@chhls 2023-24 Page | 102



Note 39 Pension Schemes Accounted for as Defined Benefit Scheme

The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme. As part of the terms and
conditions of employment of its staff, the Council makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment
benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a
commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future
entitlement.

In June 2023, the UK High Court (Virgin Media Limited v NTL Pension Trustees Il Limited) ruled that certain
historical amendments for contracted-out defined benefit schemes were invalid if they were not accompanied
by the correct actuarial confirmation. The judgment is subject to appeal, and the Court of Appeal heard the
arguments on 26 and 27 June 2024. The judgment has now been upheld by the Court of Appeal.

The Local Government Pension Scheme is a contracted out defined benefit scheme and amendments have
been made during the period 1996 to 2016 which could impact member benefits. Work is being performed by
the Government Actuary’s Department as the Local Government Pension Scheme actuary to assess whether
section 37 certificates are in place for all amendments and some of these have been confirmed however, at
the date of these financial statements, the full assessment is not complete. Until this analysis is complete, we
are unable to conclude whether there is any impact to the liabilities or if it can be reliably estimated. As a
result, [employer] does not consider it necessary to make any allowance for the potential impact of the Virgin
Media case in its financial statements.

Funded Benefits

The funded benefits are those payable by the Fund in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013 and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and
Amendment) Regulation 2014.

Unfunded Benefits

The unfunded benefits are pensions arising from additional service awarded on a discretionary basis e.g.,
Compensatory Added Years ("CAY") pensions that have not previously been 'converted' to funded benefits
under Regulation 13A of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions)
Regulations 2007. Such benefits are usually charged to the Employer as they are paid. Other unfunded benefits
include gratuities and enhanced teachers' pensions recharged to the Employer, and pensions in respect of
some other public sector pension schemes. This is in contrast to funded pensions, which are paid for out of the
assets of the Fund, and which the Employer has responsibility for funding by paying contributions to the Fund.

Transactions relating to Post-Employment Benefits

The income, expenditure, assets, and liabilities set out below includes the actuaries’ assessment of the court of
appeal decision to include guaranteed minimum pension and the McCloud and Sargeant judgements within the
local government scheme benefits going forwards. It also includes the impact of the triennial valuation of the
Teesside Pension Fund from 1 April 2022.The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement
during the year in relation to the Local Government Pension Scheme:

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@geflQebunts 2023-24 Page | 103



Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Funded Unfunded Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Funded Unfunded
2022-23 2022-23 Statement 2023-24 2023-24
£m £m Charged to thg Surplus or Deﬂcn on the £m £m
Provision of Services
As cost of Service:

37.162 - Current Service cost 17.126 -
0.090 - Settlements and Curtailments 0.046 -
3536 2 470 As Financing and Invest_ment Income and Interest 2583 2391

on net defined benefit

40.788 2 470 Total charged to the Def_|C|t on the Provision of 19.755 2391

Services
Charged to Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
11.476 i Retu_rn on pIa_n assets (_excludlng the amount (52.417) )
included in the net interest expense)
(416.502) Actuarial (gams)_ and I_osses arising on changes (44.892) )
from financial assumptions

(7.313) i Actuarial (gains) and Iosses arising on changes (4.942) )

from demographic assumptions

63.492 - Other actuarial (gains) and losses 23.208 -

Asset Ceiling Adjustment 200.168 -

Total to the Comprehensive Income and
G i Expenditure Statement L2l Az )
Movement in reserves Statement
(43.258) (2.470) Reversal of total (;harged to th_e Deficit on the (9.807) (2.391)
Provision of Service
Actual Amount charged for pensions in the ) _
year:
9.641 - Employers contributions payable to scheme 10.278 -
(33.617) (2.470) Total amount included in the General Fund for 0.471 (2.391)
the year
Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-Employment Benefits
Funded Unfunded Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Funded Unfunded
2022-23 2022-23 Statement 2023-24 2023-24
£m £m £m £m
(1,126.211) (22.622) Opening Balance at 1 April (812.682) (18.046)
(37.162) - Current service cost (17.126) -
(33.615) 2.470 Interest cost (41.495) 2.391
(5.382) - Contributions by scheme participants (5.644) -
416.502 _Actuarial gains (losses) fo_r changes in financial 44.892 )
assumptions
7313 ) Actuarial gains (Iqsses)for changes in 4.942 )
Demographic assumptions
(63.492) - Actuarial gains (losses) Other Experience (23.208) -
29.455 2.106 Benefits paid 36.473 1.473
(0.090) - Past service curtailments (0.046) -
(812.682) (18.046) Closing Balance at 31 March (813.894) (14.182)
Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@ch&hss 2023-24 Page | 104



Reconciliation of Fair Value of Scheme Assets

Funded Unfunded Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Funded Unfunded
2022-23 2022-23 Statement 2023-24 2023-24
£m £m £m £m
938.887 - Opening Balance at 1 April 938.118 -
25.139 - Expected return on plan assets 44.078 -
(11.476) - Actuarial Gains 52.417 -
9.641 2.106 Employer contributions 10.278 1.473
5.382 - Contributions by scheme patrticipants 5.644 -
(29.455) (2.106) Benefits paid (36.473) (1.473)
938.118 - Closing Balance at 31 March 1,014.062 -

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on
gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term
real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £96.495 million gain (2022-23 £13.663 million gain).

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(830.728) Present value of liabilities (828.076)
938.118 Fair value of assets 1,014.062
Asset Ceiling Adjustment (200.168)

107.390 Scheme (Deficit) / Surplus (14.182)

The scheme surplus shown above includes £14.182m in respect of unfunded defined benefit obligations (2022-
23 £18.046m).

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long term to pay retirement benefits.
The net surplus has a beneficial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the balance sheet
however, this is a direct result of changes in financial assumptions and may revert back to a net liability in future
years depending on the inflation and corporate bond yields. The main reasons for the movement from a net
pension liability to a net pension asset compared to the previous year are as follows:

Change in financial assumptions - £44.892m gain on the balance sheet)
The financial assumptions adopted for preparing the latest accounting disclosures are summarised below:

Period ended 31 March 2023 31 March 2024
Rate of Inflation (CPI) 3.20% 2.75%
Rate of increase in salaries 4.20% 3.75%
Rate of discounting scheme liabilities 2.70% 4.85%

The change in financial assumptions adopted for the period ending 31 March 2024 can be approximately broken
down as follows:

Pension Increase Rate — Market derived CPI inflation has fallen over the period, which has led to a 0.20%
reduction in this assumption. The change in the CPI inflation assumption is a result of underlying changes in
market implied RPI (after allowance for the inflation risk premium adjustment), coupled with any changes in the
RPI-CPI gap from the previous year and the adjustment to CPI to reflect observed inflation since 30 September
2023 (more detail on this is set out in the accompanying covering report). This has served to reduce the
Employer's obligations and led to a gain of around £28.710m on the balance sheet.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@genflQébunts 2023-24 Page | 105



Salary Increase Rate — the salary increase assumption has fallen over the period by 0.20%. This has served
to reduce the obligations and led to a gain of around £1.240m on the balance sheet.

Discount rate — The corporate bond yield (upon which the discount rate is derived) has risen over the period,
which has led to a 0.10% increase in this assumption. This has served to reduce the obligations and led to a
gain of around £14.945m on the balance sheet.

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Council in the
year to 31 March 2025 is £10.539m.

Asset Ceiling

Following the pensions valuation by the Council’s actuary, Hymans Robertson LLP, the Council determined that
the fair value of its pension plan assets outweighed the present value of the plan obligations at 31 March 2024
resulting in a pension plan asset. IAS 19 Employee Benefits requires that, where a pension plan asset exists, it
is measured at the lower of:

e the surplus in the defined benefit plan and:
¢ the asset ceiling calculation

The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. The Council’s actuary calculated the asset ceiling as the net
present value of future service costs less net present value of future contributions. The Council has therefore
limited the Pension asset recognised in its balance sheet to the asset ceiling, which was nil in 2023-24. The
remaining represents the unfunded liabilities which are not included in the asset ceiling adjustment and any
liabilities as a result of past contributions. The adjustment has been recognised within other comprehensive
income and expenditure of the CIES.

Therefore, the asset ceiling calculation is as follows:

Based on the actuary’s calculation as the asset ceiling is negative the net pension asset has been limited to
£0m as the calculation indicates that no pension asset should be recognised. The adjustment taken through the
CIES and movement in reserves to reflect the asset ceiling adjustment in the pension reserve of £200,168m.

Independent Actuary and Latest Valuation

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the
pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc.
Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and Discretionary Benefits Liabilities have been assessed by
Hymans Roberts an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Teesside Pension Fund being based on
latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2022.

The calculations have also been done over the duration of the Scheme - which has been forecast at 17 years.
The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners

20.6 Men 20.5
23.7 Women 23.5
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners

215 Men 21.3
25.2 Women 25.0
2.95% Pension Rate Increase (CPI) 2.75%
3.95% Salary Rate Increase 3.75%
4.75% Discount Rate 4.85%
80.00% Take up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum 80.00%

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@ch@Hos 2023-24 Page | 106



The LGPS's assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total assets held:

Sensitivity Analysis

The approximate impact of changing the key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined benefit
obligation as at 31 March 2024 and the projected service cost is set out below, sensitivity on unfunded benefits

have not been included on materiality grounds:

2022-23 2023-24
% Asset Category %
71 Equity 71
8 Infrastructure 10
7 Cash 4
9 Real Estate 10
6 Other 5
100 100
2022-23 Pension Scheme Assets 2023-24
£m £m
62.440 | Cash and Cash Equivalents 36.834
Equity Securities
- | Consumer -
- | Manufacturing -
- | Energy and Utilities -
- | Financial Institutions =
- | Health and Care -
- | Information Technology -
Debt Securities Bonds
- | Government -
Property
75.919 | UK 95.147
6.460 | Overseas 5.278
Private Equity
89.458 | All 103.418
Investment Funds and Trust Units
574.057 | Equities 617.751
- | Bonds -
74.551 | Infrastructure 98.227
55.233 | Other 57.406
938.118 | Total Assets 1,014.061

Approximate %

Approximate

Change in assumptions at 31 March 2024 Increase to monetary
Employer
L amount (£000)
Liability
0.1% decrease in Real Discount Rate 2.00% 14,503
1 year increase in member life expectancy 4.00% 33,123
0.1% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 0.00% 605
0.1% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 2.00% 14,163
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@geflQ6unts 2023-24 Page | 107




The principal demographic assumption is the longevity assumption (i.e., member life expectancy). For sensitivity
purposes, Hymans Robertson estimate that a one-year increase in life expectancy would approximately
increase the Employers Defined Benefit Obligation by around 3-5%. In practice, the actual cost of a one-year
increase in life expectancy will depend on the structure of the revised assumption (i.e., if improvements to
survival rate predominantly apply to younger or older ages).

In order to quantify the impact of a change in the financial assumptions used Hymans Robertson have calculated
and compared the value of the scheme liabilities at the accounting date on varying bases. The approach taken
is consistent with that adopted to derive the accounting figures provided in this report, based on the profile
(average member ages, retirement ages, etc.) of the Employer as at the date of the most recent valuation.

Note 40 Pensions Schemes Accounted for as Defined Contribution
Scheme

Teachers employed by the Council are members of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by Capita
Teachers Pensions on behalf of the Department for Education. The scheme provides teachers with specified
benefits upon their retirement, and the Council contributes towards the cost by making contributions based on
a percentage of members pensionable salaries.

In 2023-24 the Council paid £3.012m (2022-23 £3.200m) to Teachers Pensions in respect of teacher’s
retirement benefits, representing an average of 23.68% (2022-23 23.68%) of pensionable pay.

A number of Public Health staff transferred to the Council from the NHS and as part of the conditions of their
transfer have remained in the NHS Pension Scheme. In 2023-24 the Council paid £4,749 (2022-23 £23,652)

to NHS Pensions in respect of the Public Health employees retirement benefits, representing 18.3% (2022-23
15.47%) of pensionable pay.

Note 41 Leases — Council as Lessor
Operating Leases
The Council leases out property and equipment under operating leases for the following purposes:
e For the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and community
centres.

e For economic development aims to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local businesses.

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31 March 31 March 2024
£m £m
5.202 No Later than 1 year 6.147
10.669 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 10.969
41.482 Later than 5 years 36.881
57.353 Total 53.997

The amount at 31st March 2024 has decreased due to the potential sale of Tees AMP and also other properties
as per the asset review schedule, however properties relating to BOHO 1, 5 and 8 have been added alongside
Newbridge Court.

Finance Leases
The Council acted as a facilitator for the relocation of The Welding Institute (TWI) to the Tees Advanced

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeR@g@ch&hts 2023-24 Page | 108



Manufacturing Park in 2017. This was consistent with the Council’s priority in economic growth. The lease
between the Council and TWI allows the lessee to purchase the property for a nominal amount after 13 years.
Also, the lease rental payments cover the net council investment in the site & building over the lease period.

As the risks and rewards of the lease reside with TWI, the asset is not included within the Council’s Property,
Plant and Equipment valuation. A long-term debtor has instead been included in the balance sheet to reflect the
investment by the Council and this will be repaid over the life of the remaining lease.

The future minimum lease payments receivable through the finance lease are detailed below:

31 March 31 March 2024
£m £m

0.464 No Later than 1 year 0.464

1.650 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1.468

1.129 Later than 5 years 0.847

3.243 Total 2.779

Note 42 Leases — Council as Lessee

Operating Leases

The Council has entered into operating leases for the use of land and buildings, with lives ranging from 10 to
35 years. The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31;6'2?“ 31 March 2024
£m £m
0.519 No Later than 1 year 0.425
1.291 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 0.656
0.585 Later than 5 years 0.382
2.395 Total 1.463
2023-24
£m
Operating Leases as at 31 March 2024 1.463
Finance Leases (Right of Use) as at 1 April 2024 -
Total 1.463

Finance Leases
Centre Square Buildings

The Council as part of its regeneration and town centre growth plans has entered into two finance lease
contracts for the provision of high-quality office accommodation. Buildings 1 & 2 Centre Square, adjacent to the
Council’'s municipal buildings, were completed during September 2020. The properties were built with third-
party finance and the leases entered into on the buildings are for a 35-year term with rentals paid on a quarterly
basis to CBRE Property Management UK. The total repayment schedule for the two leases over the contract
are included in the table below. Due to the interest rate implicit in the lease, most of the early year’s rental
payments are heavily weighted towards interest rather than principal with this position reversing in the latter
years of the contract.

The total future minimum lease payments under these finance leases are given in the table below:

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@g&lQ&unts 2023-24 Page | 109



312'\32;Ch Total future minimum lease payments 31 March 2024

£m £m

0.711 Amounts due within one year 0.711

2.844 Amounts due between 1 to 5 years 3.555

18.842 Amounts due after 5 years 17.420

22.397 Total payments due 21.686

(11.311) Less: Future finance charges (11.140)

11.086 Present Value of Lease Obligations 10.546

Given that the risks and rewards of the contract sit predominantly with the Council (length of contract, option to
purchase for a nominal sum at the end of the lease term etc.) the properties are held on the long-term assets
side of the Balance Sheet.

As the aim of Council is to rent these premises out to tenants on shorter-term leases, the assets have been
categorised as investment properties in the accounts. They have been valued at fair/market value with their
valuation of £15.479m being determined from future rentals generated. The council has now achieved the letting
of all accommodation within both buildings, with the exception of the ‘kiosk’ unit that exists within the ground
floor of Centre Square 2.

Note 43  Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2024, the Council had the following contingent liabilities:

Home House Guarantee

An agreement was entered into with Home House, which guaranteed an initial liability of £2.4m. This was
increased to £4.01m in 1996-97 because of further development at St Johns Gate. The assets of Home Housing
are considered sufficient to meet their liabilities without calling upon the guarantee and no provision has been
made in the accounts.

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards

A Supreme Court case judgement has resulted in the Council potentially facing more applications to the Court
of Protection regarding Deprivation of Liberty cases. Liabilities may exist which will not be confirmed until claims
are made, or cases settled. The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards are due to be replaced by the Liberty
Protection Safeguards; the financial ramifications remain unclear at this time.

Jap Euro Claim

A compensation claim was submitted to the Council for £5.7m following a fire at a scrapyard which occurred
several years ago. The scrapyard was subject to a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) and required the Council
to compensate the owners for the value of the scrap at the site. The Council appointed an adjudicator to value
the stock however, prior to the full valuation a fire occurred damaging all stock. The claim is substantially higher
than the estimated stock value and the Council awaits the court decision.

Note 44  Contingent Assets

There were no contingent assets held by the Council at the Balance Sheet date.

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemell@Q@ch@s 2023-24 Page | 110



Note 45 Trust Funds

The Council administers a number of Trust Funds, which are varied in nature and relate principally to legacies
left by local inhabitants of the area over a number of years. Assets of the funds are invested in external
marketable securities; with any cash either being invested internally at 7-day interest rates or externally in the
money market. None of the funds are included in the Balance Sheet of the Council.

A summary of the Trust Funds administered by the Council is as follow:

Short- Long-

Income Expenditure Term Term ATSOSt;lS Liabilities
2023-24 Assets Assets
£ £ £ £ £ £

Leesside Education (243) - 7,723 - 7,723 :
Capt J.V. Nancarrow Trust —
Educational support (3,615) - 114.851 ) 114,851 )
_I\Iflrlltjjgtlesbrough Educational (2.132) i 67.727 2326 70,053 i
gggltrlter Playing Fields Trust = (1,617) - 51,375 1,474,496 1,525,871 -

W.M.Anderton Trust — Kings
Manor School and Acklam (45) - 1,432 - 1,432 -
6th Form College

Teesside Relief in Sickness (129) - 4,091 - 4,091 -
Lady Crosswaite Bequest — g 4, 11,711 472,196 - 472,196 :
support for the older people

Home Independence Trust (3,231) 2,280 85,611 19,240 104,851 -
Wilson & Marwood Trust —

support for disadvantaged (492) - 15,625 428 16,053 -
people

Stewart.Park Trust — (285) i 9,059 i 9,059 i
Recreation

Levick Trust — , (200) . 6359 332535 338,894 ;
accommodation for over 60’s

Dorman Museum and Art

Gallery Appeal Trust (et i il i Gpal i
Total (27,513) 13,991 839,470 1,829,025 2,668,495 -

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEhag&20Qbunts 2023-24 Page | 111



Short- Long-
Income Expenditure Term Term Assets  Liabilities
2022-23 Assets Assets
£ £ £ £
Teesside Education ©) i 7480 i 7480 i
Endowment
Capt JV Nancarrow Trust — 87) . 111.236 i 111,236 i
Educational support
_I\I_/Irlltjlsdtlesbrough Educational (51) i 65.595 2326 67.921 i
Hustler Playing Fields Trust — (39) i 49758 1474496 1,524.254 i
Sport
W.M.Anderton Trust — Kings
Manor School and Acklam 6th 1) - 1,387 - 1,387 -
Form College
Teesside Relief in Sickness (©) - 3,962 - 3,962 -
Lady Crosswaite Bequest (373) 9,877 468,491 . 468,491 :
support for the older people
Home Independence Trust (377) - 84,660 19,240 103,900 -
Wilson & Marwood Trust —
support for disadvantaged (12) - 15,133 428 15,561 -
people
Stewart.Park Trust — ) i 8,774 i 8.774 i
Recreation
Levick Tru§t — accommodation ®) i 6.159 332,535 338,694 i
for over 60’s
Dorman Museum and Art
Gallery Appeal Trust (3) i =i i 20 i
Total (964) 9,877 825,948 1,829,025 2,654,973 -
Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@cdlhls 2023-24 Page | 112




Notes Supporting the Cash Flow Statement

Note 46 Cash Flow Statement — Operating Activities

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(0.583) Interest Received (1.031)
6.494 Interest Paid 7.269
- Dividends Received =

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash
movements:

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
15.977 Depreciation 19.473
11.597 Impairment and downward valuations 15.810
0.427 Amortisation 0.186
0.023 Increase / (decrease) in impairment for bad debts (0.664)
(11.846) Increase / decrease in creditors (10.325)
(4.251) Increase / decrease in debtors (1.363)
(0.243) Increase / decrease in inventories 0.103
31.511 Movement in Pension Liability 0.447
(5.139) Other non-cash items char_gt_ad to the n_et surplus or deficit on (2.733)
the provision of services
38.056 Net cash flows from operating activities 20.934

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services had been adjusted for the following items that are
investing and financing activities:

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m

Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes investments in -
associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment,

0.740 ; . . 5.342
investment property and intangible assets
(0.755) Any other items for which the cash effects are investing or (2.400)
’ financing cash flows '
(0.015) 2.942

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@g&20Qebunts 2023-24 Page | 113



Note 47 Cash Flow Statement — Investing Activities

The table below shows detail of Investing Activities

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(38.510) Purchase of property, plar]t and _equment, investment property (30.376)
and intangible assets
(8.500) Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 15.500
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment,
0.755 ! : ) 2.399
investment property and intangible assets
(46.255) Net cash flows from investing activities (12.477)
Note 48 Cash Flow Statement — Financing Activities
The table below shows detail of Financing Activities
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(0.158) Amounts applied to Finance Lease Repayments (Capital Element) (0.163)
37.402 Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing 2.431
37.244 Net cash flows from financing activities 2.268

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@Q@cdlhds 2023-24 Page | 114






Group Accounts

Introduction

The Council has only one material interest in terms of group relationships: a wholly owned subsidiary;
Middlesbrough Development Company (MDC), which was formed in 2019 by the Council and is involved in
housing growth within the Borough based on the Council’s strategic plan. This is the third year of producing
Group Accounts, and therefore prior period comparatives are presented as ‘unaudited’ as the 2021-22 & 2022-
23 audit process for the Council is still open.

Beyond MDC, the Council had interests in two other companies; a capital investment in a joint internal audit
company Veritau Ltd (Tees Valley); and Digital City Trading Ltd which was dissolved in July 2023 but given their
small financial input and influence, these need no further disclosure under the local authority accounting code
of practice.

Before considering the financial information and group accounts involving MDC, it should be noted that following
the consideration of a report to the Executive in January 2023, the Council took a decision to close down the
company. This was based on the operational and financial risks posed following the issue of CIPFA guidance
in relation to local authority trading companies. The risks could be better managed within the Council, rather
than via a company delivery vehicle, and as at the authorised for issue date for the accounts (September 2024)
the MDC closure plan is almost complete, with the final elements of the company liquidation now underway.
The remaining asset (Newbridge Court) has been transferred and any residual assets will be finalised before
the end of 2024. It is anticipated that there will not be a need to prepare group accounts for the 2024/25 financial
year.

Company: Context and Projects

Middlesbrough Council is the only shareholder for MDC and had complete operational and financial control over
the company and its activities since its formation. Board meetings of the company directors have been held
once a month over its period of operation and were supported by relevant council staff from the Regeneration
and Finance directorates. Updates have been taken to the Council’s Executive when any significant decisions
or resources were required by the company.

MDC has completed two large-scale housing projects underway, Boho Village and Newbridge Court with just
retention and project completion issues remaining. These two projects in total are for a combined value of
around £15m and are funded by a combination of both council capital grants and prudential borrowing. Boho
Village, with its total of 61 housing units, has been completely sold to a number of registered social landlords,
whilst Newbridge Court is primarily for rental income purposes via a mix of residential and commercial units.
This is for a period of up to 35 years. This asset was transferred to the Council during April 2024, with the
commercial activities becoming part of the regeneration directorate. MDC was also in the early stages of a
project to bring derelict housing back into use in the TS1 and TS3 postcodes plus specific initiatives to resolve
several eyesore sites within the Borough, but this work has now been stopped with the cessation of the
company.

As at 31 March 2024, the company had been allocated £15.4m of funding with £8.2m issued as a commercial
loan and £7.2m as Section 106 and brown field capital grant funding. The company had spent £14.5m of this

on capital projects with £0.8m on general administration and held the remaining £0.1m in the bank as cash for
future payments.

Group Accounts

The company’s financial activities have been consolidated into the Council’s Group Accounts on a line-by-line
basis, after first realigning accounting policies with the Council where appropriate and eliminating any relevant
intra-Group transactions. This is the relevant accounting practice when consolidating a subsidiary company.

The purpose of these Group Accounts is to provide a comprehensive position for Middlesbrough Council

Middlesbrough Council Draft Statemet@g@cdlHas 2023-24 Page | 116



incorporating the company, which the Council owns and has significant influence over. The Group Accounts
show the full extent of the Council’'s assets and liabilities, providing transparency on these additional
arrangements and that these are beyond the totals given in the Council’'s own financial statements.

The Group Accounts include the following:

e Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, which shows the income and expenditure
of the Council in line with statutory regulations, international financial reporting standards and CIPFA
Accounting Code of Practice requirements.

e Group Movement in Reserves - shows the movement in the year on reserves held by the Council.

e Group Balance Sheet - reports the Council Group financial position at the year-end.

e Group Cash Flow Statement - shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Group during
the year.

¢ Notes to the Group Accounts — information provided where the balances are materially different to those
in the single entity accounts or additional information is required for users of the accounts to understand
the financial relationship.

The capital expenditure set out above plus the commercial loan have been incorporated into the group balance
sheet, plus the creation of an unusable reserve for the capital grant funding which will be offset against future
depreciation charges. The accumulated deficit on MDC'’s profit and loss account plus the grant funding reserve
have been recognised as adjustments to the income and expenditure totals for the year. The group reserves
have increased by £2.0m above the Councils’ single entity accounts total by the incorporation of these amounts.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@g&2Q6unts 2023-24 Page | 117



Group Movement in Reserves Statement

This statement is a combination of the Council’'s comprehensive income and expenditure position plus the accumulated deficit on Middlesbrough Development
Company’s accounts as at 31 March 2024. It also incorporates an unusable reserve for capital grant funding due to difference in accounting policy between the
company accounts under UK GAAP and the Council’s under IFRS.

General Earmarked Capital Direct Capital Total Total Council's Total
. Revenue Unusable . Share of
2023-24 Fund Revenue Receipts . Grants Usable Council Group
Funding ; Reserves Reserves of
Balance Reserves Reserve . Unapplied | Reserves Reserves L Reserves
Unapplied Subsidiaries
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 April 2023 (12.042) (13.231) - - (34.553) | (59.826) | (349.937) | (409.763) (4.524) | (414.287)

Movement in reserves during
O | 2023-24 - - -
& | Total Comprehensive Income 16.349 ; ; ; | 16349 | 117.286| 133.635 (1.971) | 131.664
o) and Expenditure

Adjustments between
B accounting basis & funding (15.019) - - - (17.207) | (32.226) 32.226 - - -
—~J | basis under regulation (Note 6)

Transfers to/(from) other

reserves (0.275) 0.275 - - - - - - - -

glee;rDecrease /(increase) in 1.055 0.275 - - (17.207) | (15.877)| 149512 | 133.635 (1.971) | 131.664

Balance at 31 March 2024

carried forward (10.987) (12.956) - - (51.760) | (75.703) | (200.425) | (276.128) (6.495) | (282.623)

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Page | 118




80¢ abed

General Earmarked Capital Direct Capital Total Total Council's Total
. Revenue Unusable , Share of .
2022-23 Fund Revenue  Receipts . Grants Usable Council Council
Funding ; Reserves Reserves of
Balance Reserves Reserve . Unapplied | Reserves Reserves e Reserves
Unapplied Subsidiaries
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 April 2022 (11.182) (34.375) - (0.023) (31.415) (76.995) (15.356) (92.351) (2.267) (94.618)
Movement in reserves during
2022-23 - - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure 44.963 - - - - 44.963 | (362.375) | (317.412) (2.257) | (319.669)
Adjustments between
accounting basis & funding i ) i
basis under regulation (Note (27.283) 0.023 (0.534) (27.794) 27.794 (0.001) (0.001)
6)
Transfers to/(from) other (18.540) 21 144 ) ) (2.604) ) ) ) ) )
reserves
yg;rDecrease /(increase)in | g5 21.144 - 0.023 (3.138) 17.169 | (334.581) | (317.412) (2.258) | (319.670)
Balance at 31 March 2023
carried forward (12.042) (13.231) - - (34.553) (59.826) | (349.937) | (409.763) (4.525) | (414.288)

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Page | 119




60¢ abed

Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement represents the income and expenditure of both the Council and Middlesbrough Development Company with intra-group transactions being removed
and accounting policies being aligned as appropriate.

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
Net > Net
Exp(?—::']odsifure Ir?crg?nse 2 pEmEIE . . % Expirr?dsifure Ir?c:gsmse Expenditure
/ (Income) Cost of Services by Service Area / (Income)
£m £m £m £m £m £m
33.522 (7.986) 25.536 Regeneration 41.580 (6.725) 34.855
18.545 (24.631) (6.086) Public Health and Public Protection 19.394 (19.525) (0.131)
87.172 (69.585) 17.587 Education 100.499 (86.931) 13.568
66.063 (4.362) 61.701 Children’s Care 65.307 (7.294) 58.013
106.356 (51.701) 54.655 Adult Social Care and Health Integration 114.127 (59.735) 54.392
38.926 (0.210) 38.716 Environment and Commercial Services 42.040 (5.822) 36.218
61.543 (52.329) 9.214 Finance 60.170 (54.745) 5.425
16.807 (1.873) 14.934 Legal & Governance Services 15.404 (2.260) 13.144
7.178 (16.305) (9.127) Central Costs 1.974 (18.421) (16.447)
435.112 (228.982) 206.130 Total Cost of Service 460.495 (261.458) 199.037
0.308 (0.226) 0.082 Other Operating Income and Expenditure 3.187 - 3.187
22.386 (18.220) 4.166 Financing & Investment Activities G4 14.053 (16.842) (2.789)
- (168.671) (168.671) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income - (185.057) (185.057)
456.806 (416.099) 40.707 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 477.735 (463.357) 14.378
Items that will not be re-classified to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Service
(10.095) (Surplus) on revaluation of Property Plant and Equipment 0.507
(348.847) Actuarial (Gains) on _Pension Fund charged to the (79.043)
Pensions Reserve :
- Asset Ceiling Adjustment 200.168
(3.433) Depreciation written out to the Revaluation reserve (4.346)
(362.375) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 117.286
(321.668) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 131.664

Middlesbrough Council

Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Page | 120



Group Balance Sheet

This statement represents the combined assets, liabilities and reserves for the Council and Middlesbrough
Development Company, with intra-group transactions being removed and accounting policies being aligned

where appropriate.

31 March 31 March

2023 2024
£m £m
450.350 Property, Plant & Equipment 434.709
32.526 Heritage Assets 33.544
31.116 Investment Properties 31.462
2574 Intangible Assets 3.656
0.309 Long-Term Investments 0.309
107.390 Pension Asset -
9.067 Long-Term Debtors G7 8.426
633.332 Total Long-Term Assets 512.106
18.500 Short-Term Investments 3.000
0.125 Short-Term Assets Held for Sale 4.827
2.871 Inventories 2.768
60.943 Short-Term Debtors G7 64.930
9.414 Cash and Cash Equivalents G8 9.284
91.853 Total Current Assets 84.809
(38.708) Short-Term Borrowing (29.612)
(55.672) Short-Term Creditors G9 (45.448)
(3.219) Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance (1.051)
(1.492) Short-Term Provisions (2.048)
(99.091) Total Current Liabilities (78.159)
(7.238) Net Current Assets / (Liabilities) 6.650
(3.702) Long-Term Provisions (2.482)
(206.965) Long-Term Borrowing G10 (218.493)
(1.139) Other Long-Term Liabilities Gl1 (0.975)
- Pension Liability (14.182)
(211.806) Total Long-Term Liabilities (236.132)
414.288 Net Assets/(Liabilities) 282.624
(59.094) Usable Reserves G12 (74.942)
(355.194) Unusable Reserves G13 (207.682)
(414.288) Total Reserves (282.624)

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@g&2tEunts 2023-24 Page | 121



Group Cash Flow

This statement reconciles the operating positions of the Council and Middlesbrough Development Company
to their changes in cash balances during the financial year.

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m
(42.706) Surplus / deficit on provision of services (14.378)
Adjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services
37.613 for non-cash movements (Note 46) 25 014

Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services that are investing and financing activities

(2.661) (Note 46) 0.943
(7.754) Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 11.579
(49.842) Investing Activities (Note 47) (9.915)
41.974 Financing Activities (Note 48) (1.796)
(15.622) Net Increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents (0.132)
25037 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning at the reporting 9.415
period (Note 34)
9.415 Cash and cash equivalents at the end at the reporting period 9.284
(Note 34)

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRt@g@cddnls 2023-24 Page | 122



Notes to the Group Accounts

The group notes are largely the same as those specific within the Council only Statement due to the similar
nature of accounting policies between the two organisations. However, there are some areas to highlight as
detailed below:

Note G1 Accounting Policies

The Group Financial Statements summarise the Council’'s and its Group’s transactions for the 2023-24
financial year. The Group Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023-24, supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

Middlesbrough Development Company was a subsidiary and has therefore been consolidated into the Group
Financial Statements on a line-by-line basis.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates in the Council’s entity accounts are carried at cost rather than fair
value less any provision for losses unless there is evidence of impairment. Notes to the Group Financial
Statements have been presented where the figures are materially different from those of the Council entity
accounts. Where there are no material differences, the Notes to the Council entity accounts provide the
required disclosures. Accounting policies of the individual members of the Group have been aligned to the
Council's accounting policies. The accounting policies applied to the Group Financial Statements are
consistent with those set out in Note 1 to the Council entity accounts, with additional policies specific to the
Group set out below.

As the Company follows UK generally accepted accounting practice rather than internal financial reporting
standards in the preparation of its financial statements, there is a difference in how capital grants are treated
in both the income and expenditure statement and the balance sheet between the two organisations. MDC
treats these as deferred and these are amortised over the life of the asset, to offset depreciation charges. The
local authority, under IFRS, writes of capital grants in the year of application and does not defer. MDC'’s
accounts have been aligned with the local authority practice before the balance sheet amounts have been
consolidated. Further details are given in Note G14 below.

Note G2 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies laid out in Note 1, the Council has had to make certain critical judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. In the accounts, these are as
follows:

See amortisation of assets referred to in Note G1.

The treatment of costs incurred as either capital or revenue follows the accounting policies set out by the
Council as there is no difference between UK GAAP and IFRS in this area. Capital referring to the expenditure
having an economic or service benefit over a period more than one financial year. Revenue expenditure being
consumed within the financial year it is incurred.

Note G3 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

As noted earlier in this section, the company is the process of being wound up with the expected closure date
being 31 December 2024. No further trading results (except the results of the liquidation process) will be
available from MDC and no group accounts will be prepared for the 2024/25 financial year. The Council will
consider within its own single entity accounts, as to whether there is anything further to disclose as part of both
its management accounting and financial statement arrangements.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@g&2tebunts 2023-24 Page | 123



Note G4 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

The group notes are largely the same as those specific within the Council only Statement due to the alignment
of accounting policies between the two organisations. However, there are some areas to highlight as detailed
below:

2022-23 2023-24
£000 Financing and Investment Income £000
6,744 Interest payable and similar charges 7,269
13,997 Trading Activities 11,789
(4,361) Charges in relation to Investment property and changes in their 31)
fair value

6,006 Net Pension Interest Costs (4,974)

(583) Interest receivable and similar income (1,031)
(17,637) Trading Activities (15,811)
4,166 TOTAL (2,790)

The figures for 2022-23 incorporated a £0.250m cost relating to the trading activities of MDC during the
financial year. The figure for 2023-24 is nil due to no trading activity during the year.

Note G5 Property, Plant and Equipment

The value of PPE shown in the group accounts differs from that of the single entity as follows:
For group accounting purposes MDC capital spend on PPE is currently for assets under construction.
Where assets have been sold, they have been removed from the totals below.

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m

440.866 Property Plant & Equipment — Middlesbrough Council 427.786

9.484 Plus: Middlesbrough Development Company 6.922

450.350 Total 434.708

Note G6 Financial Instruments

Although the company had an agreement to borrow up to £8.5m from the Council for the Boho Village scheme
and the balance owing from the company was £6.063m at 31 March 2024, this amount is eliminated on
consolidation of the two sets of accounts. The amount of borrowing for MDC is already factored into the
Council’'s investment strategy to date and for the future and is shown within the Council’s own notes to the
accounts.

This note sets out the differences from the information contained in Notes 29-31 of the Council entity accounts
to enable the reader to determine, more clearly, the impact of group company transactions.

Debtors and Cash

Debtors and cash consolidated as part of the Group Financial Statements are classified as loans and
receivables. Further information on Group debtors is provided in Note G7.

Creditors

Short term creditors consolidated as part of the Group Financial Statements are classified as financial liabilities
at amortised cost. Further information on Group creditors is provided in Note G9.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRt@g@cddnds 2023-24 Page | 124



Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

These amounts in the Group Financial Statements are not considered materially different from those in the
Council entity accounts.

Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

The amounts consolidated as part of the Group Financial Statements are not considered significantly different
from the carrying amounts.

Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

The nature and extent of risks from financial instruments arising in the Group Financial Statements are not
considered materially different from those in the Council entity accounts.

Note G7 Debtors

The table below sets out both short and long-term debtors of the group. These have been consolidated and

adjusted for intra-group transactions.

2022-23 2023-24
£m Long -Term Debtors £m
5.329 Cleveland Mall — Holiday Inn 5.196
1.056 Other Long-Term Debtors 0.988
2.682 The Welding Institute 2.242
- Middlesbrough Development Company -
9.067 Total 8.426
2022-23 2023-24
£m Short-Term Debtors £m
1.852 Trade Receivables 3.905
2.236 Prepayments 2.615
44.280 Other Receivables 43.335
34.667 Council Tax Receivables 36.773
5.755 Business Rates Receivables 8.391
(27.847) Bad Debt Provision (30.089)
60.943 Total 64.930

The long-term debtor in the Council’s accounts for £6.063m is eliminated when the Council and Company’s
accounts are consolidated. A short-term debtor of £0.023m for MDC is included in the table above under

other receivables.

Note G8 Cash & Cash Equivalents

The table below sets out the cash & cash equivalent position of the group for the two entities combined.

2022-23 2023-24
£m Cash and Cash Equivalents £m
0.053 Cash held by the Council 0.044
2.661 Bank current accounts 5.140
6.700 Short-Term deposits with building societies 4.100
9.414 Total 9.284
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE@g&2tébunts 2023-24 Page | 125




The above table include £0.141m relating to cash held by MDC as at 315t March 2024. This is funding allocated

by the Council that is yet to be spent by the company on capital projects or running costs.

Note G9 Creditors

The table below sets out the short-term creditors of the group. These have been consolidated and adjusted

for intra-group transactions.

2022-23 2023-24
£m Short Term Creditors £m
(7.056) Trade Payables (3.446)
(43.843) Other Payables (37.193)
(7.992) Receipts in Advance (5.860)
(58.891) Total (46.499)

There is a £0.002m short term creditor amount relating to MDC in other payables within the table above.

Note G10 Long-Term Borrowing

2022-23 2023-24
£m Long-Term Borrowing £m
(207.570) Long-Term Borrowing (219.093)

0.753 Deferred Premiums 0.726
(0.149) Deferred Discounts (0.126)
(206.966) Total (218.493)

Any long-term borrowing undertaken by the Council is done on a corporate basis so the amounts relating to
MDC are part of the total sums shown above.

Note G11 Other Long-Term Liabilities

2022-23 2023-24
£m Other Long-Term Liabilities £m
(1.139) Deferred Revenue Income (0.975)
(1.139) Total (0.975)

There are no amounts relating to MDC in the table above as they have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Note 12 Usable Reserves

2022-23 2023-24
£m Usable Reserves £m

(27.376) Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve (41.740)

(7.177) Capital Contributions Unapplied Reserve (10.020)
(11.310) Uncommitted General Fund (10.225)
(13.231) Earmarked Reserves (12.956)
(59.094) Total (74.941)

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRt@g@cddds 2023-24 Page | 126




The reserves above have been reduced by £0.761m for the MDC accumulated profit and loss position as at
31 March 2024.

Note 13 Unusable Reserves

2022-23 2023-24

£m Unusable Reserves £000
(98.151) Revaluation Reserve (98.426)
(148.317) Capital Adjustment Account (129.648)
(107.390) Pensions Reserve 14.182
(8.932) Collection Fund Adjustment Account (8.564)
1.032 Accumulating Absences Adjustment Account 0.480
6.565 Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account 14.293
(355.193) Total (207.683)

The unusable reserves above have been increased by £7.257m as this holds the capital grant funding entries
that still need to be recognised in MDC’s accounts but will be eliminated when MDC is wound-up. See note
G14 below.

Note G14 Deferred Grant Income

The major accounting policy difference between the Council and MDC relates to the treatment of capital grant
funding. Part of the resources available to MDC is £56m of Section 106 monies received previously from
developers and central government funding, which the Council can use on affordable housing and housing
growth. This has been allocated to the scheme at Newbridge Court (formerly Tollesby Shops) and other
operational costs from the running of the development company.

The Council follows international financial reporting standards where, grantincome (whether revenue or capital
based) is recognised as income when all conditions or performance obligations in respect of the funding have
been met. MDC follows UK GAAP accounting where the grant funding is held in the balance sheet as a
deferred liability until it is released to match future deprecation charges once the assets are operational. As a
result, it has been necessary to align this accounting policy with the Council’s for the purposes of producing
the group accounts on a consistent basis.

As the additional income is not available to the Council for revenue purposes, it has been allocated to an
unusable reserve before it is matched to the future capital charges. The movement on this account is as follows
over the last two financial years:

2022-23 2023-24
£000 Deferred Grant Income £000
(2.610) Opening Balance - grant funding allocated (5.257)
(2.647) Additions in year (2.000)
(5.257) Closing Balance - grant funding allocated (7.257)

Note G15 Share Capital & Ownership

Middlesbrough Development Company had total share capital of £1. The Mayor of Middlesbrough Council
acted as the only shareholder for the company and in this regard, the Council has complete ownership of the
entity.

Following the decision to wind up MDC all assets and liabilities will transfer to the Council upon dissolution.
As such, the Council guarantees all financial transactions whilst the company is operational.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatEh@g&2tEunts 2023-24 Page | 127



Note G16 Audit of Accounts

Under Section 477 of the Companies Act 2006 (in respect of the current annual turnover of the company which
is a deficit and the number of employees at 1) MDC is exempt from the requirement of the Act for the audit of
its accounts for the financial year. However, due to the need to consolidate the accounts into the Council’s
group arrangements, the company directors have decided to appoint an external auditor and undertake an
audit process. Further details on this can be seen in the financial statements for 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-
23 which are available from the Middlesbrough Council website. Annual report and statement of accounts
| Middlesbrough Council

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRt@g@cddnts 2023-24 Page | 128


https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/open-data-and-foi/council-information-and-data/annual-report-and-statement-of-accounts/
https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/open-data-and-foi/council-information-and-data/annual-report-and-statement-of-accounts/

/A

& .
ollection Fund

(0 Gy #71 -
5. | COuntS.and/ '//’1,




Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account

The Collection Fund summarises the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers
and the redistribution to Local Authorities and the Government of Council Tax and Business Rates.

2022-23 2023-24

Total Council Tax Business Total

Rates
£m £m £m £m
Income

(78.190) Council Tax receivable (82.740) (82.740)

(32.992) Business Rates receivable (31.983) (31.983)
(111.182) Total Income (82.740) (31.983) (114.723)

Expenditure
Precepts and Demands:

63.789 Middlesbrough Council 66.573 66.573
9.644 Cleveland Police and Crime Commissioner 10.463 10.463
2.915 Cleveland Fire Authority 3.074 3.074

Business Rates

15.650 Payments to Central Government 16.515 16.515
0.313 Payments to Cleveland Fire Authority 0.330 0.330

15.337 Payments to Middlesbrough Council 16.185 16.185
0.172 Costs of Collection 0.169 0.169

Bad & Doubtful Debts
0.079 Write Offs 0.034 (0.003) 0.031
1.524 Provision for Bad Debts (0.447) (1.674) (2.121)
0.418 Provision for Appeals (1.266) (1.266)
109.841 Total Expenditure 79.697 30.256 109.953
Contributions towards previous year’s estimate
(13.017) Collection Fund Deficit / (Surplus) 1.240 (1.657) (0.417)
(14.358) Deficit / (Surplus) for the Year (1.803) (3.384) (5.187)
COLLECTION FUND BALANCE
4.602 Balance brought forward at 1 April (10.980) 1.222 (9.758)
(14.359) Deficit / (Surplus) for the year (as above) (1.803) (3.384) (5.187)
(9.757) Balance carried forward at 31 March (12.783) (2.162) (14.945)
Allocated to:

(8.575) Middlesbrough Council (10.623) (1.059) (11.682)

(1.387) Cleveland Police and Crime Commissioner (1.670) - (1.670)

(0.407) Cleveland Fire Authority (0.490) (0.022) (0.512)
0.611 Central Government - (1.081) (1.081)

(9.758) Balance carried forward at 31 March (12.783) (2.162) (14.945)

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemerP@@e-alidi® 2023-24 Page | 130




Notes to the Collection Fund

Note C1 Income from Council Tax

Calculation of the Council Tax base

The Council Tax replaced the Community Charge on the 1 April 1993 and is a tax based on property valuation
bandings (A to H). There is a basic tax for the middle band (Band D) with proportionately higher and lower
taxes for the other bands. The Council’s tax base i.e., the number of chargeable dwellings in each band
(adjusted for discounts where applicable), converted to an equivalent number of Band D dwellings was
calculated as follows:

Estlw_z';eadbllzlzo. of | Ba_n dD Ba_n dD
Band . Ratio Equivalent Equivalent
Prop_ertles after Council Tax Dwellings
Discounts
£m
A* 24 5/9 25.510 14
A 17938 6/9 22,504.674 11,959
B 8148 7/10 11,925.579 6,337
C 9276 8/9 15,516.931 8,246
D 4886 9/9 9,195.408 4,886
E 2454 11/9 5,643.336 2,999
F 918 13/9 2,496.461 1,327
G 525 15/9 1,646.157 875
H 31 18/9 116.675 62
44,201 69,070.731 36,703
Less: Adjustments for assumed non-collection based on
budgets Jassumption of 96.6% collection rate (2,819.608) (1,248)
Total 66,251.123 35,456

A* - Band A properties receiving Disabled Relief
The average Council Tax for band D dwellings for Middlesbrough Council was £1,881.86.

Note C2 Income from Business Rates

In 2013-14, the administration of Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) changed following the introduction of a business
rates retention scheme which aims to give Councils a greater incentive to grow businesses but also increases
the financial risk due to volatility and non-collection of rates. Instead of paying NDR to the central pool, local
authorities retain a proportion of the total collectible rates due. In Middlesbrough's case the local share is 49%.
The remainder is distributed to the preceptors, which for Middlesbrough are Central Government (50%) and
Cleveland Fire Authority (1%).

The total non-domestic rateable value at 31 March 2024 was £101,883,283 (£103,873,487 at 31 March 2023)
and the national non-domestic multiplier for the year was 51.2p (51.2p in 2022-23).

. . Page 220
Middlesbrough Council Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24 Page | 131



Note C3 Previous Years Council Tax Deficit / Surplus

The Council has a statutory requirement to provide details each January of the projected Council Tax
deficit or surplus at the end of the financial year. The estimated previous year's Council Tax deficit
or surplus is payable to / from the Collection Fund by the Billing Authority and Precepting Authorities

in proportion to amounts raised or owing:

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
1.186 Middlesbrough Council (7.675)
- Cleveland Police and Crime Commissioner (1.198)
0.054 Cleveland Fire Authority (0.358)
1.240 Total Deficit / (Surplus) (9.231)
Note C4 Council Tax and Business Rates Provisions
The total provisions held for the Collection Fund at 31 March 2024 are set out in the table below:
Council Business Pro;gfmn Total
Tax BDP  Rates BDP Appeals
£m £m £m £m
Opening Balance at 1 April 2023 (17.161) (8.474) (3.997) (29.632)
Reductions in the provision in year 0.447 1.674 1.266 3.387
Increase in the provision in year - - - -
Closing balance at 31 March 2024 (16.714) (6.800) (2.731) (26.245)

Following a detailed balance sheet review, the s151 officer has revised the methodology to calculate the
Collection Fund Bad Debt provision in order to comply with International Accounting Standard 37 (IAS37),
which has adopted a long-term data driven methodology to forecast debt write off. This led to a reduction in
the Bad Debt provision in 2021/22 of £7.920m and an increase £1.520m in 2022-23. This methodology has
been simplified to ensure consistently with collection rate publications such as Quarterly Revenue Collection
returns (QRC) whilst remaining compliant with IAS37 and at a robust and prudent level. This has led to a
further release of £2.121m provision of which Middlesbrough’s share is £1.192m.

. . Page 221
Middlesbrough Council Draft Statement of"Accounts 2023-24

Page | 132







Note Description Page
Description of Teesside Pension Fund 135
Teesside Pension Fund Accounts and Net Asset Statement 137
1 Basis of Preparation 138
2 Accounting Standards issued not yet Adopted 138
3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 139
4 Critical Judgements, Sensitivities and Accounting Estimates 142
5 Assump_tions made about the Future and other Major Sources of Estimation 143
Uncertainty
6 Contributions 144
7 Benefits Payable 144
8 Transfers in from Other Pensions Funds 145
9 Other Income 145
10 Payments to and on account of leavers 145
11 Management Expenses 145
12 Investment Income 146
13 Investment Assets 147
14 Financial Instruments 153
15 Actuarial Valuations 159
16 Current Assets 160
17 Current Liabilities 160
18 Additional Voluntary Contributions 160
19 Related Party Transactions 161
20 External Audit Costs 161
21 Senior Employees’ Remuneration 161
22 Events after the Balance Sheet Date 161
The Compliance Statement 162
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRag&cleﬁ; 2023-24 Page | 134



Teesside Pension Fund Statement of Accounts

Introduction

The Teesside Pension Fund (the Fund) is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The Fund is
administered by Middlesbrough Council and the Council is the reporting entity for the Fund.

The scheme is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The Fund is administered in accordance with the
following secondary legislation:

e the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)

e the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014
(as amended)

e the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulation 2016.

The Council has delegated decision making in relation to the Fund to the Pension Fund Committee. The day-to-day
administration of the Fund and the operation of the management arrangements and investment portfolio is the
responsibility of the Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) of the Council.

The Pension Fund Committee consists of representatives of the employers of the Fund (specifically Councillors of
the Local Authority employers together with one representative chosen from the other scheme employers), and
employee representatives (from relevant Trade Unions) and makes decisions without reference to the Council. The
Pension Fund Committee sets investment strategy and recommends investment decisions. An independent
Pensions Board exists and operates as a scrutiny panel to ensure the Pension Fund Committee acts within the
statutory and regulatory framework.

Operation

The Fund is operated as a funded, defined benefit occupational pension scheme which provides for the payment of
benefits to employees and former employees of the Teesside local authorities and of those bodies admitted to the
Fund, and in some circumstances payment of benefits to those individual’'s dependants; collectively referred to as
members. The benefits paid to members include retirement pensions, dependant’s pensions, death grants and lump
sums.

The Fund is financed by contributions from members, employers, and the income from the Fund’s investment
portfolio of some £5.47b. The funding policy aims to ensure that the assets held by the scheme are adequate to
meet the future liabilities (members’ pensions and lump sums) of the Fund allowing for future changes to pensions
and pay.

Financial Statements

The Fund's accounts provide information on the financial position, membership, investment performance and
risks associated with the Fund. They show the results of the Fund’s stewardship in managing the resources
entrusted to it and provide information on the income and expenditure of the Fund and the investments it controls.

While membership rose in the year to 31 March 2024, the Fund continued to pay more in benefits than it received
in contributions as more members are drawing pensions. Net withdrawal of funds were £80.5m (year to 31 March
2023 78.9m). During the year, the overall value of the Fund increased by £408m to £5.47b.

Membership

Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees, including non-teaching staff, are free to choose whether
to join the scheme, remain in the scheme or make their own arrangements. Teaching staff have access to their
own defined benefit scheme the details of which are provided in the Councils financial statements.

The tables overleaf summarises the membership of the scheme over recent years showing an overall increase
in all categories of members: active members, members who have deferred rights and those who are drawing
pensions.

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Membership of the Fund
Active 24,238 25,434 26,198 26,198 26,220
Deferred 23,322 26,249 27,225 27,225 28,180
Pensioner 25,366 26,212 26,915 26,915 27,813
Total 72,926 77,895 80,338 80,338 82,213

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE?ﬁgﬁ)leZébunts 2023-24 Page | 135



Vemberahip o Vembers  Members  Membere  Dependams  Tota

At 01-APR-2023 26,198 27,225 23,540 3,375 80,338
Adjustments 29 431 138 3) 595
New Members 2,257 1,469 1,262 234 5,222
Change in Status (156) (38) (51) (1) (246)
Leavers (2,108) (907) (505) (176) (3,696)
At 31-MAR-2023 26,220 28,180 24,384 3,429 82,213
% of Total Membership 100.00%

Employers participating in the Teesside Pension Fund Accounts include:

e Scheduled bodies - local authorities or similar bodies whose staff are automatically entitled to be members of
the Fund.

e Admission bodies - organisations that participate in the Fund under an admission agreement between the Fund
and the relevant organisation. Admission bodies include voluntary and charitable organisations and private
contractors that are undertaking a local authority function following outsourcing to the private sector.

Middlesbrough Council

Draft StatemeRt@gy@ s 2023-24

Page | 136



Fund Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2024

2022-23 2023-24
£m Note £m
Dealings with members, employers and others directly
involved in the Fund
(106.953) Contributions 6 (116.328)
(4.896) Transfers in from other pension funds 8 (8.055)
(2.561) Other income 9 (2.060)
(114.410) Total Income from Members (126.443)
162.355 Benefits payable 7 182.512
20.435 Payments to and on account of leavers 10 12.318
182.790 Total Expenditure to Members 194.830
68.380 Net / withdrawals from dealings with members 68.387
10.473 Management expenses 11, 20 12.126
78.853 Net withdrawals including fund management expenses 80.513
Returns on investment
(48.840) Investment income 12 (60.376)
(54.947) Profits and losses on disposal of m_vestments and changes in 13 (431.170)
the market value of investments
(103.787) Net returns on investment (491.546)
(24.934) Net (mcrease)/decregse in t_he net assets available for (411.033)
benefits during the year
(5,037.574) Net assets of the scheme as at 1 April (5,062.508)
(5,062.508) Net assets of the scheme as at 31 March (5,473.541)
Net Assets Statement as at 31 March
5,060.738 Investments Assets 13 5,465.288
14.102 Current Assets 16 16.027
(12.332) Current liabilities 17 (7.774)
5,062.508 Net assets of the Fund at 31 March 5,473.541
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE?ﬁgBJfZSZG)unts 2023-24 Page | 137



Notes to Teesside Pension Fund Accounts

Note 1 Basis of Preparation

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis; that is, on the assumption that the Council will continue to operate
as the administering authority for the Pension Fund and the Pension Fund will continue to meet its financial obligations
for the foreseeable future from the date that the audited accounts are issued, this period being at least twelve months
from the approval of these financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting, which states that as authorities cannot be created or dissolved without statutory prescription, they must
prepare their financial statements on a going concern basis of accounting. The Council is established under the Local
Government Regulations 2013 as an Administering Authority of the Local Government Pensions Scheme and is
therefore a statutory body expected to be a going concern until notification is given that the body will be dissolved, and
its functions transferred.

The Pension Fund has carried out an assessment on its financial position and performance during 2023-24 and beyond
as part of its going concern assessment. This included consideration of the following:

e The Fund had assets of c. £5.47b as at 31 March 2024. £3.53b (64.5%) of this is held in assets which are
considered to be liquid, and which could be converted to cash if required (including £0.20b actually held as
cash).

e The Fund has estimated it will pay out £234m in benefits and other outgoings in the coming twelve months and
is forecasting contribution income in the region of £121m. This shortfall in contribution income versus benefits
and other expenditure of £113m will be met from investment income — forecast to be £145m if dividend income
can be taken from Border to Coast equity funds, or £75m if this option does not become available during 2024-
25. Assuming the lower amount of investment income is received, the remaining £38m would be taken from the
Fund’s cash balance, which was £199m at 31 March 2024.

On this basis, management believes it is appropriate to continue to prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis, and that there are no material uncertainties in relation to this basis of preparation.

The statement of accounts summarises the Funds’ transactions for the 2023-24 financial year and its position at year
end as at 31 March 2024. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023-24, which is based upon international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
as amended for the UK local government sector.

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report on the net assets available to pay pension benefits.
The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits, which fall due after the end of the financial
year.

Note 2  Accounting standards issued but not yet been adopted

At the balance sheet date, the following new standards and amendments to existing standards have been published but
not yet adopted:

e |FRS 16 Leases will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise most leases on their balance sheets
as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease liabilities (there is no recognition for low-value and short-term
leases). CIPFA/LASAAC have however deferred implementation of IFRS16 for local government to 1 April 2024
due to the impact of Covid-19.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRagle@&Ys 2023-24 Page | 138



Note 3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accruals

The accounts have been prepared on an accruals basis, and the accruals threshold set by management is £100,000.
The exception to this accruals basis is individual transfer values, which are recognised on a cash transfer basis.

Fund Account — Revenue Recognition
Contributions Income

Normal contributions, from both the members and the employers, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the payroll
period to which they relate. The employers' percentage rate is set by the Actuary, whilst the employees' rate is
determined by the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations.

Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the due dates set by the actuary, or on receipt if earlier.
Employer strain on the fund and any augmentation contributions are accounted for in the period in which the liability
arises. Amounts due in the year but still outstanding at the year-end are accrued, according to the accruals threshold.

Transfer Values

Transfer values represent the sums receivable in respect of members who have either joined or left the Fund during
the financial year and are calculated in accordance with the LGPS Regulations.

Individual transfer values in and out have been accounted for in the period in which they were paid or received.
Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds from their additional voluntary contributions to purchase
scheme benefits, are accounted for on a receipts basis within transfers in.

Bulk transfers are accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the transfer agreement.

Investment Income

Investment income has been recognised as due on the ex-dividend date and is credited to the Fund on the date of
the dividend, if received. The investment income is not grossed up for tax, as it is reported as net cash received.

Interest Income
Interest income is recognised in the Fund account when it is received and is accrued at the year end, using the
effective interest rate of the financial instrument as at the date of acquisition.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted as ex-dividend. Any amount not received at the
year-end is disclosed in the net assets statement as a current financial asset.

Distributions from Pooled Funds
Distributions from Pooled Funds are recognised on the date of issue. Any amount not received at the year-end is
disclosed in the net assets statement as a current financial asset.

Property Related Income
Property related income consists primarily of rental income. Rental income from operating leases on properties owned
by the Fund is accounted for on an accruals basis.

Movement in the Net Market Value of Investments
Changes in the net market value of investments (including investment properties) are recognised as income or
expense and comprise all realised and unrealised profits/losses during the year.

Fund Account — Expense ltems
Benefits Payable

Pensions and lump sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due at the end of the financial year. Any
amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the net assets statement as current liabilities.

Taxation

The Fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1 (1) of schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004 and, as

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE?ﬂgﬁ)lez&unts 2023-24 Page | 139



such, is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on the proceeds of investments
sold. Income from overseas investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin unless exemption is permitted.
Any withholding tax recovered is credited on receipt. We account for dividends and recoverable tax on a cash basis
but do not account for non-recoverable tax.

Management Expenses

The Code does not require any breakdown of pension fund administrative expenses. However, in the interests of
greater transparency, the Fund discloses its pension fund management expenses in accordance with CIPFA's
guidance, "Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management Expenses (2016)".

Administrative Expenses

All administrative expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. All staff costs of the pension administration team
are charged direct to the Fund. Associated management, accommodation and other overheads are apportioned to
this activity and charged as expenses to the Fund. Expenses for actuarial, audit and legal fees are paid directly by the
Fund.

Oversight and Governance Costs

All oversight and governance expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. All staff costs associated with
governance and oversight are charged direct to the Fund. Associated management, accommodation and other
overheads are apportioned to this activity and charged as expenses to the Fund.

Investment Management Expenses

All investment management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. Fees of external investment
managers and the Fund’s custodians are agreed in the respective mandates governing their appointments.
Broadly, these are based on the market value of the investments under their management and therefore increase
or reduce as the value of these investments change. The costs of the Council's in house fund management team
are charged direct to the Fund and a proportion of the Council's costs representing management time spent by
officers on investment management is also charged to the Fund.

Property Expenses

Property expenses have been recorded gross and shown as a deduction from the gross rental income received in
determining net rents from properties.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another. The term, ‘financial instrument' covers both financial assets and financial liabilities and includes
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The standard provides a consistent definition of fair value and enhanced disclosure requirements. It is designed to
apply to assets and liabilities covered by those IFRS standards that currently permit or require measurement at fair
value (with some exceptions). The Fund currently complies with this standard.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign income and sales and purchase of investments in foreign currencies received during the year have been
converted into Sterling at the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Amounts outstanding at the year-end have
been valued at the closing exchange rates on 31 March 2024.

Net Assets Statement
Financial Assets

Financial assets are included in the net assets statement on a fair value basis as at 31 March 2024. A financial
asset is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the contractual acquisition
of an asset. From this date, any gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of assets are recognised
in the Fund account. The value of investments as shown in the net assets statement have been determined as
follows;

Market Quoted Investments
Investments are valued at fair value as at 31 March 2024, as provided by the Fund's custodian. Quoted UK
securities are valued at the bid price based on quotations in the Stock Exchange Daily Official List. Overseas

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRagla@lﬂ& 2023-24 Page | 140




guoted securities are, similarly, valued at the bid price from overseas stock exchanges, translated at closing rates
of exchange.

Pooled Investment Vehicles

Pooled investment vehicles are valued at closing bid prices if both bid and offer prices are published, otherwise at
the closing single price. In the case of pooled investment vehicles that are accumulation funds, the change in
market value also includes income, which is reinvested in the Fund, net of applicable withholding tax.

Fixed Interest Securities
The value of fixed income investments excludes interest earned but not paid over at the year end.
The interest earned is accrued within the investment income receivable.

Unguoted Investments
Unlisted securities, including partnerships, are valued with regard to latest dealings and other appropriate financial
information as provided by their respective managers or those controlling the partnerships.

Freehold and Leasehold Properties

Properties are shown as valued at 31 March 2024. Properties are valued annually by an independent external valuer
on a fair value basis, and in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors' Valuation Standards (9th
Edition).

Custody and Security of Investments

Most investments are held in nominee name by the Fund's Global Custodian, Northern Trust. Exceptions to this are
directly owned properties, money market cash deposits and specified unquoted investments, which would be
registered in the name of the administering authority. Where the Custodian does not provide a custody service in their
own right, they utilise third party Sub Custodians, who are appointed by the Custodian. The agreement between the
Fund and the Custodian provides for certain indemnities where there has been loss as a result or action or inaction
by the Custodian or its Sub Custodians. This is supported by limited insurance cover procured by the Custodian.

Outstanding Commitments

The Fund has made commitments to investments, which are not included in the accounts of the Fund until the
monies have been drawn down by the relative manager. These are shown in Note 13.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises of cash in hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to minimal risk of changes in value.

Disposal of Investments

Profits/losses on the disposal of investments are realised when the transactions are legally complete.
Interest on Cash Balances

All surplus cash balances of the Fund are invested externally, interest being credited to the Fund.
Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the scheme actuary
in accordance with the requirements of IAS26 (Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans) and relevant
actuarial standards. As permitted under the Code, the Fund has adopted to disclose the actuarial present value of
promised retirement benefits by way of a note, refer to Note 15.

Additional Voluntary Contributions

The Fund provides an additional voluntary contributions (AVC) scheme for its members, the assets of which are
invested separately from those of the Fund. The Fund has appointed the Prudential Assurance Co Ltd as the
current provider. AVCs are paid to the AVC provider by the employers and are specifically for providing additional
benefits for the individual contributors. Each AVC contributor receives an annual statement showing the value of
their account and any movements in the year. AVCs are not included in the accounts in accordance with Regulation
4 (1) b of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulation 2016 but
are disclosed as a note only (Note 18).

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE?ﬁgﬁ)f%Q)unts 2023-24 Page | 141



Value Added Tax

Expenses and property purchase costs are charged net to the Pension Fund. The VAT is reclaimed via
Middlesbrough Council's VAT regime.

Note 4 Critical Judgements, Sensitivities and Accounting Estimates

Unguoted Private Equity, Infrastructure and Other Alternative investments

It is important to recognise the highly subjective nature of determining the fair value of private equity, infrastructure,
and other alternative investments. They are inherently based on forward-looking estimates and judgements
involving many factors. These are valued by the investment managers using the International Private and Venture
Capital Association guidelines or European Venture Capital Association definition of conservative value. The value
of these investments at 31 March 2024 was £1,369,917,299 (£1,155,773,631 at 31 March 2023).

Pension Fund Liabilities

The pension fund liability is calculated every three years by the appointed actuary. Assumptions underpinning the
valuations are agreed with the actuary and are summarised in Note 15. This estimate is subject to significant
variances based on changes to the underlying assumptions.

Freehold and Leasehold Property

Independent external valuers, Cushman & Wakefield use techniques to determine the fair value of directly held
freehold and leasehold property in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors' Valuation Standards
(9th edition).

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRagle@Bﬂs 2023-24 Page | 142



Note 5

Estimation Uncertainty

Assumptions made about the Future and Other Major Sources of

The Statement of the Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Fund about
the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current
trends, and other factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be
materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

promised retirement benefits

pay pensions depends on a
number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used,
the rate at which salaries are
projected to increase, changes in
retirement ages, mortality rates
and expected returns on pension
fund assets. A firm of consulting
actuaries is engaged to provide
the fund with expert advice about
the assumptions to be applied.

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from
assumptions
Actuarial present value of Estimation of the net liability to The effects on the net pension

liability of changes in individual
assumptions can be measured
for example, a 0.1% per annum
decrease in the discount factor
assumption  could increase
liability by around £75m.

Pooled Investment Vehicles

Infrastructure and global property
investments are valued at fair value
in accordance with the International
Private and Venture Capital
Association guidelines or European
Venture Capital Association
definition of conservative value.
These investments are not publicly
listed and as such there is a degree
of estimation involved in the

Unobservable market values
amount to £4,783b and are

relating to infrastructure, real
estate, and pooled equity
vehicles

techniques to determine the fair
value of directly held freehold and
leasehold property in accordance
with the relevant parts of the
current RICS Red Book.

valuation.
Freehold and leasehold property Independent external valuers, The effect of variations in the
Cushman & Wakefield use factors supporting the valuation

would be an increase or decrease
18.3% in the value of directly held
property £88.6m, on a fair basis
of £484.3m.

Middlesbrough Council

Draft StatEhagEf23ebunts 2023-24

Page | 143




Note 6 Contributions

Contributions from both members and employers are accounted for on an accrual basis in the payroll period. The
employers’ percentage rate is set by the actuary, whilst the employees’ rate is determined by the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations.

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
Employers
(73.562) Normal (79.548)
(0.012) Additional Contributions (0.016)
(0.158) Deficit Recovery Contributions (0.050)
Members -
(33.221) Normal (36.714)
(106.953) Total (116.328)
Analysis of Total Contributions
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(14.788) Administering Authority — Middlesbrough Council (15.676)
(79.669) Scheduled Bodies (87.999)
(12.496) Admission Bodies (12.653)
(106.953) Total (116.328)
Note 7 Benefits Payable
Pensions/lump sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due at the end of the financial year.
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
134.792 Pensions 150.993
24.684 Commutations and lump sum retirement benefits 27.950
2.879 Lump sum death benefits 3.569
162.355 Total 182.512
Analysis of Total Benefits
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
26.381 Administering Authority — Middlesbrough Council 28.968
100.356 Scheduled Bodies 113.643
35.618 Admission Bodies 39.901
162.355 Total 182.512
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRagle@B& 2023-24 Page | 144



Note 8 Transfers in from Other Pension Funds

Transfer values represent the sums receivable in respect of members who have joined the Fund during the financial
year.

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(4.896) Individual transfers in from other schemes (8.055)
(4.896) Total (8.055)

Note 9 Other Income

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(1.578) Capital Costs of Early Retirements (1.255)
(0.983) Other income (0.805)
(2.561) Total (2.060)

Note 10 Payments to and on account of leavers

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
11.761 Refunds to members leaving scheme 0.259
0.211 Payments for members joining state scheme 0.239
8.463 Individual transfers to other schemes 11.820
20.435 Total 12.318

Note 11 Management Expenses

The Fund discloses its pension fund management expenses in accordance with CIPFA’s guidance ‘Accounting for Local
Government Pension Scheme Management Expenses (2016). This includes administrative expenses, investment
management expenses and oversight and governance costs.

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
2.470 Administrative costs 2.234
7.331 Investment management expenses 9.269
0.637 Oversight and governance costs 0.521
10.438 Total 12.024

All investment management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. Fees of external managers and custodian
are agreed in respective mandates governing their appointments.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE?ﬂgBJf%ébunts 2023-24 Page | 145



2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
6.793 Management fees 8.671
0.021 Custody fees 0.019
0.517 Loans & investment support service charges 0.579
7.331 Total 9.269

Note 12 Investment Income

Investment income has been recognised as due on the ex-dividend date and is credited to the fund on the date of
dividend.

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(24.838) Income from pooled investment vehicles (22.361)
(15.237) Net rents from properties (see note below) (27.631)
(8.765) Interest on cash deposits (10.384)
(48.840) Total (60.376)

Rental Income and Property Expenses

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(17.096) Gross Rental income (30.641)
1.859 Property Expense / (Income) 3.010
(15.237) Net Rents from Properties (27.631)

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRagla@BEs 2023-24 Page | 146



Note 13

Investment Assets

The Pension Fund invest in several types of assets in order to maximise the return on the investment for the Fund.

Value at S Value at
2023-24 1 April Reclassified Purchases Sale in 31 March
Assets at Cost Proceeds Market
2023 2024
Value
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Equities 2.119 - - - (0.106) 2.013
Pooled Investment Vehicles 4,187.376 - 338.170 (339.834) 479.764 4,665.476
Pooled Property Investments 65.438 - 1.149 - (9.352) 57.235
Properties 403.615 - 86.857 (0.002) (6.171) 484.299
Loans 24.534 - 25.746 (0.746) (0.921) 48.613
Directly Held — Private Equity 40.080 - 3.964 - (32.044) 12.000
4,723.162 - 455,886 (340.582) 431.170 5,269.636
Cash Deposits 334.350 193.440
Other Investment Balances 3.226 2.212
Net Investment assets 5,060.738 5,465.288
Change
Value at Lo - Value at
2022-23 1 April Reclassified Purchases Sale in 31 March
Assets at Cost Proceeds Market
2022 2023
Value
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Equities 1.710 - - 1.129 (0.720) 2.119
Pooled Investment Vehicles 3,773.227 - 385.196 (55.828) 84.781 4,187.376
Pooled Property Investments 60.230 - 15.000 - (9.792) 65.438
Properties 335.521 - 87.416 - (19.322) 403.615
Loans 20.000 - 4.534 - - 24.534
Directly Held — Private Equity 26.500 - 13.580 - - 40.080
4,217.188 - 505.726 (54.699) 54.947 4,723.162
Cash Deposits 817.250 334.350
Other Investment Balances 1.833 3.226
Net Investment assets 5,036.271 5,060.738

Valuation Methods

There are three investments that have been valued at Cost rather than Market Value in 2023-24 as the investments are
at an early stage and an open Market Value is yet to be determined. These are Capital Dynamics Clean Energy

Infrastructure UK (£0.2M), Titan Preston East (£16.2M) and St Arthur Homes (£13.9M).

Middlesbrough Council

Draft StatEhgEof23Ebunts 2023-24

Page | 147




Change in Market Value

The change in the market value of investments during the year comprises all increases and decreases in the market
value of investments held at any time during the year, including profits and losses realised on sales of investments
during the year. Realised profit was £27,367,998 and unrealised gain was £403,801,540. Prior year realised profit was
£1,128,891 and unrealised gain was £56,076,232.

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs are included in the cost of purchases and sale proceeds. Transaction costs include costs charged
directly to the scheme such as fees, commissions, stamp duty and other fees. Transaction costs for 2023-24 are
£3,987,071. (2022-23 Nil). In addition to the transaction costs disclosed here, indirect costs are incurred through the
bid-offer spread on investments within pooled investment vehicles. The amount of indirect costs is not separately
provided to the Fund. For accounting purposes, the transaction costs have been re-allocated to expenses.

Investments Analysed by Fund Manager
The funds equities are mainly managed externally by Border to Coast. Private equities, infrastructure, other alternatives,
and other debt are all managed in-house with the only exception being the direct property portfolio managed by CBRE
Limited.

o for 2023-24 the value at 31 March 2024 of the direct property portfolio was: £484,300,000

o for 2022-23 the value at 31 March 2023 of the direct property portfolio was: £403,615,188
The remainder of the Fund is all managed in-house.

The following investments represent more than 5% of the net assets of the scheme.

Market % of net Market % of net
Value 31 assets of | Security Value 31 assets of
March 2023 the scheme March 2024 the scheme

£m £m

1,647.397 32.56% | Border to Coast PE Overseas Dev Mkts 1,833.038 33.52%
646.205 12.77% | Border to Coast PE UK Listed Equity 612.789 11.21%
320.026 6.32% | SSGA MPF Pacific Basin Ex-Japan Index 336.531 6.15%

In addition, the following investments represent more than 5% of any class or type of security. The asset classes used
for this note are not the CIPFA classifications, but those represented in the Fund's valuation by its Custodian and
reported to the Teesside Pension Fund and Investment Panel.

Middlesbrough Council

Draft StatemeRl@gf@cddhfs 2023-24

Page | 148



Market Market
Value 31 % of asset , Value 31 % of asset
March class Asset Class / Security March class
2023 2024
£m £m
UK Equities
646.205 99.67% | Border to Coast UK Listed Equity 612.789 99.67%
Oversea Equities
1,647.397 67.24% | Border to Coast Overseas Developed Markets 1,833.038 67.48%
320.026 13.06% | SSGA MPF Pacific Basin ex-Japan Index 336.531 12.39%
132.964 5.43% | SSGA MPF Euro Ex UK Equity Index Sub Fund 150.451 5.54%
203.394 8.30% | Border to Coast Emerging Market Hybrid Fund 215.331 7.93%
Private Equities
27.546 5.71% | Crown Co Investment Opp Il PLC 30.212 5.42%
32.568 6.75% | Unigestion SA 33.217 5.96%
37.392 7.75% | Pantheon Global Co-Investment Opportunities IV 32.368 5.80%
92.098 19.09% | Crown Growth Global Opportunities 11l 108.860 19.52%
26.727 5.54% | Border to Coast Private Equity Series 1A 41.612 7.46%
- 0.00% | Border to Coast Private Equity Series 1B 28.383 5.09%
Infrastructure
72.911 18.13% | Border to Coast Infrastructure Series 1A 87.377 16.50%
21.321 5.30% | Border to Coast Infrastructure Series 1B 31.146 5.88%
36.987 9.20% | Border to Coast Infrastructure Series 1C 44.654 8.43%
- 0.00% | Border to Coast Infrastructure Series 2A 59.803 11.29%
80.512 0.00% | JP Morgan IIF UK | LP 82.651 15.60%
Other Alternatives
10.244 5.70% | Border to Coast Climate Opportunities Series 2A 23.000 11.88%
23.447 13.06% | Darwin Leisure Prop Units - Class C 16.447 8.50%
18.087 10.07% | Darwin Bereavement Services Fund - Class B 19.041 9.84%
30.309 16.88% | Darwin Bereavement Services Fund - Income Units 30.683 15.85%
19.865 11.06% | Darwin Leisure Development Fund — Class D 16.601 8.57%
34.420 19.17% | Darwin Leisure Property Fund K - Income Units 24.369 12.59%
9.605 5.35% | Hearthstone Residential Fund 1 9.767 5.04%
9.836 5.48% | Hearthstone Residential Fund 2 15.789 8.16%
15.406 8.58% | Gresham House BSI Housing Fund LP 22.551 11.65%
Other Debt
47.966 53.48% | Insight IIFIG Secured Finance Il Fund 50.656 43.68%
20.000 21.84% | Greyhound Retail Park Chester 18.575 16.02%
18.057 19.72% | Pantheon Senior Debt Secondaries Il 16.689 13.94%
- 0.00% | Titan - Preston East 16.167 11.96%
- 0.00% | Gresham House BSI Housing Fund LP 13.871 14.39%
Direct Property
31.200 7.73% | Doncaster (Omega Boulevard) 31.400 6.48%
- 0.00% | Swindon (Symmetry Park Unit 1) 31.600 6.52%
31.000 7.68% | London (51/54 Long Acre) 31.000 6.40%
- 0.00% | ST Albans (Griffiths Retail Park) 30.500 6.30%
24.725 6.13% | Yeovil (Leonardo) 27.750 5.72%
- 0.00% | Washington (Radial 64) 50.250 10.38%
Property Unit Trusts
34.842 53.24% ?Lirljdard Life Investments European Property Growth 28.463 49.73%
3.944 6.03% | LAMIT - Local Authorities Property Fund 3.790 6.62%
16.608 25.38% | Hermes Property 15.369 26.85%
3.399 5.19% | Threadneedle Property 3.234 5.65%
6.646 10.16% | Legal and General Managed Property Fund 6.378 11.14%
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE?ﬂgBJfZQ&unts 2023-24 Page | 149



Geographical Analysis of Investments

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m % £m %
1,470.021 31% | United Kingdom 1,545.718 29%
1,284.003 27% | United States 1,558.889 30%
666.391 14% | Asia Pacific 703.139 13%
823.204 17% | Europe 931.444 18%
276.140 6% | Japan 315.107 6%
203.403 5% | Others 215.339 4%
4,723.162 100% | Total 5,269.636 100%
Equities
31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m
2.110 UK quoted 2.005
0.009 Overseas quoted 2.005
2.119 Total 4.010

Pooled Investment Vehicles and Properties

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m
648,315 UK Equity 612,789
65,438 Pooled Property investment Vehicle 57,235
482,511 Private Equity 545,675
402,107 Infrastructure 529,682
179,599 Other Alternative Investments 193,601
91,557 Other Debt 67,345
1,869,527 UK Unit and Investment Trusts Total 2,006,327
2,450,020 Overseas Equities 2,716,383
2,450,020 Overseas Unit and Investment Trusts Total 2,716,383
4,319,547 Total 4,722,710

UK Properties

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m

345.415 Freehold 347.275
58.200 Leasehold 137.025
403.615 Total 484.300

The properties were valued on the basis of Fair Value at 31 March 2024 by Cushman and Wakefield LLP acting as an
External Valuer. The valuer's opinion of the Fair Value of the Fund's interests in the properties has been reported (as
per VPS4 item 7 of the RICS Red Book). Under these provisions, the term "Fair Value" mean the definition adopted
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in IFRS 13, namely "The price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date."

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRagla@B& 2023-24 Page | 150



Cash Deposits

31 March 2023

£m

31 March 2024
£m

334.350

Sterling Cash deposits

193.440

Other Investment Balances

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£'000 £'000
1.470 Cash deposits with custodian 1.470
1.756 Interest due on cash deposits 0.742
3.226 Total 2.212

Outstanding Commitments

As at 31 March 2024, the Fund had the following outstanding commitments.

Outstanding

Initial gapital t commitments
Commitment m?&n;en S at 31 March
2024

Infrastructure
GBP GBP GBP
Border to Coast Infrastructure Series 1A 100,000,000 74,963,079 25,036,921
Border to Coast Infrastructure Series 1B 50,000,000 29,709,580 20,290,420
Border to Coast Infrastructure Series 1C 50,000,000 37,355,868 12,644,132
Border to Coast Infrastructure Series 2A 150,000,000 62,208,526 87,791,474
Border to Coast Infrastructure Series 2B 150,000,000 11,782,789 138,217,211
Capital Dynamics Clean Energy Infrastructure Fund VIII 20,000,000 18,234,087 1,765,913
I(?sgg?r;gx?amlcs Clean Energy Infrastructure Fund VIII - Co 10,000,000 9,117,044 882,956
I(Zslztreusjham House, British Strategic Investment Infrastructure 20,000,000 18,133,331 1,866,669
I(Zslztreusjhlzlim House, British Strategic Investment Infrastructure 25,000,000 22.418,467 2581,533
Innisfree PFI Continuation Fund 10,000,000 9,708,498 291,502
Innisfree PFI Secondary Fund 2 10,000,000 8,352,712 1,647,288
Total GBP 595,000,000 301,983,981 293,016,019
EUR EUR EUR
Access Capital Infrastructure Fund 23,000,000 21,689,000 1,311,000
Access Capital Infrastructure Fund Il 20,000,000 17,242,000 2,758,000
Access Capital Infrastructure Fund Il (Fund 2) 15,000,000 9,696,000 5,304,000
Ancala Infrastructure Fund Il 23,000,000 20,519,672 2,480,328
Foresight Energy Infrastructure 17,000,000 12,401,536 4,598,464
Total EUR 98,000,000 81,548,208 16,451,792
uUsD UsD UsD
Blackrock Global Energy & Power Infrastructure Fund IlI 25,000,000 22,986,197 2,013,803
Blackrock Global Renewable Power Il 25,000,000 17,124,971 7,875,029
Total USD 50,000,000 40,111,168 9,888,832
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE?ﬁgBJfZ%Q)unts 2023-24 Page | 151




Outstanding

. Capital :
Initial . Payments commitments
Commitment made at 31 March
2024

Other Alternatives

GBP GBP GBP
Bridges Evergreen TPF Housing Co-Investment LP 5,000,000 794,749 4,205,251
Gresham House Housing Fund 20,000,000 19,546,066 453,934
Hearthstone Residential Fund 2 LP 20,000,000 17,685,493 2,314,507
Border to Coast Climate Opportunities Series 2A 80,000,000 23,384,911 56,615,089
Capital Dynamics Clean Energy Infrastructure UK 20,000,000 170,000 19,830,000
Total GBP 145,000,000 61,581,219 83,418,781

EUR EUR EUR
La Salle Real Estate Debt Strategies IV 25,000,000 13,022,767 11,977,233
Total EUR 25,000,000 13,022,767 11,977,233
Other Debt

GBP GBP GBP
St Arthur Homes 16,000,000 14,113,266 1,886,734
Total GBP 16,000,000 14,113,266 1,886,734

usD usD uUsD
Pantheon Senior Debt Secondaries I 25,000,000 20,631,718 4,368,282
Total USD 25,000,000 20,631,718 4,368,282
Private Equity

GBP GBP GBP
Border to Coast Private Equity Series 1A 100,000,000 73,845,512 26,154,488
Border to Coast Private Equity Series 1B 50,000,000 32,876,678 17,123,322
Border to Coast Private Equity Series 1C 50,000,000 28,897,835 21,102,165
Border to Coast Private Equity Series 2A 100,000,000 16,958,239 83,041,761
Border to Coast Private Equity Series 2B 100,000,000 6,508,313 93,491,687
Capital Dynamics LGPS Collective for Pools 18/19 10,000,000 7,850,000 2,150,000
GB Bank Limited 49,999,950 44,043,750 5,956,200
Hermes Innovation Fund 20,000,000 14,411,813 5,588,187
Foresight Regional Investments IV 5,000,000 1,102,238 3,897,762
Total GBP 484,999,950 226,494,378 258,505,572

EUR EUR EUR
Access Capital Fund VIl Growth Buy-Out Europe 30,000,000 20,982,000 9,018,000
Access Capital Co-Investment Fund Buy-Out Europe |l 22,000,000 11,475,000 10,525,000
Capital Dynamics Mid-Market Direct V 20,000,000 16,583,038 3,416,962
Crown Growth Global Opportunities Ill 30,000,000 24,000,000 6,000,000
Unigestion Direct Il 25,000,000 21,457,608 3,542,392
Unigestion Secondary V 50,000,000 26,000,000 24,000,000
Unigestion Direct Il 37,500,000 17,794,659 19,705,341
Total EUR 214,500,000 138,292,305 76,207,695

usD usD uUsD
Blackrock Private Opportunities Fund 1V 25,000,000 20,340,118 4,659,882
Capital Dynamics Global Secondaries V 22,000,000 15,400,000 6,600,000
Crown Co-Investment Opportunities Il 30,000,000 26,175,000 3,825,000
Crown Co-Investment Opportunities 11l 30,000,000 16,680,000 13,320,000
Crown Global Opportunities VI 40,000,000 24,880,000 15,120,000
Crown Secondaries Special Opportunities Il 25,000,000 20,387,500 4,612,500
Pantheon Global Co Investment Opportunities 1V 30,000,000 27,070,000 2,930,000
Total USD 202,000,000 150,932,618 51,067,382

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeHaglEb@éHs 2023-24 Page | 152




Note 14

Financial Instruments

Net Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

2022-23 2023-24
£m Financial Assets £m
(54.947) Fair Value through profit and loss account (431.170)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
=l Liabilities Fair Value Liabilities
Value Assets at Assets at
; at through . at
through amortised . . amortised :
; amortised profit and amortised
profitand cost cost
cost loss cost
loss
31 March 2023 31 March 2024
£m £m £m Financial Assets £m £m £m
2.119 - - | Equities 2.013 - -
4,251.990 - - | Pooled Investments 4,726.089 - -
65.438 - - | Pooled Property Investments 57.235 - -
- 334.350 - | Cash - 193.440 -
- 3.226 - | Other investment balances - 2.212 -
i 14.102 _ | Sundry debtors and ) 16.027 :
prepayments
4,319.547 351.678 - 4,785.337 211.679 -
Financial Liabilities
- - (10.942) | Sundry creditors - - (7.774)
- - (10.942) - - (7.774)
4,319.547 351.678 (10.942) | Net Financial Assets 4,785.337 211.679 (7.774)

Valuation of Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value

The valuation of financial instruments has been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability of
information used to determine fair values.

Level 1

Financial instruments at Level 1 are those where fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed securities,
guoted index linked securities and unit trusts.

Level 2

Financial instruments at Level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an
instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques are used to determine
fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on observable market data.

Level 3

Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the instrument's
valuation is not based on observable market data. Such instruments would include unquoted equity investments and
hedge funds, which are valued using various valuation techniques that require significant judgement in determining
appropriate assumptions.

The values of the investment in private equity are based on valuations provided by the general partners to the private

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE?ﬁgea%Ebunts 2023-24 Page | 153



equity funds in which Teesside Pension Fund has invested. These valuations are prepared in accordance with the
International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines, which follow the valuation principles of IFRS and
US GAAP. Valuations are usually undertaken as at 31 March annually. Cash flow adjustments can be used where
valuations at 31 March could not be obtained.

Teesside Pension Fund has no investments in hedge funds.

The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the pension fund grouped into Levels 1
to 3, based on the level at which the fair value is observable.

Valuation of Financial Instruments carried at fair value — 31 March 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Value as at 31 March 2024 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets at fair value through profit and 50.626 3.329.171 1,405.540 4.785.337
loss account
Loans and receivables 215.940 - - 215.940
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost (7.774) - - (7.774)
Total Financial Assets 258.792 3,329.171 1,405.540 4,993.503
Valuation of Financial Instruments carried at fair value — 31 March 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Value as at 31 March 2023 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets at fair value through profit and 26.653 3.096.216 1,196.678 4.319.547
loss account
Loans and Receivables 351.828 - - 351.828
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost (10.942) - - (10.942)
Total Financial Assets 367.539 3,096.216 1,196.678 4,660.433

Sensitivity of Assets at level 3

Having analysed historical data and current market trends, and consulted with independent investment advisors, the
Fund has determined that the valuation classification described above are likely to be accurate to within, the following
ranges, and has set out below the consequent potential impact on the closing value of investments held at 31 March
2024,

Valuation of Financial Instruments carried at fair value — 31 March 2024

Assessed Value as at
valuation 31 March ?ﬁ“rj:acs)g X:(I:l::azg
range (+/-) 2024
£m £m £m
Pooled Investments - Private Equity 11.40% 545.675 607.882 483.468
Pooled Investments - Infrastructure 11.40% 529.682 590.066 469.298
Pooled Investments - Other Alternatives 11.40% 193.601 215.672 171.530
Pooled Investments - Other Debt 11.40% 67.345 75.022 59.668
Pooled Investments - Property 18.30% 57.235 67.709 46.761
Total 1,393.538 1,556.351 1,230.725
Valuation of Financial Instruments carried at fair value — 31 March 2023
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRaglEb@ém; 2023-24 Page | 154



Assessed Value as at
; Value on Value on
valuation 31 March increase decrease
range (+/-) 2023
£m £m £m
Pooled Investments - Private Equity 19.12% 442.431 527.024 357.838
Pooled Investments - Infrastructure 19.12% 402.107 478.990 325.224
Pooled Investments - Other Alternatives 19.12% 179.599 213.939 145.260
Pooled Investments - Other Debt 19.12% 67.023 79.838 54.208
Pooled Investments - Property 14.90% 65.438 75.188 55.688
Total 1,156.598 1,374.979 938.218
Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements within level 3 during 2023-24
Market - ¢ U lised | Realised Market
VElUE 2 ransfer nrealise ealised | \/01 e as
at 1 April blet\\;veien Purchases Sales I_Galns/ I_Galns/ at 1 April
2023 evels osses osses 2024
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Pooled Investments — Private Equity 442.431 - 102.574 | -34.333 47.003 - 557.675
Pooled Investments — Infrastructure 402.107 - 124.559 -17.375 20.391 - 529.682
Pooled Investments — Other
Alternatives 179.599 - 38.368 -3.628 -20.738 - 193.601
Pooled Investments - Other Debt 67.023 - 3.275 -0.022 -2.930 - 67.346
Pooled Investments — Property 65.438 - - - -8.203 - 57.235
Total 1,156.598 - 268.776 | -55.358 35.523 - | 1,405.539
Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements within level 3 during 2022-23
Market Transfer Unrealised | Realised Market
Value as ; . Value as
.| between | Purchases Sales Gains/ Gains/ X
at 1 April levels Losses Losses at 1 April
2022 2023
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Egs:teyd Investments — Private 340.778 i 98.432 | (17.487) 20.708 | 442431
Pooled Investments — 247.734 - 165.302 | (28.866) 17.937 - | 402.107
Infrastructure
Pooled Investments — Other 114.709 - 68.252 | (2.424) (0.938) | 179.599
Alternatives
Pooled Investments - Other
Debt 32.285 | (20.000) 40.737 (5.485) 19.486 - 67.023
Pooled Investments — Property 60.230 - 15.000 - (9.792) - 65.438
Total 795.736 | (20.000) 387.723 | (54.262) 47.401 - | 1,156.598
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE?ﬂgBJfZ%ébunts 2023-24 Page | 155




Nature and Extent of Exposure to Risk Arising from Financial Instruments

Risk and Risk Management

The Fund's primary long-term risk is that the Fund's assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e., promised benefits payable
to members). Therefore, the aim of investment risk management is to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the
value of the fund and to maximise the opportunity for gains across the whole Fund portfolio. The Fund achieves this
through asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk) and credit
risk to an acceptable level. In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet
the Fund's forecast cash flows. Responsibility for the Fund's risk management strategy rests with the Teesside Pension
Fund Committee. The Funding Strategy Statement and the Statement of Investment Principles identify and analyse the
risks faced by the pension’s operations. These policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in activity and market
conditions.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commaodity prices, interest and foreign exchange rates and
credit spreads. The Fund is exposed to market risk from its investment activities, particularly through its equity holdings.
The level of risk exposure depends on market conditions, expectations of future price and yield movements and the
asset mix.

The Fund identifies, manages, and controls market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the
return on risk.

In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification of the portfolio in terms of
geographical and industry sectors and individual securities. To mitigate market risk, the Fund and its investment advisors
undertake appropriate monitoring of market conditions and benchmark analysis.

The Fund manages these risks in three ways:

1. The actuarial valuation of the Fund which is carried out every three years and resets the employer contribution
rates.

2. The asset liability study which is carried out every three years or more frequently if required considers alternative
asset allocations for the Fund and the long-term impact on employer contribution rates.

3. Quarterly monitoring of the performance of the Fund against selected benchmarks, and annual performance
reports to the Pension Fund Committee.

Other Price Risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in the
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all such instruments in the market.
The Fund is exposed to share price risk. This arises from investments held by the fund for which the future price is
uncertain. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum risk resulting from financial
instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments.

The Fund's investment managers mitigate this price risk through diversification and the selection of securities and other
financial instruments is monitored by the Council to ensure it is within limits specified in the Fund Strategy Statement
and the Investment Strategy Statement.

Other Price Risk — Sensitivity Analysis
Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement during the financial year, in consultation

with Portfolio Evaluation Ltd, the Fund has determined that the following movements in market price risk are reasonably
possible for the 2023-24 reporting period.

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRagla@é]ﬁ; 2023-24 Page | 156



2(_)23—24 Price Value as at 31 Change Value on Value on

Risk March 2024 Increase Decrease

Asset Type Region £m % £m £m
UK 2.005 10.50% 2.216 1.794

Equities Non-UK 0.008 11.00% 0.009 0.007
Total 2.013 2.225 1.801
UK 1,059.413 11.40% 1,180.186 938.640

B"ﬁ?@ggdl:ﬁggs Non-UK 3,723.910 11.40% 4,148.436 3,299.384
Total 4,783.323 5,328.622 4,238.024

Total 4,785.336 5,330.847 4,239.825

2(_)22—23 Price Value as at 31 Change Value on Value on

Risk March 2023 Increase Decrease

Asset Type Region £m % £m £m
UK 2.110 12.30% 2.370 1.850

Equities Non-UK 0.009 12.89% 0.010 0.008
Total 2.119 2.380 1.858

m’t‘igggd;jﬂgs UK 1,064.296 12.30% 1,195.204 933.388
Non-UK 3,253.132 12.89% 3,672.461 2,833.803
Total 4,317.428 4,867.665 3,767.191

Total 4,319.547 4,870.045 3,769.049

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk to which the Fund is exposed to changes in interest rates and relates to its holdings in cash.
The Fund's direct exposure to interest rate movements as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 is set out below:

2022-23 Asset Type at 31 March 2023-24
£m £m
334.350 Cash and cash equivalents 193.440
3.226 Other Investment balances 2.212
337.576 Total 195.652

Sensitivity Analysis

The Fund recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the fund and the value of the net assets
available to pay benefits. The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates, remain
constant, and shows the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a +/- 25 basis points (BPS)
change in interest rates.

Asset Type + 25 BPS - 25 BPS

Carrying value at 31 March 2024 £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 193.440 0.484 (0.484)

Other Investment balances 2.212 0.006 (0.006)

Total 195.652 0.490 (0.490)
Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE?ﬂgea%ﬁ)unts 2023-24 Page | 157




Asset Type + 25 BPS - 25 BPS
Carrying value at 31 March 2023 £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 334.500 0.836 (0.836)
Other Investment balances 3.226 0.008 (0.008)
Total 337.726 0.844 (0.844)

Currency Risk

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is exposed to currency risk on financial instruments that are
denominated in any currency other than the functional currency of the Fund (EUK). The Fund's currency rate risk is
considered by the Fund's Investment Advisors and Investment Managers. The Pension Fund Committee is informed
quarterly of the Fund's currency exposure.

The following tables summarise the Fund's currency exposure as at 31 March 2023 and as at 31 March 2024, showing

the sensitivity analysis of foreign exchange movements.

. Value on VEIE on
Currency Risk 31 March 2024 Value £m Change % Increase £m De(;rr(:ase
Australian Dollar 0.008 6.50% 0.009 0.007
Euro 931.444 4.40% 972.428 890.460
Japanese Yen 315.107 8.70% 342.521 287.693
US Dollar 1,558.890 7.90% 1,682.042 1,435.738
Asia Pacific ex Japan basket 703.139 5.50% 741.812 664.466
Total 3,508.588 3,738.812 3,278.364
. Value on VEIE o
Currency Risk 31 March 2023 Value £m Change % Increase £m Dec;srr?]ase
Australian Dollar 0.008 8.54% 0.009 0.007
Euro 823.203 5.20% 865.186 781.220
Japanese Yen 276.140 9.20% 299.336 252.944
US Dollar 1,284.003 8.30% 1,397.766 1,170.240
Asia Pacific ex Japan basket 666.391 8.10% 723.301 609.481
Total 3,049.745 3,285.598 2,813.892

Following analysis of historical data in consultation with Portfolio Evaluation Ltd, the Fund considers the likely volatility
associated with foreign exchange rate movements to be as shown above. A percentage strengthening/weakening of the
pound against the various currencies in which the fund holds investments would decrease/increase the net assets
available to pay benefits as highlighted above.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the Fund to incur a financial loss. The Fund is exposed to credit risk on its investment portfolio,
including its cash deposits, and on the contribution’s receivable from the Fund's participating employers.

The market values on investments usually reflect an assessment of credit risk in their pricing and as a result the risk of
the loss is implicitly provided for in the fair value of the Fund's investments. Credit risk on cash deposits is managed by
Middlesbrough Council's in-house Treasury Management Team, following the Council's Treasury Management Policy.
This policy is described in detail in Middlesbrough Council's Annual Report.

Credit risk on contributions receivable from employers is minimised by regular monitoring of monthly receipt of payments

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatemeRagle@éhYs 2023-24 Page | 158



from employees. There is no provision for doubtful debts against the amounts due from employers as at 31 March 2023.
The LGPS Regulations require that a risk assessment of any new transferee admission body is carried out, and that a
bond or guarantee is obtained where necessary.

The Teesside Pension Fund Committee must approve the admission of any new body. Bonds or guarantees have been
obtained for the Fund's admission body employers, where possible. The Fund is potentially exposed to credit risk from
certain scheduled employers that have neither tax-raising powers nor a guarantee from central government.

Collateral and other Credit Enhancement

The pension fund does not use collateral and other credit enhancement.
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Fund holds
in-house cash resources to meet the day to day needs and to pay pensions. If there is insufficient cash available to meet
immediate needs, there are sufficient other assets available which can be realised at short notice and at minimal cost.
With the exception of investments in private equity, infrastructure partnerships and other alternatives there are no
commitments to contribute further capital to any of the existing fund investments. When private equity, infrastructure
partnership and other alternatives capital calls are received, payments are made from cash or, if there are insufficient
cash funds available, other assets are realised.

Note 15 Actuarial Valuations

Contributions are paid to the Fund by the employers to provide for the benefits which will become payable to Scheme
members when they fall due. The funding objectives are to meet the cost of Scheme members’ benefits whilst they are
working and to build up assets to provide adequate security for the benefits as they accrue.

In order to check that the funding objectives are being met the Fund is required to carry out an Actuarial Valuation every
3 years, The Triennial Valuation. Typically, each final triennial valuation report is published around a year after the
effective date. An Actuarial Valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2022 using the ‘Projected Unit Method’ which
produced the following results;

2019 Valuation 2022 Valuation

£m £m
Net Liabilities 3,561.000 4,351.000
Assets 4,088.000 5,036.000
Surplus 527.000 685.000
Funding Level 115% 116%

The actuarial assumptions used to calculate the promised value of benefits at 31 March 2024 were:

Funding Assumptions

Pension Increase Rate (CPI) 2.75%
Salary Increase Rate 3.75%
Discount Rate 4.85%

The assumed life expectancy from age 65 (years) assumptions

Mortality Assumptions: Years
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

e Men 20.50
e Women 23.50
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

e Men 21.30
e \Women 25.00

Middlesbrough Council Draft StatE?ﬂgﬁ)fZ%&unts 2023-24 Page | 159



Note 16 Current Assets

Current assets are cash and any other asset that will be turning into cash within one financial year.

31 March 2023

Debtors

31 March 2024

£m £m

4.029 Other Debtors 1.105

1.145 Sundry Debtors 1.530

- Contributions due in respect of: -

5.698 Employers 6.823

2.612 Members 3.102

0.618 Cash balances 3.467
14.102 Total 16.027

31 March 2023

Analysis of Debtors

31 March 2024

£m £m
4.379 Other local authorities 4.718
9.105 Other entities and individuals 7.842
0.618 Add cash balances 3.467
14.102 Total 16.027

Note 17 Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities are the amounts owing within the next financial year.

31 March 2023

Amounts due within one year

31 March 2024

£m £m
(2.559) Rents received in advance (2.859)
(8.258) Accrued expenses (3.210)
(1.515) Other payables (2.705)
(12.332) Total (7.774)

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
Analysed by

£m £m
(1.117) Other local authorities (1.136)
(5.452) Public Corp & Trading Funds (0.020)
(5.763) Other entities and individuals (6.618)
(12.332) Total (7.774)

Note 18 Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC’s)

Scheme members may make Additional Voluntary Contributions that are invested with the Fund’s nominated
AVC providers, the Prudential Assurance Co Ltd. These contributions are not part of the Pension Fund and are
not reflected in the Fund’s accounts in accordance with regulation 4(1) (b) of the Local Government Pension

Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

The value of AVC investments are as follows:

Page 249

160




Prudential AVC balances

2022-23 ) 2023-24
Prudential AVC balances
£m £m
5.247 With Profits and Deposit Accounts 5.504
4.378 Unit Linked Accounts 5.171
9.625 Total 10.675

Note 19 Related Party Transactions

The Fund is administered by Middlesbrough Council. During the reporting period, the council incurred costs of
£1,136,000 (2022-23: £1,175,000) in relation to the administration and management of the fund and was
reimbursed by the fund for these expenses. Middlesbrough Council is one of the largest members of the pension
fund and made employer contribution payments of £10.059 million over the period (2022-23 - £9.5 million).

Note 20 External Audit Costs

The external fees payable to the Fund’s external auditors Ernst & Young LLP.

2022-23 ) 2023-24
External Audit Costs
£m £m
Fees payable to our current external auditors, EY, with regard
0.035 ; . . . ; 0.102
to their services carried out as appointed auditor.
0.035 Total Fees 0.102
Note 21 Senior Employees’ Remuneration
2022-23 2023-24
Key Management Personnel
£m £m
0.097 Short Term Benefits 0.068
0.011 Post-Employment Benefits 0.008
0.108 Total 0.076

Director of Finance paid via agency (Allen Lane) £226,430

Note 22 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

No specific events to report after the balance sheet date for the Teesside Pension Fund accounts.

Page 250

161




The Compliance Statement

The Compliance Statement

Local Government Pension Scheme

Regulations

Middlesbrough Council administers the Teesside Pension Fund in accordance with:

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations
2014 (as amended) and

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016

Full details of the Governance Policy and Compliance Statement can be seen at

Agenda Item 12 - Appendix A - 2021 Teesside PF Governance Policy and Compliance
Statement.pdf (middlesbrough.gov.uk)

Full details of the changes to the scheme, along with updated scheme guides, are on our website at
www.teespen.org.uk

Investment Strategy Statement

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016
require that Local Government Pension Scheme’s administering authorities prepare, publish, and maintain
an Investment Strategy Statement (ISS). The current version of the Teesside Pension Fund ISS was
approved by the Pension Fund Committee in March 2021 and contains statements on:

e Investment responsibilities, setting out the key responsibilities of the Teesside Pension Fund
Committee, key officers of the Fund, the Fund’'s Custodian, and the Independent Investment
Advisors.

e The investment strategy and the type of investments held, e.g., equities, bonds, property etc.

e The maximum and minimum amount allowable in each asset class and any discretion by the
administering authority to increase the limits on various types of investment.

e Risk, including the ways in which risks are to be measured and managed.
e The existing investment management arrangements, including details of the Fund’s commitment

to investment pooling through its jointly owned pooling company Border to Coast.

e The Fund’s position as a responsible investor and its promotion of ethical, social, and corporate
governance best practice.

e The exercise of the rights (including voting rights) attaching to investments, and the Fund's
statement of commitment to the Stewardship Code.

e The Fund’s commitment to measure and report investment performance.

e The level of compliance with the Myners Principles.

The statement is maintained and published by Middlesbrough Council, copies of which are available on
application, or it can be seen at the Fund’s website:

investment-strategy-statement-february-2019.pdf (teespen.org.uk)

Page 251

162


https://moderngov.middlesbrough.gov.uk/documents/s9891/Agenda%20Item%2012%20-%20Appendix%20A%20-%202021%20Teesside%20PF%20Governance%20Policy%20and%20Compliance%20Statement.pdf
https://moderngov.middlesbrough.gov.uk/documents/s9891/Agenda%20Item%2012%20-%20Appendix%20A%20-%202021%20Teesside%20PF%20Governance%20Policy%20and%20Compliance%20Statement.pdf
https://www.teespen.org.uk/media/c1pjqols/investment-strategy-statement-february-2019.pdf

The Funding Strategy Statement

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, require each Administering Authority, to
produce a Funding Strategy Statement, setting out a long-term view on funding liabilities. The main areas
covered by the statement are:

e The purpose of the statement:

— Establishes a clear and transparent strategy which identifies how employers’ pension
liabilities are best met going forward;

— Supports the regulatory framework to maintain as nearly constant employer contribution
rates as possible; and

— Take a prudent longer-term view of funding liabilities.

e The purpose of the Fund, i.e., receive contributions and make pensioner payments.

e The solvency and target funding levels of the Fund, i.e., 100% of the liabilities of the Fund can be
met over the long term.

e The identification of key risks to the Fund, and the control mechanisms in place to mitigate these
risks.

e Links to the Fund’s investment strategy.

e The key responsibilities of the administering authority, scheme employers and the Fund’s Actuary
are also set out.

The latest Funding Strategy Statement was approved by the Pensions Fund Committee and was effective
from March 2020, and can be seen at

funding-strategy-statement-23-06-2021.pdf (teespen.org.uk)
Governance Policy

Under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 Middlesbrough Council, the Administering
Authority to the Teesside Pension Fund, is required to draw up a Governance Policy which sets out the
procedures for the governance of the Fund. In summary, the policy sets out that the administering authority
delegates its functions under the above Regulations to the XPS group (previously Kier Business Services Ltd)
as administrator and the Pension Fund Committee to act in a similar manner to a Board of Trustees

The Policy also sets out the:
e Terms of reference of the Pension Fund Committee
e  Structure of meetings
e Membership
¢ Principles of governance.

The latest policy document can be viewed at:
TPF - Pensions Panel (teespen.org.uk)
Communications Policy

Under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 Middlesbrough Council, the Administering
Authority to the Teesside Pension Fund, is required to draw up a statement(s) of policy concerning
communications with members and Scheme employers.

The Teesside Pension Fund actively communicates with all of its stakeholders, including the members, the
employers, and other external organisations. For example, we have been providing every active member of
the scheme with a statement of accrued benefits since 2001, well before it became compulsory to do so. The
statement of accrued benefits also includes the member’s State Pension Forecast to aid in their financial
planning.

We also provide newsletters twice a year to all of our active and pensioner members; this allows us to inform
participants of any scheme changes which may be made.

A Communications Policy Statement has been drawn up in order to ensure that the Fund offers clear
communication to stakeholders of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The latest policy statement can
be seen at:

TPF - Communications Policy (teespen.org.uk)

Page 252 163


https://www.teespen.org.uk/media/5i3lescr/funding-strategy-statement-23-06-2021.pdf
https://www.teespen.org.uk/about-us/pensions-panel/
https://www.teespen.org.uk/about-us/communications-policy/

Statement of the Actuary for the year ended 31 March 2024

This statement has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 57(1)(d) of the Local Government Pension
Scheme Regulations 2013. It has been prepared at the request of the Administering Authority of the Fund for
the purpose of complying with the aforementioned regulation.

Description of Funding Policy
The funding policy is set out in the Administering Authority’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS), dated March
2023. In summary, the key funding principles are as follows:

. take a prudent long-term view to secure the regulatory requirement for long-term solvency, with
sufficient funds to pay benefits to members and their dependants

° use a balanced investment strategy to meet the regulatory requirement for long-term cost efficiency
(where efficiency in this context means to minimise cash contributions from employers in the long
term)

. where appropriate, ensure stable employer contribution rates

. reflect different employers’ characteristics to set their contribution rates, using a transparent funding
strategy

. use reasonable measures to reduce the risk of an employer defaulting on its pension obligations

The FSS sets out how the Administering Authority seeks to balance the conflicting aims of securing the
solvency of the Fund and keeping employer contributions stable. For employers whose covenant was
considered by the Administering Authority to be sufficiently strong, contributions have been stabilised to have
a sufficiently high likelihood of achieving the funding target over 20 years. Asset-liability modelling has been
carried out which demonstrate that if these contribution rates are paid and future contribution changes are
constrained as set out in the FSS, there is at least a 75% likelihood that the Fund will achieve the funding
target over 20 years.

Funding Position as at the last formal funding valuation

The most recent actuarial valuation carried out under Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension
Scheme Regulations 2013 was as at 31 March 2022. This valuation revealed that the Fund’s assets, which at
31 March 2022 were valued at £5,306 million, were sufficient to meet 116% of the liabilities (i.e., the present
value of promised retirement benefits) accrued up to that date. The resulting surplus at the 2022 valuation was
£684 million.

Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of achieving their funding
target within a time horizon and likelihood measure as per the FSS. Individual employers’ contributions for the
period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2026 were set in accordance with the Fund’s funding policy as set out in its
FSS.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions and Method used to value the liabilities
Full details of the methods and assumptions used are described in the 2022 valuation report and FSS.

Method

The liabilities were assessed using an accrued benefits method which takes into account pensionable
membership up to the valuation date; and makes an allowance for expected future salary growth to retirement
or expected earlier date of leaving pensionable membership.

Assumptions

A market-related approach was taken to valuing the liabilities, for consistency with the valuation of the Fund
assets at their market value.

The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2022 valuation were as follows:

Page 253 164



Financial assumptions 31 March 2022
Discount rate 4.25% pa
Salary increase assumption 3.70% pa

Benefit increase assumption 2.70% pa
(CPI)

The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The life expectancy assumptions are
based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in line with the CMI 2021 model, with a 0% weighting of
2021 (and 2020) data, standard smoothing (Sk7), initial adjustment of 0.25% and a long-term rate of 1.50% p.a.
Based on these assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 are as follows:

Current Pensioners 20.9 years 23.9 years

Future Pensioners* 21.9 years 25.5 years
*Aged 45 at the 2022 Valuation.

Copies of the 2022 valuation report and Funding Strategy Statement are available on request from the
Administering Authority to the Fund and on the Fund’s website.

Experience over the period since 31 March 2022

Markets were disrupted by the ongoing war in Ukraine and inflationary pressures in 2022 and 2023, impacting
on investment returns achieved by the Fund’s assets. High levels of inflation in the UK (compared to recent
experience), have resulted in higher-than-expected LGPS benefit increases of 10.1% in April 2023 and 6.7%
in April 2024. However, asset performance has improved towards the end of 2023 and into 2024 and inflation
has begun to return towards historical levels and the Bank of England’s target (2% pa). There has been a
significant shift in the wider economic environment since 2022, resulting in generally higher expected future
investment returns and a reduction in the value placed on the Fund’s liabilities. Overall, the funding position is
likely to be stronger than at the previous formal valuation at 31 March 2022.

The next actuarial valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2025. The Funding Strategy Statement will also
be reviewed at that time.

Julie Baillie FFA

22 May 2024

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP

Page 254 165



Schedule of Contribution Rates

Net rate of contribution payable by each employing Organisation for the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024
under regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

Employers
Rate Employees | Employers

% £000 £000
Ad Astra Academy Trust 17.5% 280 844
All Saints Academy 17.5% 49 136
Ash Trees Academy 17.5% 63 187
Badger Hill Academy 17.5% 15 44
Beamish Museum Ltd 15.7% 175 422
Beyond Housing 22.8% 413 1,463
Bikeability — Middlesbrough BC 17.7% 3
Bikeability — Stockton BC 17.9% 2
Billingham Town Council 17.7% 24
Bulloughs Cleaning Services 17.9% 12
Bulloughs Cleaning Services - VALT 17.9% 11 26
Business and Enterprise North East Ltd 24.5% 1 26
Caldicotes Primary Academy 17.5% 13 43
Care and Custody Health Ltd 19.4% 5 14
Care Quality Commission 17.9% 845 1,942
Carmel Education Trust 17.5% 467 1,418
Catcote Academy 17.5% 131 391
Caterlink - RCBC 28.2% 2 10
Caterlink - St Oswald's 27.9% 3 17
Churchill's (Collaborative Trust) 33.0% 0 0
Churchill's (Outwood Grange) 20.6% 4 12
Cleaning & Support Services (LLT) 15.2% 5 16
Cleveland College of Art and Design 15.7% 213 302
Cleveland Fire Brigade 14.3% 280 616
Conyers School 17.5% 175 528
Creative Management Services (Galileo) 29.4% 10 31
Creative Management Services Ltd 29.4% 1
Dolce - Rift House 17.5%
Dolce LLT 17.5% 5 17
Dyke House Academy 17.5% 97 278
Easterside Academy 17.5% 38 114
Eden Academy Trust Limited 17.5% 83 266
Egglescliffe Primary School 17.5% 11 35
Emmanuel Schools Foundation 17.5% 81 244
Endeavour Academies Trust 17.5% 149 432
Enquire Learning Trust (Central) 17.5% 123 248
Extol Academy Trust (Eldon Grove) 17.5% 152 455
Fabrick Housing Group 17.5% 919 2,996

Page 255

166



Falcon Education Academies Trust 17.5% 31 92
Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy 17.5% 24 70
Freebrough Academy 17.5% 55 162
Future Regeneration of Grangetown 32.6% 2 10
Galileo Multi Academy Trust 17.5% 231 684
Grangefield Academy 17.5% 65 189
Green Lane Primary Academy 17.5% 19 59
Guisborough Town Council 17.7% 9 20
Hardwick Green Primary Academy 17.5% 27 81
Harrow Gate Primary Academy 17.5% 38 114
Hartlepool Borough Council 12.4% 3,759 7,306
Hartlepool College of Further Education 15.7% 195 515
Hartlepool Sixth Form College 15.7% 23 64
High Clarence Primary 17.9% 12 35
Holy Trinity Primary School 17.5% 14 43
Horizons Specialist Academy Trust 17.5% 325 942
Hutchison Catering - AET 38.9% 8 63
Hutchison Catering - Extol 38.9% 0 3
Ingleby Barwick Town Council 17.7% 3 9
Ingleby Manor Free School & Sixth Form 17.5% 42 120
Ironstone Academy Trust - Ormesby Primary School 17.5% 13 42
Ironstone Academy Trust - Zetland Primary School 17.5% 26 59
James Cook Learning Trust 17.5% 29 87
Kader Academy 17.5% 24 72
KTS Academy 17.5% 88 273
Legacy Learning Trust 17.5% 258 768
Liberata UK Ltd 0.0% 52 0
Lingfield Academy Trust 17.5% 172 338
Lockwood Parish Council 17.7% 2 3
Loftus Town Council 17.7% 4 11
Manor Community Academy 17.5% 74 220
Mbro and Stockton Mind 28.7% 3 13
Mellors Catering Ltd - Dormanstown 28.0% 0

Mellors Catering Services Ltd (Central) 17.9% 1 3
Mellors Catering Services Ltd (Normanby) 17.9% 3 11
Mellors Ironstone 39.1% 3 8
Mellors Riverdale 18.6% 0 1
Mellors Skelton 38.5% 1 33
Melrose Learning Trust 17.5% 82 243
Middlesbrough College 15.7% 419 1,033
Middlesbrough Council 11.5% 5,616 10,059
Mitie Cleveland Fire 25.7% 1 5
NEAT Academy Trust 17.5% 70 147
Nicholas Postgate Catholic Academy Trust 17.5% 991 1,540

Page 256

167



NMRN Trading 28.1% 2 8
Normanby Primary School 17.5% 64 107
North East Learning Trust 17.5% 58 171
North Ormesby Primary Academy 17.5% 18 53
North Shore Academy 17.5% 58 167
Northern Lights Learning Trust 17.5% 260 158
Norton Primary Academy 17.5% 31 90
Nunthorpe Academy 17.5% 99 285
Nunthorpe Primary Academy 17.5% 18 56
Oak Tree Primary Academy 17.5% 32 96
Oakdene Primary School 17.5% 22 66
One IT Services and Solutions Ltd 18.7% 55 127
One IT Services Ltd - Porter 15.9% 6
ONsite Building Trust 28.3% 14
Our Children 1st Academy Trust 17.5% 46 142
Outwood Academy Acklam 17.5% 86 260
Outwood Academy Bishopsgarth 17.5% 61 183
Outwood Academy Bydales 17.5% 37 108
Outwood Academy Normanby 17.5% 84 248
Outwood Academy Ormesby 17.5% 60 180
Outwood Academy Redcar 17.5% 52 157
Outwood Riverside 17.5% 41 122
Overfields Primary School 17.5% 17 50
Pentland Academy 17.5% 30 91
Police & Crime Commissioner for Cleveland 15.0% 130 183
Prince Regent Street Trust 17.5% 106 319
Redcar & Eston CIC 17.9% 12 33
Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council 10.2% 4,111 6,490
River Tees Multi Academy Trust 17.5% 121 243
Riverdale Primary School 17.5% 11 35
Rose Wood Academy 17.5% 29 88
Saltburn, Marske & New Marske Parish Council 17.7% 3 9
Samsic UK - Green Lane (LLT) 18.9% 1 1
Skelton and Brotton Parish Council 17.7% 11
Skelton Primary School 17.5% 33 95
SLM Charitable Trust (MBC) 11.5% 50 89
SLM Community Leisure Charitable Trust 13.3% 27 59
SLM Fitness & Health Ltd (MBC) 11.5% 4 8
SLM Fitness and Health Ltd 13.3% 3 7
SLM Food & Beverage Ltd (MBC) 11.5% 1 3
SLM Food and Beverage Ltd 13.3%

South Tees Development Corporation 16.3% 88 160
St Aidan's Primary School 17.5% 22 65
St Francis of Assisi 17.5% 25 76

Page 257

168



St Mark's Academy 17.5% 44 130
St Mary's CE Primary School 17.5% 25
St_Mary’s Catholic Voluntary Primary Academy 17.5% 2
Steel River Academy Trust 17.5% 94 287
Stockton Borough Council 13.1% 6,143 12,641
Taking Care 13.1% 6 11
Tascor Services Ltd - PFI 18.0% 1 2
Tees Active Limited 18.2% 93 251
Tees Valley Collaborative Trust 17.5% 161 459
Tees Valley Combined Authority 16.6% 434 1,000
Tees Valley Education Trust 17.5% 148 440
Teesside University 16.5% 2,792 6,694
Teesville Primary School 17.5% 16 49
The Chief Constable for Cleveland 15.0% 2,040 4,637
The Education Training Collective 15.7% 496 1,257
Thornaby Academy NET 17.5% 11 32
Thornaby C of E Primary 17.5% 24 73
Thornaby Town council 17.7% 4 3
Unity City Academy 17.5% 75 218
Veritau Tees Valley 10.2% 9 14
Viewley Hill Academy Trust 17.5% 16 49
Vision Academy Learning Trust 17.5% 357 1,058
Ward Jackson Church of England Primary School 17.5% 10 32
Whitecliffe Academy 17.5% 15 44
XPS Administration Ltd 11.5% 30 51
Yarm Primary School 17.5% 18 54
36,712 79,608

Page 258

169






11

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.

21

2.2

Annual Governance Statement 2023-24

Introduction

Middlesbrough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law
and proper standards. The Council has in place a Code of Corporate Governance, which sets out its
corporate governance framework and is reviewed annually. This framework comprises the culture, values,
systems and processes of the Council, which if in place and complied with, will ensure that it does the right
things, at the right time and in the right way. As set out in the draft 2022/23 Statement of Accounts, the
Council is continuing to work to ensure that its meets these standards through ongoing work to address
areas of weakness or non-compliance.

The audits of both the 2021/22 and 2022/23 statements of accounts and accompanying 2021/22 and
2022/23 Annual Governance Statement (AGS) have not been finalised. They have been impacted by a
national audit backlog which is now subject to a reset process, put in place by the Minister of State
responsible for Local Government and English Devolution. Secondary legislation will be laid to provide a
backstop for completion of the 2021/22 and 2022/23 accounts due to audit capacity, along with the impact
of Covid. It is likely that these accounts will be disclaimed by the Council’s External Auditor for that time
period. Government estimates that there are likely to be hundreds of disclaimed audit opinions and this
situation could continue for some years. Therefore, for the purposes of this statement, progress updates
and significant governance issues updates will be reported against that draft 2022/23 AGS statement which
was published in February 2024 as part of the draft 2022/23 Statement of Accounts.

The Council’'s Code of Corporate Governance aligns with the current CIPFA / Solace guidance, which sets
out the following principles of good governance:

e behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of
law;

ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;

defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits;

determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes;
developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it;
managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial
management; and

e implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability.

The purpose of the AGS is to assess the extent to which the Council complies with its Code of Corporate
Governance, how it has monitored and improved the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in
2023/24 and how it has identified actions to strengthen these arrangements going forward.

Scope of responsibility

The Council has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness. In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting
in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its
functions, and its arrangements for the management of risk.

Middlesbrough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law
and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically,
efficiently and effectively.

2.3 As set out in 1.3, the AGS sets out how the Council is compliant with Council’s Local Code of Corporate

Governance which reflects the seven principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government Framework 2016 Edition. This AGS also sets out how it meets the requirements of
regulations 6(1) (a) and (b) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which requires all relevant bodies
to prepare an annual governance statement and subsequent amended regulations in 2022 and 2024.

Review of effectiveness

Page 260 171


https://ago-item-storage.s3.us-east-1.amazonaws.com/6d41e408bf4a4e009c6f7bf4a3a9a41b/LCCG_2023.pdf?X-Amz-Security-Token=IQoJb3JpZ2luX2VjEJr%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2FwEaCXVzLWVhc3QtMSJIMEYCIQCZo8NvYRa3oe5i9fZ49ZofCGnCYY06g7qvHTnRUU%2BdAgIhALrZ61xTiQkKQbQxmYq461S2xRm%2FFq7ayGwY7Tn85ugLKrsFCNP%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2FwEQABoMNjA0NzU4MTAyNjY1Igw4THXOntjwo61Bn%2FQqjwXzc4FcDCQ8hevR3FiT03pwhhs9q06BpZaVgnDDWuRJBa4hmH70DMI8UqP3XgzSdaI9YX4BcWn8mlG8C9%2Bs%2BHDiqKlhGmSNC0k9rfdJUPyEl6DWXGCW5epqShLgngY3lLlaUT7i9mpRi12F70CucCXpDB4xtmF8WsV6pcBTTDUzQdYS644qc4feHdBrWfy0zjxGtzaZyw9NX4vbXXKYnMmrmaiyffxa%2BNZhjLjGmlp1J382CKZOyF79HeRwd8eJFtfyzd7xDCAcuK2pkl6UVJoj%2B%2FbAbADqdka94qoJFdKiBV4fJuRdvgK16wjp5T3KGrYyebdVibQU9d2eh31mTP9Gat9yV7Kg8GanYtZ8jkbxCZLyGtbVwngyF6BWNrllwtqX1rEBISnlBtl8BRZOYMzrqUw6St6BcSWUrDxG4yBuBNOL5kEn42FKEz0wYLYlvZYRnkb0DjgrvdJosdWVO97RjEVUQAj0Qq9aoR%2BUp8eDooi8RgQ27i46J9gCYGlJKI5Rb%2FLhIbgx4wP24PAgvj3UZj7FWM6VLw%2BSWE2VLQqm0WtbiEy1A6JCb9kZNsM5s%2B7Ec34lC7lf%2FJbIMhr%2FOhSeceg1GIrUhhwUAWw9%2BsOME5jp4goWihECxXBe4Bh412fANEns2RzqlwBj1YW%2B7kO1977mAhWzkDcQYEFzGr566x7vg%2FeQTJP0qyCYhMaeYExxcasHbCZYB074kxCH30A34lDtfOxPDXhCh147zOXlk3ZSUyCvpbOvTxbqx519XC%2BPVnlOCKBKq2w24BD4OyyNN7Rb7rfgembheRKbmd6RrYBE%2B7xCbgyIrgsTdg5OC28k6ZKIkLCqJBWrBNjqiHLL3DyNxJGBjbLre7%2BjpLMWMJf65qMGOrABCQNQj8lgLHg6AePcC1RF%2BdUlEdJxzaILFFf%2F%2BDAxGKBXOFZEAJhaSwJben6d12Ru7o9eQZUBqGHnAMXFa1F24r05vwgN5K26Q0o%2Fc4Sg5ez3cIW6QV1NUY5NmWcd2iQFsg2XMXQiF78V9TFs0fhNy2ZimPkEOfr3zIKvcsdERI19iikqftLi23tkOT7JIK3c2rB8gq8LaAAxdmCitMp1u%2FZYJoWalBQV%2FKlcLGZeRZU%3D&X-Amz-Algorithm=AWS4-HMAC-SHA256&X-Amz-Date=20230602T105828Z&X-Amz-SignedHeaders=host&X-Amz-Expires=300&X-Amz-Credential=ASIAYZTTEKKE3K4Y5MVY%2F20230602%2Fus-east-1%2Fs3%2Faws4_request&X-Amz-Signature=5b1d4b68c75348ae135ad7009ae40f514c945a5884cac0f62537f618d95ef79f

3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Outlined below are the arrangements in place to review the effectiveness of the governance framework and
the sources of information and assurance on which this statement is based.

The Council’s governance arrangements in place during 2023/24

The Committee structure in place within the Council during 2023/24 is set out Appendix 2. The terms of
reference of all committees are published on the Council’s committee papers website.

Committees take decisions in line with the Council’s approved strategies and policies. The Council Plan is
the Council’s overarching business plan for the medium-term 2024 - 2027 and was agreed by Council in
March 2024. Prior to this, the previous Plan set the strategic direction, it was called the Council’s Strategic
Plan.

During 2023/24 the performance structure around directorate plans have been refreshed to strengthen
governance. In making decisions, the Mayor and councillors are supported by a senior management
structure that is designed to support effective compliance with the Council’'s legal and governance
responsibilities, led by the three statutory officers (Head of Paid Service, Section 151 Officer and Monitoring
Officer). Some decisions are delegated to senior officers. All delegated decisions are required to be
published on the Council’s website.

There is a ‘golden thread’ which runs from these documents and throughout of the Council’s governance
and policy frameworks. The diagram below reflects the arrangements that were in put in place in 2023/24.

Mayor's Priorities

A Successful and Ambitious Town AHealthy Place Safe and Resilient Communities Delivering Best Value

Transformation

Transformation Themes

Cultural Financial Recovery : :
Transformation  and Resilience _ Directorate Service Plans

@ = .g s Eo £ @

sl 5 E |EglE 1Bl s alE| 5 e g8 3

5 E £ 5g o8 E, 2 % ¢ 5 £ : 2 . o % -

§ 23 ®» 3£ 8§85 =8 5§ & & 3 & 2 U5 & && % . 5 3

@ & g 2% 8= 3 £ ¥ * & = 9 =% o 58 e:& & 2 @

£ o5 £ 22 23§ 88 = 3 : 2> § §2 EE g 9 S

s 8° § <2 3E g3 © G 42 = 5% g5 £ EB &

¢ &€ £ 3$° 38 2° &~ & a* g° s £

= £ 5 & s - e &

< o : = d:n

Transformation Programme / Projects
9 MTFP Workforce

Plans

Enabling Core Services
HR, ICT, Legal. Commissioning. etc.

4.5 The Council’s Constitution defines the respective roles of councillors and officers, outlines expected

standards and behaviours and provides a framework to enable effective working relationships across the
Council. The Constitution also provides direction on the various roles in place to ensure effective corporate
governance within the Council. The whole constitution was reviewed in 2022/23 to ensure it reflected the

Page 261 172


https://intranet-moderngov.middlesbrough.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/
https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/open-data-foi-and-have-your-say/open-data-and-policies/middlesbrough-council-constitution

lessons that need to be learned from the Corporate Governance Improvement journey. This was brought
forward during 2023/24 in the form of a revised constitution that has been completed during 2023/24 for
member consideration and adopted by full Council in September 2023.

4.6 The section below sets out how governance issues are considered across the Council’'s committee system
and supporting officer and audit structures. In 2023/24 the audit and corporate affairs functions were
separated out into two separate committees. This was done in order to have a clear separation between the
audit functions and the corporate affairs functions of the authority.

Body

Governance function

Council

Full Council is the formal meeting of all councillors and the Mayor. It is
required by law to take certain important decisions, including setting the
Budget and Council Tax, and approving several key plans and strategies
(which together form the Policy Framework). It is responsible for all the
functions that are not Executive Functions. It carries out some of those
functions itself, and others are delegated to Committees or named Officers.

One of the Commiittees it appoints is the Audit Committee. It also agrees any
changes recommended to the Local Code of Corporate Governance.

Council sets the Council’'s Constitution and agrees any plan or strategy that
sits within the policy framework. This includes the Mayor’s Vision, Medium
Term Financial Plan.

Audit Committee

The Council’s Audit Committee (previously the Corporate Affairs and Audit
Committee until September 2023), considers:

e whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed in the
Council’s annual statement of accounts and whether there are any
concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that
need to be brought to the attention of the Executive

e reports on the Council’s treasury and investment management
policies, practices and activities, including an annual strategy

e reports of the External Auditors in relation to audit reports, Value for
Money and any other concerns of the auditors except where matters
are reserved for full Council.

e Reports on progress and performance of internal audit, significant
findings

¢ Reports from Internal Audit on the adequacy and effectiveness of
internal audit control systems within the Council

e Arrangements in place to ensure proper processes for business
continuity and risk management

e The Annual Governance Statement as part of the Statement of
Accounts

e Compliance with the council’s published standards on Financial and
Contract Procedure Rules

e The Council’'s arrangements for corporate governance and necessary
actions to ensure compliance with best practice.

Executive

Executive is appointed to carry out all the Council’s functions which are not the
responsibility of any other part of the Council, whether by law or under this
Constitution.

Executive and its Executive Members agree many of the policies and

procedures which form part of the Council’'s Corporate Governance framework.

Overview and
Scrutiny Board

Overview and Scrutiny reviews and challenges decisions made by the
Executive and other bodies. It undertakes all call-in functions and acts as a
vehicle by which the effectiveness of scrutiny is monitored.

It is supported by Scrutiny Panels that undertake investigations within their
areas of responsibility.

Page 262

173



Internal audit
(Veritau)

Internal Audit provides assurance that the organisation’s risk management,
governance and internal control processes are operating effectively.

External Audit

Under the Code of Audit Practice 2020, the Council’s External Auditors are
required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper
arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of
resources.

The 2020 Code requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with
sufficient assurance to enable them to report to the Council a commentary
against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the arrangements the
Council has in place to secure value for money through economic, efficient and
effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

Leadership
Management Team

The Leadership Management Team, led by the Chief Executive and comprised
of the Directors and Executive Directors of the Council, meets on a weekly
basis. The team is responsible for ensuring their staff comply with the
Council’'s Corporate Governance framework and regularly considers reports on
its content and data on compliance with the requirements of the framework.

5. Activities undertaken during 2023-24 by these bodies

5.1 In May 2023, local government elections took place which meant that the composition of the formal
committees set out below changed during 2023-24.

Council

5.2 During 2023-24 full Council received reports on a number of governance issues. Reports received
relevant to this statement included the following, listed in chronological order:

A report on the resignation of the interim Section 151 officer and the designation of the Section 151
Officer role to the incoming Interim Director of Finance.

Corporate Governance Improvement next steps

Section 24 report — statutory recommendations from the Council’s External Auditors

Review of the Council’s Constitution including Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure

Rules

Corporate Governance Improvement Plan Update
Progress reports on delivery of the Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and Section 24 action

plan

Member Development Strategy

A report on Senior Management arrangements

Council Plan 2024-27

A report on the governance of the Transformation Programme.

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee and then Audit Committee

5.3 From 1 April 2023 until 18 September 2023, Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee was responsible for
reviewing the Council’s arrangements for corporate governance and making recommendations as
appropriate to ensure good governance and continuous improvement. Following a review of the Council’s
constitution, audit functions were separated out into an Audit Committee remit.

Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee

5.4 The committee met 4 times during 2023-24, and considered the following corporate governance related
items:

Statement of Accounts 2020-21

Internal audit report: Senior Management Review

A report on the possible timeline for 2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24 Statement of Accounts
The External Audit’s Annual Report — year ended 31 March 2021

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Programme 2023-24

Head of Internal Audit Annual Report

Page 263 174




e Annual Complaints report 2021 — 2023

e Review of Financial Regulations

e Internal Audit report — Middlesbrough Development Company.
Audit Committee

5.5 A Council decision was taken on 18 September 2024 to separate out the corporate affairs and audit
functions into two separate committees. Audit Committee met 4 times during 2023-24, and considered the
following corporate governance related items:

Executive

Section 24 report — Delivery and Oversight Arrangements

Update report on the External Audit of Accounts progress

Progress reports on the Internal Audit and Counter fraud work programme
Counter Fraud Framework Annual Report

Progress reports on delivery of the Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and Section 24
action plan

Annual Assurance report on Partnership Governance

Annual Assurance report on Procurement Activity

External Audit Planning report for the 2022-23 Teesside Pension Fund Audit
Draft Statement of Accounts 2022-23

Annual Assurance report on Business Continuity

Local Code of Corporate Governance

Internal Audit consultation report on the 2024-25 Work Programme.

Programme and Project Management Framework Annual Assurance report

Best Value Notice — update

Review of contracts awarded under exemption

HR annual assurance presentation

Whistleblowing policy

Report on the purchase of the former Crown Pub

Lessons learned — Corporate Governance learning from standards investigations.

5.6 In 2023-24 Executive considered the following governance related items:

Quarterly reports on corporate performance and finance
Medium Term Financial Plan refresh
Risk and Opportunity Management Policy
A report on resourcing the Corporate governance improvement programme — financial recovery
and resilience and Cultural Transformation Programmes
The closure of the Middlesbrough Development Company and updates
The Council Plan 2024 — 2027 and workplan
Treasury Management Strategy
Local Plan
First quarterly report of the Middlesbrough Independent Improvement Advisory Board
Application for Exceptional Financial Support
Best Value Notice update
Transformation governance arrangements
Scrutiny reports on:
o Youth Offending and partnership working with schools
Supporting young people to prepare for adulthood and independence
Off-road bikes
Dental health and the impact of Covid-19.

o O O

5.7 It also considered the following call-in referral:

Call in of a decision in relation to develop Nunthorpe Community facility which was considered by
the previous administration in April 2023. The outcome was a decision to proceed with the
previous decision in relation to the facility.

Page 264 175



5.8

59

5.10

511

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

Overview and Scrutiny

Overview and Scrutiny Board (OSB), supported by a range of topic-specific panels, scrutinises Executive
decisions and the performance of Council services. During 2023-24, scrutiny considered the following
items that are relevant to corporate governance:

e development of the Council Plan;
e the Executive Forward Work Programme; and
e Middlesbrough Boundary Review.

There was one scrutiny call-in during 2022-23 of an Executive decision. This related to the new Nunthorpe
community facility. The decision was referred to the Executive for further consideration; the outcome of
which was that Executive agreed to proceed with the original decision.

Internal Audit (Veritau)

The Council’s Internal Audit function is provided by Veritau. During 2023/24 Veritau was a partially owned
company of the Council but the Council has neither the majority share nor any say over its operations.
Veritau undertakes risk-based audit work and reports the outcome of that work to Audit Committee. It also
undertakes counter fraud work. During 2023/24 Internal Audit undertook and finalised 19 audits during the
year which are set out at Appendix 1. Of those, 11 received substantial assurance, three received
reasonable assurance, two received only limited assurance and in three no opinion was required or given.
As at May 2024, there were 14 ongoing that had commenced in 2023/24.

The two audits that resulted in limited assurance were in relation Children’s commissioning and contract
management and Procurement Cards in Children’s Services covering the period 2022-23.

The Children’s commissioning and contract management audit contained 9 priority two actions. The audit
found there were weaknesses in the Council’s approach to managing the market for the placement of
children with complex and individual requirements, which is a highly challenging market to operate in. All
actions arising from that audit have now been implemented.

The Procurement cards in Children’s Services audit had four priority one actions, eight priority two actions
and three priority three actions. The outcome of the audit was presented to Audit Committee in full as part
of the annual assurance report on procurement activity report that was considered on 14 December 2023.
The audit noted a number of concerns that required management attention in relation to VAT not being
consistently recorded and receipts provided resulting in the inability to recover VAT, non-provision of
receipts and a lack of description on some claims, failure of cardholders to review expenditure and
managers to approve expenditure to ensure appropriate financial controls. All of these were requirements
of the Council’'s Purchasing Card Policy. All actions arising from the audit have now been implemented
and Veritau will be undertaking a further review to assess the impact of the implementation of
recommendations upon compliance with the revised Purchasing Card procedures during the first half of
2024-25

In addition to planned audit activity, Veritau also undertakes ad hoc investigations. During 2023-24 it
completed an investigation into the purchase of the former Crown pub.

External Audit

On 21 August 2023, the External Auditor issued a report to update on the Council’s Value for Money
arrangements and issued 11 statutory recommendations in relation to required improvement in the
Council’s governance arrangements. This is the culmination of the review of the Council’s progress since
the External Auditor initially made 7 non-statutory recommendations within their 2020-21 Audit Results
Report which was considered by Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee in July 2022.

5.16 On 18 September 2023, full Council formally considered the recommendations, accepted all

recommendations and agreed an action plan in response to them. Since that time, progress
against the action plan has been reported to Audit Committee and Council meetings.

Page 265 176



5.17 Audit Committee and its predecessor committee considered the following reports from the External
Auditors in 2023-24:

e Audit planning report for the 2022-23 Teesside Pension Fund and a verbal update on the audit at its
December 2023 and March 2024 meetings
e Auditor’'s Annual Report — Year Ended 2021.

6. Significant governance related events during 2023-24

6.1 The Council is expected to set out significant governance events that have occurred during the reporting
period, and their impact on the Council’s governance arrangements. Both the 2020-21 AGS and the draft
2021-22 AGS identified weaknesses in the Council’s corporate governance arrangements which, while
action had been taken, continued to exist in 2023-24, though progress has been made in addressing

them.
Event Date
Transition in External Auditor from EY to Mazars April 2023
Local and Mayoral Elections May 2023
Budget management in 2023-24 May 2023

onwards

External Auditor Statutory recommendations August 2023
Decision taken to close the Middlesbrough Development company September 2023
Senior Management Structure stability January 2024
Best Value Notice extended for a further 6 months by Government January 2024
Teesworks Governance report January 2024
Application for Exceptional Financial Support February 2024
Transfer of Council assets to Middlesbrough Development Corporation March 2024
confirmed by the Secretary of State for Levelling UP, Housing and
Communities
Publication of 6-month report on progress by the Middlesbrough Independent March 2024
Improvement Advisory Board
Purchase of the former Crown pub Audit report published March 2024

Transition in External Auditor from EY to Mazars

6.2 Following the Council’s decision to ‘opt in’ to the national selection scheme for external audit contracts, the
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) body appointed Mazars to be the Council’s external auditor for
the period 2023-24 — 2027-28.

6.3 In July 2023, the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC), now known as the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) made proposals to re-set the local
authority audit market following an enquiry into complex issues impacting upon the timeliness of financial
reporting and delays in the delivery of local authority audit for many local authorities. These proposals
involved setting statutory backstop dates for the completion of audits, issuing qualified opinions and
disclaimed opinions in order to clear the substantial backlog of audits that exist nationally. On 30 July 2024,
the Minister of State for the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government wrote to councils and
audit firms to set out a proposed approach to addressing the audit backlog which is likely to result in the
2021/22 and 2022/23 accounts of this Council being disclaimed, along with hundreds of other accounts
across the sector.

6.4 As a consequence of these delays, Mazars has been unable to commence its audit work in relation to the
2023/24 financial year. Mazars presented their Audit Strategy Memorandum to the Audit Committee in July
2024 for both the Council audit and the Teesside Pension Fund audit. Audit planning work commenced
during May.

Local and Mayoral Elections
6.5 In May 2023, the Council held elections for the positions of all Councillors and the Elected Mayor. This

resulted in a change in overall control of the Council from one of no overall control and with an independent
Mayor, to a Labour Party majority of Councillors and a Labour Party Elected Mayor.

Page 266 177



6.7

6.8

6.9

Budget management in 2023-24

6.6 The Council’s critical financial position was identified in May 2023 upon review of the month 2 financial
forecast by the new Director of Finance. Enhanced budget management and control measures, supported
by the Executive, were introduced by the Director of Finance during Quarter One in response to a forecast
overspend of £11.563m as follows:

¢ Anincrease in frequency of management revenue budget monitoring and forecasting from
quarterly to monthly.

e Monthly budget challenge and review sessions chaired by the Director of Finance to be held for
each Directorate, working collaboratively with Directors, their Management Teams and Finance
Business Partners to ensure focus on budgetary control and proactive management actions to
remain within approved budget.

¢ Monthly review and challenge of financial and operational performance at Leadership
Management Team (LMT) chaired by the interim Chief Executive.

o Director Accountability Agreements signed by LMT to demonstrate commitment to managing
within the approved budget and focus upon areas of identified risk.

e Quarterly budget challenge and review sessions for each Directorate chaired by the Executive
Member for Finance & Governance and attended by Executive Members for relevant Directorates.

e Requirement for Directorate adverse variances to be addressed through the development of
Financial Recovery Plans by Directors in consultation with their relevant Executive Member, and
delivery to be monitored through the budget challenge framework.

e Savings tracker to be utilised to report progress on delivery of savings and enable targeting of
management actions.

e Measures to improve the quality and timeliness of budgetary reports over the course of the year
initiated.

The pressures in children’s social care required further measures to establish control through closer
working between the Director of Finance and the Executive Director of Childrens Services in order to
establish more robust management and financial control measures.

Across all service areas, financial recovery plans were required to reduce the forecast overspend. New
financial recovery plans required short-term investment in order to prime transformation and efficiency
work within the year were developed. The s151 Officer agreed that from Quarter 2, the revised balance on
the Change Fund Reserve following the balance sheet review of up to £1.488m be made available subject
to approval of a business case in order to fund expenditure on transformation and efficiency on an ongoing
basis in order to reduce the overspend and operate from a lower cost base.

The impact of the financial control measures exercised during the year has resulted in a final outturn of
£3.594m (2.8%) compared to the net budget of £126.354m, with the main variances summarised below
and further detail is provided in the 2023-24 Revenue and Capital Outturn and development of MTFP
report to Executive on 26 June 2024:

Area £m
Adult Social Care — unbudgeted demand and inflationary pressures in care packages (0.026)
offset by staff savings

Children’s Social Care — mainly due to increased numbers of children in external 2.766
residential placements and unachieved budget savings

Education & Partnerships - mainly due to Special educational needs and 1.081
disabilities (SEND) transport costs

Environment and Community Services — mainly due to increased waste disposal costs 1.016
and reduced demand at the Crematorium

Other variances (Regeneration, Legal and Governance, Chief Executive, Finance, and (1.243)
Central budgets)

Total 3.594

Page 267 178



6.10

6.11

6.12

2024-25

The 2024/25 budget included savings proposals of £13.910m in 2024/25 rising to £21.028m in 2026/27.
However, this was not sufficient to enable a lawful and balanced budget to be set for 2024/25. A shortfall of
£4.7m remained and the budget was reliant upon the Council receiving Exceptional Financial Support (EFS)
from DLUHC to enable it to capitalise this expenditure and fund via borrowing in order to achieve financial
balance. The budget was therefore balanced using EFS in order to avoid the statutory requirement for the
s151 Officer to issue a s114 Notice to the Council. This has bought the Council time to develop and
implement the Recover, Reset, Deliver Transformation Portfolio to deliver more effective service delivery
models from a lower cost base that will enable financial recovery and restore financial sustainability. The
programme will be required to deliver both planned savings plus a minimum of at least a further £7.5m of
savings to be deliverable in 2025/26 and at least a further £0.5m in 2026/27 in order to balance the MTFP.

The Transformation Programme will be overseen by a strategic board led by the Elected Mayor with cross
party participation. Delivery will be led by the Chief Executive. The programme governance and individual
programme themes are currently under development with the support of external consultants experienced
in financial turnaround. The programme will be underpinned by an enhanced programme management and
governance framework and appropriate resources to ensure robust and deliverable plans are in place.
Programme themes will be led by Directors of the LMT and will have dedicated resources to ensure delivery
to plan and realisation of required savings. The programme was be implemented, in full, from 1 April 2024
following approval at Council in April 2024.

Alongside the Transformation Portfolio, the measures taken to strengthen the Council’s financial
management and forecasting during 2023/24 will continue to be developed during 2024/25 to achieve
integrated service and financial management underpinned and informed by focused data analytics to
establish a consistent approach to activity-based costing. There will be focus upon the review and
refinement of financial processes, systems and procedures together with addressing the development needs
of finance staff and service budget holders in order to develop more effective financial planning, budget
management and forecasting. These measures will serve to address the external auditor's statutory
recommendations 4, 5 and 6 as set out in paragraph 5.9.

External Auditor Statutory recommendations

6.13

6.14

6.15

On 18 August 2023, the Council’s External Auditor issued a report to update on the Council’s Value for
Money arrangements that had been in place in 2022-23 and issued 11 statutory recommendations in
relation to required improvement in the Council’'s governance arrangements. This was the culmination of
the review of the Council’s progress since the External Auditor initially made 7 non-statutory
recommendations within their 2020-21 Audit Results Report which was considered by Corporate Affairs
and Audit Committee in July 2022. In addition to existing concerns previously identified in relation to
culture and governance the External Auditor identified three new areas of concern:

e Financial recovery and sustainability
e Contacting and procurement
e Middlesbrough Development Company.

The full report sets out that while there were signs of an improvement in pace in which the Council was
addressing significant cultural and governance weaknesses, overall progress was less than expected
since EY’s last report in November 2022. The auditors also highlighted further significant weaknesses in
the Council’'s arrangements to secure value for money in its use of resources.

The statutory recommendations were unanimously accepted at a Council meeting in September 2023 and
an action plan agreed to address them at pace. Progress against that action plan is reported to all
members at every business meeting of Council and at every meeting of the Council’'s Audit Committee. It
is also reported to the Independent Improvement Board that was put in place in 2022-23 and which meets
on a monthly basis. The statutory recommendations are set out below in full, along with a summary of
progress against them as of May 2024

Page 268 179


https://moderngov.middlesbrough.gov.uk/documents/s18712/20230918%20COUNCIL%20S24%20Value%20for%20Money%20Update%20and%20Issuance%20of%20Recommendations%20Appendix%201.pdf

No.

Statutory Recommendation

Position as at May 2024

1 We recommend that the Council ensures the recent progress | Complete. The plan was
with development of the next phase of the Corporate presented to Council in
Governance Improvement Plan is progressed without further | September 2023 and is in
delay, and that appropriate prioritisation is given to actions delivery.
which address the cultural and governance issues of the
Council within the expanded scope of the revised Corporate
Governance Improvement Plan.

2 We recommend that the Council develop contingency and Ongoing. The Council putin
succession governance protocols to ensure that delivery of place a protocol in May 2024 to
the Corporate Governance Improvement Plan is not further manage succession governance
disrupted by any future changes in one or more of the in statutory officer posts which
Council’s senior leadership positions. addresses the substantial action

from this recommendation.
Remaining actions in the
workstream are programmed to
be complete by March 2025 to
recruit permanent individuals to
the Chief Executive and 151
Officer posts.

3 We recommend that the Council prioritises the conclusion of | Complete. The revised
its review and updating of the Constitution, drawing upon constitution was put in place in
examples of best practice, and ensuring that the refreshed September 2023. Training to all
Constitution is clear in its language and requirements. staff and members was delivered
Training on the refreshed Constitution should be provided to | on it through e-learning and face
all officers and members to ensure that changes are to face training as part of the
appropriately understood and implemented. corporate governance training

programme which will complete
delivery in March 2024. In early
February 2024, training
completion rates were at 87%
and rising.

4 We recommend that the Council builds upon the steps Complete. All actions set out to

already taken to control its expenditure to identify specific
deliverable savings over the short term (next 12 months) and
protect its limited remaining reserves. Where appropriate,
this may need to include the Council changing how it meets
its statutory responsibilities and the extent to which it delivers
services which are not required to discharge its statutory
responsibilities

deliver this were complete by
March 2024. Actions delivered
include implementation of
stringent controls over
expenditure including vacancy
control panels led by the Chief
Executive; monthly s151 Officer
led budget challenge sessions;
development and the
implementation of financial
recovery plans to reduce the
overspend from £11.563m at the
end of Quarter One 2023-24, to
£3.594m at the final outturn.

The budget development
process for 2024-25 includes a
programme of savings including
transformation, demand
management and efficiency
proposals together with revised
and reduced services in order to
reduce the Council’'s expenditure
to more sustainable levels.

Page 269

180



We recommend that the Council reviews its service delivery
models to ensure that they are efficient, represent value for
money and achieves the outcomes required for the
resources invested. Where opportunities to improve service
delivery models re identified, the Council should develop
detailed plans for implementation of service delivery
transformation and how the up-front transformation costs will
be funded.

Complete. The Council’'s
approach to transformation and
supporting governance and
financing of that programme has
been developed.

The Transformation Programme
to redesign service delivery from
a lower cost base will run over
two to three years from 2024-25
and will be fundamental to the
Council’s financial recovery and
achieving financial resilience.

We recommend that the Council review its financial
forecasting processes to understand why significant financial
pressures, over and above those anticipated and reflected in
the Council’s annual budget, have emerged within the first
half of both the 2022-23 and 2023-24 financial years and
ensure future forecasting reflects lessons learnt.

Complete. Sensitivity analysis
and demand and cost modelling
in demand led, high spending
services developed.

We recommend that the Council conclude its review of its
Financial and Contract Procedure rules to ensure that they
reflect the needs of the Council and the expectations of
members and implement the revised rules without delay.
This should include being explicit on how contract
modifications should be assessed and managed, as the
Financial and Contract Procedure rules do not currently
address contract extensions.

Complete. The review was
complete and agreed by Council
as part of the report seeking
approval of the revised
constitution in September 2023.

We recommend that, once the Financial and Contract
Procedure rules are finalised, training is provided to all
officers who are involved in contracting, procurement or
financial decision making to ensure that the Financial and
Contract Procedure rules are understood and adhered to.

Complete. Training has been
delivered during 2023-24.
Training combined face to face
and e-learning.

We recommend that the council complete their review of all
ongoing contracts which were initially awarded under an
exemption but have been subject to subsequent amendment
(including extension) to identify whether they are compliant
with The Public Contracts Regulations 2015. If further non-
compliance is identified, the Council should evaluate whether
any further remedial action is necessary.

Complete. The outcome of the
review was presented at the
March 2024 Audit Committee
meeting.

10

We recommend that the council review its oversight
arrangements for Middlesbrough Development Company for
the period up to the demise of the entity, so that it can satisfy
itself that Middlesbrough Development Company is
delivering value for money with the resources provided to it
during this period.

Complete. The review was
complete, and a plan put in place
to manage the closure of the
company.

11

We recommend that the Council develop an action plan for
the demise of Middlesbrough Development Company which
sets out how the Council will realise the value which has
been created through the resources provided to
Middlesbrough Development Company by the Council.

Complete. Work to close the
company and present a final
report to Executive is on track to
be complete was reported to
Executive in April 2024.

The process to complete a
Members Voluntary Liquidation
has now commenced.

6.16 On 10 July 2024, the Council’s External Auditor issued its Value for Money interim report with commentary
that covered the interim findings for the audit years 2021/22 and 2022/23. 11 of the 13 recommendations
in that report are as per the table above, however the Auditors made an additional two recommendations to

the Council:

Page 270

181




¢ We recommend that management review the processes for identifying and communicating where the
facts or conditions set out in committee papers change between the date on which papers are published
and the date on which the committee meeting is held, to ensure that where there are changes in
circumstances relevant to decisions being made this is shared with decision makers prior to decisions
being taken.’

e ‘We recommend that management develop an action plan to address each of the recommendations
raised by internal audit in their report into the acquisition of the Crown Pub.’

6.17 Actions to address these recommendations are embedded within this statement’s action plan. A review of

the process for managing any changes to reports that occur between publication and meetings will be
undertaken by the Monitoring Officer and completed by December 2024.

6.18 The Action plan for delivery of actions in 2024/25 includes actions to respond to the recommendations of

internal audit and details of that internal report are summarised in this station in section 6.32.

Governance improvement actions

6.19 During 2023-24, the Council has undertaken the following improvement actions:

e A progress update reported to full Council in July 2023 set out progress to date and plans to rescope
the focus of the corporate governance improvement plan to reflect movement since it was first put in
place and to also include actions to address the Council’s financial resilience.

e Delivered a follow up report to Council in September 2023, setting out phase three of the Corporate
Governance Improvement Plan in further detail, refining scope to focus on the governance and culture
challenges facing the organisation, as well as the addressing budgetary pressures.

e Established an Independent Improvement Advisory Board (IIAB) to oversee delivery of Corporate
Governance improvement work.

e Completed a fundamental review of the Constitution, including financial regulations and contract
procedure rules.

e Delivered cultural change workshops with Members from the previous administration (pre-May 2023)
and embedded good practice around culture and behaviours within a revised approach to member
inductions for the incoming administration of councillors and Mayor.

e Developed a People Strategy, which will encompass officers and members to embed best practice in
relation to culture and behaviours through the Council’s corporate Values and the Nolan Principles.

¢ Revised the Programme and Project Management Framework content to ensure it remained fit for
purpose and strengthened the underpinning operational arrangements to ensure that the Council has
the appropriate structures in place to provide appropriate scrutiny of the Council’'s developing
Transformation Programme and stood up Transformation Programme governance arrangements.
This was formally approved by Executive in March 2024.

e Fortnightly officer level engagement with DLUHC officials is in place and has been ongoing for some
months.

e The IlAB chair has engaged with DLUHC as well.

e |IAB meetings commenced in October 2023 and the first public report of the board was considered by
Executive in January 2024, with a second report being considered by full Council in March 2024.

e In March 2024, the work for the Board was extended up to March 2025 in order to provide the Council
with support through its transition to business as usual following completion of planned recruitment
exercises for the Director of Finance and Chief Executive posts.

¢ Implemented improvements.

Middlesbrough Development Company closure

6.20

6.21

During 2022-23 a decision was taken to wind down the Middlesbrough Development Company (MDC),
which was agreed by the Company and is in process.

Established as a local authority trading wholly owned company limited by shares, with the Council as the
sole shareholder, Internal Audit undertook an assessment of the company during 2022-23, using Local
Partnerships and CIPFA best practice guidance on local authority trading companies. This audit identified
a range of governance concerns in relation to the governance arrangements of the company. The Council

Page 271 182


https://moderngov.middlesbrough.gov.uk/documents/s18337/Appendix%201%20-%20Middlesbrough%20Development%20Company%20-%20Veritau%20Internal%20Audit%20report.pdf

6.22

6.23

has addressed the lessons to be learned from this by putting in place a policy which sets out required
standards for partly and wholly owned council companies.

In August 2023, the Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee considered a report on the outcome of an
internal audit investigation into the company’s governance. In September 2023, Executive considered a
report on the management of the company’s closure which also set out the governance measures that
would be put in place during that period to provide assurance to the Council that value for money was
being achieved and there would be adherence to the Partly and Wholly Owned Council Companies Policy.

Work to close the company has been underway during 2023-24. This has included appointment of three
directors for the company, alongside the provision of independent legal support to those directors. The
voluntary liquidation process, the final step in closure, commenced towards the end of 2023-24 and assets
held by the company began to be transferred back to the Council in 2023-24 and will complete in 2024-25.

Senior management structure stability

6.24

In January 2024, the appointments of the interim postholders of Chief Executive and Section 151 officer
were extended until March 2025 to provide continued stability and leadership with experience of
improvement and transformation through a period of significant change and transition for the Council. A
plan has been agreed which sets out the path to appointment of permanent individuals to those posts
before 31 March 2025 which will provide for comprehensive handover to ensure continuity and stability
continues to be maintained to support the Council’s improvement journey.

Best Value Notice Extension

6.25

6.26

In January 2024 the Best Value Notice, first issued during 2022-23 was extended for a further six months,
remaining on a non-statutory footing. Government in their communications with the Council recognised the
effort and pace undertaken since January 2023 in relation to governance improvements. The notice sets
out that government expects the Council to:

‘Continue to work with the Independent Improvement Board established in Middlesbrough to support the
council to deliver the council’s locally led improvement strategies, organisational transformation and to
monitor progress of the application of the improvement board recommendations and delivery of
improvements against the serious concerns highlighted by the external auditor, published in July 2022,
around governance arrangements, and cultural and governance issues further investigated in the CIPFA
review published in September 2022.

Continue in your efforts to deliver against your agreed action plan, accepted at full Council on 30 November
2022, at pace and to meet the set milestones and success measures established.

Continue in your efforts to implement cultural change, particularly in relation to the relationships between
officers and members, and that this will be an important continuing focus of the Independent Improvement
Board.

Work with the Department as you deliver on your Best Value requirement to secure the financial recovery
and return to financial sustainability through setting a balanced 3-year MTFP over the period to 2026-27.’

On 9 September 2024, government wrote to Middlesbrough Council to state that:

‘Ministers are reassured as to Middlesbrough’s capacity to comply with its Best Value Duty under the Local
Government Act 1999 and the Notice will not be reissued at this time. We recognise the efforts of the
council and its staff and members who have worked at pace to support the delivery of the achievements to
date and expect to see this rate of improvement sustained’.

Teesworks report

6.27 In January 2024, the independent Panel, put in place by government to review elements of governance

and decision making in relation to the South Tees Development Company and its relationships with the
Tees Valley Combined Authority and a Joint Venture Partnership. The findings of that report are relevant

Page 272 183


https://intranet-moderngov.middlesbrough.gov.uk/documents/s18350/Report.pdf

to the Council’s statutory relationship with the Tees Valley Combined Authority and the Middlesbrough
Development Corporation and will be reviewed in 2024 to assess required actions.

Application for Exceptional Financial support

6.28 On 17 January 2024, the Council’'s Executive approved that an application for Exceptional Financial
Support (EFS) was made by the Council’'s Chief Executive and Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer)
to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities. The application was approved on 29
February 2024 with £13.4m of support agreed in principle, subject to completion of assurance required for
final approval which will include:

e An external assurance report to be undertaken in 2024, that will include, but not be limited to, an
assessment of the Council’s financial position and financial management practices and its work to
improve its productivity and efficiency

¢ Ongoing engagement with the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities to provide
assurance of improvement as set out in the January 2024 Best Value Notice extension.

Transfer of Council assets to Middlesbrough Mayoral Development Corporation

6.29 The process to start to prepare for the transfer of assets has been started by Government, with the
Council receiving a letter in March 2024 that confirmed this would occur.

Publication of a 6-month report on progress by the Middlesbrough Independent Improvement
Advisory Board

6.30 On 27 March 2024, the Chair of the Improvement Board presented the Board’s second report that set out
the Board’s views on the Council’s progress to date in its corporate governance improvement journey.
That report identified that positive steps had been taken and progress made around governance, culture
and financial management, however because it was at an early stage, they were there not yet fully
embedded and there remained much to do, particularly around ensuring the financial resilience of the
organisation.

6.31 The Board set out that the four main areas of focus for the Council in 2024-25 should be cultural change,
financial strength, transformation and transition to ‘normal’.

Publication of an audit report on the purchase of the former Crown pub

6.32 In March 2024, the Council’'s Audit Committee considered a report from its Internal Auditors that set out
the outcome of a fact-finding report to establish the process followed to acquire the former Crown pub
and assess the reasons why the risks in relation to the condition the property were not identified and
mitigated. That report made five recommendations in relation to the process which are summarised
below. Actions to address them are set out within the 2024-25 action plan at the end of this document:

= Effective processes should be put in place to ensure compliance with Council policy on asset
acquisition to ensure there is a mechanism in place that assesses all sites of interest, criteria for
determining the extent they would meet policy objectives, a scoring mechanism and formalised,
recorded decision making of these assessments that adheres to the Constitution.

= Ensure property acquisitions are managed by the relevant professional service and all discussions
with property owners are formally documented.

= Ensure a full business case is in place prior to progressing a property acquisition, including
appropriate valuations and setting out a clear evidence base.

6.33  In addition, Internal Audit have also identified that the Council should continue to work to ensure officers
feel empowered to challenge arrangements within their appropriate professional boundaries to ensure
that reports requesting decisions present the full facts and include a clear assessment of risks. This will
be something that is tested by Internal Audit within its audit programme.

7. Position statement against the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance

Self-assessment

Page 273 184



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

8.1

8.2

8.3

The Council has completed a position statement against its Code of Corporate Governance for the 2023-
24 year, informed by:

= the professional opinion of statutory and other officers with responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the Council’s internal control environment;

= reports from Overview and Scrutiny, Corporate Affairs and Audit Committee and then Audit
Committee’s examinations of governance processes; and

» findings from Internal Audit’s review programme and other work completed by Internal Audit, and
engagement with the Council’s external auditors.

The detailed position statement is at Appendix 3 and is reflective of governance risk levels as outlined in
the Council’s strategic and directorate risk registers.

In summary, while the Council can demonstrate that governance processes are in place for the most part,
the significant control weaknesses that were identified in the 2020-21, draft 2021-22 and draft 2022-23
Annual Governance Statement continued to exist, as reflected in the findings of EY, CIPFA and in the
implementation and renewal of the Best Value Notice issued by DLUHC, though progress has been made
in addressing these weaknesses. The Council has completed delivery of 87% of actions it set out in its
Section 24 response plan and 76% of actions within its Corporate Governance Improvement Plan as at 16
May 2024.

Progress against both plans has been reported to both Council and Audit Committee at every normal
business meeting to demonstrate delivery of actions and also to assess the impact of those actions during
2023-24.

Internal Audit opinion

The overall opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on the framework of governance, risk management and
control operating at the Council will be provided by Internal Audit in July 2024.

External Audit judgement

The Council’s External Audit function was provided by Forvis Mazars during 2023-24.

Conclusion

As set out above, while the Council can demonstrate that governance processes are in place for the most
part, the significant control weaknesses that were identified in the 2020-21, draft 2021-22 and draft 2022-
23 Annual Governance Statement continued to exist, as reflected in the findings of EY, CIPFA and in the
implementation and renewal of the Best Value Notice issued by DLUHC, though progress has been made
in addressing these weaknesses. The Council has completed delivery of 87% of actions it set out in its
Section 24 response plan and 76% of actions within its Corporate Governance Improvement Plan as at
mid-May 2024.

The seriousness of the Council’'s governance weaknesses was reinforced by the Best Value Notice issued
in January 2023 and extended in January 2024, with a new focus on financial sustainability. The Council
welcomes the government’s acknowledgement of progress made to date, which was echoed by the first
and second reports of the Independent Improvement Advisory Board to Executive in January 2024 and full
Council in March 2024.

As set out in the body of this statement, both officers and Members are continuing to work collaboratively
and with common purpose in order to address the concerns expressed by DLUHC and the Council’s
External Auditors, EY. There is however much more to be done to secure an effective culture that
embeds the Council’s values and Nolan Principles within its operations.

Signatures of the Chief Executive, 151 officer and Elected Mayor will be added to the finalised
document.

Page 274 185


https://moderngov.middlesbrough.gov.uk/documents/s18113/Appendix%201%20-%20MC%20HoIA%20report%20July%202023.pdf

G/ ¢ abed

Appendix 1 Internal Audits completed during 2023-24

87.5% of audit activity where an opinion was given resulted in either a substantial or reasonable assurance judgement being made, compared to 87% of audits
that were reported in the 2022-23 draft AGS. In addition to this work programme, ad hoc audit support was also provided to complete reviews of Middlesbrough

Development Company, acquisition of the former Crown public house and the Tees Community Equipment Service.

Priority Actions

Audited System / Service Assurance Opinion
P1 P2 P3
Procurement cards (Children’s Services) Limited Assurance 8 2
Children’s commissioning & contract management Limited Assurance
Public health governance Reasonable Assurance 7 0
gf:sé);idthemed audit - Schools Financial Value Reasonable Assurance 0 5 5
Homecare Reasonable Assurance 0 2 0
Tees Community Equipment Service No opinion given 0 1 1
Disaster recovery (IT) Substantial Assurance 0 1 1
Selective landlord licensing Substantial Assurance 0 0 3
Debtors Substantial Assurance 0 0 2
IT applications - Liquid Logic Substantial Assurance 0 0 1
IT applications - iTrent Substantial Assurance 0 0 1
Disabled Facilities grant Substantial Assurance 0 0 0
Regeneration projects Substantial Assurance 0 0 0
Council Tax and NNDR Substantial Assurance 0 0 0
Main accounting Substantial Assurance 0 0 0
Benefits and Council Tax Support Substantial Assurance 0 0 0
Health and safety Substantial Assurance 0 0 0
Total: 4 33 13

186



The opinions used by Internal Audit during 2022-23 are explained below:

Substantial Assurance — A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with
internal controls operating effectively and being consistently applied to support the achievement of
objectives in the area audited.

Reasonable Assurance — There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and
control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may
put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Limited Assurance — Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement
is required to the system of governance, risk management and control to effectively manage risks to
the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

No Assurance — Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or hon-
compliance identified. The system of governance, risk management and control is inadequate to
effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

The following categories of opinion are also applied to individual recommendations agreed with management:

Priority 1 (P1) — A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system
objectives and requires urgent attention by management.

Priority 2 (P2) — A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the
system objectives, which needs to be addressed by management.

Priority 3 (P3) — The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention
by management.

Page 276 187



Appendix 2 Middlesbrough Council Committee Structure 2023-24

Executive functions

Executive

Mayor plus two to nine
Councillors (one of whom
must be Deputy Mayor)

PN

Council functions

Full Council

PN

Regulatory functions

Planning and
Development

Executive Sub- Individual

Committes for Executive

'PUFH'TF Member

Q decisions
Ul

@

N

~

~

Council Committess

« Chief Officer Appointment
Committee and supporting
Joint appointment panel

* Constitution and Member
Development Commitiee

* Corporate Affairs and Audit
Comrmittes (April -
September 2023)

= Audit Committes
(September 2023 anwards)

* Corporate Affairs
Committes (September
2023 anwards)

* Liwe Well South Tees Board

+ Yiou matter to us - Corporate
Barenting Board

* S1aff Appeals Commities

+ Teesside Pension Fund
Committes

Council Working Groups

= Conporale Health and Safety
Steering Group

= Works council

= Local Plan Warking Groug

Licensing
Committee

General Licenzsing Sub
Cammittes

Lizenszing Sub
Commitiees &, B and C
Cagino Licensing Sub
Cormmitiee

Secrutiny functions

Owerview and
Scrutimy Board

Seruliny Panels

= Adult Social Care and
Sarvices

= children and young People

* Ervironment

= Health

* Regeneration

188



Appendix 3: Position statement against the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance as at September 2024

8/ ¢ abed

Local Code of Corporate Governance

Self-assessment

Principle / supporting principles

To meet these requirements, the
Council will:

Policies / processes in place

Compliance measures in place

Areas for improvement / planned
actions

Behaving with integrity,
demonstrating strong commitment
to ethical values and respecting
the rule of law.

. Behaving with integrity

. Demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical values

. Respecting the rule of law

o  Work diligently and with integrity

to achieve the Elected Mayor’s
Priorities for Middlesbrough.

. Clearly document expected

behaviours, and decision-making

processes, for members and
officers, and regularly review
these.

e  Effectively communicate

expected behaviours to members

and officers and provide
appropriate training on ethical
behaviour.

. Ensure members, statutory
officers, other key post holders
are able and supported to fulfil
their duties and meet their
responsibilities.

e  Ensure compliance by
maintaining effective audit
committee, internal audit and

scrutiny functions, and standards

and disciplinary processes.

Constitution and supporting
documentation set out expected
behaviours and decision-making
processes, including member and
officer relationships, codes of
conduct, financial procedure rules
and schemes of delegation. This
was refreshed in 2023-24.
Corporate values (one of which is
integrity) in place and embedded
within employee recruitment and
selection, induction, appraisal and
development. They were
refreshed during 2020-21. During
2023-24 promotion of these
values will be refreshed as part of
the refresh of the People
Strategy. Appraisals have been
reintroduced during 2023-24.
Member induction process and
member development
programme. This was refreshed
during 2022-23 to reflect the
lessons that needed to be learned
from both the EY and CIPFA
reports to provide a new
approach which was delivered to
the incoming cohort of members
following the May 2023 local
elections.

Member Development Strategy in
place, this includes the offer of
personal development plans for
members.

Regular circulation of external
training and development
opportunities.

Member and officer declarations
of interests registers in place and
requested to be updated annually
but there is a requirement that
Members notify the Monitoring

Sample checks of declarations of
interest undertaken during the
year to support members to
comply with their obligations.
Quarterly reports to Standards
Committee on complaints
investigations and statistics.
Feedback sought from members
after each induction session as
part of the revised member
induction process.

Equality and inclusion annual
report in place which provides an
assessment of the diversity of the
workforce and identify positive
and negative trends and
proposed responses.

Annual complaints report in place
that includes information on
positive and negative trends and
proposed responses.

Progress on development and
delivery of the People Strategy,
appraisals and Corporate
Governance training tracked
within the Corporate Governance
Improvement Plan. People
Strategy was launched in April
2024.

. During 2023/24 the Council put
in place a refreshed Corporate
Governance Improvement Plan,
a response to the statutory
Section 24 recommendations of
its auditors and an Independent
Improvement Advisory Board to
provide guidance, support and
oversight on the Council’s
improvement journey. This has
resulted in the removal of the
Best Value Notice. In 2024/5
the Council will continue to
deliver against its improvement
plan and move towards BAU
practices that provide
assurance to government that
the Council is maintaining a
culture of good governance.

e Arobust officer scheme of
delegations and sub-
delegations is required to
ensure effective, appropriate
and timely taking of decisions
that can be taken by officers.
(20-21 action). An action to
address this will be delivered in
2024, now the fundamental
review of the constitution has
been completed.

. Commence reporting annually
on how the committee has
complied with the position
statement, discharged its
responsibilities, and include an
assessment of its performance.
The report should be available
to the public.

e  Review current governance
arrangements for Audit
Committee and make
recommendations in relation to

189



6/¢ abed

Officer electronically of any
changes through the Council’s
committee management system,
Modern.gov.

Training for members on the code
of conduct in place embedded
within the induction session and
will be further strengthened by the
forthcoming People Strategy.
Statutory officers clearly identified
and appropriately supported. The
Council complies with the CIPFA
statement on the role of the Chief
Financial Officer (2016).

Effective Audit Committee,
internal audit and scrutiny
arrangements in place, with
members trained appropriately.
Policies in place for counter-
fraud, bribery and corruption;
complaints; procurement; and
whistleblowing. Whistleblowing
policy was refreshed and
considered by Audit Committee in
March 2024.

Member standards arrangements
and employee disciplinary
procedures in place and updated
regularly.

Comprehensive corporate
governance training programme
in place and delivered during
2023-24.

Corporate Governance
Improvement Plan and Section 24
Action plan in place to address
governance weaknesses
identified by CIPFA, the Council,
External Auditors and
Government.

Middlesbrough Independent
Improvement and Advisory Board
in place to provide oversight,
support and challenge to the
council’'s improvement and
transformation journey. The
Board met formally 6 times during
2023-24 and presented two
progress reports that set out its

inclusion of co-opted
independent members for
Committee consideration.
Complete the first annual review
of the Member Development
Strategy to assess
effectiveness and impact on
culture and compliance.
Complete the first annual review
of the Member Development
Strategy to assess
effectiveness and impact on
culture and compliance.

190



08¢ abed

views on the Council to Executive
and Council during 2023-24.

Local Code of Corporate Governance

Self-assessment

Principle / supporting principles

To meet these requirements, the
Council will:

Policies / processes in place

Compliance measures in
place

Areas for improvement / planned
actions

Ensuring openness and comprehensive

stakeholder engagement.

. Openness

. Engaging comprehensively with

institutional stakeholders

. Engaging with individual citizens

and service users effectively

. Document and operate a culture
of openness and transparency
within the organisation.

. Maintain a culture of
accountability, so that members
and officers understand what they
are accountable for and to whom
they are accountable.

e  Consult appropriately with
stakeholders on the development
of its budget, key plans and
service development.

. Maintain effective decision-
making processes, ensuring that
reports to decision makers clearly
set out stakeholder views where
relevant.

. Publish all Executive and
Committee reports and decision
papers, unless there is a
legitimate need to preserve
confidentialities on the basis of
the statutory tests.

. Publish on its website information
on the Council’s strategies, plans
and finances as well as on
outcomes, achievements and
challenges.

Stated commitments to
transparency within the Council
Plan that was refreshed in 2023-
24,

Constitution and supporting
documentation set out
accountabilities and delegated
authorities. This was refreshed in
2023.

Consultation on Council Plan
priorities was undertaken on the
plan in place during 23-24. This
resulted in a refreshed Council
Plan that was agreed by Council
in March 2024.

Annual budget consultation in
place.

Corporate consultation and impact
assessment policy in place
(refreshed during 2020-21).
Committee dates accessible via
the Council’'s website.

Executive Forward Work
Programme in place, setting out
planned decisions in the coming
four months on the online
committee system.

All public Executive and
Committee agendas, papers and
minutes are published via the
Council’'s website. Officer-
delegated decisions are also
published.

Meetings of full Council are
broadcast online.

Key strategies and plans are
clearly published on the Council’s
website / open data site, and
regularly updated.

Information on performance and
expenditure sent to all households

e Annual SIRO report in
place that sets to
compliance with good
practice in relation to
information governance

e Annual complaints report in
place that includes
information on positive and
negative trends and
proposed responses.

e Reports on compliance
with a range of statutory
transparency measures
around information rights
are considered by senior
officers on a monthly basis
and compliance measures
are included in data
presented to Executive and
Overview and Scrutiny
Board on a quarterly basis.

e  Arobust officer scheme of
delegations and sub-delegations
is required to ensure effective,
appropriate and timely taking of
decisions that can be taken by
officers (20-21 action). This will
be updated following a refresh of
the Constitution during 2024.

e Reinstate reporting of quarterly
outturn reports on performance
and finance to Overview and
Scrutiny Board, alongside
existing reporting that is already
undertaken to Executive.

e  Review the Consultation and
Engagement policy to ensure it
aligns with the wider needs of the
organisation that will emerge from
the Transformation Programme.

191



T8¢ abed

annually as part of Council Tax
billing.

The Council complies with Open
Data requirements, publishing
statutorily required and other
datasets such as the Freedom of
Information Act publication
scheme on its open data site.
The Council proactively seeks to
publish information for which there
is a demand.

192



Z8¢ abed

Local Code of Corporate Governance

Self-assessment

Principle / supporting principles

To meet these requirements, the
Council will:

Policies / processes in place

Compliance measures in
place

Areas for improvement / planned
actions

Defining outcomes in terms of
sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits.

e  Defining outcomes
. Sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits

. Clearly set out its contribution to
delivery of the Mayor’s priorities
for Middlesbrough and use this as
the basis for its overall strategy,
planning and other decisions.

. Define outcomes through robust
consideration of appropriate
evidence bases, such as the Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment.

. Ensure that it delivers defined
outcomes on a sustainable basis
within available resources.

. Effectively identify and manage
risks to the achievement of
targeted outcomes.

e Manage customer expectations
effectively when determining
priorities to make best use of
resources and ensure fair access
to services.

. Council Plan and associated work
plans in place which outline how
the Council plans to deliver the
Council’s priorities for
Middlesbrough.

. Council Plan is part of the
Council’s policy framework —
reports to decision makers set out
how recommendations would
impact on strategic objectives if
approved.

. Consultation on Council Plan
priorities; and annual budget
consultation in place. Full resident
survey completed to inform
Council plan priorities.

. Corporate planning cycle
considers targeted outcomes and
annual budgeting over the
medium-term within the context of
the Council's Medium-Term
Financial Plan and Capital
programme.

. Performance, Risk and
Programme and Project
Management frameworks provide
for regularly tracking of progress
and addressing issues and risks,
with reporting to members and
senior managers as appropriate.
The PPMF was reviewed in 2023-
24,

e  Customer Charter in place,
identifying what customers can
expect from the Council, alongside
specific service eligibility criteria.

. Resources for statistics presence
held on the Council’s intranet,
internet and open data site.

. Monthly finance and
performance reporting on
delivery against budget and
Council Plan priorities with
senior managers.

e Quarterly performance and
finance reporting on
delivery against Council
Plan priorities to Executive.

. Portfolio Management
Office in place for both
corporate and
transformation portfolios.
This assesses delivery of
projects against time, cost
and scope and reports on
this on a monthly basis to
senior managers either
through BAU processes or
the transformation
governance processes that
have been stood up in
2023-24.

. The Council will refresh its
approach to customers within a
revised Customer Services
Strategy that will set out how
customer services will be
delivered within the Council’s
target operating model developed
within the Transformation
programme.

e Reinstate reporting of quarterly
outturn reports on performance
and finance to Overview and
Scrutiny Board, alongside existing
reporting that is already
undertaken to Executive.

193



€8¢ abed

Local Code of Corporate Governance

Self-assessment

Principle / supporting principles

To meet these requirements, the
Council will:

Policies / processes in place

Compliance measures in place

Areas for improvement / planned
actions

Determining the interventions
necessary to optimise the
achievement of the intended
outcomes.

. Determining interventions
e  Planning interventions

. Optimising achievement of
intended outcomes

Ensure reports to decision makers
on services are fair, balanced, and
analyse options and the risks
associated with those options, to
ensure Best Value is achieved.
Ensure that external and internal
stakeholders are engaged with
when the Council is determining
how services should be planned
and delivered, and the outcome of
consultations is considered when
decisions are made.

Ensure achievement of social
value through service planning
and commissioning.

Ensure that it has clear and robust
planning and control cycles for its
strategic and operational plans,
priorities and targets.

Determine appropriate KPIs to
demonstrate service and project
performance and provide
members and senior managers
with timely updates on these.
Ensure medium- and long-term
resource planning is realistic,
sustainable and inclusive.
Prepare budgets that are aligned
to the strategic objectives of the
organisation and its MTFP.

Reports to decision makers
developed using a standard
format to ensure effective, fair,
and evidence-based decision
making. The report format was
refreshed in 2023 and 2024.
Corporate consultation and
impact assessment policy in
place, ensuring that stakeholders
engaged appropriately, and views
considered in decision making
though it requires review.

Guide to social value in
procurement and commissioning
in place. The Council agreed a
Social Value Charter in April 2024
and a working group is in place to
drive implementation.

Strategic Procurement Strategy in
place and renewed in 2023-24.
Contract management framework
also in place.

Contract Procedure rules were
refreshed as part of the
Constitution review. The rules
were strengthened in 2023 in
relation to exemptions.

‘How to do Business with
Middlesbrough Council’ guidance
for providers in place.

Annual reports to Audit committee
on disposals on the grounds of
social value provided where
appropriate.

Corporate planning cycle
considers targeted outcomes and
annual budgeting.

Capital Programme, refreshed in
2023-24.

Performance, Risk and
Programme and Project
Management frameworks provide
for regularly tracking of progress
and addressing issues and risks,

. Finance and Legal services
consider draft reports to
assess compliance with
required content and
accurate depiction of
financial impacts — measure
implemented in 2022-23.

e  Annual equality and
inclusion report in place
that includes information on
positive and negative
trends.

e Annual complaints report in
place that includes
information on positive and
negative trends and
proposed responses.

e  Pre-contract compliance
checks procedure in place.

e  Guidance for contract
managers in place to
ensure compliance checks
are undertaken during the
life of the contract.

e  Refreshed contract and
financial procedure rules in
place and training delivered
to key staff to ensure
understanding and
compliance.

A robust officer scheme of
delegations and sub-delegations
is required to ensure effective,
appropriate, and timely taking of
decisions that can be taken by
officers. (20-21 action). This
action will be completed following
a refresh of the constitution in
2024.

Complete a review of the
governance of company in place
to deliver the Council’s internal
audit functions to assess
compliance with the Partly and
Wholly Owned Council
Companies policy.

Review all procurement
documentation in preparation for
implementation of the
Procurement Act 2023 from
October 2024 onwards.

Review the Consultation and
Engagement policy to ensure it
aligns with the wider needs of the
organisation that will emerge from
the Transformation Programme.
Reinstate reporting of quarterly
outturn reports on performance
and finance to Overview and
Scrutiny Board, alongside existing
reporting that is already
undertaken to Executive.

194



8¢ abed

with reporting to members and
senior managers as appropriate.
Partly and Wholly Owned Council
Companies policy in place.

Local Code of Corporate Governance

Self-assessment

Principle / supporting principles

To meet these requirements, the
Council will:

Policies / processes in place

Compliance measures in place

Areas for improvement / planned
actions

Developing the Council’s capacity,
including the capability of its
leadership and the individuals within
it.

. Developing the Council’s
capacity

. Developing the capability of the
Council’s leadership and other
individuals

Regularly review operations to
ensure that it is continuing to
deliver services that are effective,
including the use of benchmarking
and sectoral research.

Work collaboratively and in
partnerships where added value
can be achieved.

Maintain an effective approach to
organisational development to
ensure continued capacity and
capability to deliver.

Clearly define roles,
responsibilities and terms of
engagement for members and
employees.

Maintain and regularly review its
schemes of delegations that
outline the types of decisions that
are delegated and those that are
reserved for collective decision-
making.

Develop the capabilities of
members and senior management
to achieve effective shared
leadership.

Ensure there are appropriate
structures in place to encourage
public participation.

Ensure that systems are in place
to ensure that members and staff
can be both held to account for
performance and supported as
appropriate.

Performance Management Policy
sets out how corporate
performance will be managed.
Directorates review performance
internally. Business intelligence
dashboards have been
implemented to facilitate this.
Range of benchmarking and other
tools are used within Directorates
to contextual performance and
drive improvement.

Wider Leadership Management
Team in place to enable broader
consideration of key policy issues.
Key strategic partnerships in
place, such as the South Tees
Health and Wellbeing Board.

The organisational development
ambitions of the Council are set
out within the People Strategy that
was launched in April 2024.
Constitution and supporting
documentation set out member
and officer role profiles,
relationship protocol and schemes
of delegation. This is
supplemented by e-learning to
support understanding and training
and develop of officers and
Members.

Corporate Consultation policy and
online consultation portal in place.
Plans with the digital and
marketing and communications
strategies to advance in the
current approach.

Processes in place for public
involvement in determining

. Monthly monitoring and
performance reporting on
delivery against Council
Plan priorities to senior
managers. This includes
proactive management of
delivery to ensure mitigating
actions are developed
where delivery is off track.

e Quarterly performance and
finance reporting on
delivery against Council
Plan priorities to Executive.

e  Quarterly reports to
standards on complaints
investigations and statistics.

During 2023/24 the Council put in
place a refreshed Corporate
Governance Improvement Plan, a
response to the statutory Section
24 recommendations of its
auditors and an Independent
Improvement Advisory Board to
provide guidance, support and
oversight on the Council’'s
improvement journey. This has
resulted in the removal of the
Best Value Notice. In 2024/5 the
Council will continue to deliver
against its improvement plan and
move towards BAU practices that
provide assurance to government
that the Council is maintaining a
culture of good governance.
Review the Consultation and
Engagement policy to ensure it
aligns with the wider needs of the
organisation that will emerge
from the Transformation
Programme.

A robust officer scheme of
delegations and sub-delegations
is required to ensure effective,
appropriate and timely taking of
decisions that can be taken by
officers. (20-21 action). To be
actioned following the refresh of
the Council’s constitution in 2024.
Put in place a strategic
Partnerships Strategy.
Development of a Workforce Plan
to ensure staff at all levels have

195



Gg8g abed

scrutiny priorities, for the public to
petition Council and to register
guestions to be considered by full
Council.

The Member Development
programme was refreshed during
2022-23 and commenced delivery
following the May 2023 local
elections.

Formal appraisals in place.
Refreshed constitution in place.

the skills and capabilities to be
successful in their roles.

Local Code of Corporate Governance

Self-assessment

Principle / supporting principles

To meet these requirements, the
Council will:

Policies / processes in place

Compliance measures in place

Areas for improvement / planned
actions

Managing risks and performance
through robust internal control and
strong public financial management.

. Managing risk

. Managing performance

. Robust internal control

e  Managing data

. Strong public financial
management

. Embed a proportionate approach

to risk management within all

activities, ensure that progress is
reviewed regularly, and that risk is

considered as part of decision
making.
. Ensure effective performance

management of service delivery
and provide members and senior
managers with timely updates on

service performance and

progress towards outcomes.
e  Ensure reports to decision

makers on services are fair,

balanced, and analyse options

and the risks associated with
those options, to ensure Best
Value is achieved.

. Ensure effective, member-led

scrutiny is in place that provides

constructive challenge and

debate on objectives and policies
before, during and after decisions

are taken.
. Ensure an effective, risk-led

Internal Audit service is in place

to provide assurance on the
overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the Council’s
governance arrangements.

Performance Management; Risk
and Opportunity Management;
and Programme and Project
Management (refreshed in 2023-
24) policies provide for regularly
tracking of progress and
addressing issues and risks, with
reporting to members and senior
managers as appropriate. Risk is
a standard section in reports to
decision makers.

Reports to decision makers
developed using a standard
format to ensure effective, fair,
and evidence-based decision
making. The format was refreshed
in 2023-24.

Wide-ranging annual scrutiny
programme in place, examining
policy and performance.

Urgent decision process and
records in place and reported to
Council annually.

Effective internal audit
arrangement in place, utilising the
Council’s plans and risk registers
to identify priorities. Internal Audit
regularly meet with senior council
officers to manage the contract
and relationship, report quarterly
into Audit Committee and attend
key officer groups such as the

. Monthly monitoring and
performance reporting on
delivery against Council
Plan priorities to senior
managers. This includes
proactive management of
delivery to ensure mitigating
actions are developed
where delivery is off track

. Risk information is reported
to senior managers on a
monthly basis as part of the
monthly performance
report.

. Information on risks is
included within quarterly
reports to members on
performance.

e A Children’s services
improvement board is in
place to support delivery of
actions to improve the
service. As a result, the
service was judged as
improved in its 2023
inspection, compared to the
2019, however further
improvements were
required to be considered
good by Ofsted.

. Pre-contract compliance
checks procedure in place.

e  Refresh the Information Strategy
during 2024.

e A robust officer scheme of
delegations and sub-delegations
is required to ensure effective,
appropriate and timely taking of
decisions that can be taken by
officers. (20-21 action). To be
actioned following the refresh of
the constitution in 2024.

e  During 2023/24 the Council put in
place a refreshed Corporate
Governance Improvement Plan, a
response to the statutory Section
24 recommendations of its
auditors and an Independent
Improvement Advisory Board to
provide guidance, support and
oversight on the Council’s
improvement journey. This has
resulted in the removal of the
Best Value Notice. In 2024/5 the
Council will continue to deliver
against its improvement plan and
move towards BAU practices that
provide assurance to government
that the Council is maintaining a
culture of good governance.

e  Review current governance
arrangements for Audit

196



98¢ abed

Ensure effective counter fraud
and anti-corruption policies and
arrangements are in place.
Ensure effective internal control
arrangements exist for sound
financial management.
Maintain an effective audit
committee function.

Ensure effective arrangements
are in place to collect, store, use
and share data, including
processes to safeguard personal
data.

Put in place arrangements to
ensure that data used to support
decision-making is accurate and
clear.

Ensure financial management
arrangements support both long
term outcome delivery and day-
to-day operations.

Corporate Governance Board and
the Risk Management Group.
Internal audit recommendations
and progress in implementing
them is reported monthly to the
Senior Management Team.
Policy in place for counter-fraud,
bribery and corruption;
complaints; procurement; and
whistleblowing, and regularly
reviewed. Money Laundering
Policy. Internal Audit investigate
non-compliance and suspected
fraud.

Effective Audit committee in place
clear terms of reference and a full
and trained membership.
Information Strategy in place to
provide systematic approach to
information governance, including
data protection and data quality.
To be refreshed in 2024.
Information Governance Policy
Framework in place.

Financial management
procedures in place relating to
medium-term financial planning,
budget setting, procurement and
contract management. They were
refreshed as part of the review of
the constitution in 2023.
Corporate Governance
Improvement Plan and Section 24
Action plan in place to address
governance weaknesses
identified by CIPFA, the Council,
External Auditors and
Government.

The Programme and Project
management Framework and
associated documentation has
been reviewed and refined to
ensure it remains fit for purpose.
A transformation portfolio of
programmes and projects has
been developed and mobilised,
along with a supporting Executive-
approved governance framework
to provide robust monitoring of
delivery progress

Guidance for contract
managers in place to
ensure compliance checks
are undertaken during the
life of the contract.

Monthly budget monitoring
and monthly challenge
sessions are in place as
part of a range of measures
put in place by the Section
151 officer to address
budget overspends.
Quarterly budget challenge
sessions are in place with
Executive members.

The Director of Finance has
issued spending restrictions
across the organisation with
effect from 1 July 2023.
Monthly corporate
performance reviews are in
place to provide the
Leadership and
Management Team provide
an overview on progress
against key performance
disciplines; Executive
actions; Council Plan
performance; Strategic
Risk, Programme and
Project Management and
compliance matters.

A governance framework
has been mobilised to
monitor and assure
progress of the
transformation portfolio,
escalating from project
working groups (led by
Project Managers), to
thematic programme
boards (Chaired by
Thematic Programme
Sponsors), to the Corporate
Transformation Programme
Board (Chaired by the SRO
/ Chief Executive) and then
up to the Transformation
Assurance Board (Chaired
by the Mayor), all of which

Committee and make
recommendations in relation to
inclusion of co-opted independent
members for Committee
consideration

Commence reporting annually on
how the Audit Committee has
complied with CIPFA good
practice, discharged its
responsibilities, and include an
assessment of its performance.
The report should be available to
the public.

197



/8¢ abed

is ultimately accountable to
the Executive.

Local Code of Corporate Governance

Self-assessment

Principle / supporting principles

To meet these requirements, the
Council will:

Policies / processes in place

Compliance measures in
place

Areas for improvement / planned
actions

Implementing good practices in
transparency, reporting, and audit to
deliver effective accountability.

. Implementing good practice in
transparency

. Implementing good practices in
reporting

e Assurance and effective
accountability

. Provide reports in plain English
wherever possible, ensuring that
they are easy to access and
interrogate and balancing
transparency requirements with
clarity.

e  Report regularly on performance,
delivery of value for money and
stewardship of resources.

. Report on compliance with good
governance principles within its
Annual Governance Statement,
including an action plan for
continued improvement.

e  Ensure compliance with good
governance principles extends to
its partnership arrangements.

. Ensure that recommendations
made by external and internal
audit are addressed.

e  Ensure that the internal audit
service has direct access to
members to enable it to provide
assurance with regard to
governance arrangements.

e  Welcome and positively engage
with peer challenges, reviews and
inspections of its services.

. Standard template for reports to
decision makers designed to
advance proposition logically,
simply, and reduce duplication of
information that are regularly
reviewed. This was refreshed in
2023 and 2024.

e  Performance management policy
in place

. Information Governance Policy
framework in pace to ensure
compliance with information rights
and transparency good practice.

e  Governance arrangements in
place for key strategic
partnerships, such as the South
Tees Health and Wellbeing Board,
with improvement activity
underway.

. Partnership Governance policy in
place

e Recommendations made by
External Audit are addressed as a
matter of priority through the most
appropriate route.

. Internal audit annual plan reported
to Audit Committee.

. Finance and Legal
services consider draft
reports to assess
compliance with required
content and accurate
depiction of financial
impacts — measure
implemented in 2022-23.

e Quarterly results reports to
Executive covering
performance, financial and
risk updates.

e Annual Governance
Statement complying with
the standard set out in the
Local Code of Corporate
Governance.

e Annual assurance reports
to Audit Committee from
SIRO and on partnership
governance and
performance management.

. Internal Audit reports its
plans, progress and
findings regularly to the
audit committee. Agreed
actions from internal audit
are tracked by DMTs until
completion.

. Seek an LGA Corporate Peer
Challenge review within the next
year to provide an external
review of the Council’s corporate
governance arrangements

e  Putin place a strategic
Partnerships Strategy

e Reinstate reporting of quarterly
outturn reports on performance
and finance to Overview and
Scrutiny Board, alongside
existing reporting that is already
undertaken to Executive.

e  Commence reporting annually on
how the Audit Committee has
complied with CIPFA good
practice, discharged its
responsibilities, and include an
assessment of its performance.
The report should be available to
the public.

198



Appendix 5: Corporate governance priorities for 2023-24

2020-21 AGS actions update

8g8¢ abed

Action

Lead officer

Deadline

Status

Continue to implement a scheme of sub-delegations where appropriate to
further improve governance around officer delegated decisions.

Director of Legal and Governance
Services

March 2023

Delayed. Action
reprofiled to be
delivered in 2024,
following completion
of the fundamental
review of the
Council’s
Constitution. Action
to be complete by
December 2024.

ctions identified within the draft 2021-22 Annual Governance Statement update

Issue

Action

Lead officer

Deadline

There are areas for improvement within the next refresh of the Council’s
Strategic Plan to ensure that it is better able to differentiate between actions

Ensure Key Performance
Indicators with targets are

Head of Strategy,
Business and

Complete

the Council can deliver and actions to be delivered in partnership. embedded within the Council’'s Customer

Strengthened measures within the plan will also enable improved Strategic plan when next

assessment of impact. refreshed. (21-22 action)

It has been some time since the Council has had an independent Seek an LGA Corporate Peer Head of Originally planned for
assessment of its corporate governance. Action is needed to seek an LGA | Challenge review within the next | Governance, April 2024, reprofiled
Corporate Peer Challenge review within the next two years to provide an two years to provide an external Policy and October 2024 as part of
external review of the Council’'s corporate governance arrangements. review of the Council’s corporate | Information the Corporate

governance arrangements.

Governance
Improvement Plan.
Further reprofiled to
January 2025 to align
with revised delivery
timescales for the

199




68¢ abed

Issue

Action

Lead officer

Deadline

Corporate Governance
Improvement plan and

recruitment to the Chief
Executive and Director
of Finance posts.

Significant overspending was identified within Childrens services. During
2021-22 The incoming Executive Director of Children's Services also
committed to delivering several actions to mitigate spending within
Children's Services including:

Subjecting cases of children looked after by the Council to ongoing
audit, consistent decision-making processes and a solutions panel
chaired by the Director of Children’s Care.

Development of Stronger Families teams within Early Help and
Prevention to increase skills to support additional work and
complexity at this level to prevent future young people entering
care.

Development of the Middlesbrough Multi Agency Children’s Hub to
secure the consistency of thresholds and increasing step-downs to
early help and more timely support for children and young people.
Utilising two specialist project teams to support referral and
assessments at the front door of Children’s Care.

Continuing to keep internal residential places at a high occupancy
level. Re-opening Rosecroft in late summer, once registered, will
produce a further 5 places. Plans to increase Fir Tree by 1 place
later in 2021-22. Other Internal Residential opportunities are to be
reviewed as invest to save models when identified and assessed.
Potential sale of any spare places that are not occupied with
Middlesbrough young people to neighbouring Tees Valley Local
Authorities.

All external residential placements are being reviewed by a
specialist project team set up by the incoming Executive Director of
Children’s Services to ensure that no children are in residential care
who can be fostered or safely returned to their families or the care
of relatives. In addition, this team will look at all cases that are
nearing requirement for residential care with the aim of making sure

Delivery of actions set out to
address overspends within
Children’s Services as set out in
the body of this AGS.

Executive

Director of
Childrens

Services

Complete.

200



Issue Action Lead officer Deadline

that all alternative options for support are fully explored before
residential provision is approved.

=  Work continues to build on increasing the number of internal foster
placements achieved over the past 2 years, allowing children to be
placed in high quality, local authority foster care as an alternative to
more expensive agency placements.

= An in-depth review is taking place of the processes around the
placement of children with friends and family to ensure that these
are only made where necessary and that financial support
represents value for money.

»= Maximising, where appropriate, health contributions from Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) and education contributions from the
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).

ctions identified within the 2022-23 AGS update

06&obed

The Council has put in place comprehensive plans to deliver Corporate Governance improvements and address, in detail, the statutory recommendations made by
its External Auditors. During 2024 these action plans will continue to be delivered. Reports on their progress are considered on a monthly basis by the Independent
Improvement Advisory Board, the Council’s Audit Committee and full Council both receive progress reports at every business meeting they hold. Copies of these
reports are available on the Council’s website.

201



T6¢ abed

Issue Action Lead officer Deadline
Continue to be addressed by the Corporate
There are a range of serious corporate governance Governance Improvement Plan and the section 24
weaknesses that are identified within this statement, and action plan put in place to respond to the statutory Chief Executive | Ongoin
which have been identified by the Council’s External recommendations of the External Auditor and the going
Auditors, CIPFA, Government and the Council itself. governance weaknesses identified by CIPFA,
Government and the Council itself.
There are a number of corporate governance weaknesses
identified within this statement that require co-ordinated, The Council is develoning a revised People Strate
poncerted action in order to address the weaknesses aoroach durin 2023F-)24?that support oﬁ?icers andgy Chief Executive
identified in Member to Member and Member to Officer Mpepmbers o ungerstand cor oratgpvalues and the and Director of
relationships. L P ; Legal and Complet
Nolan Principles and how they should be reflected in egalan omplete
behaviours. Governance
There is also a need to ensure that staff at all levels have Services
the capacity and the capabilities to be able to deliver
effective Council services for residents and businesses.
A robust officer scheme of delegations and sub- Director of
Ensuring that decisions which can be exercised by officers delegatl_ons 'S req_uwed to ensure eff_eqtive, Legal and
within the Council are supported by an effective scheme of appropriate _and timely taklng of deC|_S|on_s that can be Democratic
sub-delegations and that decisions taken through this taken by offlcers..(20-21 action). This WI!I be Services December 2024
route are properly recorded and publicised addrgssgd f(_)llowmg the fundamental review of the (Monitoring
' constitution in 2024. :
Officer)
The Council should have in place a Strategic business The approach to the development of a new Strategic
plan which sets out how the priorities of the Mayor will be | Plan (renamed as the Council Plan) during 23-24 will
reflected within its key, overarching strategic planning include development of supporting Key Performance | Head of
document and there should be effective performance Indicators with targets to strengthen the plan and Strategy, Complete
measures in place to provide assurance as to the increase transparency around the impact of actions Business and
effectiveness of actions being taken to deliver the on the achievement of aims within it. Customer
ambitions set out within that strategic plan.
, . Complete a review of the governance of company in
B e e A0 e | a6t deler he Counos el audt rcions | o
itself that the company established to deliver its internal 1o assess compliance with the Partly an oty Finance Complete

audit functions also complies with this policy.

Owned Council Companies policy.

202



26¢ obed

The Council needs to regularly review its policies and

Head of
Commissioning

strategies to ensure they are fit for purpose. A review of Review of the Strategic Procurement Strategy and Complete
this strategy is scheduled.
Procurement
. o . . ; Head of
The Council should be regularly engaging its residents and | Refreshed approach to consultation and community

. . S : : . Governance,
businesses in order to understand their views on its engagement to be developed in 2024. A revised Policy and March 2025
operation and address areas of weakness. supporting policy will then be developed yar

Information
The Council must ensure that its Children’s Safeguarding The Council must continue on its improvement .

. . i . . journey, to address issues raised by OFSTED in Executive
services are fit for purpose, with all children and their . . . : . !

" L . . relation to its safeguarding services for children to Director of .
families receiving appropriate, consistently good care and ensure all children are safe receive consistently good | Childrens Ongoing
support and that value for money is achieved from : ! . Y9 .

; care that results in sustained improvement to their Services
investments. ; : N
lives and their families lives.
Robust information governance is necessary to ensure the Head of
Council not only appropriately safeguards the extensive . . Governance,
data it holds, but that it is also able to effectively use that Refresh the Information Strategy during 2024. Policy and November 2024
data to inform service delivery and decision making. Information

Actions within the AGS for delivery in 2024-25

203




€6¢ abed

Issue Action Lead officer Deadline
During 2023-24 the Council put in place a refreshed
Corporate Governance Improvement Plan, a response
to the statutory Section 24 recommendations of its
The Council continues to be on an improvement journey in | auditors and an Independent Improvement Advisory . . .
. . . : o : ; . Chief Executive | Ongoing
relation to its culture, governance and financial resilience. Board to provide guidance, support and oversight on
the Council’s improvement journey. In 2024-25 the
Council will continue to deliver against its improvement
plan.
Implementation of forecast demand models over the
As part of steps to ensure the Council is able to be medium to long-term, using a combination of Director of
financially resilient, it needs to have the tools in place to be | demographic data and trends combined with scenario Fllrec oro Complete
able to predict and manage demand. planning and sensitivity analysis. inance
Development of a Workforce Plan to ensure staff at all
The Council needs to ensure that as it transforms, it levels have the skills and capabilities to be successful | Head of HR March 2025
ensures that it has the right staff, in the right roles who are | in their roles
able to take the right decisions and actions to be able to
deliver the best outcomes for our residents. Complete the first annual review of the People Head of HR April 2025
Strategy
A stable leadership team with the capacity and capabilites | Complete recruitment process for all interim
appointments in a Leadership Management Team Head of HR March 2025

to lead the Council’s workforce is essential. One step in
the process for managing this is to ensure use of agency
staff is minimised in business as usual management of the
organisation.

position

While the Council has made improvements to Member
support and development, it is prudent to review the impact
of the Member Development Strategy regularly to assess

Complete the first annual review of the Member
Development Strategy to assess effectiveness and

Head of Legal
and Democratic

November 2024

whether it is having the intended impact. impact on culture and compliance Services
It is good practice for the Audit Committee Chair to report Comm_ence reporting f’*””“*’?‘”y on how the AUd't. Head of
. I . Committee has complied with CIPFA good practice,
annually to provide all members with information on how g . oo ; Governance,
; . . . discharged its responsibilities, and include an . March 2025

the committee discharges its responsibilities and assesses . Policy and

: assessment of its performance. The report should be :

its performance. Information

available to the public.

204




v6¢ abed

CIPFA good practice guidance states that Audit

Review current governance arrangements for Audit

Director of Legal
and

Committees should include independent members and it Committee and make recommendations in relation to Governance March 2025
recommends two independent members to provide inclusion of co-opted independent members for Services
appropriate technical expertise Committee consideration (Monitoring
Officer)
The Council will refresh its approach to customers Head of
The Council recognises that its approach to customer within a revised Customer Services Strategy that will Resident and
engagement and support needs to evolve, in line with the set out how customer services will be delivered within Business November 2024
developing transformation programme. the Council’s target operating model developed within S "
the Transformation programme uppor
The Couni recognisestat s spproach tocommy | £l Snsleton nd Enasgerentplioy o Heagof
engagement and support needs to evolve, in line with the or anisationgthat will emerae from the Transformation | Poli nd ' March 2025
developing transformation programme. 9 gefro € fransiormatio olicy ar
Programme. Information
Head of
Strategy,
Reinstate reporting of quarterly monitoring reports on Business and
It is important to ensure that all members are aware of the performance and finance to Overview and Scrutiny Customer
Council’s performance against its priorities and compliance | Board, alongside existing reporting that is already Complete
with agreed budgets. undertaken to Executive. Head of
Financial
Planning and
Support

As the public sector continues to manage service delivery
within significant pressures, joined up partnership working
across the system will be key to delivery of improved
outcomes for residents.

Put in place a strategic Partnerships Strategy.

Chief Executive

October 2024

Analysis of the purchase of the former Crown Public House
identified a weakness in the Council’s governance
arrangements where the facts within a report change
between publication and report consideration. A review will
be undertaken to codify the process for such a situation in
the future.

Review the process for managing any changes to
reports that occur between publication and meetings

Director of Legal
and

Governance
Services
(Monitoring
Officer)

December 2024

205




G6¢ obed

Analysis of the purchase of the former Crown Public House
identified a weakness in the Council’s governance
arrangements in relation to asset management.

The Council is implementing a Corporate Landlord
Model as part of the transformation work. This sets out
the framework for property decisions and will be
formally considered by Executive prior to full adoption.

A clear Asset Acquisition Policy reflecting these
requirements is integrated into the Corporate Landlord
Model framework that will be considered by Executive.

Head of
Property and
Commercial
Services

Head of
Property and
Commercial
Services

November 2024

November 2024

206




///

¢

//
4

74

Glossa
d ' b7



Glossary of Terms

Accounting Period
The period of time covered by the accounts; normally a period of 12 months commencing on 1 April and
ending as at the balance sheet date of 31 March.

Accrual
A sum included in the accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to the accounting period
covered by the accounts but for which payment had not been received/made at the balance sheet date.

Accrued Benefits
The benefits for service up to a given point in time, whether vested rights or not.

Actuarial Gains and Losses

For a defined benefit scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because events have
not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience gains or losses) or
the actuarial assumptions have changed.

Actuarial Valuation
A valuation of assets held, an estimate of the present value of benefits to be paid and an estimate of
required future contributions, by an actuary, on behalf of a pension fund.

Accumulated Absences Account
A requirement under IFRS is that the Council must make an accrual in its accounts at year end for any
annual leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the financial year.

Admitted Bodies

Organisations that participate in the Teesside Pension Fund under an admission agreement between the
Fund, and the relevant organisation.

Admitted bodies include voluntary and charitable organisations and private contractors that are
undertaking a local authority function following an outsourcing to the private sector.

Annual Governance Statement
The Annual Governance Statement is compiled following the review by the Council of the effectiveness of
the systems of internal control and governance arrangements.

Assets Held for Sale
Assets held for sale are those where the value of the asset will be recovered by selling the asset rather
than through usage. To be classed as held for sale the asset must meet the following criteria:

e be available for inmediate sale in its present condition.

e Its sale must be highly probable.

e management expects the sale to take place within twelve months.

Assets Under Construction

At any time, some projects will be incomplete and will need to be classified as ‘fixed assets under
construction. It is usual for assets under construction to be recognised but recorded as non-operational
until they are available for use, at which point they are recognised as operational assets.

Audit
An independent examination of the Council’s activities, either by internal audit or the Council’s external
auditor.

Balance Sheet
A statement of the balances and reserves at the Local Authority’s disposal, the net current assets employed
in its operation and the value of fixed assets held.

Budget

A statement reflecting the Council’s spending plans for a specific period. The annual revenue budget is
normally finalised and approved in February prior to the commencement of the new financial year.

Page 297 208



Capital Charges
A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of utilising fixed assets in the provision of services.

Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or which adds to the value of an existing fixed asset.

Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account reflects the difference between the cost of fixed assets consumed and
the capital financing set aside to pay for them.

Capital Financing
The methods of financing capital expenditure. This includes borrowing, direct revenue financing, leasing,
the use of capital receipts, capital grants and external contributions.

Capital Grant
Grant from Central Government used to finance specific schemes in the capital programme.

Capital Receipts

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets. Such income may only be used for capital purposes, i.e., to repay
outstanding borrowing or to finance new capital expenditure. Any receipts which have not yet been utilised,
are referred to as “Capital Receipts Unapplied”.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are - "short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value". They are shown in the Balance
Sheet along with cash under the heading "Cash and Cash equivalents".

Collection Fund Account
This account records the income received by the Council in relation to local taxation and non-domestic
rates. It also shows how the income has been distributed to the preceptors and to the general fund.

Community Asset Transfer

A change in management and/or ownership of land or buildings from public bodies (most commonly local
authorities) to communities (community and voluntary sector groups, community enterprises, social
enterprises, etc.)

Component Accounting
Where assets can be broken down into different components which have a material value and substantially
different economic lives, then each component should be separately valued.

Contingency
The sum of money set aside to meet unforeseen expenditure or liability.

Contingent Asset

A contingent asset arises in a situation where a potential inflow or economic benefit to the authority will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of some future event but where the value of the benefit
cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent Liability
A contingent liability is either:

e a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the authority’s control; or

e a present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Creditors

Amounts owed by the Council for work done, goods received, or services provided by the end of the
financial year for which payment has not yet been made.

Page 298 209



Current Assets
An asset which will be consumed or cease to have material value within the following financial year (e.qg.,
stocks and debtors).

Current Liabilities
These are amounts owed by the Council due for payment within the following financial year (e.qg., creditors
or cash overdrawn).

Current Service Costs (Pensions)
The increase in the present value of a defined benefit pension scheme’s liabilities arising from an
employee’s service in the current financial year.

Curtailment (Pensions)
An event that reduces the expected years of future service of present employees in a defined benefit
pension scheme or reduces the defined benefits for some or all of their future service.

Debtors
Income due to the Council for services carried out or grants/contributions due in the financial year for which
payment has not been received by the end of that year.

Deferred Pensions
Individuals who have ceased to be active members of a pension scheme but are entitled to benefits payable
at a later date.

Defined Benefit Scheme
A pension scheme which calculates benefits due from the scheme independently to the contributions
payable and the return on the investments made by the scheme.

De-minimis

For capital accounting, a de-minimis value is set below which any items of expenditure are excluded from
the capital accounts and instead treated as revenue expenditure. The Council’'s de-minimis levels are
outlined in the statement of accounting policies.

Depreciation

The allocation of the cost of consuming a tangible asset over its useful life. Consumption includes the
wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset whether arising from use, passage
of time or obsolescence through either changes in technology or demand for the goods and services
produced by the asset.

Direct Revenue Financing
The financing of capital projects from revenue resources.

Discretionary Benefits
Retirement benefits, which the employer has no legal, contractual, or constructive obligation to award, and
which are awarded under the authority’s discretionary powers.

Earmarked Reserves
Funding set-aside to be used for a specific purpose at some point in the future.

Expected Rate of Return on Pension Assets
The average rate of return, including both income and changes in fair value but net of scheme expenses,
expected over the remaining life of the related obligation on the actual assets held by the scheme.

Extraordinary Items
Transactions that fall outside of the ordinary activities of the council and are not expected to reoccur.

Non-Current Assets
Assets that have a useful life and yield benefits to the Council and the services it provides for a period of
more than one year.

General Fund
The main revenue account used to fund the cost of providing Council services. The main sources of income

Page 299 210



credited to the fund are the council tax and business rates precepts and the revenue support grant (RSG)
from central government.

Heritage Assets
A tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical, or environmental qualities
that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture.

Impairment
The diminishing in quality, strength, amount, or value of an asset.

IFRS - International Financial Reporting Standards

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are a set of international accounting standards stating
how particular types of transactions and other events should be reported in financial statements. IFRS are
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and specify exactly how organisations must
maintain and report their accounts. Local Authorities have had to prepare their accounts in accordance
with IFRS requirements since April 2010.

Intangible Assets
An asset that is not physical in nature. Examples of this type of asset include IT software and other licences
and patents and trademarks.

Investment Property
An investment property is defined as a property, which is held exclusively for revenue generation or for the
capital gains that the asset is expected to generate.

Leases

A lease is a contract between a lessor and leasee for the hire of a specific asset with the ownership of the
asset being retained by the lessor. There are two main types of lease, operating and finance leases.

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to
the lessee and the minimum lease payments amount to substantially all (90% or more) of the fair value of
the leased asset. An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

Local Management of Schools

Under the Local Management of Schools Funding arrangements, the Council is required to pass on the
calculated share of each funding stream budget directly to all its schools. Individual schools have direct
responsibility for managing their budgets and any surplus or deficit incurred in the financial year is carried
forward to the following financial year as part of the schools’ balances earmarked reserve.

Materiality
A figure is classified as material if its omission or misstatement could influence decisions users take on the
basis of the financial statements.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
The minimum amount Local Authorities are required to set aside each year for the repayment of
outstanding long-term debt.

Movement in Reserves Statement

This statement highlights the movement in the year for the earmarked reserves held by the Council. This
is split between ‘usable reserves’ (those held to fund future expenditure) and unusable reserves (technical
accounting adjustments).

Non-Domestic Rates (also known as Business Rates)
Charges paid by occupiers of non- domestic properties for council services. The charge is calculated by
multiplying the rateable value of a property by a multiplier set by Central Government.

Net Book Value
The current value of a fixed asset after taking account of depreciation.

Non-Operational Assets

Fixed assets owned by the Council but not currently being used in the delivery of services. They include
surplus properties awaiting disposal, investment properties and assets under construction.

Page 300 211


http://www.investopedia.com/terms/i/ias.asp
http://www.investopedia.com/terms/t/transaction.asp
http://www.investopedia.com/terms/f/financial-statements.asp

Operational Assets
Fixed assets owned by the Council and used in the delivery of Council services.

Operating Segments
The breakdown of the Council’s activities into distinct service divisions/ outcome areas.

Past Service Cost
The increase in the present value of a defined pension scheme liabilities relating to employee service in
prior periods arising as a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits.

Pension Asset Ceiling Adjustment

The pension asset ceiling adjustment is made to ensure sure that the Council’s balance sheet properly
reflects how the value of any defined benefit deficit or surplus is affected by the pensions scheme’s rules
and funding requirements.

Post Balance Sheet Events

There are two types of post balance sheet events. Adjusting events are those events that provide additional
evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date and require adjustments to be made to the
accounts. Non adjusting events are those events after the balance sheet date which provide evidence of
conditions not existing at the balance sheet date. These may require disclosure in the accounts stating the
nature of the event and an estimate of the financial impact.

Precept
The levy made on the council by other bodies for income collected from Council taxpayers on their behalf
e.g., Fire or Police Authority.

Provisions
Funds set aside to cover liabilities which are likely or certain to be incurred at a future date but where the
exact amount and timing of the liability is currently not known.

Prudence
The accounting principle that requires liabilities and expenses to be recorded as soon as they occur, but
revenues only when they are assured or realised.

Related Parties
Two or more parties are considered to be related parties when at any time during the financial period:

e one party has direct or indirect control of the other party; or

e the parties are subject to common control from the same sources; or

e one party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party to an extent
that the other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate interest; or the
parties in entering a transaction are subject to influence from the same source to such an extent
that one of the parties to the transactions has subordinated its own separate interests.

Related Party Transactions
A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, or for, a
related party irrespective of whether a charge is made.

Revaluation Reserve

The balance sheet reserve that records increases in the valuation of fixed assets that have not yet been
realised through the disposal of the asset. Decreases in asset valuations are also taken to the revaluation
reserve if an asset has previously had an increase in valuation.

Revenue Expenditure
The day-to-day costs incurred in providing Council services. This includes staffing, supplies & services,
transport, and utility costs etc.

Revenue Support Grant
The main source of Central Government grant funding for Local Authorities.

Scheduled Bodies
Local authorities or similar organisations whose staff are automatically entitled to become members of the

Page 301 212



Teesside Pension Fund.

Specific Grants
Government grants awarded to Local Authorities and earmarked for specific services, e.g., Standards Fund
Grant for Children’s Services.

Stocks (Inventories)
Goods or merchandise available for sale or distribution held at the balance sheet date. This can include
the following:

goods or other assets purchased for resale.

consumable stores.

raw materials and components purchased for incorporation into products for sale.
products and services in intermediate stages of completion.

long-term contract balances and finished goods.

Unusable Reserves
Reserves that are held by the Council for accounting purposes. The gains or losses in these reserves are
unrealised and as a result are not available for future use by the Council.

Usable Reserves
Unutilised resources set aside to allow planning for future Revenue & Capital expenditure.

Useful Life
The period over which the Council will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset.

Work in Progress
The total value of the materials and labour costs incurred to date on unfinished projects.

Page 302 213



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Audit Committee Work Programme 24/25

Agenda Item 11

Committee Report title / subject Lead / author
date
25 July 2024 | This audit programme A Johnstone
Veritau internal audit and counter fraud | P Jeffrey
work programme 2024/25
Risk annual assurance report A Johnstone
Health and Safety Annual Assurance A Johnstone
report
SIRO annual report A Johnstone
Progress against the Corporate A Johnstone
Governance improvement plan and the
Section 24 report
Council VM 2021/22 and 2022/23 M Rutter
Audit Strategy Memorandum for the Cath Andrew (Mazars)
Council
Audit Strategy Memorandum for Cath Andrew (Mazars)
Teesside Pension Fund
22 August Complaints annual assurance report A Johnstone
2024 2023/4
2023/4 Statement of accounts including | J Weston / A
AGS Johnstone
Verbal status update on Reset of Local | M Rutter
Government Audits
Progress report — Mazars Cath Andrew (Mazars)
Head of Internal Audit annual report P Jeffrey
Draft Statement of Accounts including | JWeston /A
Annual Governance Statement 2023/24 | Johnstone
HOLDING — possible update on BV A Johnstone
notice status
Progress against the Corporate A Johnstone
Governance improvement plan and the
Section 24 report
Progress report — Mazars Cath Andrew (Mazars)
3 October Progress against the Corporate A Johnstone
2024 Governance improvement plan and the
Section 24 report
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud P Jeffrey
progress reports
Annual assurance report on L Grabham
procurement
Progress report — Mazars Cath Andrew (Mazars)

Page 303




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Pension Fund Audit Results Reports for | Richard Tebbs (EY)
both the 2021/22 and 2022/23 audits
BV Notice update A Johnstone
28 November | Special Meeting TBC
2024
12 December | Progress report — Mazars Cath Andrew (Mazars)
2024 Audit completion report - Mazars Cath Andrew (Mazars)
Annual assurance report on A Johnstone
Partnership Governance
6 February Annual assurance report on decision B Carr / A Wilson
2025 making
Progress against the Corporate A Johnstone
Governance improvement plan and the
Section 24 report
Annual assurance report on business A Johnstone
continuity
Local Code of Corporate Governance A Johnstone
Annual assurance report HR N Finnegan
Internal Audit consultation report (for P Jeffrey
the 24/25 work programme)
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud P Jeffrey
progress reports
Progress report — Mazars Cath Andrew (Mazars)
Mid-year risk update A Johnstone
13 March Progress against the Corporate A Johnstone
2025 Governance improvement plan and the
Section 24 report
Performance Management G Cooper
PPMF assurance report A Johnstone
HR Annual Assurance report N Finnegan
Veritau internal audit and counter fraud | P Jeffrey
work programme 2025/26
Self assessment of the effectiveness of | A Johnstone / Justin
the Audit Committee Weston
Progress report — Mazars Cath Andrew (Mazars)
Counter Fraud Framework and refresh | J Dodsworth (Veritau)
of the Counter Fraud Strategy
April Possible additional meeting required by
the Committee

Items to note

Change the standard wording on assurance reports to ask the committee if the information is
sufficient to give them assurance that appropriate governance arrangements are in place

Page 304




	Agenda
	4 Minutes - Audit Committee - 22 August 2024
	5 Corporate Governance Improvement Plan and Section 24 Action Plan Progress Report
	Appendix 1 - Corporate Governance Improvement Plan Measures of Success
	Appendix 2 - Section 24 Report Measures of Success
	Appendix 3 - MIIAB Meeting Outcomes

	6 Best Value Notice - Update
	Appendix 1 - Letter to Middlesbrough Council from Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government 9-9-24

	7 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Report
	Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Progress Report October 2024
	Appendix 2 - Counter Fraud Progress Report October 2024

	8 Backstop Progress on the 2021/22 and 2022/23 Statement of Accounts Approval
	9 Forvis Mazars Progress Report - 2023/24
	Audit Progress Report
	Contents
	Slide Number 3
	Audit progress
	Audit progress
	Slide Number 6
	National publications
	National publications and other updates��NAO Publications
	National publications and other updates
	National publications and other updates
	National publications and other updates
	National publications and other updates
	Slide Number 13

	10 Draft Statement of Accounts and the Annual Governance Statement 2023/24
	Appendix 1 - 2023-24 Draft Statement of Accounts (003)

	11 Work Programme (Standard Item)

